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Or

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

Or

SHELL COMPANY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission file number: 001-35893
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N/A
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(or for such shorter period that the registrant veagiired to submit and post such files). YEs No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, noa-accelerated filer. See definition of
“accelerated filer and large accelerated filerRnle 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filerx] Accelerated filef] Non-accelerated filel]

Indicate by check mark which basis of accountirgréigistrant has used to prepare the financiasiatts included in this filing:
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O by the International Accounting Standards BoeX] O
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report contains forward-looking stateta¢hat reflect our current expectations and viefsfsiture events. These forward
looking statements are made under the “safe-hagronisions of the U.S. Private Securities LitigatiReform Act of 1995. Some of these

forward looking statements can be identified byneand phrases such as “anticipate”, “should” glik, “foresee”, “believe”, “estimate”,

T (LT "o« LU ” o ”ow ",

“expect”, “intend”, “continue”, “could”, “may”, “pan”, “project”, “predict”, “will", and similar expessions. These forward-looking statements
include statements relating to:

e our goals and strategie

* our ability to grow our payment volume

» our ability to maintain the size of our distributioetwork;

» our ability to maintain our relationships with anerchants and agen

» the expected growth of Visa Qiwi Wallet and altéiveamethods of paymer

e our ability to continue to develop new and attraefproducts and service

» our future business development, results of opmratand financial conditiol

* our ability to continue to develop new technologiesl upgrade our existing technologi

e our ability to grow our advertising revenue andeothalue added service

e competition in our industry

e projected revenue, profits, earnings and othemed&d financial information; ar

» developments in, or changes, to the laws, regulaia governmental policies governing our busiaessindustry

The preceding list is not intended to be an exinaiist of all of our forward-looking statemenihese forward-looking statements are

based on our beliefs, assumptions and expectatifdiusure performance, taking into account the infation currently available to us. These
statements are only predictions based upon oueruexpectations and projections about future evdrtere are important factors that could
cause our actual results, level of activity, parfance or achievements to differ materially from ridssults, level of activity, performance or

achievements expressed or implied by the forwao#titay statements. In particular, you should consilde risks set forth in Item 3.D “Risk
Factors” in this annual report.

These forward-looking statements speak only aketiaite of this annual report. Except as requiyeldiy, we undertake no obligation to
publicly update or revise any forward-looking staénts, whether as a result of new information,rievents or otherwise.

PART |

ITEM 1. Identity of Directors, Senior Management and Advises.

Not applicable.

ITEM 2. Offer Statistics and Expected Timetable
Not applicable.

ITEM 3. Key Information.
A. Selected financial data

The following tables set forth our selected cordaitd financial and other data. You should readdhewing selected consolidated
financial and other data together with the inforioratn Item 5 “Operating and Financial Review anddpects” and Item 3.D “Risk Factors”
and our consolidated financial statements andetaed notes included elsewhere in this annualrtePair financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the International FirriReporting Standards as published by the Iaternal Accounting Standards Board, or
IFRS.
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The following tables also contain translationsudile amounts into U.S. dollars for amounts pregkfdethe year ended December 31,
2014. These translations are solely for conveniehtiee reader and were calculated at the ratd 8 B6.2584 per U.S. $1.00, which is equal
to the official exchange rate quoted by the CerBeaik of the Russian Federation, or CBR, on Decei@bg2014.

Year ended December 31
2010 2011 2012 2013* 2014
RUB RUB RUB RUB RUB U.S.$
(in millions, except per share da

Consolidated Income Statement Data:

Revenue 6,15¢  8,15¢ 8,911 11,66¢ 14,71¢ 262
Cost of revenu (3,75) (5,579 (5,459 (6,396 (7,279) (229
Selling, general and administrative exper (1,420 (1,549 (1,839 (2,67¢) (3,087 (55
Depreciation and amortizatic 171 (147 (129) (119 (359 (6)
Impairment of intangible assets and good — — 4) (5) — —
Profit from operations 81€ 901 1,48¢ 2,47: 4,01( 71
Gain on bargain purcha — 15 — — — —
Gain (loss) from disposal of subsidiar 7 7 D — — —
Change in fair value of derivative financial as 9 — — — — —
Other income 21 10 17 91 42 1
Other expense (39 (73 (29 (20 (30 Q)
Foreign exchange ga 42 37 81 79  3,35¢M) 6C
Foreign exchange lo: (42 (49 (109 (71) (1,429  (25)
Share of loss of associal — (23 (13 (79 (27 @
Impairment of investment in associa — — — (22 (25) ©)
Interest incom 5 6 26 22 2 0
Interest expens 3 (4) (9 (29 (42 Q)
Profit before tax from continuing operations 821 827 1,45¢ 2,44 5,86z 104
Income tax expens (209 (247) (40¢) (610 (89%5) (16)
Net profit from continuing operations 617 58€ 1,04¢ 1,83t 4,96¢ 88
Gain (loss) from discontinued operatic 13¢ (15€) (240 — — —
Net profit 75E 43C 80¢ 1,83t  4,96¢ 88

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the pare 693 52C 91C 1,87: 5,024 9C

Non-controlling interest: 62 (90 (102 (38 (56) Q)
Weighted average number of shs

Basic 52 52 52 52 53 53

Diluted 52 52 52 52 54 54
Earnings per shal

Basic 13.3¢ 10.0¢ 17.5C 36.0C 94.0¢ 1.67

Diluted 13.15 10.0¢ 17.5C 35.7C 92.7: 1.6t
Dividends declared per she

RUB 7.1¢ 8.01 16.67 35.8¢  53.4¢ n/e

u.s.$ 0.24 0.2t 0.5t 1.1C 0.9t n/e

As of December 31
2010 2011 2012 2013* 2014
RUB RUB RUB RUB RUB USs$
(in millions)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Dat¢
Cash and cash equivalel 6,892 8,81( 9,94: 11,637 17,08( 304
Total current asse 10,41 12,11: 15,607 16,34: 25,03¢ 44~
Total asset 13,51¢ 15,30¢ 18,70¢ 20,66t 30,05( 534
Total equity 2,348 2,358 2,49¢ 2,70¢  8,33¢ 14¢
Total debt 67 19C 65 11C 43 1
Total liabilities 11,16¢ 12,95 16,21( 17,96. 21,71¢ 381
Total equity and liabilitie! 13,51¢ 15,30¢ 18,70¢ 20,66t 30,05( 534
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Year ended December 31
2010 2011 2012 2013* 2014
RUB RUB RUB RUB RUB U.S9
(in millions, except as otherwise indicat¢

Other Financial and Operating Data:

Adjusted net revenu2 2,79¢ 3,25¢ 4,16¢ 6,16¢ 8,83¢t 157
Adjusted EBITDA® 1,063 1,18 1,851 2,97¢ 4,81¢ 86
Adjusted net profi® 76¢ 721 1,30¢ 2,17: 3,49¢ 62
Payment volume (in billions®3) 351 40z 47E 561 64E 12
Active kiosks and terminals (unit 158,86 170,38: 169,10: 168,23t 181,14¢ n/e
Active Visa Qiwi Wallet accounts (at period endniillions) ®) 6.C 8.1 114 15.4 17.2 n/e
Average net revenue yie®) 0.8(% 0.82% 0.88% 1.1(% 1.31% nle

*

1)
(@)

(3)
(4)

(5)
(6)

The amounts shown here do not correspond toitlaaéial statements for the year ended Decembe2®I13 and reflect immaterial
reclassifications made to conform to the presesa

Primarily relates to foreign currency changesuiting from the $88,942,404 received in connectith our offering of ADSs in June
2014. As of December 31, 2014, the majority of ¢heemds had not been utilize

See “—Non-IFRS Financial Measurdst how we define and calculate adjusted net regeadjusted EBITDA, and adjusted net profi
non-IFRS financial measures and reconciliationthese measures to revenue, in the case of adjustedvenue, and net profit, in the
case of adjusted EBITDA and adjusted net pr

Payment volume consists of the amounts paid byastomers to merchants less i-group eliminations

We measure the numbers of our kiosks and tedsiion a daily basis, with only those kiosks amthieals being taken into calculation
through which at least one payment has been predekging the day, which we refer to as active kscand terminals. The period end
numbers of our kiosks and terminals are calculagedn average of the amount of active kiosks amntirtals for the last 30 days of the
respective reporting perio

Number of active Visa Qiwi Wallet accounts is definas the number of wallets through which at leastpayment has been made or
have been loaded or reloaded in the 12 months giregéhe end of the relevant reporting peri

Average net revenue yield is defined as adjuste¢devenue divided by payment volun

Non-IFRS Financial Measures

not consider these non-IFRS financial measureslastitutes for or superior to revenue, in the afsaljusted net revenue, or net profit, in the

We present adjusted net revenue, adjusted EBITDRadjusted net profit, each of which are non-IFR&rfcial measures. You should

case of adjusted EBITDA and adjusted net profithgarepared in accordance with IFRS. Furthermareabse these non-IFRS financial

measures are not determined in accordance with,IfR$ are susceptible to varying calculations mag not be comparable to other similarly

titted measures presented by other companies. \6@muesge investors and others to review our findiefarmation in its entirety and not rely
on a single financial measure.

Adjusted net revent

Adjusted net revenue is calculated by subtractogy of revenue from revenue and adding back congpiensto employees and related

taxes. Adjusted net revenue is a key measure ysethhagement to observe our operational profitgtgince it reflects our portion of the

revenue net of fees that we pass through, primaribur agents. In addition, under IFRS, consurees fare recorded as net revenue whereas
merchant fees are recorded as gross revenue. dreriaf order to analyze our two sources of payrpemtessing fees on a comparative basis.

management reviews adjusted net revenue in adddignoss revenue. We add back compensation toogexd and related taxes because,
although they are an essential part of our distidbunetwork, these expenses are not directly tinikepayment volume. Nevertheless,
compensation to employees and related taxes reyisese important portion of our operating costs affielcts liquidity and financial
performance.



Table of Contents

The following table reconciles adjusted net revelouevenue.

Year ended December 31

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
RUB RUB RUB RUB RUB UuSs$
(in millions)
Revenue 6,15¢ 8,15¢ 8,911 11,66¢ 14,71¢ 262
Minus: Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciatiod amortization (3,75) (5,57%) (5,459 (6,39¢) (7,279 (129
Plus: Compensation to employees and related 39z 66¢ 712 89¢ 1,391 25
Adjusted net revenue 2,79¢  3,25¢  4,16¢ 6,16¢ 8,83¢ 157

Adjusted EBITD/

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as net profit beforeante tax expense, interest expense, interest inemehelepreciation and amortization,
as further adjusted for gain (loss) from discontithoperations, share of loss of associates, impairof investment in associates, foreign
exchange gain and loss, change in fair value oValive financial assets, other expenses, othemirg; gain/(loss) from disposal of
subsidiaries, corporate costs allocated to disnaatl operations, gain on bargain purchase, incoone depositary, offering expenses, share-
based payment expenses and goodwill impairmentpié&ent adjusted EBITDA as a supplemental perfocenameasure because we believe
that it facilitates operating performance comparssfsom period to period and company to companidnking out potential differences cau
by variations in capital structures (affecting nef& expenses, net), changes in foreign exchamee treat impact financial asset and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than our functicnalency (affecting foreign exchange (loss) gagt), tax positions (such as the impact on
periods or companies of changes in effective ttes)areversal of impairments (affecting other mecand impairment of investment in
associates), the age and book depreciation of fissdts (affecting relative depreciation expens®);cash charges (affecting share-based
payments expenses), and certain one-time incomenerg (affecting other income, offering expensais, gn bargain purchase, gain (loss) on
disposal of subsidiaries and income from deposjtdkgjusted EBITDA also excludes other expensearesin losses of associates and
impairment of investment in associates becauseelveve it is helpful to view the performance of dawsiness excluding the impact of entities
that we do not control, and because our shareecofi¢h income (loss) of the associate and othemsgseincludes items that have other been
excluded from adjusted EBITDA (such as finance esps, net, tax on income and depreciation and &aton). In addition, adjusted
EBITDA excludes the non-cash impact of changesénfair value of derivate financial assets andaih @gloss) from discontinued operations
and corporate costs allocated to discontinued tipesabecause we do not believe these items refleainderlying performance of our
business. Because adjusted EBITDA facilitates imatlecomparisons of operating performance on a roonsistent basis, we also use adjusted
EBITDA in measuring our performance relative tottbfiour competitors.

Some limitations of adjusted EBITDA are:
» adjusted EBITDA does not include offering expen:
» adjusted EBITDA does not reflect income tax payrmé¢hat may represent a reduction in cash avaitalls;
» adjusted EBITDA does not include other income, pthgense and foreign exchange gains and lo

» adjusted EBITDA excludes depreciation and aination and although these are non-cash chargessgets being depreciated and
amortized may have to be replaced in the fut

» adjusted EBITDA does not include gains and lossms fliscontinued operations; a

» adjusted EBITDA does not include sh-based payment
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Year ended December 31

2010 2011 2012  2013* 2014
RUB _RUB RUB RUB RUB U.S4
(in millions)
Net Profit 75E 43C 80€ 1,83t 4,96¢ 88
plus:
Depreciation and amortizatic 171 141 12¢ 112 353 6
Gain on bargain purcha — (a5 — — — —
Impairment of investment in associa — — — 22 25 0
Gains (loss) on disposals of subsidia @) (7 1 — — —
Other income (excluding income from depositz (22) (20 (17) (20) 4 @
Other expense 34 73 29 20 3C 1
Change in fair value of derivative financial as 9 — — — — —
Foreign exchange ga (42 (37 (81) (79) (3,359 W  (6Q)
Foreign exchange lo: 42 49 103 71 1,42¢0) 25
Share of loss of associal — 23 13 79 27 1
Interest incomi (5) (6) (26) (22 2 0)
Interest expense 3 4 9 29 42 1
Income tax expenst 204 241 40¢€ 61C 89t 16
Income from depositar® — — — (77) (38 Q)
Corporate costs allocated to discontinued opers 80 141 61 — — —
Offering expense — — 10¢ 15t 32 0
Shar-based payment expens — — 66 231 427 8
(Gain)/ loss from discontinued operatic (13¢)  15€ 24C — — —
Goodwill impairmen — — — 5 — —
Adjusted EBITDA 1,067 1,18: 1,851 2,97¢ 4,81¢ 86

* The amounts shown here do not correspond toitlaméial statements for the year ended Decembe2@I13 and reflect immaterial
reclassifications made to conform to the presesa

(1) Primarily relates to foreign currency changesuiting from the $88,942,404 received in connectiith our offering of ADSs in June
2014. As of December 31, 2014, the majority of ¢heemds had not been utilize

(2) Income from depositary is presented in the gpdine in reconciliation tables for conveniepegposes, while it is included in other
income in financial statemen

Adjusted net profi

Adjusted net profit is defined as net profit exéhglgain or loss on discontinued operations (ne&xf, corporate costs allocated to
discontinued operations, amortization of fair vadaustments, gain on bargain purchase, gains) ((wsdisposals, share-based payment
expenses, offering expenses, goodwill impairmemipine from depository, foreign exchange loss (gamJune 2014 offering proceeds anc
effects of taxation on those excluded items. Adidsiet profit is a key measure used by manageroeatiserve the operational profitability of
the company. We believe adjusted net profit isulgefan investor in evaluating our operating perfance because it is widely used by
investors, securities analysts and other intergsdeiies to measure a company’s operating perfocsaithout the effect of non-recurring
items or items that are not core to our operatibns.example, loss on discontinued operations,aratp costs allocated to discontinued
operations, gain on bargain purchase, gains omsig, the effects of deferred taxation on exclutieds and offering expenses do not
represent the core operations of the businessamadtization of fair value adjustments and shamsetigpayments expenses do not have a
substantial cash effect. Nevertheless, such gaitisosses can affect our financial performance.

7
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The following table reconciles adjusted net prtafinet profit.

Year ended December 31

2010 2011 2012  2013* 2014
RUB RUB _RUB RUB RUB_ U.S.J9
(in millions)

Net profit 758 43C 80¢ 1,83t 4,96¢ 88
(Gain)/loss from discontinued operations, net &f (13¢) 15¢€ 24C — — —
Goodwill impairmen —_- - — 5 - —
Corporate costs allocated to discontinued opers 80 141 61 — — —
Amortization of fair value adjustmer 11€ 51 42 22 74 1
Gain on bargain purcha — (15 — — — —
Gains (loss) on disposals of subsidia @ (@ 1 — —-  —
Offering expense —  — 10¢ 15E 32 0

Income from depositar®) -

7y 39 (1)
Shar+based payment expens 8

66 231 422

Effect of taxation of the above iter (40) (35 (22) 4 15) (0
Foreign Exchange gain on June 2014 offering prag® - — — — (1,947 (35
Adjusted net profit 76€ 721 1,30¢€ 2,17¢ 3,49¢ 62

* The amounts shown here do not correspond toitlaméial statements for the year ended Decembe2®I13 and reflect immaterial
reclassifications made to conform to the presesa

(1) Income from depositary is presented in the gpdine in reconciliation tables for conveniepegposes, while it is included in other
income in financial statemen

(2) Foreign exchange gain on June 2014 offeringgmds, as presented in the reconciliation of NefitRo Adjusted Net Profit differs from
the Foreign exchange loss/(gain) in the reconmliadf Net Profit to Adjusted EBITDA as the latiaecludes all the foreign exchange
losses/(gains) for the period, while the formeates solely to foreign currency changes resultiomfthe $88,942,404 received in
connection with our offering of ADSs in June 20

Exchange Rate Information

The following tables show, for the periods indichteertain information regarding the exchange ragt®een the Russian ruble and the
U.S. dollar, based on the official exchange rateteg by the CBR.

Period Period End Period average® High Low

Year ended December 31, 2010 30.4¢ 30.3¢ 31.7¢ 28.9:
Year ended December 31, 2C 32.2(C 29.3¢ 32.6¢ 27.2¢
Year ended December 31, 2C 30.37 31.07% 34.0¢ 28.9¢
Year ended December 31, 2C 32.7¢ 31.8¢ 33.47 29.9:
Year ended December 31, 2C 56.2¢ 38.6( 67.7¢ 32.6¢
September 201 39.3¢ 37.9( 39.3¢ 36.8(
October 201 43.3¢ 40.8( 43.3¢ 39.3¢
November 201: 49.3z 46.2: 49.3: 41.9¢
December 201 56.2¢ 55.71 67.7¢ 50.77
January 201! 68.9¢ 65.1°F 68.9¢ 56.2¢
February 201! 61.27 64.5:2 69.6¢ 60.71
March 2015 (through March 1. 62.6¢ 61.6¢ 62.6¢ 59.9¢

(1) The period average in respect of a year isutatled as the average of the exchange rates daghieusiness day of each month in the
relevant period. The period average in respectrobath is calculated as the average of the exchaatgs for each business day in the
relevant month

B. Capitalization and Indebtedness

Not applicable.
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C. Reasons for the Offer and Use of Proceed

Not applicable.

D. Risk Factors

In conducting our business, we face many risksrat interfere with our business objectives. Sohtkese risks relate to our
operational processes, while others relate to ausibess environment. It is important to understdrenature of these risks. If any of the
following risks actually occurs, it may materiabarm our business, results of operations or finahcondition.

Risks Relating to Our Business and Industry

The payment services industry is highly competitigmad we have a number of competitors that are krgnd have greater financial and
other resources.

The payment services industry is highly competjtased our continued growth depends on our abititpadmpete effectively. In the
countries in which we operate, we face competitiom a variety of financial and non-financial busiis groups. These competitors include
retail banks, nonraditional payment service providers (such asleztaand mobile network operators, or MNOSs), triadial kiosk and termin:
operators and electronic payment system operatenwgll as other companies which provide variousm$oof payment services, including
electronic payment and payment processing seniaspetitors in our industry seek to differentiitemselves by features and functionalities
such as speed, convenience, network size, acdégshmours of operation, reliability and price.significant number of our competitors have
greater financial, technological and marketing veses than we have, operate robust networks aniginl/ regarded by consumers.

In Russia, we face significant competition from aragtail banks for our services. Our primary cotitpes include Sberbank,
Russia’s largest retail bank that is majority-owhgdhe Russian state, and Alfa-Bank, one of taditeg privately owned Russian retail banks,
both of which have electronic banking systems angd retail networks. Some retail banks are cugrel@veloping their own networks of
kiosks and terminals and various electronic paymenducts. Sberbank, for example, has stated thatrategic goals include the promotion of
alternative banking channels, such as kiosks,netdsanking and mobile banking, and actively dep®lits online payment services
capabilities, including through Yandex.Money, @} venture with Yandex, a major electronic payt®rstem operator in Russia. Sherbank
has access to significant financial resources anekgensive nationwide network of branches thatsgaxe as a platform for the expansion c
kiosk business. Sberbank is the largest procegsdility bill payments, which constitute a vengsificant portion of overall consumer
spending in our industry. These factors may giverBénk a substantial competitive advantage ovériugursues its strategy of establishing a
broad kiosk network, internet banking and mobilekiag businesses.

Our competitors also include the Russian FedeedkSinitary Enterprise Postal Service, or Russizst,Rvhich offers certain
payment services. Russian Post’s geographical ragiogt is more dispersed than our physical distiitvunetwork (i.e. our kiosks and
terminals). As a stateponsored institution, we believe that it is abl@tovide payment services at significantly lowgcgs than we are able
match profitably. If any of our competitors wittheoad network of branches, including Sberbank, -8émk or Russian Post, were to establish
or actively pursue a kiosk and terminal businessywuld lose many of our consumers and our maigpuil be harmed. The geographical
footprint of some of our competitors could alsddeeraged by them to gain or increase a markeeshahe money transfers business. For
instance, in November 2014, it was reported thaiRbssian Post launched a card-to-cash servicénalimys consumers to remit money from
their cards to any post office throughout Russia. a#0 face competition from non-traditional paytremrvice providers that have substantial
financial resources, such as major telecommunicaiial media devices retailers, including Eurosdt@ryaznoy, as well as MNOs, in
particular the Russian “Big Three” MNOs, MegaFoimm@elCom and MTS. We also compete against somettlireomparable businesses,
such as traditional kiosk and terminal operatarsiuiding OJSC Cyberplat, and OJSC Elecsnet, amtreféc payment system operators
(primarily Yandex.Money and WebMoney). New compattmay penetrate the Russian electronic paymerkainas well, including
established international players such as MoneyG@mogle, Samsung (which acquired an electronicnasgs company LoopPay in February
2015) or Apple (which recently introduced its owayments service Apple Pay in September 2014). 1182PayPal obtained a Non-Banking
Credit Institution license from the CBR in ordercmnduct business in Russia, which enabled itoousts to effect transactions in Russian
rubles. In November 2013, Russia’s premier onliaekbTinkoff Credit Systems announced the launditsafwn electronic wallet system,
called Tinkoff Mobile Wallet. Most recently, in Nember 2014, the statevned telecommunications company Rostelekom anrsalits plan:
to create its own payment system. Additionally, savhour competitors are currently our major mentbdthe Big Three MNOS) or our agents
(for example, Svyaznoy), and are responsible fulsstantial amount of our business. If we are nabtompete successfully for consumers,
agents and merchants, our business, financial tondind results of operations could be materiatlyersely affected.
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We have experienced a decline in our average ngerrie yield in the past and our continued growthivdepend on being able to continue
to increase our payment volume and to introduce nies and value added services.

One of the key measures we use to assess ourifilhpecformance is our average net revenue yieldchvwe calculate by dividing
adjusted net revenue by the total payment voluntbeofransactions we process. Our average netuewvgald increased over the three-year
period ended December 31, 2014. However, we fackgtine in our average net revenue yield for éertgerchant categories in the past and
may continue to do so in the future. In particular2011 our average net revenue yield for Teletmmsactions went down, which was driven
by a decline in merchant fees from our larger f@t&irchants, in particular the Big Three MNOs, Wiawe been seeking to reduce costs. In
response to the decline in merchant fees, we int@d consumer fees that are collected by our ageeteeen November 2013 and January
2014, in response to a significant decrease in Imaetcfees by one of the Big Three MNOs, we intr@dliconsumer fees for mobile and
broadband internet top-ups through Visa Qiwi Wélbetertain operators. In June 2014, we elimin#tede fees, which was reflected in
decreased payment net revenue yield for Telecowicesrin the second half of 2014. However, we stillect consumer fees from Visa Qiwi
Wallet users for a variety of other transactiortse Fhift from merchant-paid processing fees to oms-paid processing fees presents us with
a number of challenges. Since consumers, and nohiangs, increasingly bear additional cost of usingnetwork, we must continue to ensure
that our payment processing system provides a owreenient and attractive option than alternatixgeims that may not require payment by
the consumer of a processing fee. Retail bankvandus payment service providers are constantheld@ing low to zero-commission
payment channels for their consumers. To attracswmers, we also offer certain services on a cosianisree basis, such as peer-to-peer
transfers within Visa Qiwi Wallet. Despite our ety consumers may still choose to use other paysystems, even if those systems do not
offer the convenience that we do, because theygehawer fees. In addition, because agents aretalsiitch between different payment
processing systems, we may face additional pressuszgluce the fees we receive from consumersdalimeteased competition from other
payment service providers. We may not be able ttimee to offset the decline in merchant fees ointain current levels of profitability by
introducing new consumer fees or increasing exgst®s. As a result, in order to continue to siadibur average net revenue yield and drive
our profitability, we must increase our paymentwvoe at a rate faster than the decline in averagpayenent processing fees. Our ability to
maintain and grow our profitability also dependpart on the development and enhancement of ouicssroffering through the addition of
new value added services, which we view as anatieans to offset the decline in merchant fees. itiqudar, a significant portion of our
revenue from value added services is derived froverising, and our advertising revenue has almosbled between 2011 and 2013. In 2
however, we experienced a sharp decline in adimgtigvenue which went down almost by half, pridyadriven by difficulties in Russian
banking system, since financial institutions weue largest advertisers. Moreover, the current esbaslowdown in Russia has overall led
Russian businesses to decrease their advertisamglsphich puts at risk our ability to substituteafincial institutions with other types of
advertisers in the foreseeable future. We canrstras/ou that we will be able to increase our payrmelumes or that any value added sen
we introduce will be profitable. Continued declineour average net revenue yield as a result afetloe other factors would cause our financia
condition and results of operations to deteriorate.

We are subject to the economic risk and businessdey of our merchants and agents and the overalldeof consumer spending.

The payment services industry depends heavily emterall level of consumer spending. We are exgptsgeneral economic
conditions that affect consumer confidence, conswgpending, consumer discretionary income or chaimgeonsumer purchasing habits.
Economic factors such as employment levels, busioesditions, energy and fuel costs, interest y@éélation rate and the strength of the ru
against foreign currencies (in particular the WD8llar) could reduce consumer spending or changswer purchasing habits. A reduction in
the amount of consumer spending could result iaaehse in our revenue and profits. If our mercharatke fewer sales of their products and
services using our services or consumers spendnessy per transaction, we will have fewer tranisastto process at lower amounts,
resulting in lower revenue. A further weakeninghie economy could have a negative impact on ouchaeits, as well as consumers who
purchase products and services using our paymeoégsing systems, which could, in turn, negatiiralyact our business, financial condition
and results of operations, particularly if the s=tenary environment disproportionately affects sahthe market segments that represent a
larger portion of our payment processing volumeaddition, these factors could force some of ourciments and/or agents to liquidate their
operations or go bankrupt, or could cause our agentduce the number of their locations or hofigperation, resulting in reduced
transaction volumes. We also have a certain amafuited costs, including salaries and rent, whiohild limit our ability to adjust costs and
respond quickly to changes affecting the econonalyaur business.
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Russia’s economy has been facing significant chgéls recently due to the combined effect of theoorgycrisis in Eastern
Ukraine, the economic and financial sanctions ineplda connection with it on certain Russian compam@ind individuals, as well as against
entire sectors of Russian economy, by the U.S.,Ehada and other countries, a steep decline prio#s, a record weakening of the Russiar
ruble against the U.S. Dollar, a lack of accedintancing for Russian issuers, capital flight angeaeral climate of political and economic
uncertainty. See “— Economic instability in Russiauld have an adverse effect on our business” arich® situation in Ukraine and the U.S.,
EU and other sanctions that have been imposed ealviersely impact our operations and financial ¢amd. The Russian economy is widely
predicted to contract in 2015, with GDP expectefhtioby 3-5%, and continue to contract in 2016ykivag a sustained economic recession. In
particular, the Russian Ministry of Economic Deyeteent in February 2015 predicted Russian GDP ttracnby 3% in 2015; the
International Monetary Fund in January 2015 predidRussian GDP to contract by 3% in 2015 and 12016. According to the Russian
Federal State Statistics Service, or Rosstat,tiofldhas reached 11.4% in 2014, the highest lémee2008. Many analysts expect this upward
trend to continue into 2015 (the Russian MinistifEoonomic Development in February 2015 predictdthiion at 17-17.5% for the first
quarter of 2015 year-on-year and for the year 2118-12.4% with food inflation expected to be ¢geea At the same time, the population’s
purchasing power is decreasing due to the weakagfitite ruble, basic necessities such as food ptedand utilities are becoming more
expensive, and consumer confidence is decliningpraling to the Russian Consumer Confidence Ovbraéx reported by Rosstat. A
prolonged economic slowdown in Russia could hasigaificant negative effect on consumer spendingussia and, accordingly, on our
business. The extent of the current slowdown, &titht were to result in a full scale banking @ijss yet to be assessed. We expect our loan
repayment and money remittance volumes, and pgssilsle-commerce payments volumes, to be partiguddiected, due to a shrinking
banking sector, increasing unemployment and casitonsumer spending. Moreover, loan repayment vesuamd our corresponding revenue
from Financial services may be affected by theriestely high Central Bank’s key rate as well aswing bad debt provisions of Russian
banks, which together result in lack of accescforsumers to refinancing of existing loans and bac&utious reluctance to grow their loan
portfolios. Further adverse changes in economiditioms in Russia could adversely impact our futtneenues and profits and cause a ma
adverse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations.

We do not control the rates of the fees levied by agents on consumers.

Our agents pay us an agreed fee using a portitredees levied by them on consumers. The feetpaid by the agent is based on
a percentage of the value of each transactionitbairocess. However, in most cases the amounesfléyied by an agent on a consumer for
each particular transaction is determined by sgemntat its own discretion. We usually do not degamount of such fees or otherwise contro
it. We believe that the fees set by our agentsremket-driven, and that our interests and our &jémerests are aligned with a view to
maintaining fees at a level that would simultanéptesult in our agents’ profitability and custonsatisfaction. However, we can provide no
assurance that our agents will not raise feeddwal that will adversely affect the popularityadr products among consumers. At the same
time, if we are forced to cap customer fees togmfathe strength of our brand or otherwise, we hosg a significant number of agents, which
would reduce the penetration of our physical disttion network. In limited instances, we have idtroed such caps at the request of our
merchants. No assurance can be made that thiswidimibt increase. Material increases in custofees by our agents or the imposition of
caps on the rates of such fees by us could haae\erse effect on the business, financial conddioth results of operations.

Our independent public registered accounting firmdntified a material weakness in our internal cootrover financial reporting during oul
2011 audit, and we can provide no assurance thaditidnal material weaknesses will not be identifigdthe future.

Our internal controls relating to preparation of financial statements have not kept pace withcti@nges in and increasing scope
and volume of our business. Our financial reporfingction and system of internal controls is lessadoped in certain respects than those of
payment service providers that operate in moreldpee markets and may not provide our managemehtagi much or as accurate or timely
information. The Public Company Accounting OversiBbard, or PCAOB, has defined a material weakass's significant deficiency, or
combination of significant deficiencies, that resuh more than a remote likelihood that a materimlstatement of the annual or interim
statements will not be prevented or detected.’oimnection with their audit of our consolidated fin&l statements for the year ended
December 31, 2011, our independent registeredgabtiounting firm identified a material weaknessum internal controls with respect to our
financial statement closing process. The materédkmess related primarily to the number of deditH&S-qualified personnel and controls
over accounting for non-routine transactions andplex estimates. This material weakness was comside determining the nature, timing
and extent of the procedures performed by our iedéent registered public accounting firm in theidiaof our 2011 annual consolidated
financial statements, and did not affect the relévaport of our independent registered public aoting firm on our annual consolidated
financial statements included herein.
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To address the material weakness that our indepénelgistered accountants identified, we develagpetlimplemented a plan that
included implementing greater controls over comroatidon, approval and accounting for non-routinegections and complex estimates, as
well as additional management review controls. e hired an external consultant to advise us trodiucing changes to our internal control
over financial reporting and to participate in mg@aent review of the financial statements and edlatipporting financial information. In
addition, we recruited additional qualified persehwith relevant experience in IFRS accountingprépg and auditing and are working with
external consultants to improve our internal cdstro

As a result of our efforts we remediated the relataterial weakness as of December 31, 2012. Dtiimgourse of the financial
statement close process for fiscal year 2014, amagement identified several significant deficiesavhich, in aggregate, do not represent a
material weakness. A significant deficiency is alency, or a combination of deficiencies, in imtal control over financial reporting that is
less severe than a material weakness, yet impartemigh to merit attention by those responsiblef@rsight of our financial reporting. We
can give no assurance that additional material wesdes or significant deficiencies in our inteamaitrol over financial reporting will not be
identified in the future. Our failure to implemearid maintain effective internal control over finetceporting could result in errors in our
financial statements that could lead to a restat¢wieour financial statements, cause us to faitheet our reporting obligations and cause
investors to lose confidence in our reported fimanaformation, which may result in a decline hetmarket price of our ADSs.

If consumer confidence in our business deterioratesir business, financial condition and results operations could be adversely affectt

Our business is built on consumers’ confidenceuinwands, as well as our ability to provide fasliable payment services,
including electronic payment and payment processérgices. As a consumer business, the strengibirdirand and reputation are of
paramount importance to us. A number of factordcdcadversely affect consumer confidence in our éyamany of which are beyond our
control, and could have an adverse impact on aulteeof operations. These factors include:

. any regulatory action or investigation against
. any significant interruption to our systems andrafiens; anc

. any breach of our security system or any compresm$éeonsumer dat

In addition, we are largely dependent on our agantsfranchisees to which we license our productadintain the reputation of
our brand. Despite the measures that we put iregtaensure their compliance with our performariaedards, our lack of control over their
operations may result in the low quality of servide particular agent or franchisee being attgdub our brand, negatively affecting our
overall reputation. Furthermore, negative publisityrounding any assertion that our agents andéocimants are implicated in fraudulent
transactions, irrespective of the accuracy of gudilicity or its connection with our current opéoas or business, could harm our reputation.

Any event that hurts our brand and reputation anmoamgumers as a reliable payment services proemdd have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations.

A decline in the use of cash as a means of paynmmeay result in a decline in the use of our kiosksdterminals and Visa Qiwi Walle

Substantially all of our business is in emerginghkats, including Russia and Kazakhstan, where atanbal part of the population
relies on cash payments, rather than credit ani cletal payments or electronic banking. We beligaag consumers making cash payments ar
more likely to use our kiosks and terminals as wslVisa Qiwi Wallet, which is most commonly releddvia kiosks and terminals, than where
alternative payment methods are available. As dtrege believe that our profitability depends be use of cash as a means of payment. 1
can be no assurance that over time, the prevatgfireash payments will not decline as a greatergrgage of the population in emerging
markets adopts credit and debit card payments laatt@nic banking. The shift from cash paymentsrtit and debit card payments and
electronic banking could reduce our market shadepayment volumes and may have a material advéfiessg en our business, financial
condition and results of operations.
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We may not be able to expand into new geographinatkets, or develop our existing international ogions successfully, which could
limit our ability to grow and increase our profitality.

Our long-term strategy includes entering into n@wegraphical markets and developing our existingatjns outside of Russia.
Our expansion into new geographical markets arnttiduidevelopment of our international operationsethel on our ability to apply our existi
technology or to develop new applications to mieetgarticular needs of each local market or coultty may not have adequate financial,
technological or personnel and management resotocsvelop effective and secure services or Oistion channels that will satisfy the
demands of these markets. We may not be abledblisst partnerships with merchants or to attraehégyto invest in new geographical
markets to strengthen our international operatitinge fail to enter new markets or countries amdurther develop our international
operations, we may not be able to continue to gramrevenues and earnings. Furthermore, we mayneiipgo new geographical markets in
which we may not have any previous operating eepeg. We operate in an industry that is often siltgesignificant regulation, and our lack
of familiarity with the regulatory landscape in nevarkets may result in our running into unantioggproblems or delays in obtaining the
requisite regulatory approvals and licenses. We nuaye able to successfully expand in such markaégsto our lack of experience. Moreo\
we may not be able to execute our strategy in wistirg international operations successfully, vbhigay result in additional losses or limit
growth prospects. In addition, expanding internally subjects us to a number of risks, including:

. greater difficulty in managing foreign operatio

. expenses associated with localizing our produetduding offering consumers the ability to trandgaatnajor currencies

. higher labor costs and problems integrating empmsyhat we hire in different countries into ourséixig corporate culture
. laws and business practices that favor local coiapgt

. multiple and changing laws, tax regimes and govemtmegulations

. foreign currency restrictions and exchange ratetdiations;

. changes in a specific coun’s or regior’'s political or economic conditions; a

. differing intellectual property law:

In addition, our global operations expose us to enaus and sometimes conflicting legal and regwatequirements, and violatio
or unfavorable interpretation by authorities ofsheegulations could harm our business. In padicule are exposed to the risk of being
deemed to have permanent establishment in a speoifintry and transfer pricing risks which couldui¢ in additional tax liability.

If we are not able to manage these and multipleraibks associated with global operations sucaélgsbur business, financial
condition and results of operations could be maligradversely affected.

We are subject to extensive government regulation.

Our business is impacted by laws and regulatioaisafiect our industry, the number of which haseased significantly in recent
years. We are subject to a variety of regulatiomed at preventing money laundering and financimgioal activity and terrorism, financi
services regulations, payment services regulatimmssumer protection laws, currency control redotest, advertising laws and privacy and
protection laws and therefore experience periauiestigations by various regulatory authoritiesamnection with the same, which may
sometimes result in monetary or other sanctionsgoenposed on us. Further, these laws and regakatiary significantly from country to
country. Many of these laws and regulations arestzonly evolving, and are often unclear and incgtesit with other applicable laws and
regulations, including across various jurisdictiomsiking compliance challenging and increasingrelated operating costs
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and legal risks. In particular, there has beereimsed public attention and heightened legislatimhragulations regarding money laundering
and terrorist financing. We sometimes have to nsgificant judgment calls in applying anti-moneywhdering legislation and risk being
found in noneompliance with it, particularly in relation to itsandatory client identification requirementsfaf, example, we process payme
made by our consumers from their Visa Qiwi Wallet@unts for amounts in excess of the thresholdeg®g by anti-money laundering
legislation without the required client identificat. Although we believe our client identificatipnactices to be in accordance with the law, the
Russian regulators may view them as being non-cdampdnd impose fines and other sanctions on us.

Recently, our Qiwi Wallet operations in Kazakhst@ve become subject to financial monitoring lediista imposing certain client
identification requirements on us. In addition,rthiss a draft law under consideration of the Kaziakfislature that seeks to introduce a more
comprehensive regulatory regime for the paymentketdn general. This draft law, if adopted indtarent form, would confer certain
additional compliance, reporting and other obligasi and liabilities upon certain of our subsidiari/e are currently continuing to assess the
potential impact of this new legislation on ouribess. Since such legislation is nascent and teédéed in practice, we may become subject to
fines and other penalties if the measures we uakieih response are viewed as insufficient by ¢tevant regulators.

If local authorities in Russia, Kazakhstan or otteuntries choose to enforce specific interpretatiof the applicable legislation tl
differ from ours, we may be found to be in violatiand subject to penalties or other liabilitiesisT¢ould also limit our ability in effecting such
payments going forward and may increase our codbioig business.

In some jurisdictions where we operate, there isectly little or virtually no legislation addressj electronic payments, and no
assurance can be made that if such legislatioddptad it will be beneficial to our business. Fwstance, if a statutory cap is imposed on the
fees that can be charged to the consumers usingasks and terminals, it could significantly redumur margins. From time to time, propos
are submitted to the Russian State Duma to caprttoeint of such fees. There can also be no assuttaaicine mandatory client identification
requirements under the anti-money laundering latiesi will not change further in a manner advecseur business, for example, through
making the identification process more burdensontarough lowering the thresholds for transactiatmich non-identified customers or
customers that only underwent the simplified id#gtion process can perform (see “Regulation”)jchitcould result in lower payment
volumes for us.

In addition, there is significant uncertainty redjag future legislation on taxation of electron&yments in most of the countries in
which we operate, including in respect of the platCtxation. Subsequent legislation and regulaiod interpretations thereof, litigation, court
rulings, or other events could expose us to ine@assts, liability and reputational damage thaldbave a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of openst

We may not be able to complete or integrate sudtélysany potential future acquisitions, partnersps or joint ventures.

From time to time, we have evaluated and expecbiinue to evaluate possible acquisition traneastipartnerships or joint
ventures on an on-going basis, some of which mapdterial. At any time, including currently, we mag engaged in discussions or
negotiations or diligence evaluations with respiegiossible acquisitions, partnerships or jointtuess or may have entered into non-binding
documents in relation to such transactions. As @iaour strategy, we intend to continue our digoigdl approach to identifying, executing and
integrating strategic acquisitions.

Potential future acquisitions, partnerships andtjeentures may pose significant risks to our @xisbperations if they cannot be
successfully integrated. These projects would péaimbtional demands on our managerial, operatidimalncial and other resources, create
operational complexity requiring additional persehand other resources and require enhanced cgmboédures. In addition, we may not be
able to successfully finance or integrate any kasses, services or technologies that we acquingtlorvhich we form a partnership or joint
venture. Furthermore, the integration of any adtjaismay divert management'’s time and resouroas four core business and disrupt our
operations. Moreover, even if we were successfultegrating newly acquired assets, expected syg®eny cost savings may not materialize,
resulting in lower than expected benefits to ugfsuch transactions. We may spend time and mon@yajects that do not increase our
revenue. Additionally, when making acquisitionmiy not be possible for us to conduct a detailgdstigation of the nature of the assets b
acquired due to, for instance, time constraint®aking the decision and other factors. We may becasponsible for additional liabilities or
obligations not foreseen at the time of an acdaisiin addition, in connection with any acquisit®g we must comply with various antitrust
requirements. It is possible that perceived oralatiolations of these requirements could give tseegulatory enforcement action or result in
us not receiving all necessary approvals in ordeomplete a desired acquisition. To the extenpaethe purchase price of any acquisition in
cash, it would reduce our cash reserves, and textemt the purchase price is paid with our stdatquld be dilutive to our
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stockholders. To the extent we pay the purchase prith proceeds from the incurrence of debt, itlddancrease our level of indebtedness an
could negatively affect our liquidity and restrazir operations. Our competitors may be willing bleato pay more than us for acquisitions,
which may cause us to lose certain acquisitionsvileavould otherwise desire to complete. All of gi®ve risks could have a material advers
effect on our business, results of operationspfife condition, and prospects.

We have grown rapidly in recent years and needrtpiement enhanced compliance processes, procedamescontrols with respect to the
rules and regulations that apply to our business.

Our business has grown and developed rapidly ientegears and we are continuing to realign our diamge function with the siz
of our business. In light of the fact that we at@ghly regulated business that processes largenes of payments, we need to implement
enhanced processes, procedures and controls intorgeovide reasonable assurance that we are topgia compliance with applicable
regulatory requirements. In particular, the Russiatirmoney laundering laws to which we and QiwnBare subject contain numerous
requirements with respect to identification of ntie and documentation and reporting of transastsbject to mandatory control and other
suspicious transactions to the relevant authorities

We are subject to the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Prastiet, or the FCPA, which prohibits U.S. compardasd their intermediaries
from bribing foreign officials for the purpose dbtaining or keeping business or otherwise obtaiféngrable treatment, and other laws
concerning our international operations. Similgid&ation in other jurisdictions contains similappibitions, although varying in both scope
and jurisdiction. We have implemented policies prmtedures and internal controls designed to peokédsonable assurance that we, our
employees, distributors and other intermediariesply with the anti-corruption laws to which we abject. However, there are inherent
limitations to the effectiveness of any policiempqedures and internal controls, including the ibilty of human error and the circumvention
or overriding of the policies, procedures and iméicontrols. There can be no assurance that suliligs or procedures or internal controls
work effectively at all times or protect us agailisbility under these or other laws for actionkea by our employees, distributors and other
intermediaries with respect to our business orlarginesses that we may acquire. We have neithestablished operating history nor proven
management experience in establishing and maintiover the long term, the required compliance@sees, procedures and controls. As
such, our management and other personnel neediddedz substantial amount of time to compliancgatives. Moreover, increased rules and
regulations since becoming a publicly traded corggave increased our legal and financial compliasu=ts and made some activities more
time-consuming and costly. Our compliance withB@PA and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requiraswie incur substantial expense and
expend significant management efforts. We may nedite additional staff with appropriate publicnepany experience and technical
knowledge.

Our success requires significant public confideinaaur ability to handle large and growing paymesiumes and amounts of
consumer funds, as well as comply with applicabtgutatory requirements. Any failure to manage coresufunds or to comply with applicat
regulatory requirements could result in the imposibf fines, harm our reputation and significardlyninish use of our products. In addition, if
we are not in compliance with anti-corruption laaval other laws governing the conduct of businetis government entities and/or officials
(including local laws), we may be subject to crialiand civil penalties and other remedial measwrbg;h could have an adverse impact on
our business, financial condition, results of ofieres and prospects.

If we cannot keep pace with rapid developments @hdnge in our industry and provide new servicesouar clients, the use of our servict
could decline, reducing our revenues.

The payment services industry in which we opemteharacterized by rapid technological change, p@auct and service
introductions, evolving industry standards, chagginstomer needs and the entrance of more estathlimarket players seeking to expand intc
these businesses. In order to remain competitieegsomtinually seek to expand the services we afifieirto develop new projects, including, for
example, the development of remote banking andtyppaograms. These projects carry risks, suchedayd in delivery, performance problems
and lack of customer acceptance. In our indudtssé risks are acute. Any delay in the delivenyeat services or the failure to differentiate
our services or to accurately predict and addres&eh demand could render our services less désjrabeven obsolete, to consumers. In
addition, if alternative payment mechanisms becwandely available, substituting our current produatsl services, and we do not develop an
offer similar alternative payment mechanisms susfcély and on a timely basis, our business andg@ots could be adversely affected.
Furthermore, we may be unable to recover the gestsave incurred in developing new services. Oueligment efforts could result in
increased costs and we could also experience anldmssiness that could reduce our earnings ordccalise a loss of revenue if promised new
services are not timely delivered to our clients,
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are not able to compete effectively with our coriipeg’ or do not perform as anticipated. In orderémain competitive in an innovative
industry such as ours, we have to make investnestsrt-up companies or undertake large researdidavelopment initiatives. In January
2013, we launched Qiwi Venture, an internal depanihof our company responsible for identifying stgrs which offer innovative solutions
complementary to our business and making investriatd them. The threshold for such investmenisitglly set at U.S. $1 million per
project for the first investment stage with no éaptotal investments. If our investments in st#pteompanies or research and development
initiatives do not yield the expected results, wayrtose money, time and effort invested. If wewamable to develop, adapt to or access
technological changes or evolving industry stanslamla timely and cost effective basis, our busin@sancial condition and results of
operations could be materially adversely affected.

Our systems and our third party providers’ systemay fail due to factors beyond our control, whiclowld interrupt our service, cause us to
lose business and increase our costs.

We depend on the efficient and uninterrupted operaif numerous systems, including our computetesys, software and
telecommunications networks, as well as the datéecg that we lease from third parties. Our systentsoperations, or those of our third party
providers, could be exposed to damage or intewngtom, among other things, fire, flood, natursiadter, power loss, telecommunications
failure, vendor failure, unauthorized entry, impeopperation and computer viruses. In additionabse both of our data centers used for
processing payments are located in the city of Mas@ catastrophic event affecting the city of Mmgaenay result in the loss of both data
centers. Substantial property and equipment logbsdésruption in operations as well as any defectair systems or those of third parties or
other difficulties could expose us to liability arhterially adversely impact our business, findnmadition and results of operations. In
addition, any outage or disruptive efforts couldexdely impact our reputation, brand and futurespeats.

Unauthorized disclosure of data, whether throughb®rsecurity breaches, computer viruses or otherwismuld expose us to liability,
protracted and costly litigation and damage our réption.

We store and/or transmit sensitive data, suchedditaor debit card numbers and mobile phone numba we have ultimate
liability to our consumers for our failure to protehis data. We have experienced breaches ofemurrisy by hackers in the past, and breaches
could occur in the future. In such circumstances,emcryption of data and other protective meashia®e not prevented unauthorized access
and may not be sufficient to prevent future unaritieal access. For example, in January 2014 we \dised unauthorized activity in 687 of our
accounts which were inappropriately credited, dwditnproperly credited funds were subsequentlydvétvn from our kiosks. We incurred a
loss of RUB 88 million. Although we do not belietiet any confidential customer account data waspcomised as a result of the activity,
future breach of our system, including through emek fraud, may subject us to material lossesbiliy, including fines and claims for
unauthorized purchases with misappropriated cordiebit card information, identity theft, impersdion or other similar fraud claims. A
misuse of such data or a cybersecurity breach dwarich our reputation and deter clients from usiegteonic payments as well as kiosks and
terminals generally and our services specificafigrease our operating expenses in order to cafiedbreaches or failures, expose us to
uninsured liability, increase our risk of regulatecrutiny, subject us to lawsuits, result in thposition of material penalties and fines by state
authorities and otherwise materially adverselyciféir business, financial condition and resultspdrations.

If we fail to comply with the applicable requireménof our agreements with Visa Inc., Visa could &de fine us, suspend us or termina
our registrations.

Under our agreements with Visa, we are requirezbtoply with both the terms of those agreementsthaderms of Visa Core
Rules and Visa Product and Service Rules. If waatawomply with the terms of the agreements ortihes, Visa could seek to fine us, susg
us or terminate the registrations that allow ugrticess transactions on its network. In additiorlen our agreements with Visa, Visa is entitlec
to terminate the agreements in case of a matagakh by us or if it determines the agreementsamérary to its interests. If we are in breach
of the agreements or Visa otherwise terminateagteements with us, we may be unable to issue Miaded prepaid cards or continue to
operate under the “Visa Qiwi Wallet” brand, whiatutd have a material adverse effect on our busifiésstermination of our registration, or
any changes in the payment network rules that winjghir our registration, could prevent us fromuigsg Visa-branded prepaid cards or
operating under the “Visa Qiwi Wallet” brand, thigyereducing the number of transactions made th&igh Qiwi Wallet. Any of these factors
could have a material adverse effect on our rejmutaas well as on our business, financial conditiad results of operations.
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The cost to us of consumers reloading their VisaM@Wallet accounts may increase.

We make available to our consumers a large vaoietyethods to reload the Visa Qiwi Wallet accouirisluding, among others,
mobile phone balances, bank cards, kiosks andtiefsnand ATMs. The reload methods have different oplications for us. For example,
payments made through the kiosks and terminals dwgeur agents, we usually pay lower fees foragiog the Visa Qiwi Wallet than on
payments made from bank cards. We currently datiempt to direct consumer preferences towardscpéat reload methods. If their
preferences shift towards reload methods that ctraehigher cost to us, our margins could be aéleedfected, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations.

Qiwi Bank and other Russian banks operate in a highegulated environment, and increased regulatargtiny could have an adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and na$s of operations.

In September 2010, we acquired Qiwi Bank from d¢erdé our shareholders. Qiwi Bank provides issuisgguiring and deposit
settlement functions within our group. All bankseogting in Russia are subject to extensive reguiaind supervision. Requirements imposec
by regulators, including capital adequacy, liquidiéserves, prudential ratios, loss provisions@thér regulatory requirements are designed tc
ensure the integrity of the financial markets amgrotect consumers and other third parties witbiwla bank deals. These regulations may
limit our activities, and may increase our costsl@ihg business, or require us to seek additiomgital in order to comply with applicable
capital adequacy or liquidity requirements. Exigtiaws and regulations could be amended, the manmegmnich laws and regulations are
enforced or interpreted could change and new lawsgulations could be adopted.

In July 2013, the CBR completed an inspection afi@ank and discovered a number of deficienciessicompliance with certain
banking regulations in relation to, among othendisi the mechanics of its settlements with CISCIQ@’\& payment agent, reporting
requirements, credit risk assessment, prudential calculation and reserve requirements and garera. The CBR also noted that Qiwi
Bank’s internal controls did not reflect the natarel scope of the bank’s activities. We have riectithese deficiencies but had to pay a fine o
RUB 150,000.

In September 2014, the CBR discovered a numbeiotdtions of the Russian National Payment System &aQiwi Bank,
including, among other things, violations of sonfiche CBR reporting obligations and failure to cdynwith statutory thresholds for electronic
money transfers. The CBR has issued an order to Bawk to rectify discovered violations, and Qiwaifik has undertaken measures to do so
and implement the CBR’s recommendations, includidgption of an internal action plan, which contahres step-by-step measures to ensure
no such violations will occur in the future. Astbe date of this annual report, we have rectiffexse violations.

There can be no assurance that similar inspediiotie future or increased scrutiny by the CBR wit result in discovery of more
significant violations of various banking regulats or what sanctions the CBR would choose to eymdminst us if this were to happen. Any
breach of applicable regulations could expose ymtential liability, including in extreme instarscthe revocation of our banking license.
Revocation of any of our banking licenses woulchBigantly hinder our ability to process paymerasd would result in a decrease of our
profitability, damage our reputation and could @aather regulators to increase their scrutiny afamtivities. Furthermore, under our
arrangements with Visa, Qiwi Bank represents, amathgr things, that it is in good standing and leesn granted all necessary authorizations
from applicable governmental and regulatory authesrito operate a Visa card program. If any of (Bank’s licenses are revoked or it lose:
authorization to operate a Visa card program, ¢@ad terminate its agreements with us. For theasans, any breach of laws and regulation
by Qiwi Bank or the revocation of its banking liees would have a material adverse effect on ounéss, financial condition and results of
operations.

In recent months, the CBR has considerably incobttseintensity of its supervision and regulatiénhe@ Russian banking sector.
Historically, the revocation of banking licensesthg CBR has been a relatively rare event mosttyiwing to local banks with little assets and
little or no significance for the banking sectoraashole. Starting October 2013, however, the CBRIaunched a campaign aimed at clear
the Russian banking industry, revoking the licerie@® an unusually high number of banks (includéignificant banks such as Master-Bank
and Investbank) on allegations of money laundefingncial statements manipulation and other illegaivities, as well as inability of certain
banks to discharge their financial obligations. §heneasures resulted in turmoil in the bankingstrguinstigated a banking panic and bank
runs on a number of Russian credit institutionsl, severely undermined the trust that the Russiaulption had with private banks. In addit
to putting increasing regulatory pressure on Qiank this change in policy by the CBR has also ictgx, and we expect may continue to
impact, our business in a number of other waysudicg reduced spending by the banks on advertsintja decrease in consumer lending,
resulting in less loan repayments through our ngtvaod
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therefore reduced fees. As a result of a generakdse in banking activity, among other factorssfRumay experience less robust consumer
spending, which could also result in the reductibour payment processing fees. In addition, thiasmrs could further tighten liquidity on the
Russian market and add pressure onto the rublefAtlese factors could materially and adversdigchfour business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Customer complaints or negative publicity about oturstomer service could affect attractiveness of earvices adversely and, as a result,
could have an adverse effect on our business, figiahcondition and results of operations.

Customer complaints or negative publicity about@ustomer service could diminish consumer confidencand the attractiveness
of, our services. Breaches of our consumers’ pyivaam our security systems could have the sameteffiége sometimes take measures to
combat risks of fraud and breaches of privacy &udisty, such as freezing consumer funds, whichhidcdamage relations with our consumers.
These measures heighten the need for prompt asrttiaé customer service to resolve irregularitied disputes. In addition we have
previously received negative media coverage reggrdiistomer disputes. Effective customer servigaires significant personnel expense,
and this expense, if not managed properly, coufshithour profitability significantly. Any inabilitypy us to manage or train our customer
service representatives properly could compromiseability to handle customer complaints effectivéf we do not handle customer
complaints effectively, our reputation may suffadave may lose our customers’ confidence, whicHcdthave a material adverse effect on oul
business, financial condition and results of openat

Our agreements with our agents and our merchantsrdit include exclusivity clauses and may be termtied unilaterally at any time or at
short notice.

We normally do not include exclusivity clauses ur agreements with agents or merchants. Accordjrogly merchants and agents
do not have any restrictions on dealings with ofiteriders and can switch from our payment proogssystem to another without significant
investment. Additionally, due to mandatory provis®mf Russian civil law, our agreements with agemy be unilaterally terminated by the
agents at any time, and our agreements with meteinaay be unilaterally terminated by the merchapta one month’s prior notice. The
termination of our contracts with existing agentsnerchants or a significant decline in the amadritusiness we do with them as a result of
our contracts not having exclusivity clauses cddde a material adverse effect on our businesandial condition and results of operations.

Our payment system might be used for fraudulentegfal or improper purposes, which could expose astlditional liability and harm our
business.

Despite measures we have taken and continue tpdak@ayment system remains susceptible to paigniilegal or improper use
These may include use of our payment servicesnnection with fraudulent sales of goods or serviiksit sales of prescription medications
or controlled substances, software and other extlbl property piracy, money laundering, bankdrand prohibited sales of restricted
products. In the past there have been news articlé®w organized crime groups have used our palysggnices to transfer money in the
course of illegal transactions. In particular, EbFuary 2013 it was reported by the media thaMbscow Arbitration Court upheld a RUB
289 million tax claim against LLC Rusal Folga, &sidiary of the major Russian aluminum producerdRusnfirming that in 2008-2009 LLC
Rusal Folga used shell firms for tax evasion. Sofiteese shell firms acted as our agents and casltadoney via Qiwi kiosks. More,
recently, in February 2015, an investigation by Evorcement officials relating to a small numbgcl@nts of QIWI Bank took place at our
Moscow offices.

Criminals are using increasingly sophisticated mé#hto engage in illegal activities such as coteitang and fraud. It is possible
that incidents of fraud could increase in the fat@ur risk management policies and proceduresnogige fully effective to identify, monitor
and manage these risks. We are not able to manitmach case the sources for our counterpartiesisfr the ways in which they use them.
Increases in chargebacks or other liability cowddéha material adverse effect on our businessydiahcondition and results of operations.
Furthermore, an increase in fraudulent transactommblicity regarding chargeback disputes cowddrhour reputation and reduce consumer
confidence in the use of our kiosks and terminats\drtual wallets.

Our business is exposed to counterparty and cregits.

We seek to sell services on a prepayment bassenmdure that our counterparties have low creslitpiofiles, such as large
merchants and agents. Nevertheless, we are exfm#selirisk of non-payment or other default under @ntracts with our agents and
merchants. If we provide trade credit or loansrt@gent and we are unable to collect loans or paeaid to the agent by its consumers d
the agent’s insolvency, fraud or otherwise, we nmastetheless complete the
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payment to the merchant on behalf of the consuAsea result, our losses would not be limited tosslof revenue in the form of fees due t(
from the agent, but could amount to the entire amhoficonsumer payments accepted by such ageatdertain period of time.

We also have significant receivables due from sofreur merchants and agents, and may not recoesetreceivables in the event
of such merchants’ bankruptcy or otherwise. As e€E&mber 31, 2014, we had credit exposure to ourtagé RUB 521 million and to our
merchants of RUB 4,457 million. Our receivablesiirmerchants are generally unsecured and non-ihteeasing, our receivables and loans
from agents are generally interest-bearing andaumed. Although we monitor the creditworthines®of counterparties on an ongoing basis,
there can be no assurance that the models andaambygowe use to assess and monitor their creditiness will be sufficiently predictive, and
we may be unable to detect and take steps to timgigate an increased credit risk. If we expereentaterial defaults by our agents and/or
merchants, our business, financial condition asdlte of operations could be materially adverséigcaed.

We are subject to fluctuations in currency exchangses.

We are exposed to currency risks. Our financidkstants are expressed in Russian rubles, whileesenues and expenses outside
Russia are in local currencies. Accordingly, owuts of operations and assets and liabilitieseaposed to fluctuations in exchange rates
between the ruble and such other currencies. litiaddchanges in currency exchange rates alsctatfie carrying value of assets on our
consolidated Statement of financial position, whiddpending on the Statement of financial positiassification of the relevant asset, can
result in losses on our consolidated Statemerihahtial position.

Over the past ten years, the Russian ruble hasiéited dramatically against the U.S. Dollar and&heo. Due to the economic
sanctions imposed on certain Russian companiemdivduals by the US, EU, Canada and other coestras well as the volatility in oil
prices, high inflation and a sharp capital outflitam Russia, the ruble has significantly depredatgainst the U.S. Dollar and Euro since the
beginning of 2014. According to the CBR, from 31cBmber 2013 to 31 December 2014, the ruble ha®deped by 72% against the
U.S. Dollar and by 52% against the Euro. Furthectfiations of the ruble could have a material estveffect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Regulatory authorities in Russia and Kazakhstan ¢daetermine that we hold a dominant position inomarkets, and could impos
limitations on our operational flexibility which mg adversely affect our business, financial conditiand results of operations.

The Russian anti-monopoly authorities impose vari@quirements on companies that occupy a dompuaasition in their markets.
We believe that to date the anti-monopoly authesitiave neither assessed the Russian paymentsendeistry as a whole nor, more
specifically, the kiosk and terminal market or gectronic payment market. If they do so, they mayclude that we hold a dominant position
in one or more of the markets in which we operitiey were to do so, this could result in limitets on our future acquisitions and a
requirement that we pre-clear with the authoriéieg changes to our standard agreements with mdechad agents, as well as any specially
negotiated agreements with business partners.diti@d, if we were to decline to conclude a contraith a third party this could, in certain
circumstances, be regarded as abuse of a domiraketiposition. Russian anti-monopoly authoritiagéhalso been known to determine that :
market player has been in violation of anti-tra@sts solely on the basis of circumstantial evidgmuiating to its anti-competitive behavior
without any written or oral evidence to supporstiny abuse of a dominant market position couddl [® administrative penalties and the
imposition of a fine of up to 15% of our annualeaue for the previous year. In addition, in Apfll2 the Competition Protection Agency of
the Republic of Kazakhstan, or the Competition &tivbn Agency, included our subsidiary in Kazakhstathe state register of market
participants with dominant or monopoly positiorKiazakhstan. Entities included in this register@ehibited from performing actions that
may have a detrimental effect on competition, retsticcess to the market or infringe the rightsaisumers, including predatory or
discriminatory pricing, unjustified resale restigcts, imposing unreasonable terms, or refusingipply or halting supplies for unjustified
reasons. Status as a dominant market participantpaits an entity under much more stringent sordtom the Competition Protection
Agency, therefore increasing the probability ofrfgeinvestigated and penalized if a violation occisa result, the Competition Protection
Agency may impose restrictions on our operationsale other measures that may be inconsistentawittstrategy. The maximum liability to
which we can be exposed is a penalty equal to 10#teaevenue earned as a result of market ablsecpnfiscation of the full amount of
such revenue. The maximum liability is determineddference to not more than one year of such teserin November 2012, our subsidiary
in Kazakhstan became subject to an investigatiownlected by the Competition Protection Agency comicer alleged abuse of its dominant
position in Kazakhstan’s electronic payments marMetfine has been levied as a result of the ingagon, but the Competition Protection
Agency ordered us to rectify certain violationgtud anti-trust legislation. We have complied whk brders and
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have taken actions to remedy these violations. Wewave expect similar investigations by the Coritjpet Protection Agency to recur in the
future, and we cannot reliably estimate the amoohtdaims that can be brought against us in cotoreaevith these investigations. Recently, in
March and May 2014, our subsidiary in Kazakhstaeired various requests from anti-trust authoritiesnformation related to its business in
connection with the analysis of the Kazakhstan etaok payments through kiosks. We complied withrémuests, however, as of the date of
this annual report, it remains unclear what, if aagtions, the Kazakh authorities may take in cotioe with this. These limitations may redi
our operational and commercial flexibility and respiveness, which may adversely affect our busjriggscial condition and results of
operations.

An ongoing SEC Review of our public filings may reige us to amend or restate our financial statemer

Starting from January 1, 2014, we began operalimgigh a single segment. On September 23, 2014ewedved an SEC comment
letter on our Form 20-F for the year ended Decer8lieP013. The SEC comments addressed various,iteahsding in connection with the
changes in our segment reporting. We provided gorese to that and subsequent letters. Becauseweenbayet received a formal reply from
the SEC to our latest response letter dated Fepbdj&015, we do not know if the SEC is satisfigthwur responses, or if they consider
certain comments to remain unresolved. At this tiwe cannot predict whether or not the SEC willeggwith our financial reporting principles
relating to segmentation. Under certain circumstanwe could be required to revise our financiteshents for prior and/or future periods.

We may not be able to successfully protect our lietetual property and may be subject to infringenteriaims.

We rely on a combination of contractual rights, yright, trademark and trade secret laws to establigl protect our proprietary
technology. We also maintain patents for certainwftechnologies. We customarily require our empgés and independent contractors to
execute confidentiality agreements or otherwisagiee to keep our proprietary information configewhen their relationship with us begins.
Typically, our employment contracts also includeusles requiring our employees to assign to ud #iledinventions and intellectual property
rights they develop in the course of their emplogtrend to agree not to disclose our confidentirimation. Nevertheless, others, including
our competitors, may independently develop sim#éahnology, duplicate our services or design araurdntellectual property. Further,
contractual arrangements may not prevent unaubdisclosure of our confidential information osere an adequate remedy in the event of
any unauthorized disclosure of our confidentiabiniation. Because of the limited protection andesgment of intellectual property rights in
certain jurisdictions in which we operate, sucliRassia and Kazakhstan, as well as in certain jetisds in which we have started expanding
our operations, such as Moldova, Romania and Belawur intellectual property rights may not be astqrted as they may be in more
developed markets such as the United States. Wehmagyto litigate to enforce or determine the saapenforceability of our intellectual
property rights (including trade secrets and kn@w}; which could be expensive, could cause a diversf resources and may not prove
successful. The loss of intellectual property petitem could harm our business and ability to coraf@etd could result in costly redesign efforts
discontinuance of certain service offerings or ottempetitive harm. Additionally, we do not holdygmatents for our business model or our
business processes, in part because our abildgteon them in Russia is subject to legislativestrints, and we do not currently intend to
obtain any such patents in Russia, the U.S. onbisee.

We may also be subject to costly litigation in #went our services or technology are claimed tarigé, misappropriate or
otherwise violate a third party’s intellectual pesty or proprietary rights. Such claims could imgipatent infringement, copyright
infringement, trademark infringement, trade senristappropriation or breach of licenses. In addijtishile we seek to obtain copyright
registration certificates for the critical softwave develop, our rights to software obtained ask&/éor hire might be potentially challenged by
the employees and former employees or developessabf software. We may not be able to succesdlellgnd against such claims, which r
result in a limitation on our ability to use thealectual property subject to these claims and alight require us to redesign affected services
enter into costly settlement or license agreemeatg costly damage awards, or face a temporargiwngnent injunction prohibiting us from
marketing or selling certain of our services. lalsgircumstances, if we cannot or do not licenseitfringed technology on reasonable terms
or substitute similar technology from another seuur revenue and earnings could be adverselydragaAdditionally, in recent years, non-
practicing entities have been acquiring patentgkimgaclaims of patent infringement and attemptiogxtract settlements from companies in
our industry. Even if we believe that such claimes\&ithout merit and successfully defend thesendaidefending against such claims is time
consuming and expensive and could result in therdion of the time and attention of our manageraadtemployees.
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We may use open source software in a manner thatlddoe harmful to our business.

We use open source software in connection withtexhnology and services. The original developetbh®fopen source code
provide no warranties on such code. Moreover, sopem source software licenses require users whabdite open source software as part of
their software to publicly disclose all or parttbé source code to such software and/or make &laitany derivative works of the open source
code on unfavorable terms or at no cost. The usedf open source code may ultimately require usgiace certain code used in our
products, pay a royalty to use some open source aodiscontinue certain products. Any of the abm@griirements could be harmful to our
business, financial condition and operations.

We do not have and may be unable to obtain suffitisnsurance to protect ourselves from busineskss

The insurance industry in Russia is not yet fubyeloped, and many forms of insurance protectionmon in more developed
countries are not yet fully available or are natilable on comparable or commercially acceptabiimse Accordingly, while we hold certain
mandatory types of insurance policies in Russiadaaot currently maintain insurance coverage fmitess interruption, property damage or
loss of key management personnel as we have bedaeutio obtain these on commercially acceptablageWe do not hold insurance policies
to cover for any losses resulting from counterpartg credit risks or fraudulent transactions. Ve @lo not generally maintain separate funds
or otherwise set aside reserves for most typesisifibss-related risks. Accordingly, our lack ofirgsice coverage or reserves with respect to
businesgelated risks may expose us to substantial log#@sh could materially adversely affect our busmdmancial condition and results
operations.

In a dynamic industry like ours, the ability to atct, recruit, retain and develop qualified persoehis critical to our success and growt

Our business functions at the intersection of dgpiianging technological, social, economic andifemry developments that
require a wide ranging set of expertise and intalig capital. In order for us to compete and gsonacessfully, we must attract, recruit, retain
and develop the necessary personnel who can prthedeeeded expertise across the entire spectramrafitellectual capital needs. This is
particularly true with respect to qualified and ekpnced software engineers and IT staff, who &yelyrsought after and are not in sufficient
supply in Russia and in most other markets in whietoperate. The market for such personnel is higbinpetitive, and we may not succeed
in recruiting additional personnel or may fail &ptace effectively current personnel who depart witalified or effective successors. It may
also be difficult for us to obtain necessary quedifpersonnel with local experience to supportiotarnational growth, which may jeopardize
our ongoing and planned expansion into new geogeap®ur efforts to retain and develop personnsl reault in significant additional
expenses, which could adversely affect our prafitgbhWe cannot assure you that we will be ablatwact and retain qualified personnel in
future. Failure to retain or attract key persorosmlld have a material adverse effect on our busjrieg®ncial condition and results of
operations.

Risks Relating to Corporate Governance Matters andrganizational Structure
The substantial share ownership position of our efiiexecutive officer Sergey Solonin may limit yoaipility to influence corporate matters.

As a result of a number of selbwns by the selling shareholders of our classaethand their immediate conversion upon sale
class B shares, our chief executive officer Se@@pnin, through Saldivar Investments Limited, &the date of this annual report beneficially
owns 69% of our class A shares, representing appeagly 57.7% of the voting power of our issuedrst@apital. As a result of this
concentration of share ownership, Mr. Solonin fds discretion over any matters submitted to oareholders for approval that require a
simple majority vote and has significant voting gown all matters submitted to our shareholdersgmroval that require a qualified majority
vote, including the power to veto them. Our arBadé association require the approval of no leas 6% of present and voting shareholders
for matters such as amendments to the constitutémtaiments of our company, dissolution or liquidiatof our company, reducing the share
capital, buying back shares and approving the tataiber of shares and classes of shares to beedder issuance under any employee stocl
option plan or any other equity-based incentive gensation program of our group. Matters requirirsinaple majority shareholder vote
include, among other matters, increasing our aigdrcapital, removing a director, final dividenglcthration, approving the annual audited
accounts and appointing auditors.

This concentration of ownership could delay, detrgprevent a change of control or other businesgbaation that might otherwit
give you the opportunity to realize a premium oen-prevailing market price of our shares. Theriggts of Mr. Solonin may not always
coincide with the interests of our other sharehmd€his concentration of ownership may also adgraffect the price of our ADSs.
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Our ADS holders have limited rights in relation tthe appointment of our directors, including our irgbendent directors.

Other than in certain limited cases provided fooum articles of association, our directors aretele by shareholder weighted
voting, sometimes referred to as cumulative votimgler which each shareholder has the right toasastany votes as the voting rights
attached to its shares multiplied by a number etgudle number of board seats to be filled by dhalders. As a result, our class A sharehol
will have the ability to appoint, through the weligth voting set forth in our articles of associatianleast a majority of the board of directors
the foreseeable future. The interests of our dirsanay therefore not be aligned with or be inkibst interests of the holders of our ADSs.

The rights of our shareholders are governed by Qyptaw and our articles of association, and diffar some important respects from the
typical rights of shareholders under U.S. state kaw

Our corporate affairs are governed by our artiofesssociation and by the laws governing companiasrporated in Cyprus. The rights
of our shareholders and the responsibilities of s of our board of directors under Cyprus law @mdarticles of association are different
than under the laws of some U.S. state laws. Famgie, by law existing holders of shares in a Qypiublic company are entitled to pre-
emptive rights on the issue of new shares in thatpany (provided such shares are paid in cashhenpre-emption rights have not been
disapplied). In addition, our articles of assodatinclude other provisions, which differ from pigiens typically included in the governing
documents of most companies organized in the U.S.:

e our board of directors can only take certain agtiby means of a supermajority vote of 75% of itsriners, including approving ¢
annual budget and business plan, disposing ofrberest in a subsidiary if such disposal resul ainange of control over such
subsidiary, issuing shares for consideration atitien cash and other actiol

e our shareholders are able to convene an extraoydiggeral meeting; ar

» if our board of directors exercises its rightppoint a director to fill a vacancy on the boereated during the term of a director’s
appointment, shareholders holding 10.01% of thengaights of the company may terminate the apmoanit of all of the directors
and initiate reelection of the entire board of dices.

As a result of the differences described abovesbareholders may have rights different to thosegaly available to shareholders
of companies organized under U.S. state laws antaard of directors may find it more difficult &pprove certain actions.

Acquisitions of Russian entities are subject to -closing approval by multiple government authoriievhich exercise significant discretion
as to whether a consent should be granted or nattl @re regulated by a significant body of law whithoften ambiguous and open to
varying interpretations.

Due to our ownership of Qiwi Bank, any transactiogsulting in the acquisition of more than 50% of @oting power or the right
to otherwise direct our business activities wowdddme subject to preliminary approval by the CBRaddition, any acquisition of more than
50% of our voting power may also be subject todaiminary approval by the Russian Federal AntimaigjService, or the FAS. Furthermore,
Qiwi Bank holds encryption licenses which are neagsto conduct its operations, and by virtue & thay be deemed to be a “strategic
enterprise” for the purposes of the Federal LathefRussian Federation No. 57-FZ “On the ProcefhrrEBoreign Investments in Enterprises
which are Strategically Important for the State éhsfe and National Securitydated April 29, 2008, as amended. In this casepaqguisition o
control over our company would require an apprafa specialized government commission, whichrislatively lengthy process that
typically takes between three and six months ictma. See “Regulation—Regulation of Strategic Btueents.” These regulatory approval
requirements may have the effect of making a ta&eofzour company more difficult or less attractimad may prevent or delay a change of
control, which could have a negative impact onlidpgidity of, and investor interest in, our ADSs.

Additionally, under Russian law, the depositary rbaytreated as the owner of the class B shareglyimdethe ADSs, and
therefore, could be deemed a beneficial shareholfd®iwi Bank. This is different from the way othjerisdictions treat ADSs. As a result, the
depositary may be subject to the approval requirgsnef the CBR, the FAS and the government comuonsdescribed above in the event an
amount of our shares representing over 50% of oting power is deposited in the ADS program. Acawgty, our ADS program may be
subject to an effective limit of 50% of our votipgwer, unless the depositary obtains FAS, CBR atenpially additional government
commission approvals to increase its ownershixaess of 50% of our voting power. This could limitr ability to raise capital in the future
and the ability of our existing shareholders t¢ $adir ADSs in the public markets, which in turraynimpact the liquidity of share capital.
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If a quota is imposed on foreign ownership of Ruasibanks, a takeover of our company may be impdss

Under current Russian law, the Russian governnsesttitled, upon consultation with the CBR, to mrep legislation imposing a
guota on foreign ownership in the Russian bankmaystry, covering both Russian branches of inténat banks and foreign participation in
the charter capital of Russian banks, such as Bamk. There is currently a draft bill imposing @&@uota on foreign ownership, subject to
certain exemptions. If the draft bill is enactedténcurrent form, a takeover of our company bpreign purchaser may become impossible,
which could limit, prevent or delay a change oftcohof our company and in turn could negatively#at the liquidity of our ADSs.

As a foreign private issuer whose ADSs are listedMasdag, we have elected to follow certain homarttoy corporate governance practict
instead of certain Nasdaq requirements.

As a foreign private issuer whose ADSs are listedNasdag, we are permitted in certain cases todanfbllow Cyprus corporate
governance practices instead of the corresponéiggirements of Nasdag. A foreign private issuet ¢lects to follow a home country practice
instead of Nasdaq requirements must submit to Mpsdadvance a written statement from an indepent@msel in such issuer’'s home
country certifying that the issuer’s practices o€ prohibited by the home country’s laws. In aiddit a foreign private issuer must disclose in
its annual reports filed with the Securities anadlange Commission any significant requirementithddes not follow and describe the home
country practice followed instead of any such rezmient. We follow Cyprus corporate governance prestwith regard to the composition of
our board of directors which, unlike the applicalksdaq rule for U.S. corporations, do not reqthied a majority of our directors be
independent. As a result, although currently sixafeleven directors on our board are independeatzannot assure you that our board of
directors will always have a majority of independdinectors in the future. We also do not have mgensation committee or a nominating
committee comprised entirely of independent dines;tand our independent directors do not meetgolae executive sessions. In addition, our
board of directors has not made any determinatiogther it will comply with Nasdaq rules concernsigareholder approval prior to our taking
certain company actions, including the issuanc2086 or more of our then-outstanding share capitabting power in connection with an
acquisition, and our board of directors, in suchwhstances, may instead determine to follow Cypaiv. Accordingly, our shareholders may
not be afforded the same protection as provide@uNdsdaq corporate governance rules.

Our ADS holders may not have the same voting righssthe holders of our class A shares and classhBres and may not receive voting
materials in time to be able to exercise their riglo vote. Our ADS holders’ right to receive cemadistributions may be limited in certain
respects by the deposit agreement.

Except as set forth in the deposit agreement, olofeour ADSs are not able to exercise votingtagtitaching to the class B sha
represented by our ADSs on an individual basisdel@ of our ADSs have to appoint the depositaiiysatominee as their representative to
exercise the voting rights attaching to the clash&es represented by the ADSs. Upon receipttofgzmstructions from an ADS holder, the
depositary will vote the underlying class B shameaccordance with these instructions. Pursuantitaarticles of association, we may convene
an annual shareholders’ meeting or a shareholdersting called for approval of matters requiringb& shareholder vote upon at least 45
days’ notice and upon at least 30 days’ noticaafoother shareholders’ meetings. If we give timebice to the depositary under the terms of
the deposit agreement, the depositary will notify wf the upcoming vote and arrange to delivenamting materials to you. We cannot assure
our ADS holders that they will receive the votingterials in time to instruct the depositary to viite class B shares underlying their ADSs,
and it is possible that our ADS holders, or persehs hold their ADSs through brokers, dealers beothird parties, will not have the
opportunity to exercise a right to vote. In additithe depositary and its agents are not respenibfailing to carry out voting instructions or
for the manner of carrying out voting instructiofiis means that our ADS holders may not be abéxéscise their right to vote and there n
be nothing such holders can do if the class B shamderlying your ADSs are not voted as requesteaddition, although our ADS holders
may directly exercise their right to vote by withdiing the class B shares underlying their ADSsy thay not receive sufficient advance no
of an upcoming shareholders’ meeting to withdragvdlass B shares underlying their ADSs to allowrthe vote with respect to any specific
matter. Furthermore, under the deposit agreenmemgepositary has the right to restrict distribugioo holders of the ADSs in the event that it
is unlawful or impractical to make such distribuitso We have no obligation to take any action taredistributions to holders of our ADSs.
As a result, holders of ADSs may not receive distibns made by us.
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Our shareholders and ADS holders do not benefitfraeertain anti-takeover protections.

As we are incorporated in Cyprus, we are subje€ytoriot law. As of the date of this annual rep@ypriot law does not contain
any requirement for a mandatory offer to be mada pgrson acquiring shares or depositary recef@Qypriot company even if such an
acquisition confers on such person control ovef neither such compang’shares nor depositary receipts are listed ogwated market in tt
European Economic Area. Neither our shares noA@8s are listed on a regulated market. Consequemtbyospective bidder acquiring AC
may gain control over us in circumstances in whigre is no requirement to conduct a mandatory offieler an applicable takeover protec
regime. As a result, holders of ADSs may not begithe opportunity to receive treatment equal tatwhay be received, in the event of an
offer made by a potential bidder with a view torgiag control over us or by certain other holder&\bfSs or, as the case may be, shares at th
relevant time. As a result, a bid for, or creepaeguisition of control over, us is currently noguéated by Cyprus law.

Risks Relating to the Russian Federation and Othe¥larkets in Which We Operate

Emerging markets, such as Russia and Kazakhstare swbject to greater risks than more developed netskincluding significant legal
economic and political risks.

Investors in emerging markets, such as Russia azdkhstan, should be aware that these marketsiBjecsto greater risk than
more developed markets, including in some casesfisignt legal, economic and political risks. Int@s should also note that emerging
economies are subject to rapid change and thamfinenation set out herein may become outdatedivelst quickly. Accordingly, investors
should exercise particular care in evaluating thlesrinvolved and must decide for themselves whethdight of those risks, their investmen
appropriate. Generally, investment in emerging rirks only suitable for sophisticated investoreilily appreciate the significance of the
risks involved, and investors are urged to conaiitt their own legal and financial advisors befaraking an investment in our ADSs.

The situation in Ukraine and the U.S., EU and otheanctions that have been imposed could adversalyact our operations and financial
condition.

The accession of Crimea to Russia in March 20%k!sthbsequent economic sanctions imposed on c&teisian companies and
individuals by the U.S., EU, Canada and other agemtind the ongoing crisis in Eastern Ukraine hagalted in significant overall price
declines of Russian stocks and weakening of thierals well as other adverse consequences. Ipjtthlk sanctions were limited to freezing
funds and other assets of, imposing travel regiriston, and prohibiting transactions with, cersanctioned individuals, most of whom were
politicians rather than businessmen. These sarsctian also disrupt business with an entity thawised by a sanctioned person, even if that
entity is not specifically sanctioned in its owgtri. In addition, in furtherance of these sanctiths U.S. and the European Union imposed
restrictions on exports to Russia of certain higthhology items or items that could contribute ts§ta’s military capabilities (including dual-
use items).

However, following continued unrest in Eastern Utkea and the shooting down of a civilian aircraulting in nearly 300 deaths
in July 2014, both the EU and the United Statesoised additional sanctions, targeting the Russraanfiial, defence and energy sectors. Man
of the major state-owned businesses in Russia betangeted by U.S. and/or EU sanctions, includibgriBank, Rosneft, Gazprombank,
Vnesheconombank and Bank VTB, as well as certauafer firms such as Novatek.

With the aim of restricting Russian access to Epitehmarkets, the EU imposed a ban on the diregtdirect purchase, sale,
provision of investment services for and assistamt¢be issuance of, or other dealings with trarafke securities and money-market
instruments with a maturity exceeding 90 days whelne issued after August 1, 2014, by certain Runshancial institutions and their
subsidiaries. The ban also covers parties whoggiptary rights are majority owned by these ergtitie acting on their behalf or at their
direction.

Such EU sanctions were subsequently extended &r ¢ansferable securities and money-market ingniswith a maturity
exceeding 30 days issued after September 12, Fatthermore, the EU ban relating to such shorten-teansferable securities and money-
market instruments has been expanded to targ&usigian defence and energy companies (includingétpgransneft and Gazprom Netft)
along with their subsidiaries as of September 0242 A new EU ban was also introduced to proh#ibfect to certain exceptions) directly or
indirectly making or being part of any arrangemenmnake new loans or credit with a maturity excegd0 days to such sanctioned entities
after September 12, 2014.
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The EU has also imposed restrictions on the safmlg, transfer or export to (or for use in) Russi@ertain technologies used in
the oil & gas industry. Further, it is prohibitemldirectly or indirectly provide certain servicedating to the exploration and production of deej
water oil and artic oil or relating to shale oibgcts in Russia.

In addition to these “sectoral” sanctions, the E3 fiven legal effect to broad financial sanctidghin the jurisdiction of the EU,
these financial sanctions order an asset freez@matibit making funds or economic resources abégladirectly or indirectly, to or for the
benefit of sanctioned parties. Sanctioned partiesertain listed natural persons, but also liségdl persons, entities or bodies in Crimea or
Sevastopol whose ownership has been transferrathcpto Ukrainian law, or legal persons, entitiedodies which have benefited from such
a transfer.

Each EU sanction regime also prohibits to knowiragig intentionally participate in activities thgedt or effect of which is to
circumvent any of the specific prohibitions set muthe respective regime.

The U.S. has imposed similar restrictions on eadtith the Russian financial sector, energy sectdrdgfence and related material
sector pursuant to four Directives. Under eacthe$¢ Directives, the relevant prohibitions applyordy to the person that is listed, but also to
any entities in which the listed persons, eitheniidually or in the aggregate with another listadity, hold a 50 per cent. or greater ownershiy
interest. Directive 1 (financial services sect@3ued on July 16, 2014 and amended on Septemb2012, prohibits US persons from
transacting in, providing financing for, or othes@idealing in (i) new debt of longer than 90 dagsurity issued on or after July 16, 2014, or
longer than 30 days maturity issued on or aftet&Saper 12, 2014, for listed persons, their propentytheir interests in property, or (ii) new
equity of listed persons issued on or after thégthasion date. Entities currently subject to theebiive 1 prohibitions include Gazprombank
and Vnesheconombank, designated on July 16, 204k Bf Moscow, Russian Agricultural Bank, and VTBr&, designated on July 29, 20
and Sberbank, designated on September 12, 2014.

Directive 2 (energy sector), issued on July 16 42@tohibits US persons from transacting in, prongdinancing for, or otherwise
dealing in new debt of longer than 90 days matdatythe listed persons. Entities currently subjedhe Directive 2 prohibitions include OAO
Novatek and OJSC Rosneft Oil Company, designatetlignl6, 2014, and AK Transneft OAO and OJSC Gappleft, designated ¢
September 12, 2014.

Directive 3 (defence and related materiel sectss)jed on September 12, 2014, prohibits the foligvactivities by US persons or
within the United States: all transactions in, g@n of financing for, and other dealings in negbtlof longer than 30 days maturity of pers
determined to be subject to Directive 3. The omlfite currently subject to the Directive 3 prohibits is Rostec, which was designated on
September 12, 2014, and entities in which it hal@® per cent. or greater ownership interest.

Directive 4 (energy sector), issued on SeptembgRQP4, further targets the Russian energy seapeohibits the following
activities by US persons or within the United S¢atbe provision, exportation, or re-exportatioineckly or indirectly, of goods, services
(except for financial services), or technology upgort of exploration or production for deepwatenctic offshore, or shale projects that have
the potential to produce oil in the Russian Fedi@mabr in maritime area claimed by the Russianefaiion and extending from its territory,
that involve any person determined to be subjeBlitective 4, its property, or its interests in peoty. Entities currently subject to the Direct
4 prohibitions include OJSC Gazprom Neft and OJ®6rnReft Oil Company, OJSC Gazprom, Lukoil OAO, andgBtneftegas, all designated
on September 12, 2014.

On September 12, 2014, OFAC also issued Generahk& 1A, which replaces previously issued Gendcainse 1. General
License 1A authorizes all transactions by US pessaterever located, and transactions within thiteddrStates involving derivative products
whose value is linked to an underlying asset thastitutes (1) new debt with a maturity of londeart 30 days or new equity issued by a pe
subject to Directive 1; (2) new debt with a matudf longer than 90 days issued by a person sutijddirective 2; and (3) new debt with a
maturity of longer than 30 days issued by a pessdiject to Directive 3.

The U.S. and EU have publicly stated that theypaepared to impose broader economic sanctionsporee to an escalation of
crisis in Ukraine. There can be no assurance tigag¢xisting or new sanctions will not be so expdrtdeénclude or affect any company of our
group or any of our directors, officers or prindipaareholders. In addition, a number of Westesiresses have curtailed or suspended
activities in Russia or dealings with Russian ceypdrts for reputational reasons even though ctlyreeither such activities nor dealings with
their relevant Russian counterparts were prosciiyetthe sanctions.
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While the current sanctions do not target us omptaments industry more generally, these sanctionkl have the effect of
damaging the Russian economy by, among other thamgelerating capital flight from Russia, weakgnirf the Russian ruble, exacerbating
negative investor sentiment towards Russia andmgakharder for Russian companies to access itiemal financial markets for debt and
equity financing. An expansion of the existing miroduction of new sanctions, including those nmed above, or sanctions specifically
targeting us or our management or shareholdemjrosector generally, could result in our interowadil customers, suppliers, shareholders anc
other business partners revising their relationship us for compliance, political, reputationalather reasons, which could affect our
business.

In addition, following the accession of Crimea tasRia, which is seen by the EU as illegal anneraifdcCrimea, we started
operating in that region with a limited number addks. On December 19, 2014, U.S. President Ob&@nada new executive order imposing
comprehensive sanctions on the Crimea region. Almbgansactions involving a U.S. person or ta subject to U.S. jurisdiction and that
directly or indirectly involve an individual or étytin Crimea are prohibited, with the exceptionceftain transactions involving certain
agricultural commodities, medicine and medical desi The executive order also permits the desigmati persons that operate in Crimea,
leaders of entities operating in Crimea, entitiest are owned or controlled by a person that iggdesed by OFAC, or persons that provide
material assistance or financial, material, or t@dhigical support to a person that is designate@BjC. The EU has similarly introduced a
broad set of sanctions through the Council ReqaiiatiEU) 692/2014 as amended by Regulation (EU) 2884, including: an investment ban
prohibiting to acquire new or extend any existimgticipation or ownership of real estate locate@iimea or Sevastopol, acquire new or
extend any existing participation or ownership antcol of an entity in Crimea or Sevastopol, pr@/fthancing to an entity in Crimea or
Sevastopol, create any joint venture in CrimeaewaStopol or with an entity in Crimea or Sevastapgbrovide investment services directly
related to the above activities; an embargo oratelisted goods and technology that are suitedhferkey sectors of transport,
telecommunications, energy and mining; and an itnipamn on goods originating from Crimea and Sevadtapd on financial assistance as \
as insurance and reinsurance related to such import

To date, we do not believe that any of the cursanictions as in force limit our ability to operateCrimea. However, relevant
regulators and/or our counterparties could takew that is different from ours on the issue. Mat& any new or expanded sanctions that
may be imposed on Russian businesses operatingnre& by the U.S., EU, or other countries may niallgradversely affect us and any fut
plans we may have to expand in that region.

In the ordinary course of our business, we may@iqeayments from consumers to or otherwise indirécteract with certain
entities that are the targets of U.S. sanctionsopérate primarily within the Russian financialteys and, accordingly, many of our customers
have accounts at banks in Russia. A number of Rud®inks, including Bank Rossiya, SMP Bank, Inagstalbank and Sobinbank have been
designated by OFAC and are subject to U.S. econsarictions. In addition, Tempbank was designatedtalits dealings with the Syrian
government. U.S. sanctions may be extended to erspp that U.S. authorities determine has matgraisted, or provided financial,
material, or technological support for, or goodsenvices to or in support of, any sanctioned iildials or entities. For example, we may be
associated with U.S.-designated banks due to eptng payments for them from consumers in thenanyi course of our business, even
though we may not have any direct contract relatigps with them. There can be no assurance thal.®eGovernment would not view such
activities as meeting the criteria for U.S. econoeanctions.

In addition, because of the nature of our busingesjo not generally identify our customers whéesé is no express requirement
to do so under Russian anti-money laundering latiisi. Therefore, we are not always able to sctikem against the Specially Designated
Nationals and Blocked Persons List published by ORAd other sanctions lis

While we believe that our indirect interaction wiRlussian banks and potential interaction with destied individuals that may be
subject to U.S. or EU economic and financial samstidoes not contravene any law, our businessegndation could be adversely affected if
the U.S. government were to designate us as addiogéirty and extend such sanctions to us. The Bxearders authorizing the U.S. sancti
provide that persons may be designated if, infayr tley materially assist, or provide financiahterial, or technological support for or goods
or services to or in support of, blocked or desigdgarties. EU financial sanctions prohibit theedi and indirect making available of funds or
economic resources to or for the benefit of sanetibparties. Investors may also be adversely affie€ve are so designated, resulting in thei
investment in our securities being prohibited @trieted. Furthermore, under those circumstanaesedJ.S. or EU investors may decide for
legal or reputational reasons to divest their hgdiin us or not to purchase our securities irffiteeplace. We are aware of initiatives by U.S.
governmental entities and U.S. institutional ineest such as pension funds, to adopt or considggtand) laws, regulations, or policies
prohibiting transactions with or investment inyequiring divestment from, entities doing businegth certain countries. There can be no
assurance that the foregoing will not occur or #wsth occurrence will not have a material adveffeeteon our share price. Even if we are not
subjected to U.S. or other
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economic sanctions, our participation in the Rusfii@ancial system and indirect interaction witinsiioned banks and potential interaction
with designated individuals may adversely impactreputation among investors. There is also athakother entities with which we engage
in business, or individuals or entities associat@t them, are, or at any time in the future magdree, subject to sanctions.

Initially, Russia imposed only a limited set of sfons in response to the Ukraine-related sanciiop®sed by the U.S., EU and
other countries primarily focused on banning cert&iestern government officials from travelling tadRia. However, on August 6, 2014, the
Russian President signed a decree “On the useesoffigpeconomic measures”, which mandated an éffleembargo for a one-year period on
imports of most of the agricultural products whosentry of origin had either “adopted the decisionintroduction of economic sanctions in
respect of Russian legal entities and (or) indigidpor joined same”. The next day, the Russiaregovent ordinance was adopted and
published with immediate effect, which specified ttanned items as well as the countries of prowenadhe United States, the European
Union, Norway, Canada and Australia, including a ba fruit, vegetables, meat, fish, milk and damports. Russia may introduce broader
measures as the situation in the Ukraine unfoldduding, without limitation, measures to addreagital flight from Russia or that impose
restrictions on transactions on capital and delskata or otherwise, any of which could further adedy affect investor interest and the
Russian economy generally. Any such countermeasordd have a material adverse effect on our bgsireor example, under a draft law
submitted to the State Duma in December 2014, thesi@n Government could prohibit activities by fgrelegal entities (or their affiliates)
registered in the countries that have imposed gargcon Russian persons.

The crisis in Ukraine is ongoing and could escaMtere full-fledged hostilities to break out betwddkraine and Russia, they
would likely cause significant economic disruptimd calls from the Western countries for a compusive sanction regime that would seek t
further isolate Russia from the world economy. Etlencurrent level of ongoing civil insurrectiongastern Ukraine, if no resolution is
forthcoming, may well lead to further strengthenargl broadening of Ukraine-related sanctions. kample, there have been proposals to cu
off Russia from the international SWIFT paymenttegs which would disrupt ordinary financial sendda Russia and any cross-border trade
The potential repercussions surrounding the sdnati Crimea and Eastern Ukraine are unknown analssarance can be given regarding the
future of relations between Russia and other cmmtOverall, the situation in Ukraine and Crimemnains uncertain and we cannot predict
how the Ukrainian crisis will unfold or the impattwvill have on our business or results of operaioAny or all of the above factors could h
a material adverse effect on our business, finhooradition, results of operations and prospects

New legislation signed into law in Russia in M~ October 2014 may significantly complicate the ogtéon of a payment system in Russia
and potentially force international payment systemasreduce their exposure to Russia or cease operatin Russia altogether.

As a result of the economic sanctions imposed oiceRussian companies and individuals by the th.8esponse to the situation
in the Ukraine, in March 2014, Visa and MasterCstopped processing payments for certain Russiaksltaat were either targets of U.S.
sanctions themselves or were allegedly controliethdividuals who were targets of such sanctiongekponse, on May 5, 2014, new
legislation was signed into law in Russia that gitlee Central Bank of Russia, or CBR, authoritinipose significant fines on payment
infrastructure participants, including payment eys$ such as Visa and MasterCard, for unilateralitextion or suspension of servicing ano
payment infrastructure participant and its clients.

For the CBR to be able to enforce these fines |¢gislation also requires operators of paymenssesys (other than payment
systems deemed “nationally importaptirsuant to the law) to place collateral on depoih the CBR that may be forfeited if they termimar
suspend services in the future. “Nationally imporgaayment systems” are defined in the law as paysyestems (i) whose operators are
controlled by the Russian state, the CBR or Russit@ens and (ii) for which the IT used meets agrrequirements established by the
CBR/Russian Government (including having a cershiare of such IT developed in Russia). The fingslipia for unilaterally terminating or
suspending services to other payment infrastrugtargécipants may total up to 10% of such depasibperators of payment systems other
nationally important payment systems or up to RUBTillion for operators of nationally important pagnt systems, in each case per each da
while the termination or suspension persists. Tdikieral required to be deposited by operatorsaginent systems other than nationally
important payment systems must equal the total paywolume of such payment system in the Russideriadon for two calendar days.

Other changes introduced by the new legislatiolugesthe creation in Russia of a national paymard system similar to China’s
Union Pay to replace Visa and MasterCard as thegssi payment systems in Russia, and the requirerfient July 1,
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2016, that Russian domestic payments and monesféranonly be processed by operators that existargt out all the functions related to
such processing within Russia and not abroad. &ityjlfrom July 1, 2016, no data on any Russian ekiio payments and money transfers
be transmitted abroad by payment infrastructureaipes for any purposes. Subsequently, in Octob#&4 2further changes were introduced
require all transactions with the use of cardsadsunder international brands, such as Visa anddviaard, to be processed through the
facilities of the Russian national payment cardesysrather than the international payment systaws facilities. Although this allows the
international payment systems to become exempt thencollateral requirement, these developmentsxected to further complicate the
operations of international payment systems in Russid can potentially have broader detrimentakequences for the Russian financial
system, which are difficult to evaluate at thigsta

In the wake of this new legislation, there has b&maculation that international payment systemddooonsider leaving the Russian
market altogether. While the most recent pressrteguior to the date of this annual report seeimndicate that an agreement has been reache
whereby both Visa and MasterCard will continue perate in Russia, there can be no assurance haatisit will further develop. If Visa
ceases to operate in Russia, we may be unablsue \dsa-branded prepaid cards or continue to tperader the “Visa Qiwi Wallet” brand,
and thereby lose the possible benefits of assoaiatith the Visa brand. This could lower consunmrfidence with our products and could
reduce the number of transactions made though@iis@aWallet, which could have a material adverse&fon our Visa Qiwi Wallet business
and our business as a whole. It could also renglenable to realize our international expansionpkssociated with our partnership with V
Additionally, these developments have already chiasterCard to start increasing its fees for Rusbianks to protect its margins, and may
cause Visa to do the same.

Any of these factors could have a material adveffezt on our reputation, as well as on our businisancial condition, results of
operations and prospects.

Recent changes to knc-your-client requirements established by Russiartiamoney laundering legislation may adversely impaair
transaction volumes.

On January 15, 2014, a legislative proposal wamétdd to the Russian State Duma, providing for@at package of measures
aimed at combatting terrorist and extremist agésitincluding changes to the Russian legislatiat would effectively outlaw anonymous
electronic payments to foreign merchants and digitly lower the caps on such payments within Russnot more than RUB15,000 per
month (as opposed to RUB40,000 under current ktipsl) and not more than RUB1,000 per day. On M&044, this proposal was signed
into law, albeit in a different form. While the aémentioned limitations were not adopted, anonynpmes-to-peer money transfers as well as
anonymous payments to foreign entities were pradibaltogether, although simultaneously a simglifiéent identification procedure was
provided for in order not to eliminate personakéienic money transfers altogether. The key difieesbetween the simplified procedure and
the procedure that must be followed in all othecwinstances is that simplified identification cangerformed remotely. The consumers who
have undergone such simplified identification vilib payment services provider are entitled to parfelectronic money transfers to legal
entitles and individual entrepreneurs using norsqeified electronic means of payment provided #mgttime the account balance of electronic
money does not exceed RUB60,000 and the total anuduransferred funds does not exceed RUB200,@00nwmnth, as opposed to
RUB15,000 and RUB40,000 under the previous versfdhe law, respectively. However, remote idenéfion requires the verification of
certain data provided by consumers against publiatthses, which are not yet up and running at Hualés required by our payment system,
which could cause us to be in violation of the iiferation requirements. These developments andirtigations on the payment volumes and
account balances in Visa QIWI Wallet introduceaassult of our ongoing compliance process coutdmi@lly negatively affect the number
of our consumers and, consequently, our volumesearehues

Political and governmental instability could adverly affect the value of investments in Russ

Political conditions in the Russian Federation waghly volatile in the 1990s, as evidenced byfteguent conflicts amongst
executive, legislative and judicial authorities,igfhnegatively impacted the business and investrignate in the Russian Federation. Ove
past two decades the course of political and a#ferms has in some respects been uneven andii@osdion of the Russian Government
at times been unstable. The Russian political aysientinues to be vulnerable to popular dissatigfacincluding dissatisfaction with the
results of the privatizations of the 1990s, as aslto demands for autonomy from certain religietisnic and regional groups.

Over the last 15 years, the Russian political sysaad the relationship between the President, tiesiBn Government and the
Russian Parliament were generally stable. There baen, however, public protests in Moscow andratHzan areas following elections for
the State Duma in December 2011 alleging that lnetiens were subject to
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substantial electoral fraud. The Prime Ministethat time, Mr. Vladimir Putin has rejected callsdpposition leaders that the elections for the
State Duma be annulled and re-run, but has institlimited political reforms. Similar protests toplace following the presidential elections in
March 2012 which resulted in re-election of Mr. dflmir Putin.

Future changes in the Russian Government, the Btate or the presidency, major policy shifts orrdual lack of consensus
between the president, the Russian Governmentj&Rugsrliiament and powerful economic groups cdedd! to political instability.
Additionally, the potential for political instaktiji resulting from the worsening of the economiaaiton in Russia and deteriorating standarc
living should not be underestimated. Any such ipisitst could negatively affect the economic andipicdl environment in Russia, particularly
in the short term. Shifts in governmental policg aagulation in the Russian Federation are lesgigtable than in many Western democracies
and could disrupt or reverse political, economid eegulatory reforms. Any significant change in Bgssian Government’s program of reform
in Russia could lead to the deterioration of Russievestment climate that might limit our ability obtain financing in the international capital
markets or otherwise have a material adverse affecur business, financial condition and resulisperations.

The reversal of reform policies or the implementati of government policies in Russia targeted atdfie individuals or companies could
harm our business as well as investments in Rusa@re generally.

In recent years, the political and economic sitirath Russia has generally become more stable @mdlicive to investment.
However, major policy shifts, government reshufééesl a lack of consensus among key political gramosdd hinder or reverse political,
economic and regulatory reforms. Reform may al$tesif key government officials engage in privédesiness while in office, particularly
when these business interests are in the industystich officials regulate. Any such deteriorabiRussia’s investment climate might
constrain our ability to obtain financing, limit osales in Russia and otherwise materially and rséle affect our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

In addition, the use of governmental power agagasticular companies or persons, for example, tjindhe tax, environmental or
prosecutorial authorities, could adversely affeetRussian economic climate and, if directed agaisisour senior management or our major
shareholders, could materially adversely affectlmuginess, financial condition and results of oflena. Russian authorities have recently
challenged some Russian companies and prosecaie@xiecutive officers and shareholders on thempiewof tax evasion and related charges
In some cases, the results of such prosecutionstaiiénges have been significant claims againsipemies for unpaid taxes and the
imposition of prison sentences on individuals. Ehleas been speculation that in certain cases thedlenges and prosecutions were intended
to punish, and deter, opposition to the governmettie pursuit of disfavored political or econoragendas. There has also been speculation
that certain environmental challenges brought riégdry Russian authorities in the oil and gas al agmining sectors have been targeted at
specific Russian businesses under non-Russianotontth a view to bringing them under state cohtkdore generally, some observers have
noted that takeovers in recent years of major fgigactor companies in the oil and gas, metalsvantifacturing sectors by state-controlled
companies following tax, environmental and othaligimges may reflect a shift in official policy favor of state control at the expense of
individual or private ownership, at least whergyéaand important enterprises are concerned. Thénexent of such cases occurred in the fall
of 2014, when one of Russia’s most influential hessmen Vladimir Evtushenkov was put under housstain relation to a mondgundering
investigation linked to the purchase by Sistemdnpaastment company majority-owned by Mr. Evtush@nlof shares in Bashneft, a
significant oil company in Russia. Sistema’s st@kBashneft was then nationalized in late Octol8dr42by a resolution of a Moscow court on
account of the 2003 privatization of assets whimmprise Bashneft being illegal, even though Sistdidanot participate in that privatization
and only came into ownership of its stake in Bafthine2009. Sistema has announced it has no imert appeal against the resolution, and o
December 9, 2014, transferred its stake in Bashoefte Russian Federation.

Political and other conflicts create an uncertairperating environment that hinders our lor-term planning ability and could adversely
affect the value of our investments in Russia.

Russia is a federation of 85 sub-federal politigats, consisting of republics, territories, regipnities of federal importance and
autonomous regions and districts. The delineatfauthority and jurisdiction among the membershef federation and the federal governmen
is, in many instances, unclear and remains comtekek of consensus between the federal governamhtocal or regional authorities often
results in the enactment of conflicting legislatairvarious levels and may lead to further politinatability. In particular, in the past,
conflicting laws have been enacted in the aregsivétization, securities, corporate legislaticegulation of land use and licensing. Some of
these laws and governmental and administrativesets implementing them, as well as certain traiwas consummated pursuant to them,
have in the past been challenged in the courtsugsid and such challenges may occur in the future.
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Ethnic, religious, historical and other divisiorsvie on occasion given rise to tensions and, iritecases, military conflict and
terrorist attacks in certain regions of Russia. &@ample, a military conflict in August 2008 betweRussia and Georgia involving South
Ossetia and Abkhazia, as well as the ongoing airifétween Russia and Ukraine, resulted in sigaitioverall price declines in the Russian
stock exchanges and capital outflow from RussighSensions, military conflict or terrorist actieis (such as the bombing of Domodedovo
airport in Moscow in January 2011 and the bombifhthe Moscow metro in 2010, and, most recently, suizide bombings in Volgograd in
December 2013 that resulted in 34 fatalities) cdwalde significant political consequences, includimg imposition of a state of emergency in
some or all of Russia or heightened security measuvhich could cause disruption to domestic cormmand exports from Russia, disrupt
normal economic activity in Russia and materiatlyersely affect our business, financial conditiod aesults of operations.

Deterioration of Russi’s relations with other countries could negativedffect the Russian economy and those of the neamayions.

Over the past several years, Russia has been ed/atvconflicts, both economic and military, inviolg other members of the CIS.
On several occasions, this has resulted in theidetgon of Russia’s relations with other membefr¢he international community, including
the United States and various countries in Eurbfamy of these jurisdictions are home to finanamastitutions and corporations that are
significant investors in Russia and whose investrsrategies and decisions may be affected by soflicts and by worsening relations
between Russia and its immediate neighbors.

For example, relations between Ukraine and Ruasiaell as Georgia and Russia, have recently keginedd over a variety of
issues. On 21 March 2014, President Putin sigrgidl&ion to recognize Crimea’s accession to, datlis as part of, Russia. Since then, there
has been continuing tensions between Russia araingkmivhich were aggravated by the military comfiicEastern Ukraine. The events in
Ukraine and Crimea have prompted condemnation bmlmees of the international community and have Istemgly opposed by the EU and
the United States, with a resulting material negsitinpact on the relationships between the EUlthiged States and Russia. See “— The
situation in Ukraine and the U.S., EU and othectans that have been imposed could adversely itrqaacoperations and financial
condition”. The emergence of new or escalated ¢essbetween Russia and other CIS countries or athertries could negatively affect the
Russian economy. This, in turn, may result in aegailack of confidence among international investn the region’s economic and political
stability and in Russian investments generally hSack of confidence may result in reduced liqyiditading volatility and significant declines
in the price of listed securities of companies vgiinificant operations in Russia, including our @€) and in our inability to raise debt or eq
capital in the international capital markets, whichy affect our ability to achieve the level of @th to which we aspire.

Crime and corruption could create a difficult busass climate in Russia.

The political and economic changes in Russia dineearly 1990s have led, amongst other thinggdaced policing of society
and increased lawlessness. In September 2006 ghetypChairman of the CBR was assassinated in whsatallegedly a contract killing tied
his enforcement actions against corrupt Russiakibgrorganizations. Organized crime, particulantggerty crimes in large metropolitan
centers, has reportedly increased significantlgesthe dissolution of the Soviet Union. In addititie Russian and international media have
reported high levels of corruption in Russia. Pregorts have also described instances in whiclergowent officials have engaged in selective
investigations and prosecutions to further ther@geof the government and individual officialsbasiness groups. Although we adhere to a
business ethics policy and internal compliance gulaces to counteract the effects of crime and ption, instances of illegal activities,
demands of corrupt officials, allegations that we@wr management have been involved in corruptiafiegal activities or biased articles and
negative publicity could materially and adversdfget our business, financial condition and resafteperations.

Economic instability in Russia could have an adversffect on our busines:

The Russian economy has been adversely affectéielrgcent global financial and economic crisicofstinuation of the econorr
crisis could have a negative effect on the scatkepaafitability of our business. Any of the follomg risks, which the Russian economy has
experienced at various points in the past, may bavave already had a significant adverse effa¢dhe economic climate in Russia and may
burden or have already burdened our operations:

. significant declines in gross domestic produciGaP;

. high levels of inflation
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. sudden price declines in the natural resource ¢

. high and fas-growing interest rate:

. unstable credit condition

. international sanction:

. high state debt/GDP rati

. instability in the local currency marke

. a weakly diversified economy which depends sigaiiity on global prices of commoditie

. lack of reform in the banking sector and a weakkbansystem providing limited liquidity to Russianterprises

. pervasive capital flight

. corruption and the penetration of organized crinie the economy

. significant increases in unemployment and undereympént;

. the impoverishment of a large portion of the Rusgiapulation:

. large number of unprofitable enterprises which it to operate due to deficiency in the existingkruptcy procedure

. prevalent practice of tax evasion; ¢

. growth of the blac-market economy

The Russian economy has been subject to abrupttdavenn the past. For example, on August 17, 1898e face of a rapidly

deteriorating economic situation, the Russian Gawvent defaulted on its ruble-denominated securities CBR stopped its support of the
ruble and a temporary moratorium was imposed otaicenard currency payments. These actions resuitad immediate and severe
devaluation of the ruble and a sharp increasedandte of inflation, a dramatic decline in the ps®f Russian debt and equity securities and tt
inability of Russian issuers to raise funds inititernational capital markets. These problems vaggravated by the near collapse of the
Russian banking sector in connection with the saweats. This further impaired the ability of thenkimg sector to act as a reliable source of
liquidity to Russian companies and resulted inwiidespread loss of bank deposits. In responseetgltbal economic crisis in 2008 and 2009,

the Russian government implemented a range ofcaists measures, however, the Russian economytiia®os fully recovered from the
economic crisis.

As Russia produces and exports large quantitiesuofe oil, natural gas, petroleum products andratbemmodities, the Russian
economy is particularly vulnerable to fluctuationil and gas prices as well as other commodfigses, which have experienced significant
volatility during the global financial crisis begiimg in the second half of 2008. More recently,igigithe second half of 2014, due to rising |
oil production driven by the shale boom and slowdegnand growth in Asia and Europe, oil prices despmore than 50%, reaching record
lows, according to New York Times. The price of tiebal benchmark Brent crude has fallen from UL$1$bbl on 30 June 2014 to
U.S.$55/bbl on 31 December 2014. According to rpldtsources, this trend may be expected to contihigast in the near term, in particular
due to the November 27, 2014 decision by the Orgaioin of the Petroleum Exporting Countries, theatavhich controls 40% of the world’s
oil production, not to cut oil production levelscéording to both analysts and Russian officials goekernment authorities, including the CBR,
Russia is expected to enter recession in 2015awtignificant drop in GDP, the length and full effef which cannot be predicted at this time.

Due to these and other factors, including the egobosanctions imposed on certain Russian compamniésndividuals by the U.S.,
EU, Canada and other countries, since the begirofi@g14, the ruble has significantly depreciated.
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The declines had become so precipitous that the GBRd its key rate several times throughout #a yuntil it reached 17% in December
2014, although it was subsequently reduced to Ib3amnuary 2015. On November 10, 2014, the CBR amsalithat it had abandoned the
ruble’s trading corridor that it had maintainedc&ir2008, allowing the currency to float freely, amould intervene in the foreign currency
market only if it saw a threat to financial statyiliin light of the current economic slowdown fagiRussia and the sharp fall in the value of the
ruble, there have been suggestions that the Ruastanrities may impose restrictions on the corilvidity of capital in an effort to stabilize the
value of the ruble, potentially adversely affectthg ability of foreign companies such as oursetegsocure dividend payments from our
Russian subsidiaries. There can be no assurancehithar any other measures will ultimately preuecessful. A sustained or continued
depreciation of the ruble may curb consumer spendird result in a general decline of the Russianauy.

The weakening of the Russian economy has led toVotgtility in the markets for Russian debt andiggsecurities, reductions in
foreign investment and sharp capital outflow. Theae be no assurance that any response by theaRugsiernment to current economic
challenges will adequately ameliorate the situasind prevent a further decline in the Russian etgno

These and other factors have also led the int@mealtrating agencies to lower the Russian Federatiedit ratings: on January 26,
2015 S&P cut its long-term foreign currency sovgmngdound rating for the Russian Federation to ‘B®&ith negative outlook, and on
February 20, 2015 Moody'’s cut its sovereign detihgafor the Russian Federation to Bal with negatiutlook; each of these ratings is below
‘investment grade’. Credit ratings for a numbeRaoissian companies and banks have been lowered et months, another factor
contributing to an increased cost of capital infussian economy. In a forecast released on Fegbt@a2015, the Russian Ministry of
Economic Development predicted inflation at 17-%4 for the first quarter of 2015 year-on-year; aodthe year 2015; inflation at 12-12.4%
(with food inflation expected to be greater), rwalges declining 9.6% and disposable incomes denge@s3%.

Any further decreases or fluctuations in world coodiity prices, or, more generally, any further dietation of general economic
conditions in Russia could adversely influencedgbenomic stability and demand for various prodacid services, including those sold by us,
and therefore could have a material adverse effeciur business, financial condition and resultspsrations.

The macroeconomic slowdown in Russia, caused amthay things by dropping oil prices and sancti@gme, which effectively
limited the access to liquidity of the key Rusdismks led to liquidity shortage in the market wemype. In addition, Central Bank of Russia
while trying to prevent further devaluation of rabhcreased the shasrm ruble borrowing rate to 17%. This exacerb#tediquidity shortag
on the market. As a consequence, banks and busiiesRussia substantially decreased credit limiteeir everyday operations. We noted
that our merchants and partners started sincenthef2014 to request from us larger collaterallsddge their risks. We were able to manage
these new requirements to date, though the liquitibrtage in the market may further exacerbatecandequently it may have further negs
effects on our operations which cannot be now logfiastimated.

The banking system in Russia remains underdevelaped

The banking and other financial systems in Rus&aat well-developed or regulated, and Russiaislitipn relating to banks and
bank accounts is subject to varying interpretatind inconsistent application. The 1998 financiaisresulted in the bankruptcy and
liquidation of many Russian banks and almost elgteéminated the developing market for commerbiahk loans at that time. From April to
July 2004, the Russian banking sector experienaeler serious turmoil. As a result of various nednlumors and certain regulatory and
liquidity problems, several privately owned Rusdiamks experienced liquidity problems and were lenabattract funds on the inter-bank
market or from their client base. Simultaneougigytfaced large withdrawals of deposits by bothirend corporate customers. Several of
these privately owned Russian banks collapsedasetkor severely limited their operations. Ruskarks owned or controlled by the
government and foreign owned banks generally wetadversely affected by the turmoil.

There are currently a limited number of creditwgrRussian banks (most of which are headquarter&tbscow). Although the
CBR has the mandate and authority to suspend bafikences of insolvent banks, many insolvent batilsoperate. Many Russian banks
do not meet international banking standards, aedrinsparency of the Russian banking sector iresespects still lags behind internationally
accepted norms. Banking supervision is also oftadéquate, as a result of which many banks doofiotrf existing CBR regulations with
respect to lending criteria, credit quality, loasd reserves, diversification of exposure or otbguirements. The imposition of more stringent
regulations or interpretations could lead to weakkecapital adequacy and the insolvency of somedahior to the onset of the 2008 global
economic crisis, there had been a rapid increalniing by Russian banks, which many believe reshlaccompanied by a
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deterioration in the credit quality of the loan fbolio of those banks. In addition, a robust dorzesbrporate debt market was leading Russian
banks to hold increasingly large amounts of Russ@porate ruble bonds in their portfolios, whicinther deteriorated the risk profile of the
assets of Russian banks. The global financialscagR007-2008 has led to the collapse or bailbgbme Russian banks and to significant
liquidity constraints for others. Profitability lels of most Russian banks have been adverseltedfelndeed, the global crisis has prompted
the government to inject substantial funds intoktheking system amid reports of difficulties amdétgssian banks and other financial
institutions.

In October 2013 — February 2015 a very significamhber of Russian banks, including Master-Bankestivank and SB-Bank, had
their banking licenses revoked, which resulteduimioil in the industry, instigated a banking paait bank runs on a number of Russian cred
institutions, and severely undermined the trust e Russian population had with private bankeoltld be expected that the difficulties
currently faced by the Russian economy could resdlirther collapses of Russian banks, particyldrbse heavily exposed to the retail
lending sector, as ngmerforming consumer loans have increased signifigamd demand has shrunk due to more cautiousucogisspending
According to the CBR, the level of non-performiguhs in the Russian banking sector has increaseud3r8% in January 2014 to 8.1% in
December 2014. The CBR’s December 2014 RUB 12ibbibhail-out of Trust Bank, Russia’s 2@argest bank by assets, may be symptomat
of weaknesses in the Russian banking sector. Whthefxceptions (notably the state-owned banks)Rtiesian banking system suffers from
weak depositor confidence, high concentration @iosxre to certain borrowers and their affiliatemmcredit quality of borrowers and related
party transactions. Current economic circumstairc&issia are likely to put stress on the Russ@nking system in 2015.

We periodically hold funds in a number of Russianks and are dependent on the banking industryuiorevenue from Financial
services. The bankruptcy or insolvency of one oravdd these banks could adversely affect our bgsiriEhe continuation or worsening of the
banking crisis could decrease our transaction veljmwhile the bankruptcy or insolvency of any & bdanks which hold our funds could
prevent us from accessing our funds for severas.dal of these factors could have a material aseaffect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Social instability could lead to labor and sociahtest, increased support for renewed centralizedtarity, nationalism or violence

Failures to adequately address social problems leavia the past, and could lead in the futurdabmr and social unrest. Labor and
social unrest could have political, social and eroic consequences, such as increased supportéaeaal of centralized authority; increased
nationalism, with support for re-nationalizationpwbperty, or expropriation of or restrictions amdign involvement in the economy of Russia;
and increased violence. Any of these could havadaerse effect on confidence in Russia’s socialreninent and the value of investments in
Russia, could restrict our operations and leadltss of revenue, and could otherwise have a nahidverse effect on its business, results of
operations and financial condition.

Russia has experienced high levels of inflationtime past.

As a substantial portion of our expenses (includipgrating costs and capital expenditures) arerdevated in rubles, the relative
movement of inflation and exchange rates signitigeaffects our results of operations. The effadtmflation could cause some of our costs tc
rise. Russia has experienced high levels of imitatince the early 1990s. For example, inflatiaméased dramatically after the 1998 financial
crisis, reaching a rate of 84.4% in that year. Adtwg to Rosstat, inflation in the Russian Federatiias 6.6% in 2012, 6.5% in 2013 and
11.4% in 2014. Higher levels of inflation are exjgekin the future as Russian economy enters adiffperiod. Certain of our costs, such as
salaries and rent, are affected by inflation indRusTo the extent the inflation causes these ¢osterease, such inflation may materially
adversely affect our business, financial conditiod results of operations.

The immaturity of legal systems, processes and pecas in the Russian Federation may adversely affear business, financial condition
and results of operations.

Risks associated with the legal systems of the iRm$=deration include, to varying degrees, in@iaacies between and among
laws, presidential decrees, edicts and governmanthiministerial orders and resolutions; confligtiocal, regional, and federal rules and
regulations; the lack of judicial or administratiyeidance regarding the interpretation of the ajablie rules; the untested nature of the
independence of the judiciary and its immunity frpdiitical, social and commercial influences; tketative inexperience of jurists, judges and
courts in interpreting recently enacted legislatmid complex commercial arrangements; a high degfrarchecked discretion on the part of
governmental authorities; alleged corruption witthie judiciary and governmental authorities; sutitsdhgaps in the regulatory structure du
delays in or
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absence of implementing regulations; bankruptcg@dares that are not well-developed and are sutgjediuse; and a lack of binding judicial
precedent. All of these weaknesses affect ourtaldiprotect and enforce our legal rights, inchgliights under contracts, and to defend
against claims by others. In addition, the receatgar of the Supreme Arbitration Court of the Raisdtederation, which used to oversee
business disputes, into the Supreme Court, whield tsonly handle criminal cases and civil lawsugviewed by some as having further
aggravated these issues.

The Russian judicial system is not immune from ecoic and political influences. The Russian coudtes is understaffed and
underfunded, and the quality of justice, duratibfegal proceedings, and performance of courtsearfdrcement of judgments remain
problematic. Under Russian legislation, judicisdg@dents generally have no binding effect on sulesgglecisions and are not recognised as
source of law. However, in practice, courts usuedlgsider judicial precedents in their decisionsoEcement of court judgments can in
practice be very difficult and time-consuming inRia. Additionally, court claims are sometimes usefdrtherance of political and
commercial aims. All of these factors can makegiadidecisions in Russia difficult to predict andke effective redress problematic in certain
instances.

The relatively recent enactment of many laws, &o bf consensus about the scope, content andopaoditical and economic
reform and the rapid evolution of legal systems/ays that may not always coincide with market depelents have resulted in legal
ambiguities, inconsistencies and anomalies anckiitain cases, the enactment of laws without a cleastitutional or legislative basis. Legal
and bureaucratic obstacles and corruption exigatging degrees in each of the regions in whicloperate, and these factors are likely to
hinder our further development. These charactesigfive rise to investment risks that do not existountries with more developed legal
systems. The developing nature of the legal systerRsissia could materially adversely affect ousibass, financial condition and results of
operations.

Unlawful, selective or arbitrary government actianay have an adverse effect on our business.

Governmental authorities have a high degree ofelien in Russia and at times appear to act sekdgtor arbitrarily, without
hearing or prior notice, and in a manner that isti@y to law or influenced by political or commiaiaconsiderations. Moreover, the Russian
Government also has the power in certain circunest®rby regulation or government act, to interfeith the performance of, nullify or
terminate contracts. Unlawful, selective or arlsitrgovernmental actions have reportedly includediaer withdrawal of licenses, sudden and
unexpected tax audits, criminal prosecutions awitl @ctions. Federal and local government entitils® appear to have used common defec
matters surrounding share issuances and registrasipretexts for court claims and other demandsv/aidate the issuances or registrations o
to void transactions, seemingly for political pusps. Moreover, selective, public criticism by Rassbovernment officials of Russian
companies has in the past caused the price ofgiybladed securities in such Russian companisbaoply decline, and there is no assurance
that any such public criticism by Russian Governnudficials in the future will not have the samegaéve affect. Standard & Poors has
expressed concerns that “Russian companies andrnfiestors can be subjected to government presstoagh selective implementation of
regulations and legislation that is either polificanotivated or triggered by competing businessugis”. In this environment, our competitors
could receive preferential treatment from the goweent, potentially giving them a competitive adeays. Unlawful, selective or arbitrary
governmental action, if directed at our operationRussia, could materially and adversely affectlmusiness, financial condition and results o
operations.

Russian companies can be forced into liquidation tie basis of formal no-compliance with certain requirements of Russiania

Certain provisions of Russian law may allow a céadrder the liquidation of a Russian legal enbitythe basis of its formal non-
compliance with certain requirements during forim@tireorganization or during its operation. Thes@ehbeen cases in the past in which fol
deficiencies in the establishment process of aiRndsgal entity or non-compliance with provisiafsdRussian law have been used by Russial
courts as a basis for the liquidation of a legaitgnweaknesses in the Russian legal system cesatmcertain legal environment, which ma
the decisions of a Russian court or a governmeiutidlority difficult, if not impossible, to predidf.any of our operating subsidiaries
incorporated in Russia were subject to involuntapyidation, such liquidation could lead to signdint negative consequences for our busines
financial condition and results of operations.

For example, under Russian corporate law, negasv@assets calculated on the basis of the Russtmuating standards as of the
end of the year following the second or any subsetjyear of a company’s existence can serve asia foa creditors to accelerate their claims
and to demand payment of damages, as well asdourd to order the liquidation of the company upoeiaim by governmental authorities.
Many Russian companies have negative net assets deey low historical value of property, plantdaaquipment reflected on their Russian
accounting standards balance sheets. However,

34



Table of Contents

their solvency (defined as their ability to pay thefis they come due) is not otherwise adversedcegtl by such negative net assets. There ar
cases when courts have ordered mandatory liquidafia company based on its negative net assetsglhsuch company had continued to
fulfill its obligations and had net assets in excesthe required minimum at the time of liquidatio

Shareholder liability under Russian corporate lavogld cause us to become liable for the obligatiasfoour subsidiaries

Russian law generally provides that shareholdessRussian joint-stock company or participants liméed liability company are
not liable for that company’s obligations and risky the loss of their investment. This may notte case, however, when one company (the
“effective parent”) is capable of making decisidosanother (the “effective subsidiary”). Under taén circumstances, the effective parent
bears joint and several responsibility for traniseast concluded by the effective subsidiary in caugyout such decisions.

In addition, under Russian law, an effective parestcondarily liable for an effective subsidiargdebts if an effective subsidiary
becomes insolvent or bankrupt as a result of thieraof an effective parent. In these instances atther shareholders of the effective subsic
may claim compensation for the effective subsid&tgsses from the effective parent that causesfthetive subsidiary to take action or fail
take action knowing that such action or failuréaie action would result in losses. We could benébto be the effective parent of our
subsidiaries, in which case we would become lifdni¢heir debts, which could have a material adve&ffect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Risks Relating to Taxation

Weaknesses and changes in the Russian tax systerndeoaterially and adversely affect our businessdatie value of investments in
Russia.

We are subject to a broad range of taxes and otimepulsory payments imposed at federal, regiondll@cal levels, including, but
not limited to, profits tax, VAT, corporate propetax and social contributions. Tax laws, suchh@sRussian Tax Code, have been in force fol
a short period relative to tax laws in more devetbmarket economies, and the implementation oktheeslaws is often unclear or
inconsistent. Historically, the system of tax colien has been relatively ineffective, resultingcontinual changes to the interpretation of
existing laws. Although the quality of Russian tegislation has generally improved with the introtion of the first and second parts of the
Russian Tax Code, the possibility exists that Russay impose arbitrary or onerous taxes and pesattithe future, which could adversely
affect our business, financial condition and resaftoperations. A large number of changes have besle to various chapters of the Russian
Tax Code since their introduction. Since Russiaffal, regional and local tax laws and regulat@mssubject to changes and some of the
sections of the Russian Tax Code relating to theeafentioned taxes are comparatively new, inteaificet of these regulations is often unclear
or non-existent. Also, different interpretationgaf regulations exist both among and within gowsgnt bodies at the federal, regional and
local levels which creates uncertainties and inistaist enforcement. The current practice is thafpe clarifications to specific taxpayers’
queries with respect to particular situations isisie the Russian Ministry of Finance are not bigdim the Russian tax authorities and there
can be no assurance that the Russian tax autisokilenot take positions contrary to those setiawguch clarifications. During the past severa
years the Russian tax authorities have shown @&tamydo take more assertive positions in theirpregation of the tax legislation which h
led to an increased number of material tax assagsiissued by them as a result of tax audits. dctjime, the Russian tax authorities generally
interpret the tax laws in ways that do not favomptyers, who often have to resort to court proceggiagainst the Russian tax authorities to
defend their position. In some instances Russiaathorities have applied new interpretationsaaflaws retroactively. There is no establis
precedent or consistent court practice in respktttase issues. Furthermore, in the absence ofrigimtecedent, court rulings on tax or other
related matters by different courts relating toshene or similar circumstances may also be inctargisr contradictory. Taxpayers often have
to resort to court proceedings to defend theirtmosiagainst the tax authorities.

The Russian tax authorities are increasingly takifigubstance over form” approach. While certagdtuntions in the rates, such as
for profits tax, have been effected, it is expedtet Russian tax legislation will become more ssiptated. The possibility exists that the
Government may introduce additional revenue-raisiggsures. Although it is unclear how such measuoegd operate, the introduction of
any such measures may affect the Group’s overabffeciency and may result in significant addit@dnaxes becoming payable. There can be
no assurance that the Russian Tax Code will nehbaged in the future in a manner adverse to #islisy and predictability of the tax syste
These factors, together with the potential forestatdget deficits, raise the risk of the impositidmdditional taxes on us. The introduction of
new taxes or amendments to current taxation rubashmve a substantial impact on the overall amoftiatr tax liabilities. There is no
assurance that we would not be required to makstantially larger tax payments in the future, whicly adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.
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Our business may be deemed to receive unjustifeedidenefits.

In its decision No 138-0 dated July 25, 2001, tlasiitutional Court of the Russian Federation her €onstitutional Court,
introduced the concept of “a taxpayer acting irad faith” without clearly stipulating the criteffiar it. Similarly, this concept is not defined in
Russian tax law. Nonetheless, this concept has lisesh by the tax authorities to deny, for instattoe taxpayes right to rely on the provisio
of the tax law. The tax authorities and courtsroft&ercise significant discretion in interpretihgstconcept in a manner that is unfavorable to
taxpayers. On October 12, 2006, the Plenum of igbéi Arbitrazh Court of the Russian FederatiortherHigher Arbitrazh Court, issued
Ruling No. 53, formulating the concept of an “unifisd tax benefit” which is defined in the rulingainly by reference to specific examples of
such tax benefits (e.g., tax benefits obtainedr@sualt of a transaction that has no reasonablia&ss purpose) which may lead to disallowanc
of their application. There is growing practicetioé interpretation of this concept by the tax atittes or the courts and it is apparent that the
tax authorities actively seek to apply this conaglpén challenging tax positions taken by taxpaygithough the intention of Ruling No. 53
was to combat the abuse of tax law, based on @asaght to courts to date relating to Ruling No, i@ tax authorities have started applying
the “unjustified tax benefit” concept in a broadense than may have been intended by the Highétrdab Court. In particular, we are aware
of cases when this concept has been applied axheuthorities in order to disallow benefits gethby double tax treaties. To date, in the
majority of cases where this concept has beenegphe courts have ruled in favor of taxpayers,tia not possible to determine whether the
courts will follow these precedents in the futude May 23, 2014 a new draft law introducing a cqta “anti-abuse” to the Russian Tax
Code was submitted to the lower chamber of the iBagmrliament. The draft law defines “abuse” asyiag out activities and transactions or
actions (failure to act) with the main purposevoid entirely or partially tax liabilities or obtging a tax refund (credit). It is not clear if the
draft is adopted in its current version, and hoerislevant amendments to the Russian Tax Coddeviliterpreted and applied by the tax
authorities and/ or courts in practice.

In addition to the usual tax burden imposed on Rassxpayers, these conditions complicate taxrptanand related business
decisions. This uncertainty could possibly expasegvoup to significant fines and penalties andritorcement measures, despite our best
efforts at compliance, and could result in a gnetitan expected tax burden.

Our Russian subsidiaries are subject to tax audifsRussian tax authorities which may result in adidnal tax liabilities.

Tax declarations together with related documentagi@ subject to review and investigation by a nemndf authorities, which are
enabled by Russian law to impose substantial famekinterest charges. Generally, taxpayers arectt tax audits for a period of three
calendar years immediately preceding the year iiclwtine decision to conduct the audit is taken.éMheless in some cases the fact that a ta:
period has been reviewed by the tax authorities doé prevent further review of that tax periodany tax declaration applicable to that tax
period. In addition, on July 14, 2005, the Conttitual Court issued a decision that allows theustadf limitations for tax penalties to be
extended beyond the three-year term set forthamtx Code if a court determines that a taxpaysmobatructed or hindered a field tax audit.
Moreover, amendments introduced to the first path® Russian Tax Code which came into effect arudey 1, 2007 provide for the extension
of the three year statute of limitations for tabiiities if the actions of the taxpayer creataimsountable obstacles for the tax audit. Because
none of the relevant terms is defined in Russian the tax authorities may have broad discretioartue that a taxpayer has “obstructed” or
“hindered” or “created insurmountable obstaclestagpect of an audit, effectively linking any diffity experienced in the course of their tax
audit with obstruction by the taxpayer and use #isaa basis to seek tax adjustments and penadtjemt the three-year term. Therefore, the
statute of limitations is not entirely effectiveaxtaudits may result in additional costs to oungrd the relevant tax authorities conclude that
our Russian entities did not satisfy their tax gations in any given year. Such audits may alsmsemdditional burdens on our group by
diverting the attention of management resources.alticome of these audits could have a materiaradweffect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Our companies established outside of Russia magkgosed to taxation in Russia.

Due to our international structure, we are subjegermanent establishment and transfer pricirg liis various jurisdictions in
which we operate. We manage the related risks diing at management functions and risks in varmumtries and level of profits allocated
to each subsidiary. If additional taxes are asskagih respect to these matters, they may be naédteri
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The Russian Tax Code contains the concept of agregnt establishment in Russia as means for tawirggh legal entities which
carry on regular entrepreneurial activities in Raggyond preparatory and auxiliary activities. Fhessian double tax treaties with other
countries also contain a similar concept. If aifgmecompany is treated as having a permanent éstaiént in Russia, it would be subject to
Russian taxation in a manner broadly similar totéhation of a Russian legal entity, but only te #xtent of the amount of the foreign
companys income that is attributable to the permanentéistanent in Russia. However, the practical appiliceof the concept of a perman
establishment under Russian domestic law is ndtdesteloped and so foreign companies having eveitdd operations in Russia, which
would not normally satisfy the conditions for ciegta permanent establishment under internatiooahs, may be at risk of being treated as
having a permanent establishment in Russia andehegiog exposed to Russian taxation. FurthermioesRussian Tax Code contains
attribution rules which are not sufficiently devedal and there is a risk that the tax authoritieghtnseek to assess Russian tax on the global
income of a foreign company. Having a permanemtdishment in Russia may also lead to other advassanplications, including
challenging a reduced withholding tax rate on divids under an applicable double tax treaty, pateetiect on VAT and property tax
obligations. There is also a risk that penaltiagdd®e imposed by the tax authorities for faillwedgister a permanent establishment with the
Russian tax authorities. Recent events in Rusgjgesi that the tax authorities may more activelgdxking to investigate and assert whether
foreign entities of our group, operate through anament establishment in Russia. Any such tax@gepalties could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition andiltssof operations.

Russian tax legislation in effect as of the datéhisf annual report does not contain a concepbgiarate tax residency. Russian
companies are taxed on their worldwide income wioiteign entities are taxed in Russia on incomebaitiable to a permanent establishment
and on Russian source income. The Russian govetnimis Main Directions of Russian Tax Policy 2013 and the planned period of 2014-
2015 has proposed the introduction of the conckfgboresidency for legal entities to the dometdiclaw. The latest Main Directions of
Russian Tax Policy for 2014 and the planned pesfa2d152016 contain a similar proposal. According to theposals, a legal entity would
deemed a Russian tax resident based on a fewi@titet would be in line with international taxaties of the Russian Federation. Moreover,
on December 12, 2013 the Russian President inclindieid annual address to the Russian Federal Adgearmessage aiming at introducing
rules that could allow taxation of unallocated figo6f the controlled foreign companies in Rus$iae new rules may be developed by July 1,
2014. No assurance can be currently given as tthehand when these amendments will be enacteid gtkeect nature, their potential
interpretation by the tax authorities and the gdesimpact on us. We cannot rule out the possjtitiat, as a result of the introduction of
changes to Russian tax legislation, certain ofoomnpanies established outside Russia might be dbtniege Russian tax residents, subject to
all applicable Russian taxes.

We may encounter difficulties in obtaining lower t@s of Russian withholding income tax envisagedtbg Russia-Cyprus double tax treaty
for dividends distributed from Russii

Dividends paid by a Russian legal entity to a fgndegal entity are generally subject to Russiahlalding income tax at a rate of
15%, although this tax rate may be reduced undapaticable double tax treaty. We intend to relytlos Russia-Cyprus double tax treaty. The
tax treaty allows reduction of withholding incona ton dividends paid by a Russian company to ai@ypompany to 10% provided that the
following conditions are met: (i) the Cypriot conmyais a tax resident of Cyprus within the meaninthe tax treaty; (ii) the Cypriot company
is the beneficial owner of the dividends; (iii) thiridends are not attributable to a permanentéstanent of the Cypriot company in Russia;
and (iv) the treaty clearance procedures are deffippmed. This rate may be further reduced to 5#dfdirect investment of the Cypriot
company in a Russian subsidiary paying the dividasdt least €100,000. Although we will seek &iraltreaty protection, there is a risk that
the applicability of the reduced rate of 5% or 168fay be challenged by Russian tax authorities. Aesalt, there can be no assurance that we
would be able to avail ourselves of the reducetilvaltding income tax rate in practice. Specificatlyr Cypriot holding company may incur a
15% withholding income tax at source on dividengirpants from Russian subsidiaries if the treatyreleee procedures are not duly perfort
at the date when the dividend payment is madéisncse we may seek to claim as a refund therdifte between the 15% tax withheld and
the reduced rate of 10% or 5% as appropriate. Hewelrere can be no assurance that such taxes Wweukfunded in practice.

Russian withholding tax may also be applied whewmddinds are received from Russian subsidiariehi&ydmpany’s non-Russian
subsidiaries. Although we intend to rely on an aygfile double tax treaty between Russia and thatcpwhere the relevant non-Russian
subsidiary is resident, no assurance can be ghatrilie reduced withholding tax rate would appiythis respect it should be noted that in May
2009 the President of the Russian Federation iedu his Budget Message regarding the Budget yfic2010-2012 a proposal to introduce
an anti-avoidance mechanism with respect to daoablé¢reaty benefits in cases where the ultimatefigaries of income do not reside in the
relevant tax treaty jurisdiction. Currently, suchhachanism has not been introduced. FurthermageRtissian Ministry of Finance has issued :
number of clarifications with respect to the teeatly concept of “beneficial ownership”. Althouglettiarifications up to the date of this annual
report have been of limited use, they
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demonstrate an attempt by the Russian tax autk®tii address the question of beneficial ownershipcome in international financial
transactions and holding structures. Due to thetfat some of our companies are located outsidsiRuthe future development and
application of the “beneficial ownershipbncept to those companies may have a materiatssleffect on our business, financial condition
results of operations. In August 2011 the Russ@mregiment proposed in its Main Directions of Rusdiax Policy for 2012 and the planned
period of 2013-2014, or the Directions, legislatbi@nges concerning an anti-avoidance mechanismragpect to double tax treaty benefits ir
cases where ultimate beneficiaries of income daoemitle in the relevant double tax treaty couritgreover, in the Directions the Russian
government has stated publicly that it plans toraghtbe Russian Tax Code and establish the ruleswinolled foreign companies. The latest
Main Directions of Russian Tax Policy for 2014 d@hd planned period of 2015-2016 contain similappsals and measures. Based on the
President’s December 2013 address to the Fedesehtsy, such rules may be developed by July 1, 2@isinot clear whether and when
these amendments may be introduced or how theybmayterpreted and applied by the tax authoritief ar courts in practice and what eff

it may have on taxpayers. If and when enacted, as@ndments may result in the inability of the igmecompanies within our group to claim
benefits under a double taxation treaty throughcstires which historically have benefited from deulaxation treaty protection in Russia. The
imposition of additional tax liabilities as a retsaf the application of this rule to transactiomssried out by us may have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition andiltssof operations.

Russian transfer pricing legislation may require iping adjustments and impose additional tax lialiéis with respect to all controlle
transactions.

Russian transfer pricing legislation became eféecin the Russian Federation on January 1, 1998.|&gislation allowed the tax
authorities to make transfer-pricing adjustment iampose additional tax liabilities in respect eftain types of transactions (“controlled”
transactions). Special transfer pricing provisiomese established for operations with securitiesdgrivatives. However, Russian transfer
pricing rules were vaguely drafted, generally legwvide scope for interpretation by Russian takauities and courts. There was little
guidance (although some court decisions are avajlals to how these rules should be applied. Fatiguhe adoption of Federal Law No. 227-
FZ “On amendments to certain legislative acts efRussian Federation in connection with the impmoset of pricing principles” dated
July 18, 2011, the new transfer pricing rules bezaififective from January 1, 2012. Compared to tegipus Russian transfer pricing rules,
new rules are more technically elaborate and,dertain extent, better aligned with the internagidransfer pricing principles developed by
OECD. The list of the “controlled” transactions endhe new transfer pricing legislation includemtactions with related parties and certain
types of cross border transactions. The amendnhents toughened considerably the previous transfeing rules, by, among other things,
effectively shifting the burden of proving markeiges from the tax authorities to the taxpayer abliljing the taxpayer to keep specific
documentation. The new rules also permit taxpatgeenter into advance pricing agreements with dixeatithorities; however, it is unclear h
such agreements will operate in practice. Spexaakfter pricing rules continue to apply to tranenst with securities and derivatives. It is
currently difficult to evaluate what effect thesaanprovisions may have on us.

Currently the tax authorities perform tax auditsrany Russian taxpayers with major focus on compéawith new transfer pricir
legislation. It is therefore possible that the Gremtities may become subject to transfer pricingaudits by tax authorities in the near future.
Due to the uncertainty and lack of establishedtfmaof application of the new Russian transfecipg legislation the Russian tax authorities
may challenge the level of prices applied by theugrunder the “controlled” transactions (includgegtain intercompany transactions) and
accrue additional tax liabilities. If additionakts are assessed with respect to these matteysnthebe material.

The Management believes that the Group is ableaeepthe arms’ length nature of prices with respedhe “controlled”
transactions, and that there has been proper negdotthe Russian tax authorities, supported lpr@griate available transfer pricing
documentation.

ADS holders outside of Russia may be subject to$Rars tax for income earned upon a sale, exchanged@posal of our ADSs

In the event that the proceeds from a sale, exehandisposal of ADSs are deemed to be received &source within Russia, a
non-resident holder that is an individual may blgjsct to Russian tax in respect of such proceedsaie of 30% of the gain (such gain being
computed as the sales price less any availablenderied cost deduction, including the acquisitidngpof the ADSs and other documented
expenses, such as depositary expenses and brides}’ subject to any available double tax trealief, provided that the necessary
requirements to qualify for the treaty relief ahd ppropriate administrative requirements undeRiissian tax legislation have been met. Fo
example, holders of ADSs that are eligible for ble@efits of the United States-Russia
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double tax treaty should generally not be subjetax in Russia on any gain arising from the dispo$ ADSs, provided that the gain is not
attributable to a permanent establishment or afbase that is or was located in Russia and/origeedvthat less than 50% of our fixed assets
consist of immovable property situated in Russ&adefined in the treaty). Because the determinatiamhether 50% or more of our fixed
assets consist of immovable property situated issRus inherently factual and is made on an ongybasis, and because the relevant Russia
legislation and regulations are not entirely cléagre can be no assurance that immovable propguted in Russia does not currently, or will
not, constitute 50% or more of our assets. If 50%more of our assets were to consist of immovaldpgrty situated in Russia, the benefits of
the United States-Russia double tax treaty mayadatvailable to an ADS holder.

Changes in the double tax treaty between Russia @ygprus may significantly increase our tax burden.

A company that is tax resident in Cyprus is subjec@ypriot taxation and qualifies for benefits #afale under the Cypriot tax
treaty network, including the Russia-Cyprus doubletreaty. We can provide no assurance that thelddax treaty will not be renegotiated or
revoked. Adverse changes in, or the cancellatipthefRussiaGyprus double tax treaty may significantly increasetax burden and advers:
affect our business, financial condition and ressaftoperations.

We may be deemed to be a tax resident outside pfisy

According to the provisions of the Cyprus Incom& Taw, a company is considered to be a reside@ypfus for tax purposes if
its management and control are exercised in Cyfitus.concept of “management and control” is notraef in the Cypriot tax legislation,
however, it is generally considered that a compgamyanaged and controlled in Cyprus through thésaetmaking power of its board of
directors being exercised in Cyprus. Where, as aithcompany, the majority of the board of direstisrcomprised of tax residents of Russia,
there may be increased risk that the company isnastaged and controlled in Cyprus and, therefareanax resident in Cyprus. If we are
deemed not to be a tax resident in Cyprus, we mapa subject to the Cypriot tax regime other timarespect of Cyprus sourced income and
we may be subject to the tax regime of the countiyhich we are deemed to be a tax resident. Fyribeewould not be eligible for benefits
under the tax treaties entered into between Cygmndsother countries. If applicable Russian lawnieaded so that a company that is a tax
resident in Cyprus can also be considered a técenatsof Russia, the tax treaty in force betweepr@y and Russia provides that such a
company shall be deemed to be a tax resident aftétte in which the place of effective manageméti®company is situated. A protocol to
this treaty was signed in October 2010 and ratifigcCyprus in September 2011 and the Russian DarRaliruary 2012. This protocol
provides that the process of determining the dffeahanagement in this case will be achieved thindhg two states endeavoring to determine
the place of effective management by mutual agree¢imeving regard to all relevant factors. Whererttegority of our board of directors
comprises tax residents or citizens of Russia, i@y pose a risk that we, even if we are managddantrolled in Cyprus and therefore a tax
resident in Cyprus, may be deemed to have a pemhastablishment in Russia or elsewhere. Suchragrent establishment could be subject
to taxation of the jurisdiction of the permanertabishment on the profits allocable to the pernmaestablishment. If we are tax resident in a
jurisdiction outside of Cyprus or are deemed toehapermanent establishment in Russia or elsewbergéax burden may increa
significantly, which, in turn, may materially adgety affect our business, financial condition agsuits of operations.

We may be subject to defense tax in Cyprus.

Cypriot companies must pay a Special Contributanrtlie Defense Fund of the Republic of Cyprusherdefense tax, at a rate of
17% on deemed dividend distributions to the extieatt their ultimate beneficial owners are Cyprant tesidents. A Cypriot company that does
not distribute at least 70% of its after tax pmfitithin two years from the end of the year in whilee profits arose, is deemed to have
distributed this amount as a dividend two yearsraftat year end. The amount of this deemed diddistribution, subject to the defense tax,
is reduced by any actual dividend paid out of ttafifs of the relevant year at any time up to thtedof the deemed distribution and the
resulting balance of profits will be subject to thefense tax to the extent of the appropriatioshafres held in the company at that time by
Cyprus tax residents. The profits to be taken auwount in determining the deemed dividend do mdtide fair value adjustments to any
movable or immovable property.

The defense tax payable as a result of a deematkdiv distribution is paid in the first instancethg company which may recover
such payment from its Cypriot shareholders by dédgdhe amount from an actual dividend paid tohssitcareholders from the relevant pro
To the extent that we are unable to recover thisuathdue to a change in shareholders or no acividead is ever paid out of the relevant
profits, we will suffer the cost of this defensg.tamposition of this tax could have a material exbe effect on our results of operations and
financial condition if we are unable to recover the from shareholders as described above.
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In September 2011, the Commissioner of the InlaedeRue Department of Cyprus issued Circular 201 1h@ch exempted from
the defense tax any profits of a company thatiseaident in Cyprus imputed indirectly to shareleos that are themselves tax resident in
Cyprus to the extent that these profits are indiyeapportioned to shareholders who are ultimately Cyprus tax residents.

Depending upon the value and the nature of our assand the amount and nature of our income over &nwe could be classified as
passive foreign investment company or PFIC for Uf8deral income tax purpose

We will be classified as a PFIC in any taxable yieaither: (a) 50% or more of the fair market v&lof our gross assets (determinec
on the basis of a quarterly average) for the taxgbar produce passive income or are held for théuetion of passive income, or (b) 75% or
more of our gross income for the taxable year ssjpy@ income. As a publicly traded foreign corpioratve intend for this purpose to treat the
aggregate fair market value of our gross assdigiag equal to the aggregate value of our outstanstiock (“market capitalization”) plus the
total amount of our liabilities and to treat thecegs of the fair market value of our assets owar ook value as a nonpassive asset to the
extent attributable to our nonpassive income. Bgeave currently hold, and expect to continue ta halsubstantial amount of cash and cash
equivalents and other passive assets used in gurdss, and because the value of our gross assisly to be determined in large part by
reference to our market capitalization securitias would likely become a PFIC for a given taxaldanif the market price of our ADSs were
to decrease significantly. The application of tif@®rules is subject to uncertainty in several eetp, and we must make a separate
determination after the close of each taxable gedo whether we were a PFIC for such year. If igeaaPFIC for any taxable year during
which a U.S. investor held our ADSs, the U.S. iteemight be subject to increased U.S. federalimedax liability and to additional reportit
obligations. We do not intend to provide the infation necessary for the U.S. investor to make difggehelecting fund election with respect
our ADSs. See “Taxation — United States Federairiree Tax Considerations — Passive Foreign Invest@entpanies.”

Our interest expenses may not be deductible.

In May 2012, the House of Representatives of Cypnated laws, effective as of January 1, 2012¢hvprovide that if a Cyprus
parent company incurs an interest expense on thgsiion of shares of a company that is a whollyred subsidiary (whether directly or
indirectly and irrespective of whether the subsiglia a Cyprus or foreign company), the interestesse will now be deductible for tax
purposes by the parent company. This deductiononll} be available provided the subsidiary owngtssthat are used in its business and the
amount of interest deducted is limited and propadte to the amount and value of assets used iouieess. If we are unable to deduct our
interest expenses for tax purposes, our resutip@fations and financial conditions may be matgredversely affected.

Adverse financial measures may be adopted in Cyprusonnection with its bailout

In June 2012, the government of Cyprus appliedifiancial assistance from the European Central BrekEU and the IMF,
together referred to as the Troika. On April 12120the government of Cyprus and the Troika reaemeagreement regarding the provision of
a EUR 10 billion loan and related finance packag€yprus, such loan and finance package being tondd on Cyprus implementing a
comprehensive economic adjustment program, or $ipeuS Economic Adjustment Program. The Cyprus Eotod\djustment Program
included a scheme for the reorganization of therioypanking system whereby Bank of Cyprus plcBo€C, Cyprus’ largest bank and Cyprus
Popular Bank Public Co Ltd, or Cyprus Popular Ba&yprus’ second largest bank were placed in reisolygursuant to applicable legislation,
referred to herein as the Resolution Process. iesut of the Resolution Process, Cyprus PopulakBeas absorbed by BoC and deposit
holders with credit balances in excess of EUR 100 (@eferred to herein as the Uninsured Deposék) with Cyprus Popular Bank and BoC
suffered significant losses. Additionally, restiacts on bank transfers and withdrawals from bankasgjtutions in Cyprus are in effect as at the
date hereof in order to enable Cyprus to implentemtCyprus Economic Adjustment Program. On July280.3, the Ministry of Finance and
the Central Bank of Cyprus announced that the BasCheen fully recapitalised by the overall conversif 47.5% of Uninsured Deposits with
the BoC into shares in BoC, thus bringing an enithéoBoC’s Resolution Process. The measures impletdo date have not had, and are no
expected to have, a material impact on holding @mngs, such as us, that do not have significamgepin Cyprus banks or operations in
Cyprus. However, further disruption to the Cyprasking system, or additional changes to implemeaQyprus Economic Adjustment
Program, are possible and we cannot be certairstitdit disruptions or changes will not adverselgafbur financial condition or our
shareholders who are not residents of Cyprus.
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Our companies established outside of Russia magkmosed to taxation in Russia.

Due to our international structure, we are subjegermanent establishment and transfer pricirg liis various jurisdictions in
which we operate. We manage the related risks ding at management functions and risks in varmumtries and level of profits allocated
to each subsidiary. If additional taxes are asskssth respect to these matters, they may be nadteri

The Russian Tax Code contains the concept of agrent establishment in Russia as means for tagirggh legal entities which
carry on regular entrepreneurial activities in Raggyond preparatory and auxiliary activities. Fhessian double tax treaties with other
countries also contain a similar concept. If aifgmecompany is treated as having a permanent edtaiént in Russia, it would be subject to
Russian taxation in a manner broadly similar totéhation of a Russian legal entity, but only te #xtent of the amount of the foreign
companys income that is attributable to the permanentbéstanent in Russia. However, the practical appiicaof the concept of a perman
establishment under Russian domestic law is ndtdesteloped and so foreign companies having eveitdd operations in Russia, which
would not normally satisfy the conditions for ciiegta permanent establishment under internatiooiahs, may be at risk of being treated as
having a permanent establishment in Russia ancehsgiog exposed to Russian taxation. FurthermbeeRtissian Tax Code contains
attribution rules which are not sufficiently devedal and there is a risk that the tax authoritieghtnseek to assess Russian tax on the global
income of a foreign company. Having a permanerdishment in Russia may also lead to other advwassanplications, including
challenging a reduced withholding tax rate on divids under an applicable double tax treaty, pategtiect on VAT and property tax
obligations. There is also a risk that penaltiagdd®e imposed by the tax authorities for faillsedgister a permanent establishment with the
Russian tax authorities. Recent events in Rusgjgesi that the tax authorities may more activelgdxking to investigate and assert whether
foreign entities of our group, operate through ar@ment establishment in Russia. Any such tax@eoalties could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition andiltisof operations.

We may encounter difficulties in obtaining lower t@s of Russian withholding income tax envisagedtbhg Russia-Cyprus double tax treaty
for dividends distributed from Russii

Dividends paid by a Russian legal entity to a fgndegal entity are generally subject to Russiahlalding income tax at a rate of
15% or 30% in certain cases, although this taxmetg be reduced under an applicable double tagytréée intend to rely on the Russia-
Cyprus double tax treaty. The tax treaty allowsuntin of withholding income tax on dividends paigla Russian company to a Cypriot
company to 10% provided that the following condisare met: (i) the Cypriot company is a tax rasidd Cyprus within the meaning of the
tax treaty; (ii) the Cypriot company is the benigfiowner of the dividends; (iii) the dividends arat attributable to a permanent establishmen
of the Cypriot company in Russia; and (iv) the tyedearance procedures are duly performed. Thésrmey be further reduced to 5% if the
direct investment of the Cypriot company in a Rassubsidiary paying the dividends is at least €100 Although we will seek to claim
treaty protection, there is a risk that the apjlility of the reduced rate of 5% or 10% may be @mjed by Russian tax authorities. As a resul
there can be no assurance that we would be abheaibourselves of the reduced withholding incomreriate in practice. Specifically, our
Cypriot holding company may incur a 15% withholdingome tax at source on dividend payments fromsRnssubsidiaries if the treaty
clearance procedures are not duly performed aldateewhen the dividend payment is made. In thise easmay seek to claim as a refund the
difference between the 15% tax withheld and theced rate of 10% or 5% as appropriate. Howeveretban be no assurance that such taxe:
would be refunded in practice.

Russian Ministry of Finance in its Letter No. 0348/16236 of April 9, 2014 provided more detaileglanation of “beneficial
ownership”concept, as well as pointed some examples of tctinsa, where beneficial ownership criteria werémet. Examples drawn by t
Russian Ministry of Finance in the above lettetuded inter alia the case of dividends distributed nonresident that cannot demonstrate
it has sufficient authority with respect to dividisnreceived, or is obliged to further distributepay dividends to third parties. Due to the fact
that some of our companies are located outsidei&® fature development and application of the “Hii@ ownership” concept to those
companies may have a material adverse effect obuminess, financial condition and results of opena.

Russian ant-offshore measures may have adverse impact on augitess, financial condition and results of operatis

The Russian Federation, like a number of other t@mmin the world, is actively involved in discums of measures against tax
evasion through the use of low tax jurisdictionsvedl as aggressive tax planning structures. Id2fgnificant changes to the Russian tax
legislation were adopted which are aimed at préngrnhe abuse of “offshore” structures (so-calldd-bffshorization” legislation). In
particular, these changes include the definitiobefeficiary ownership, tax residence of legaltegiby the place of actual carrying out
activities, as well as approach to taxation of calletd foreign
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companies. The amendments came into force sinemgdat, 2015. The Group is currently evaluatingpbtential effect of the new legislative
changes on the Group business and financial restkspossible that these changes might havengact on its financial results starting 2015,
however, currently the effect of these amendmestsiat be reliably estimated.

In addition, on November 4, 2014 the Russian Feieraatified the multilateral Convention on Mutudadiministrative Assistance
in Tax Matters developed by the Council of Europd the OECD, which the Russian Federation sign@®irl. Ratification of this Conventi
will enable the Russian Federation to receive téarimation from all participating countries whiafclude, among others, a number of offshore
jurisdictions.

These developments may have a material adversa effeour business, financial condition and resofitsperations.

Risks Relating to our ADSs
The class B shares underlying the ADSs are notdisind may be illiquid.

The class B shares underlying the ADSs are neligted nor traded on any stock exchange, and weotintend to apply for the
listing or admission to trading of the class B slsavn any stock exchange. As a result, a withdrafvelbss B shares by a holder of ADSs,
whether by election or due to certain other eveiiltsesult in that holder obtaining securities tlaae significantly less liquid than the ADSs
and the price of those class B shares may be disedas a result of such withdrawal.

Our ADSs trade on more than one market and this magult in increased volatility and price variati@nbetween such markets.

Our ADSs trade on both Nasdag and MOEX. TradingunADSs on these markets occurs in different cuies (U.S. dollars on
Nasdaq and Russian rubles on MOEX) and at differergs (due to different time zones, trading dayd public holidays in the United Stat
and Russia). The trading prices of our ADSs ondfte® markets may differ due to these and othaofacThe liquidity of trading in our AD¢
on MOEX is limited. This may impair your ability &ell your ADSs on MOEX at the time you wish tol $eém or at a price that you consider
reasonable. In addition, trading of a small nuntddekDSs on that market could adversely impact theepof our ADSs significantly and could,
in turn, impact the price in the United States. AQfBe completely fungible between both markets. degrease in the trading price of our
ADSs on one of these markets could cause a dedrettsetrading price of our ordinary ADSs on thikes market. Additionally, as there is no
direct trading or settlement between the two stoekkets, the time required to move the ADSs from wrarket to another may vary and there
is no certainty of when ADSs that are moved willvailable for trading or settlement.

Future sales of ADSs or ordinary shares by signéitt shareholders could cause the price of our ADBglecline.

If any of our significant shareholders sell, origade an intent to sell, substantial amounts ofAIDEs or ordinary shares, including
both class A shares and class B shares, in theetpahle trading price of our ADSs could declinenffigantly. We cannot predict the effect, if
any, that future sales of these ADSs or ordinaayeshor the availability of these ADSs or ordinsinares for sale will have on the market price
of our ADSs. As of the date of this annual repad, have outstanding 54, 557,520 ordinary sharekjding those represented by ADSs. Of
these, 36,033,561 ordinary shares are immediatedhyftradable, without restriction, in the pubtiarket.

In addition, we have granted registration rightS&divar Investments Limited, Sergey A. Solonimtana International
Corporation, Andrey N. Romanenko, Igor N. Mikhayl&4 Limited, Mail.ru Group Limited and Mitsui & Cd_td., who collectively own
100% of our class A shares and approximately 84%ef/oting power of our issued share capital ab@ate of this annual report, as well as
to Dargle International Limited, Palmway Holdingsriited and Bralvo Limited, our former class A sHaskelers who, according to information
available to us, own a certain amount of our ADSsfahe date of this annual report. To the extiease shares are sold into the market, the
market price of our ADSs could decline. We cannmetct what effect, if any, market sales of se@siheld by our significant shareholders or
any other shareholder or the availability of theseurities for future sale will have on the markéte of the ADSs.
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Investors in our ADSs may have limited recourse ags us, our directors and executive officers besauve conduct our operations outsi
the United States and most of our current direct@sd executive officers reside outside the Unitadt8s.

Our presence outside the United States may liméstors’ legal recourse against us. We are incatpdrunder the laws of the
Republic of Cyprus. Almost all of our current dires and senior officers reside outside the UnBtades, principally in the Russian Federal
Substantially all of our assets and the assetsio€arrent directors and executive officers arated outside the United States, principally in
the Russian Federation. As a result, investorsmaaye able to effect service of process withinlinited States upon our company or its
directors and executive officers or to enforce Wd@irt judgments obtained against our companysatirectors and executive officers in
Russia, Cyprus or other jurisdictions outside timitédl States, including actions under the civibilidy provisions of U.S. securities laws. In
addition, it may be difficult for investors to emée, in original actions brought in courts in juliitions outside the United States, liabilities
predicated upon US securities laws. There is raijtreetween the United States and the Russian &sateproviding for reciprocal recognitic
and enforcement of foreign court judgments in cvitl commercial matters. These limitations may igepnvestors of effective legal recourse
for claims related to their investment in our ADSs.

Our ADS holders may not be able to exercise thaiegmptive rights in relation to future issuance$ dass B shares.

In order to raise funding in the future, we mayeadditional class B shares, including in the fofMADSs. Generally, existing
holders of shares in Cypriot public companies atéled by law to preemptive rights on the issue of new shares in thatpany (provided th:
such shares are paid in cash and the pre-empgjbts fhave not been disapplied). Our ADS holders nodye able to exercise pre-emptive
rights for class B shares represented by ADSs silpplicable securities law requirements are adhterer an exemption from such
requirements is available. In the United Statesmag be required to file a registration statemerten the Securities Act to implement pre-
emptive rights. We can give no assurance that amption from the registration requirements of teewities Act would be available to ene
U.S. holders of ADSs to exercise such pre-empigtets and, if such exemption is available, we mattake the steps necessary to enable U..
holders of ADSs to rely on it. Accordingly, our AD®Iders may not be able to exercise their pre-empights on future issuances of shares,
and, as a result, their percentage ownership sttérais would be reduced. In April 2013, our shatders authorized the disapplication of pre-
emptive rights for a period of five years from M&y2013, the date of the closing of our initial icibffering, in connection with the issue of
up to an additional 52,000,000 class B sharesydiag) in the form of ADSs. Any issuances of classhBres for cash exceeding this amount
during this five-year period would require disapption of preemptive rights by the class B shareholders at sosh However, a Cyprus co!
or regulatory authority could determine that sucivwer should not apply to an issuance of classdBesheven if it is within such amount. If for
any reason the disapplication of these rights awee ineffective or class B shareholders dapptove any further disapplication of pre-
emptive rights that may be required, our ADS hdtability to participate in future issuances adsd B shares, including in the form of ADSs,
may be limited. Furthermore, rights offerings aiféialilt to implement effectively under the curredtS. securities laws and our ability to raise
capital in the future may be compromised if we nigedo so via a rights offering in the United Sgate

ADS holders have no legal interest in the underlgialass B shares

ADS holders acquire the beneficial, and not thallegterest in the underlying class B shares, wite depositary holds on trust
them, under the terms of the deposit agreementiriterded effect of the trust is to ring-fence thaess B shares in the hands of the depositary
by conferring a property interest on ADS holderbaseficiaries. The interest of the ADS holderbaseficiaries in trust assets, which are the
class B shares, is indirect, in the sense thatédmbrmal course they do not have any direct reseotar the class B shares nor do they have any
direct right of action against us.

ADS holders may be subject to limitations on traesbf their ADSs.

ADSs are transferable on the books of the depgsitéswever, the depositary may close its transteids at any time or from time
to time when it deems expedient in connection Withperformance of its duties. In addition, theatgary may refuse to deliver, transfer or
register transfers of ADSs generally when our bawkihie books of the depositary are closed, ongtiane if we or the depositary deems it
advisable to do so because of any requirementobteof any government or governmental body, oraurahy provision of the deposit
agreement, or for any other reason in accordanttethe terms of the deposit agreement.
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ITEM 4. Information on the Company
A. History and Development of the Company

We were incorporated in Cyprus under the name ofr@Estments Limited on February 26, 2007 as amalding company for OSMP
JSC (subsequently renamed as CJSC QIWI), whicheatablished in 2004. In 2007, we acquired, amohgratntities, CISC e-port and LLC
Qiwi Wallet (now QIWI International Processing Sees (QIPS) CJSC) in exchange for newly issuedeshavhich represented 35% of our
outstanding share capital following the acquisiioim April 2008, we launched the Qiwi brand, whgradually became the marketing name
our businesses. We changed our name to Qiwi Linute8eptember 13, 2010, and subsequently to Qamipdn converting to a public limit
company on February 25, 2013.

Our principal executive office is located at Kenpd@, Kennedy Business Centreld2loor, P.C. 1087, Nicosia, Cyprus. Our telephone
number at this address is: 22-653390. Our registeffice is the same.

Our primary subsidiaries are QIWI Bank (JSC), awi@Bank, CISC QIWI and QIWI Payments Services RtevLimited. We acquired
Qiwi Bank in September 2010 from a group of ourrehalders, and CJSC QIWI was incorporated in Ruesianuary 2004.

For a description of our principal capital expendis and divestitures for the three years ende@mber 31, 2014 and for those currel
in progress, see Item 5 “Operating and Financiaié¥eand Prospects.” For a description of the raled regulations under which we are
governed, see Item 5 “Regulation.”

B. Business Overview

We are a leading provider of next generation payreervices in Russia and the CIS. We have an iatedmproprietary network that
enables payment services across physical, onliderenbile channels. We have deployed over 17.2aniNiirtual wallets, over 181,000 kiosks
and terminals, and enabled merchants to acceptRiyBr50 billion cash and electronic payments mgnftdm over 70 million consumers
using our network at least once a month. Our coessitan use cash, stored value and other elecppaginent methods to order and pay for
goods and services across physical or virtual enwients interchangeably. We believe the complemgntanbination of our physical and
virtual payment services provides differentiatedvamience to our consumers and creates a strongketffect that drives payment volume
across our business. Our extensive network ofantie Qiwi kiosks also enables us to provide diliag services, and the billions of
transactions we process annually allow us to colad analyze valuable data, which we monetizerbyiging value added services. We
believe that our leading market position, proprgteaetwork and complementary services provide ub wompetitive advantages that have
enabled us to generate strong growth and profitabil

We operate in and target markets and consumer segithat are largely caslased and lack convenient alternatives for conssitogay
for goods and services in physical, online and teddivironments. We help consumers and merchantgeco more efficiently in these
markets by providing an integrated network of pbgkand virtual wallets and payment channels thabke consumers to deposit cash, convel
it into a digital form and remit the funds to atuil wallet, a variety of Visa-branded prepaid sandany merchant in our network quickly and
securely — for example, to pay bills, add minutetheir mobile phones, purchase transportationtigkdts, shop online or at a retail store, buy
digital services or send money to a friend or redat

Our platform provides simple and intuitive useeifdces, convenient access and best-in-class esregmbined with the reputation and
trust associated with the Qiwi brand. The paympnisessed on our network are typically very sméha limit of RUB 15,000 per
transaction and, since they are primarily fundetth wash, consumers do not have to undergo a lemgtfistration process to execute certain
types of transactions. Alternatively, consumers @aate an online account, or virtual wallet, witlwi where they can store money, deposited
from cash or funded from a variety of other soursesh as mobile phone balance, bank accountt@adi, direct payroll deposit or money
transfer, that can be used to make payments amthgsas at any time. Our services also allow metsharRussia and other markets, including
leading MNOs, online retailers, financial instituis and utilities, to accept payments via our ngtywenabling them to attract more consumers
generate more sales and get paid faster and msitg.ea

We have deployed our network of kiosks and ternsinaing a proprietary agent model. Under this mamlel kiosks are assembled by
third party manufacturers using our proprietaryc#fjiations and are then purchased by over 7,0@ditagvho are responsible for placing,
operating and servicing the kiosks in high-traftionvenient retail locations and setting the féespaid by consumers. In addition, an agent-
owned point of sale terminal, computer, laptop obite phone can serve as a Qiwi terminal once ocopretary software is installed on it,
which allows the agent to process consumer payntents
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merchants through our system. In Russia and Katakhsur brand is very well-known and our kioskd garminals provide unique physical
access for the population there. They can be foigxtito convenience stores, in train stations, pfiites, retail stores or airport terminals in
all of the major urban centers, as well as manyllsand rural towns that lack large bank branches @her financial infrastructure. In addition,
we distribute our payment services through ounsiriVisa Qiwi Wallet product, which enables constsrte access and make payments
through their computers or mobile devices.

We run our network and process our transactionggusiproprietary, advanced technology platform kbatrages the latest virtualization,
analytics and security technologies to create ta figghly reliable, secure and redundant systembdélieve that the breadth and reach of our
network, along with the proprietary nature of aeettnology platform, differentiates us from our catifors and allows us to effectively
manage and update our services and realize signifaperating leverage with growth in volumes.

Our Payment Network

Consumers access our payment network through timtapy channels: physical distribution representgair kiosks and terminals, and
virtual distribution represented by our online protithat we operate under the Visa Qiwi Wallet btafhese two channels are highly
synergistic, creating a self-reinforcing networhkttive believe has been key for the continuing sscogour business.

In 2012, 2013 and 2014, we had processed RUB 4ifanhiRUB 561 billion and RUB 645 billion in paymes, respectively.

Physical distribution
Overview

Our physical distribution comprises approximated2 D00 kiosks and 38,000 terminals that are asszhand sold by third party
manufacturers. These kiosks and terminals run mprgetary software, which provides the user cugtenhinterfaces that display our broad
range of payment services and provide the conrictivour processing platform. These capabilitiedp connect consumers and merchants
and enable them to conduct commercial transactsut) as bill payments and purchases, at thousdrasvenient locations, without the ni
to interact directly.

In 2012, 2013 and 2014 we had approximately 120,029,000 and 142,000 kiosks and 49,000, 42,00B8r@D0 terminals in its
network as of year-end, respectively.

Our Kiosks and Terminals

A kiosk is a stand-alone computer terminal witlvach screen and specialized hardware and softwaichwenables consumers to make
cash payments to merchants. Each kiosk is connéxtaar network using a dedicated SIM card angpgcally equipped with a cash- and coin-
acceptor, a printing device, and a transactionrciieg device and may include a card reader and duamger. Our kiosks are assembled by
third party manufacturers using our proprietaryc#fiiations. Kiosks are relatively easy and inexgea to install and operate and are equippe
with specialized software that monitors the conditof the kiosk and its components, including thant of cash stored, and the sufficienc
expendable materials such as thermal paper. A kioslso relatively simple to assemble, and we galyehave not encountered any issues in
relation to underproduction or shortage of kioS{sere are 22 base models of kiosk available irRihgsian market.

In addition to kiosks, our network includes appmately 38,000 terminals at various retail locatjansluding a number of major Russ
retail chains such as Svyaznoy and Euroset. Wdgedhliese businesses with access to our netwaskghrour proprietary software and
process the payments made by their customers.

Our kiosks and terminals are typically owned by agents, except in limited circumstances when viererew markets. We believe this
ownership structure has allowed us to build a langgvork in a relatively short period of time. Tagents purchase, install, operate and servic
the kiosks and terminals themselves; we providmthvth our platform and technical solutions, héiprh comply with reporting requirements
and provide them with various forms of support armntives. On May 29, 2014, we established CMTilg®ying, a company that provides
agents with services regarding hardware specifinaind general technical support, as well as kigltks and terminals directly to them. In
2014 we signed rental agreements with large re&orks including Magnit, Monetka and X5 Retaib@p to further sublease those locations
to our agents. We believe it is important to prevalir agents with comprehensive support in ordenture quality of service and to continue
the growth of our network.

45



Table of Contents

How Our Kiosks and Terminals Wc

To make a payment through a kiosk, a consumertsdlee hyperlink icon of a particular merchant be kiosk screen and enters the datz
necessary for the merchant to identify the consuf@rinstance, this may be the consumer’s mollitmp number or details on the consumer
utility bill. The consumer inserts money into altasd coin acceptor, which automatically recognthesvalue of the banknotes and/or coins.
Once the necessary amount of money has been idstméeconsumer presses a button to confirm that sbe wishes to complete the
transaction, and the software installed on thelkkgends an instruction to our processing systetratsmit a corresponding amount to the
merchant and to withdraw it from the agent’s ac¢otihe kiosk then prints a receipt confirming thayment has been made. The interface of
kiosk is highly intuitive to facilitate a conveniemser experience with the entire transaction pec®rmally taking no more than a few
minutes. A transaction is mostly automated and liysparformed in three or four easy steps, so thatuser is only required to input a
minimum of information. When making a payment thigbwa terminal, a consumer gives the same informgtigerchant name, amount of
transaction and account identifying data) to a iemsit a cash desk, who processes it on a compugemobile phone using specialized
software.

Our Agents

Our agent base includes approximately 7,000 ageimdsown kiosks and terminals and are responsiblgléxing, operating and servici
them in high-traffic, convenient retail locatioMdost of our agents are small to mid-sized busiresdgch we believe provides them with
insight into local market dynamics. For many of agents, the business of kiosk and terminal owiista full-time occupation, while some
view it as an ancillary service that increases oores traffic in their outlets or provides additiboanvenience to consumers. We do not
consider ourselves to be materially dependent grofinur agents.

Our contracts with the agents are usually for aefimite term and may be unilaterally terminatedhoy agents. Our agent contracts do
not have exclusivity clauses. Usually our agenterdgine the total fee that a consumer pays on #aokaction. However we are in a position
to cap these fees depending on our marketing actiomerchant’s request. When the fee payabledgdhsumers is capped, we normally
award the agents with an increased fraction ofriteechant fees.

Our International Kiosks and Terminals

Almost our entire physical distribution networkcisrrently in Russia and Kazakhstan. We also hdiraiged number of kiosks in
Moldova, Romania, Belarus, Jordan and the UniteteSt In addition, we have limited operations iadirthrough an equity associate which
holds a license to use our technology.

Virtual Distribution
Overview

We have a virtual distribution channel where werafeunder Visa Qiwi Wallet brand. Visa Qiwi Wallstan online and mobile payme
processing and money transfer system that we wffeussia that allows accountholders to pay fortelucts and services of merchants, and
to perform peer-to-peer money transfers usingtaaliwallet, which effectively replaces a physiealllet in an online and mobile environment.
A virtual wallet enables its holder to make onljmechases through a convenient, secure and irguwtiine or mobile interface with multiple
payment methods. Visa Qiwi Wallet accounts caririleet! to virtual or physical Visa prepaid cardsttban be used to make purchases at any
merchants that accept Visa worldwide. We believ&a\Qiwi Wallet is one of the leading virtual walfgbviders in Russia.

Prior to November 2012, Visa Qiwi Wallet was brathés Qiwi Wallet. Qiwi Wallet became a co-brandeadpict pursuant to our
Framework Agreement with Visa entered into on Nobenl9, 2012.

In 2012, 2013 and 2014 had 11.4 million, 15.4 milland 17.2 million active virtual wallets regigeémwith our system as of year-end,
respectively.

Our Virtual Wallet

With Visa Qiwi Wallet, consumers can create anrantccount, referred to as a virtual wallet, inahhhey can store money, deposited
from cash or funded from a variety of other souriash as mobile phone balances, bank accountst oretebit cards, direct payroll deposits
or money transfers, that can be used to make pagnmrchases and peer-to-peer transfers. To eegistirtual wallet, a consumer only needs
to have a mobile phone number to which the accisuirtked.
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The account loading process is simple and intuittgardless of the interface that the consumertosascess Visa Qiwi Wallet, whether it is
our own website, the screen of a kiosk, the virhealking service of the consumer’s bank or a maipie. Normally, a consumer just needs to
enter the unique identification number of his or igual wallet and indicate the amount and sowftmoney he or she wishes to load to the
account. Likewise, while the process of making ynpent through Visa Qiwi Wallet may vary slightlypinding on the interface, it is always
intuitive.

We believe that a key part of our service offeiimmgonsumer convenience and ease of use. Visa\@allet is available through a varie
of interfaces, including mobile apps, its own wédsiouch-screens of our kiosks, merchant webstesal network applications, and
SMS/USSD (whereby a payment is made by sendingvi®i I8essage to a specified phone number). An incrgg@&rcentage of consumers are
accessing Visa Qiwi Wallet directly through mokdlgps and our own website rather than through amskki (which was historically the most
popular Qiwi Wallet interface). Nevertheless, asoas Visa Qiwi Wallet through our kiosks remaine firimary means by which consumers
load and reload their accounts, which we belieghlights the synergies between our physical antdadidistribution networks and will
continue to support the growth of our business.

We offer downloadable Visa Qiwi Wallet applicatidios the most popular mobile and digital platforara devices, including Apple
iPhone and iPad, Android, Java, Microsoft Windowashile and Windows Phone, RIM Blackberry and Blagkp®laybook, Samsung Bada
and Samsung Smart TV. We also support major moipdgating systems: iOS, Android, Windows phone RiM. We believe that these
efforts are a vital part of our overall marketinigagegy and serve to increase our consumer base.

How Our Virtual Wallet Work

Payments made through Visa Qiwi Wallet can be categd into push payments and pull payments. A magiment is a payment
initiated by the consumer from a Visa Qiwi Walletdarface. After entering Visa Qiwi Wallet througheoof its secure interfaces, a consumer i
required to select the name of the merchant fralrop-down list or using a search function and fmetin the payment amount. Consumers are
not subject to a fee when making most paymentatird/isa Qiwi Wallet. Additionally, consumers at@eato link their bank cards to their
Visa Qiwi Wallet accounts to make online paymenithout divulging their bank card details on merdhagsbsites, eliminating the perceived
risk of fraud associated with online payments. A payment is a payment initiated by the consumemfa merchant interface, typically a
merchant website through which the consumer makesahase. During the check-out process at a metretebsite, the consumer chooses
Visa Qiwi Wallet as a payment method and is reat@e to a Visa Qiwi Wallet web page. Next, if tttmsumer is already registered with Visa
Qiwi Wallet, he or she is prompted to enter hisi@r mobile phone number to which his or her Visai@Vallet account is linked and his or |
Visa Qiwi Wallet password. If the consumer is net segistered with Visa Qiwi Wallet, our systemamatically generates a virtual wallet for
him or her once the mobile phone number is entekadgistered Visa Qiwi Wallet user is then reqdite select a source of funds to be used,
including the prepaid balance of the Visa Qiwi WaHlccount, a bank card previously linked to theaM@iwi Wallet account, or his or her
mobile phone account. The consumer may also seléeterred payment option, whereby our system géeean electronic invoice from the
merchant to the consumer which is stored in theswarer’'s virtual wallet and can be paid at a lat@ge. After a payment option is chosen, the
consumer is required to confirm the transactiotipfdng which funds are withdrawn from the sourbe tonsumer is using and transmitted to
the merchant. The only option available to conssméro did not have a Visa Qiwi Wallet account poewiy is the deferred payment option.
Once the consumer loads his or her newly registeragal wallet or links a bank card to it, the @iwe can be confirmed and paid, after which
the transaction is completed.

Our Reload Channels

Visa Qiwi Wallet accounts can be reloaded throuigtually any payment method available on the markeiuding making cash deposit
at any of our kiosks or terminals, bank cards asmbants, online banking, ATMs, direct payroll dejpa®tail and traditional money transfers.
Visa Qiwi Wallet benefits in particular from accdesour own network of kiosks and terminals, whiglhe largest free cash reload network in
Russia. We believe that by offering the conveniarfaeloading at our kiosks and terminals, we iasgethe likelihood of consumers using \
Qiwi Wallet as well as the other services that \ffero

Qiwi branded kiosks and terminals are the primaeans by which consumers reload their Visa Qiwi Btadccounts. Over the last three
years the percentage of reloads made through lmadk and directly from bank accounts was less 158h of total reloads over the last th
years. Consumers also use t-party networks for cash reloads. With our receatipounced partnership with MegaFon we expect esshl
channels, primarily mobile phone balance, to becoroee popular among our users.
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Our International Virtual Wallets

As of December 31, 2014, the vast majority of acttisa Qiwi Wallet accounts were based in Russia.akpect the international
expansion of Visa Qiwi Wallet to be focused on netskwith high volumes of money transfers to andhflRussia and a low penetration of
banking services. These are primarily the CIS atemfrom which there is a significant labor migwatinflow into Russia. Migration patterns
drive demand for money remittance services andsdoosder payments, which we intend to make our sereice in these markets. We believe
that our services could also be in demand with ecerne businesses which seek to increase theirmastoase in Russia.

We expect that our alliance with Visa will substalty increase Visa Qiwi Wallet's international tda since the alliance gives Visa Qiwi
Wallet global access to all Visa accepting merchagitminating the necessity to build a merchamvoek each time Visa Qiwi Wallet is
launched in a new country.

Qiwi Bank

In September 2010, we acquired Qiwi Bank (whiclcisnsed as a bank in the Russian Federation)te s a platform for our Visa
Qiwi Wallet business. Up until mid-2013, Qiwi Bapkocessed all Visa Qiwi Wallet transactions, altfltoas a part of our future international
expansion strategy, we opened the Qiwi platformrte Kazakh bank, which may be followed by furthartpering with banks in Russia and
CIS. When a consumer deposits cash on his or tser @iwi Wallet account, Qiwi Bank issues a virtpedpaid card to a consumer. Qiwi Bank
also issues plastic cards to Visa Qiwi Wallet costs. Funds received by Qiwi Bank resulting froratomers loading and reloading their Visa
Qiwi Wallet accounts are held on Qiwi Bank’s acco@iwi Bank does not pay interest on Visa Qiwi Whhccounts. Qiwi Bank also
maintains a small number of accounts for our emg#ay officers and directors, agents and certadtte@lparties. See also “—Regulation” for a
brief description of the regulatory regime applieato Qiwi Bank.

Qiwi Prepaid Cards

At the end of 2009, we launched a prepaid cardrnaragn partnership with Visa Inc. Qiwi Visa prepa@ardholders enjoy all the benefits
of a Visa card without having to open a bank actoumredit line, eliminating the perceived risktie markets we serve of fraud associated
with traditional credit and debit cards. Our Visamid cards can be purchased through a Visa Qief\or a Qiwi kiosk and currently cons
of the following card products:

* Qiwi Visa Virtual Card- are virtual cards that are delivered to a consismeobile phone by SMS within seconds of purchersa
can be used to make purchases online from any reuatrdhat accepts Visa-branded cards. Qiwi Visaldirtards have a prepaid
balance and are valid for three moni

e Qiwi Visa Card- are virtual cards that are delivered to a consismneobile phone by SMS within seconds of purchese can be
used to make purchases online from any merchanattapts Visa-branded cards. Qiwi Visa Cardsiaked to the balance of a
consumer’s Visa Qiwi Wallet and are valid for 12nttes. Although it is envisaged that all new VisavQiVallet accounts will be
linked to Visa prepaid virtual cards by defaultw®Visa Card continues as a standalone productedis

» Qiwi Visa Plastic Cards- are plastic cards that are delivered to a consuiaenail or courier services after purchase aal lwe
used to make purchases online or in a physical sgtaironment through a POS terminal from any rhard that accepts Visa
branded cards. Qiwi Visa Plastic Cards can alsesee to withdraw cash from a participating ATM, ln&ed to the balance of a
consume’s Visa Qiwi Wallet and are valid for 12 mont

Qiwi Visa co-branded cards are issued by Qiwi Bpnfsuant to an agreement with Visa InternationabiSe Association. Under the
agreement, Qiwi Bank is authorized to issue Vismbed prepaid cards within Russia, and to offergartbrm Visa Direct transactions in and
between Russia, Ukraine, Kazakhstan, Uzbekistaordi® Tajikistan and other CIS countries, usinga¥s electronic payments processing
network to deliver transferred funds.

Value Added Services

Our network of merchants and consumers and flexdalkenology platform enable us to introduce inniveatvalue added, high-margin
products and services that can generate more reymruwconsumer. In November 2006, we started ubminterfaces of our kiosks as an
advertising medium, leveraging the strength ofretwork and the data that we receive from our coress. We advertise mostly in the forrr
pop-up ad banners in the kiosk interface that ahovensumer to enter a microsite with a detailedlpect description. Each kiosk has 12
advertising spaces on its screen. Additionallghatend of a transaction where a payment is
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made to an MNO we may send an SMS message to tiseicer to confirm the specific transaction. ThisSSiiessage may also contain an
advertisement of a product or service, providecctiressumer has not opted out from receiving sucledidements. We also allow advertiser
create a branded page in a subsection of the kiesiu.

With Russian advertising market being affected atyamal currency devaluation and general economwendurn; as well as advertising
revenue becoming a smaller portion of overall rexeof the Group, we do not believe that advertisexgnue will be significant to the Group
in the near term, and we are seeking to developvatue-added instruments and products to offercastomers.

Merchants

As of December 31, 2014, we had more than 100,08@Hmants registered in our system. Our merchaatseardors, including mobile
network operators, utilities, banks and onlineitets. Consumers can access our larger merchawitsgh hyperlink icons placed directly on
kiosk screens. Other merchants can be easily agt#sugh Visa Qiwi Wallet and, since any of oiosks can be used as an interface to
register a Visa Qiwi Wallet account or to accessxnting one, the merchant offering is effectivillg same for both kiosks and Visa Qiwi
Wallet accounts. In addition, Visa Qiwi Wallet aoots can be linked to virtual or physical Visa faepcards that can be used to make
purchases at any merchant that accept Visa worllWitke regularly add new merchants to our alreatisnsive merchant list with the aim of
creating a “one-stop shopping” experience for amstimers.

The terms and conditions of our agreements withch@ts vary significantly and are usually tailote@ach mercharg’'needs. Howeve
in 2014 we introduced common terms for certaingaties of merchants, primarily financial servicesl @commerce. We view this as a more
transparent approach which helps the negotiationgss when signing new merchants to join our nd¢wor

Due to regulatory concerns, we enter into sepagiteements with merchants for physical and virtigtlibution channels. As a result,
those merchants that can be accessed both diteatlygh hyperlink icons on kiosk screens and thinodiga Qiwi Wallet normally have two
agreements with us, one with CJSC QIWI and theratfith Qiwi Bank. The merchants that can only beessed through Visa Qiwi Wallet
normally enter into agreements with Qiwi Bank oriie agreements CJSC QIWI enters into with mercharg normally agency agreements.
The term of these agreements is usually unlimitesluitomatically renewable upon expiration of theetfve period; however, under Russian
law, agency agreements with an unlimited term m&agebminated unilaterally by any party without pnimtice. Qiwi Bank’s agreements with
merchants are normally structured as prepaid aaqdiang agreements, since, as described in mdesl dethe section headed “Regulation,”
we treat the electronic money of Visa Qiwi Walletauntholders as virtual prepaid cards.

Our merchants fall into three broad categories. Mbst significant category includes various seryiaeviders, such as MNOSs, internet
services providers, pay television channels andiputlities. MNOs, in particular the three largeperators in Russia, have historically
represented the largest portion of our merchard bad are expected to continue to do so for tresémable future. For the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014, the Big Three Mak&@ounted for 42%, 32% and 26% of our paymentrwe| respectively. However,
their share in our transaction volume has beemgpbiver the last three years due to the exparafionr merchant base and the increased u
our payment systems by the consumers for purpdkes ihan mobile phone account reloading.

The second category of merchants is those in tianéial services industry, and includes banks rarste companies and money transfer
services providers. As of December 31, 2014, weted payments on behalf of over 200 banks, inetudiost Russian retail banking
industry leaders such as Sberbank, Bank of Mos¥a, 24, Alfa-Bank, Tinkoff Credit Systems, UniCrédank, Rosbank, Promsvyazbank,
Raiffeisen Bank and others. Based on informatiaailalsle from public sources, we believe our kiosk &erminal network is larger than the
ATM network of any major bank, and, as a result,ame able to provide banks with the ability to teadarger audience through our network
by enabling their customers to make deposits apayréoans. We also work with major Russian andiv@gonal money transfer businesses
such as Western Union, Contact, and Unistreamjremolance companies such as Allianz. From Augu$02@e offer our consumers Visa
Personal Payments and MasterCard Money Send serwbéch allow a Visa Qiwi Wallet accountholderédoad the account of a Visa or
MasterCard bank card with a few clicks on our wehs mobile app, or a kiosk touch-screen, and thighonly information required being the
number of the recipient card.

Our third major category of merchants comprisesnasses that sell their products and services enilirtluding large international e-
commerce players such as AliExpress and eBay, |soefi@ork sites such as Facebook, Vkontakte ando&ldasniki, and online game
developers such as Steam, Wargaming and Mail.ruaMéeaccept payments on behalf of software praduceupon websites, and numerous
other merchants. Our kiosk and terminal network/jges these businesses with an attractive offliterface to their online services.
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While we already have considerable penetration veitlhurring payments merchants (such as MNOs aediet services providers),
financial services providers and e-commerce busesgshere are numerous markets in which we sa#isémt opportunity to add merchants.
For example, we view payments for fee-based ses\mefederal, state and municipal authorities ge@d point of market entry for new users
as these authorities increasingly automate paym#érgshave already entered into direct agreemeritstive Federal Tax Service, the State
Traffic Safety Authority, the Independent Secugrvices Bureau of the Interior Ministry’s Moscowartment, the Federal Bailiff Service
and the Federal Service for State Registrationa&ael and Cartography.

Relationship with the major MNC

The three major Russian MNOs, MegaFon, VimpelCothM'S, which are sometimes collectively referreds$ahe Big Three, were ¢
first, and have historically been our largest, rhants. Each of our agreements with the Big Thredtler for an indefinite term or
automatically renewable upon expiration of the @ffe period. In each case, either party may teateithe agreement at any time by giving
prior written notice to the other party. Variousp#ies, including fines and accelerated termimataye provided for in case we do not transmi
the consumers’ payments within a specified deadlihe merchant fee payable to us depends on whetb@nsumer fee is levied and on the
payment method (cash, bank cards, virtual walled)ia expressed as a percentage of the volumeyaigrets we process for the respective
MNO. Over time MNOs have used their significant okbating power to lower or eliminate merchant fggempting our transition to consun
fees and value added services.

In February 2015, we announced our strategic patiiewith MegaFon by launching a co-branded prottased on Visa QIWI Wallet
technology. As a result of this partnership, Mega&subscribers now have an opportunity to makergans for merchants supported by the
Visa QIWI Wallet using their mobile phone balaneetfze source of funds. We view this as an imporahtevement in terms of deepening oul
relationship with MegaFon and offering our user& maluable features. Currently this solution isqu@ in the Russian market. This agreemer
is not exclusive which allows us to execute similantracts with other MNOs.

Our Technology Platform

Our services are based on our advanced, proprigtaiynology platform. All of our key technology Haeen developed in-house. Our
platform consists of three key elements: an Ordatabase, a Java-based processing system andsvasiosumer, merchant and agent
interfaces. The interfaces are connected to theegging system through a secure protocol.

Our physical platform consists of two leased dataters (primary and reserve), one of which is ledatn our office premises while the
other is at a thirgharty location. One of the data centers has beeifieg as compliant with PCI DSS, an industry stard for security and da
protection. We are able to switch our processingifthe primary to the reserve data center withtedn minutes in case of any accident or
disaster.

Our kiosks and terminals are not connected to e#twdr, reducing the risk of a virus spreading tigfmut our entire network. The
principal software under which the kiosks operateur proprietary application Maratl, which enaldeseptance of payments on kiosks thr¢
our processing system. The software products usedioterminals are also proprietary applications.

Visa Qiwi Wallet has a robust fraud control filgrstem that is designed to trace suspicious tréinseaand block associated accounts. Ir
the vast majority of cases, fraud through Visa QMéllet is attributable to scams rather than te@usty system failure. We employ a 3-D
secure system similar to those adopted by othesmpalyment networks. 3-D secure adds a further laf/security to online payments by
requiring the consumer to perform an additionahantication step, usually through entering a comdition code sent by SMS to the
consumer’s mobile phone. Our system requires aurnesto enter both a permanent code linked to o particular account, and a aiiree
pad code which is unique to each transaction.

Our Framework Agreement with Visa dated November2D9.2 imposes stringent security requirementssoto yrotect the data of our
consumers. Under the terms of this agreement, eerater an obligation to be compliant with Visa+amed security standards and to underg
periodic audits to confirm such compliance. In 014, as a part of our strategic relationship Wiha we received VisaNet Processor status
which effectively allows us to process Visa tratigars on behalf of other Visa member banks.
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Sales and Marketing

We have a dedicated team of sales and marketisgpipeel who seek to expand our network of agentsrardhants, attract and maintain
consumers and promote our products. Our marketiogram includes advertising campaigns as well srgiromotional activities, such as
joint loyalty programs with our merchan

Brand Awarenes:

We believe our brand is a household name in Ru&sizording to Synovate Comcom, “Qiwi” is the mostognized Russian brand
among kiosk operators with prompted brand awareoe83%, as well as in electronic payment servigits a prompted brand awareness of
84%.

In addition, we believe that in our sector maintagna social media presence is important to susigibrand awareness. As a result, we
have a dedicated team of people who regularly @pdat Facebook, Twitter, Vkontakte and LiveJouamdounts. We also use social networks
to seek feedback from our consumers to improvebasiness.

As part of maintaining our brand image, we havelegges available to respond to agent and merclmantecns and to handle consumer
issues.

Advertising and Promotional Activitie

Because we maintain a kiosk network as widespradd/sible as ours, third-party advertising is astimportant to maintain brand
awareness. We maintain a relatively low advertigirgfile, mostly employing Internet advertisingpgmmote Visa Qiwi Wallet.

In addition, we engage in promotional campaigngtiogr with our merchants, in which merchants afiscounts to their customers who
make payments through our network.

Competition

The most significant competitive factors in ouribess are speed, convenience, network size, abiiggshours of operation, loyalty
programs, reliability and price. Our competitorslirde retail banks, non-traditional payment sewvigmviders (such as retailers and MNOs),
traditional kiosk and terminal operators and etattr payment system operators as well as other anrap which provide various forms of
payment services, including electronic payment@aygnent processing services.

We face significant competition from major retadlrks. Our competitors include, among others, SidgHRussia’s largest retail bank
that is majority-owned by the Russian state, arfd-Blank, one of the leading privately owned Russétail banks, both of which have robust
electronic payment products and large retail netaiocBome retail banks are currently developing thein kiosk networks and are active in the
area of electronic payment products.

We also face competition from major telecommunaaand media devices retailers, including Eurosdt@vyaznoy, which offer some
financial and payment services of third-party pdevs, such as instant money transfers, loan repatgmatilities payment and other services,
and sell thirdparty insurance and consumer banking productsgingilon the strength of their retail networks. Véenpete to an extent with t
MNOs, which allow their subscribers to make insfaayments using their mobile phone balances.

We also potentially face competition from the RaedPost, due to its vast network of offices thramghRussia which accept payments
for certain third-party services, including ut#i§ and banking services.

Finally, we also compete against some directly camralple businesses, such as traditional kiosk andrtal operators (primarily
CyberPlat, Comepay and Elecsnet) and electronimpay system operators (primarily Yandex.Money (gonitg stake of which is owned by
Sberbank), WebMoney and, to a lesser extent, PagBaalso Russian market newcomers such as Tikoffile Wallet).
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Intellectual Property

Our intellectual property rights are important to business. We rely primarily on a combinatiorcofitract provisions, copyrights,
trademarks, patents and trade secrets to protegrroprietary technology and other intellectualpeay.

Our in-house know-how is an important element afintellectual property. Almost all of our key sefire has been developed in-house
by our employees. Accordingly, we seek to entar aunfidentiality and copyright assignment agreets@ith our employees and consultants
and confidentiality agreements with other thirdtigar, and we rigorously control access to our petgry technology.

QIWI and QIWI-“KIVI" are registered trademarks iruBsia, and we have filed applications for regigirabf our brand name in over 15
countries. We also hold registrations for the braache QIWI-“KIVI” as a trademark in the CIS anddther countries as well as under the
Madrid Agreement and Protocol. We also hold sevaséivare copyright registrations, including fofte@re applications, such as “Maratl”,
“Observer”, “Application for POS-terminal Ingenicd’Application for POS-terminal NURIT”, “Univers&®ayment Gateway Server”, and
“Universal Processing System.” We have obtained/igpt registrations for some of our software insRia, Brazil and in the United States.

Employees

The following table sets out the average numbemabloyees for the years ended December 31, 2013, &@d 2014 by function.

For the year ended
31 December,

2012 2013 2014

Qiwi Group
Front Office 38C 38¢ 464
Back Office 41¢€ 42F 43¢
IT Personne 21t 222 21€
Total 1,01: 1,03t 1,121

In 2014 we conducted an internal reorganizatiochtange our organizational structure from a businegsorganizational structure where
Qiwi Distribution and Visa Qiwi Wallet were largefganaged as separate entities to a functional neamagt structure where management is
focused on centralized core operational tasks asdales and marketing, IT, legal, and finance.r€beganization was intended to account fol
the growing overlap of our businesses, with Qiwstbbution becoming a significant distribution chahfor Visa Qiwi Wallet, and to better
reflect the manner in which our business is managed

We place a high value on technological innovatind eompete aggressively for talent. We strive te thie best software engineers, as
well as talented sales, marketing and financialadministrative staff. We seek to create a dynafulfilling work environment, encouraging
participation, creativity, the exchange of idead mamwork. We believe that our relations with eomployees are good.

Regulation

We are subject to a number of laws and regulafiofussia and other jurisdictions that regulatenpant services antioney laundering
data protection and information security and adsieig services. Qiwi Bank is also subject to nurosriaws and regulations governing banl
activities in Russia.

Regulation of Payment Service

The regulation of the payment services industriRiissia is relatively nascent. Laws and regulatgpeifically governing the industry
have recently been enacted but remain virtuallgstet. A legislative framework is not yet fully @ésped, and, moreover, is not universal,
various business models that payment servicesgeoy/such as ourselves pursue are regulated diffre
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Virtual wallet operations are legally consideredhdass transfers with the use of bank cards. Fpidaeory purposes, when a Visa Qiwi
Wallet account is reloaded, the accountholdersiséd one or several virtual prepaid cards, depgratinthe amount of the reload. While the
accountholder agrees to the issuance of the darolsgh accepting a public offer, he or she is nptieitly provided with details of each card.
From a consumes’perspective, the amount of the reload is simplysferred to an account of a digital wallet, wherkegally it becomes stor
value of a virtual prepaid card.

A prepaid card is an electronic means of paymdaivalg its holder to carry out transfers of eleaitomoney within the limits of the
funds previously deposited with the issuing cradititution. Amendments to the CBR Regulation N@6-2 “On the Issuance of Bank Cards
and Payment Cards Operations” conferring the staftetectronic means of payment on prepaid carde wpproved by the CBR Directive
No. 286:-U, dated August 10, 2012, and came into effeciudp 1, 2013. From that date, the legal regiméeffrepaid cards is that
established for electronic money by the Federal bathe Russian Federation No. 161-FZ “On the Netid?ayment System”, dated June 27,
2011, as amended, or the Payment System Law.

Electronic money is defined under the Payment Systaw as prepaid monetary value contributed by'phevider” to the “obligor” of
which a record is kept by the obligor without theening of a bank account, which can be used fosdiiblement of the provider's monetary
obligations towards third parties, and in respéettuch the provider may only issue instructiona electronic means of payment. Electronic
money is also treated as a liability of the obligmwards the provider. Electronic means of paynagatdefined as any methods and instrument
which allow drawing up, certifying and transmittimgtructions for electronic money transfers andcwtiemploy information and
telecommunication technologies, electronic data@arand other technical devices. The Paymene8y&aw classifies electronic means of
payment into personalized and non-personalizecgritipg on whether they allow for identificationtb& payer for the purposes of the Federa
Law of the Russian Federation No. 115-FZ “On Connigathe Legalization (Laundering) of Criminally @loted Income and Funding of
Terrorism”, dated August 7, 2001, as amended, ®Atfhti-Money Laundering Law. Any electronic monegrisfers are subject to thresholds or
remaining electronic money balances, which amaufWB 600,000 for personalized means of paymentRivB 15,000 for non-personalized
means of payment (or RUB 60,000 if the holder unget a simplified identification procedure — sed e Anti-Money Laundering Lai).

The total monthly turnover for each non-persondlim@ans of payment cannot exceed RUB 40,000 (or RQEB000 if the holder underwent a
simplified identification procedure — seeThe Anti-Money Laundering Latu

Under the Payment System Law, any electronic paysmaay only be made through so-called “electronimay operators”, which shall
necessarily be credit institutions. Qiwi Bank ised@ctronic money operator for payments made throtiga Qiwi Wallet. All electronic mone
operators are required to adopt their own reguiatin electronic money transfers and report t&CfAR once they commence electronic mc
transfer operations.

The Payment System Law also establishes a legakfrark for mobile payments, which allow reloadihg payer’s electronic money
balance out of funds deposited as an advance paymitbra mobile operator.

The CBR is the agency commissioned with supervisfacompliance with the provisions of the Paymeydt&m Law. As such, it is
entitled to suspend the activities of market pgoéints regulated by the Payment System Law in che®lations and impose administrative
liability on the offenders.

In May-October 2014, certain changes were introduoghe Payment System Law that mandated theieneaft a Russian national
payment cards system and required that from Mat¢l2@15, all transactions with the use of cardsadaunder international brands, such as
Visa and MasterCard, be processed through thétfasibf the national payment card system rathan the international payment systerog/n
facilities. As a principal member of Visa, Qiwi Baris currently working with NSPK, the operator b&tnational payment card system, to set
up connectivity to its systems. CJSC QIWI, as operaf our kiosk network, is deemed to be a paynageint in accordance with the Federal
Law of the Russian Federation No. 103-FZ “On Caitecof Payments from Individuals by the PaymeneAg”, dated June 3, 2009, as
amended, or the Payment Agents Law. The Paymemtadaw is inapplicable to electronic payments #img does not regulate our Visa G
Wallet business. The Payment Agents Law definesgay agents as intermediaries that collect paynmirésrom individuals to merchants.

The Payment Agents Law only applies to servicesigess such as CJSC QIWI that process cash paymathisut having the status of a
credit institution (under Russian law, credit ihgibns include banks and n@@&nking credit institutions which are entitled sy out a limitet
number of banking operations) and thus are notlade by banking legislation. Merchants on whodealfgpayment agents may accept
payments include legal entities and individual gpteneurs, as well as state and municipal autbsrtind budget-funded entities that provide
fee-based services in furtherance of their funstion
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The Payment Agents Law requires payment agentsrply with the Anti-Money Laundering Law. A paymeagent may only act as
such once it registers with the government authoeisponsible for compliance with the Anti-Moneyunaering Law (currently, the Federal
Service for Financial Monitoring, or Rosfinmonitogj).

A payment agent acts on the basis of an agencymgm with the merchant. Such agency agreementpaegned by the Russian Civil
Code, certain provisions of which are describexhare detail below. A payment agent may also engabeagents (referred to as “payment
sub-agents” under the Payment Agents Law) if thenag agreement so provides. Our agents act as papue-agents for the purposes of the
Payment Agents Law. Payment sub-agents may nopapagments that require identification of the ousér pursuant to the Anti-Money
Laundering Law. Under the Anti-Money Laundering Lauch customer identification is required formbney transfers exceeding
RUB 15,000, while at least a simplified identifiicat process is required for any peer-to-peer marasfers and transfers to foreign
merchants. In compliance with these requiremehéssoftware installed on our kiosks and terminaksschot allow accepting such transfers in
excess of the statutory thresholds per single payme

The payment agent’s obligation to transmit the utadthe merchant is required to be either insorexbcured by means of a pledge,
guarantee, or otherwise. The amount of such inseransecurity is not statutorily fixed, and thare no other guidelines regarding this
requirement.

Acceptance of payments on behalf of certain typeseychants, including foreign entities, is caneed from the scope of the Payment
Agents Law. This does not imply that a company Wiltias the status of a payment agent is prohibited &iccepting payments on behalf of
such merchants. However, activities in this regaginot regulated by the Payment Agents Law, liberdy the universally applicable
provisions of the Russian Civil Code pertainingency agreements. In particular, the Civil Codgt@ios some basic requirements for agenc
agreements, including their conditions and theinteation and sets out rules pertaining to centights of the agent and the principal and
allocation of various responsibilities between thémency services may not be provided free of chafdpe Civil Code permits agency
agreements to include exclusivity clauses. Agemggements may be entered into for fixed or indedipieriods of time. However, if an agency
agreement is entered into for an indefinite peabtime, it may be terminated unilaterally at thectetion of either counterparty.

The Payment Agents Law provides that payment agaatentitled to levy fees from the merchants’ aongrs for each transaction
processed by them. These fees are not statutaiged- although proposals to cap them are fromtiintiene considered by the Russian
legislature. In March 2014, a draft law on amendismiémthe Payment Agents Law was introduced tcStiage Duma that limits the amount of
fees that may be imposed on the customers to 3#edbtal payment. This amendment has not beerideresl by the State Duma yet.

Payment agents are required to use cash registagiigies with a builtin fiscal memory and a reference tape (an elecatrdevise whict
allows long-term storage of records of transactiper$ormed through a kiosk), in order to monitoyments received. They are also required t
issue receipts for each transaction.

The Payment Agents Law requires both the paymestitaand the merchant serviced by it to maintaimeggted bank accounts for the
purpose of depositing funds received from the qusts and from the payment agent, respectivelyfulllls received by a payment agent neec
to be deposited into such specialized accounts.

The activities of the payment agents are monitbsethe CBR, though its authority in this respediristed to collection, systematization
and analysis of industry data.

Banking Regulation

Our Qiwi Bank is a “credit institution” and is acdingly subject to the following financial servieeslated laws and regulations:

The Banking Law

Federal Law of the Russian Federation No. 395-1 Banks and Banking Activity"dated December 2, 1990, as amended, or the Ba
Law, is the main law regulating the Russian banliegtor. Among other things, it defines credititngbns, sets forth the list of banking
operations and other transactions that credittin&ins may engage in, and establishes the franiefgothe registration and licensing of credit
institutions and the regulation of banking actiitythe CBR.
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The Banking Law provides for a list of the so-cdlfeanking operations” that cannot be conductedavit an appropriate license from
the CBR, including, among others, accepting deposjiening and maintaining bank accounts, perfamioney transfers from and to bank
accounts of the clients, and performing money (iditlg electronic money) transfers without openidgaak account (other than postal
transfers), etc. The latter type of banking operetiis the only one that our Qiwi Bank pursues amagn line of business, although its licenses
also permit it to accept deposits from individuatsl legal entities, invest the funds received eftirm of deposits, maintain accounts for
individuals and legal entities and perform settlataghrough their bank accounts, perform teller eash collection services, sell and purchase
currency and issue bank guarantees.

Role of the CB}

The CBR operates under the Federal Law of the Rad3tderation No. 86-FZ “On the Central Bank ofRussian Federation”, dated
July 10, 2002, as amended, or the CBR Law. The GBRegal entity and is operationally independesh the Russian government. The C
has a head office in Moscow and regional branaméise constituent entities of the Russian Fedarate well as local branches.

Pursuant to the CBR Law, the Banking Law and thaeFa Law of the Russian Federation No. 173-FZ @mrency and Currency
Regulation”,dated December 10, 2003, as amended, or the Cyrkeng the CBR has the authority to issue and imglist binding regulatior
governing banking and currency operations. The GBRain functions include determination and impletaton of the monetary policy of the
Russian Federation in cooperation with the Rusg@amernment, regulation and oversight of the bankecfor in a quasi-state agency capacity
certain limited banking operations and transactigsssiance of currency and regulation of its catioh, regulation of foreign currency
operations in the Russian Federation and foreigrenay operations conducted by Russian residemtsdband domestic government debt
service and federal budget administration. The GBI carries out supervision and monitoring ofrthBonal payment system. On
September 1, 2013, the CBR was designated asdhtater for the financial and securities marketRirssia.

Capital Requirements

The key measure underlying Russian capital requrgsnis the amount of the capital base (own funtia)credit organization, which is
defined as the sum of the “main capital” and “addial capital” of the credit organization minusteén obligations as determined by the CBR.
According to the CBR Regulation No. 395-P, datedddeber 28, 2012, as amended, the main capitalhenadditional capital of a credit
organization is defined by way of an exhaustivedfdifferent types of debt and equity that quafir treatment as main and additional cap
as applicable.

The Banking Law establishes minimum charter capital capital base for banks. Under the Banking lthesminimum charter capital
for newly-established banks is equivalent to RUB &tlllion. The capital base of a credit institutionust not be less than RUB 300 million,
subject to certain exemptions. If a bank’s capitse becomes less than its charter capital, it mastase its capital base (or, if impossible,
reduce its charter capital) accordingly. The CBReBlive No. 1260-U, dated March 24, 2003, as am@éneftablishes the procedures for such
adjustment.

As of December 31, 2014, Qiwi Bank had a charteitabof RUB 295 million and a capital base of appmately RUB 1,300 million ar
was in compliance with applicable banking legisiati

Reserve Requiremer

Under the CBR Law, the CBR’s board of directors maagablish reserve requirements for banks. Reseqrérements must not exceed
20% of the bank’s liabilities and may vary for @ifént types of banks. Banks are currently requivgzbst mandatory reserves with the CBR tc
be held in non-interest bearing accounts. Staftimgp March 1, 2013, such reserves constitute 4.2%%ll types of liabilities.

Russian banks are required to calculate the exastiat of their mandatory reserves in accordance @&@R Regulation No. 342-P dated
August 7, 2009, as amended, or the Reserves Regul@he Reserves Regulation also requires bankegpimrt the calculation of reserves to
CBR and its regional branches promptly after the @neach calendar month, as well as to post anhditireserves if necessary.

The Reserves Regulation allows the CBR to finerk bhat fails to comply with reserve requirememd debit the insufficient reserve
from its correspondent account with the CBR. Thewamt of the fine is calculated on the basis ofdabeial shortage of the reserves. The CBR
and its regional branches may also conduct aunl#s$ess a bank’s compliance with the reserverssgants.
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As of December 31, 2014, Qiwi Bank’s reserves arntemito 4.25% of its liabilities owed to legal efetit that are non-residents and
4.25% of liabilities towards individuals and othiabilities and it was in compliance with applicatidanking legislation. Qiwi Bank has never
been fined for non-compliance with reserve requéets and none of the audits conducted by the CBRBsipect of it has uncovered any
material violations. The reserve requirements ef@BR negatively impact Qiwi Bank’s ability to disute its profit to us in the form of
dividends.

As of the date of this annual report, Qiwi Bank a@ns in compliance with applicable reserves requénets.

Loss Provision:

The CBR regulates the creation of provisions farkbl@an and other losses. CBR Regulation No. 25@+Pthe Procedure for
Making Provisions for Possible Losses on LoansSindlar Indebtedness by Credit Organizations”, dditarch 26, 2004, as amended,
requires banks to adopt procedures for calculaimjposting provisions for loan losses and for ipts$osses other than loan losses, which
may include losses from investments in securifiggls held in correspondent accounts of other hardegtingent liabilities and other
transactions. CBR Instruction No. 283-P, dated M&@, 2006, as amended, requires banks to clemsity activities into five risk categories
and to make provisions in the corresponding amatittteir discretion. Banks must report to the CB&amount of new non-loan provisions
within seven days after the end of each reportiogtin The CBR and its regional branches monitokbatompliance with these rules.

Although Qiwi Bank does not engage in retail ompmoate lending as a line of business, it has adisnamount of loans and
maintains provisions for certain other possibleséss including losses from default by counterparirmapairment of assets and liability
increases, and is in compliance with applicableiranlegislation.

Prudential Ratios

CBR Instruction No. 139-1 “On Banks’ Mandatory Pemtial Ratios”, dated December 3, 2012, as ameredgdblishes mandatory
prudential ratios for banks. Key mandatory economaiims that banks must observe on a daily basiganodically report to the CBR include
capital adequacy ratio, instant liquidity ratiormant liquidity ratio, longterm liquidity ratio, maximum exposure to a sing@rower or a grou
of affiliated borrowers, maximum exposure to majaadit risks, maximum amount of loans, bank guaastind sureties extended by the ban
to its participants (shareholders), aggregate atnafuexposure to the bank’s insiders, ratio fordise of the bank’s capital base to acquire
shares (participation interests) in other legaitieist Failure to comply with the prudential ratiosy lead to negative consequences for the
bank, including revocation of the banking license.

As of December 31, 2014, Qiwi Baskprudential ratios were well in excess of the mimin thresholds imposed by the CBR and it we
compliance with applicable banking legislation.

Reporting Requiremen

Under the Banking Law and the CBR Regulation N&228), dated November 12, 2009, as amended, a stilast@mount of routine
reporting is performed by credit institutions oregular and non-regular basis, including disclosirénancial statements, various operational
indicators, affiliates and persons who exercisee@ly or indirectly) influence over the decisidaken by the management bodies of the bank
According to the CBR Law, the CBR may at any timaduct full or selective audits of any bank’s fij;nand may inspect all of its books and
records.

Under the Banking Law and the CBR Regulation N&@®BU, dated October 25, 2013, as amended, bankilainigs such as ourselves
(i.e., groups of legal entities in which a legaligrnthat is not a credit institution, directly ovdirectly, controls decisions of the management
bodies of a credit institution within such groupsch as Qiwi Bank) must regularly disclose themsmidated financial statements and provide
to CBR certain additional information regarding thesiness operations and financial condition ofgtmip in order for the CBR to assess theil
risks.

Regulation of Mergers and Acquisitions of Credgtitutions in Russii

In addition to the general merger control requiretagacquisitions of shares or participation irtesén credit institutions are also subject
to certain industry-specific regulations. Under Banking Law and the CBR Law, the purchase
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or receipt on trust of over 1% of the shares otigipation interests in a credit institution by ergon (or its group) must be reported to the CBF
post-closing, while a pre-closing approval of tH&RCis required whenever a person (or group) acgudieectly or indirectly, more than 10%,
25%, 50% or 75% of the voting shares in a credittuition incorporated as a joint stock companynare than 1/10, 1/3, 1/2 or 2/3 of
participation interests in a limited liability cormpy). The requirements for obtaining mesing approvals of the CBR are set out in dénaihe
CBR Instruction “On the Procedure for Obtaining @BR’s Approval for the Purchase of the Sharestipation Interests) in a Credit
Institution” No. 146-I, dated October 25, 2013tle 146-I Instruction.

This requirement is also applicable to acquisitiohsontrol over intermediary holding companieshagtvnership interests in credit
institutions. Accordingly, any acquisition of comitover our company would need to be ppproved by the CBR due to our ownership of C
Bank.

The review period is 30 days from the date of {hgliaation. The CBR may refuse to grant its condfetiie applicant has an
unsatisfactory business reputation, is in unsatisfg financial condition, or has failed to obtaipproval of the Federal Antimonopoly Service,
or the FAS, or of the governmental commission dfuieed by the Federal Law of the Russian Federation57-FZ “On the Procedure for
Foreign Investments in Enterprises which are Sfieddly Important for the State Defense and Nati@®curity”, dated April 29, 2008, as
amended, or the Strategic Enterprise Law, beftirggfivith the CBR.

Additionally, the Banking Law provides that the Riam government, upon consultation with the CBRy pr@pose a legislative bill
imposing a quota on foreign ownership in the Rusbinking industry, covering both Russian brandiesternational banks and foreign
participation in the charter capital of Russianksarsuch quota, if instituted, could prevent foreigvestors from obtaining control over our
company. However, such quota has not been in existeince 2002 and, to our knowledge, there isatiyr no intention to reinstate it.

The Anti-Money Laundering Law

The Anti-Money Laundering Law was adopted to compith the requirements of the Financial Action T&skce, or the FATF, an inter-
governmental body developing and promoting politiesombat money laundering and terrorist financlhgovers a broad scope of compa
which can be designated as financial services gersj including credit institutions and paymentrageThe Anti-Money Laundering Law
contains a number of requirements that these coepaave to comply with, including, among othentfs, the development of appropriate
internal standards and procedures, client ideatific, control over client operations and reportfiguspicious activities.

Under the Anti-Money Laundering Law, one of the mabligations of a financial services providerhis tcontrol function”, which
involves identification of the clients, gatherimdarmation on client operations and reporting ataie operations to Rosfinmonitoring. The
Anti-Money Laundering Law requires the performan€eerification procedures in the event of any gpiens in the amount of RUB 600,000
or more (or its equivalent in foreign currenciesjene such operations involve:

» cash transaction

» certain transactions where one of the countégsais resident in a country that does not pigdie in international efforts to combat
money-laundering, or employs a bank account maintaineslialh country

» certain operations in relation to bank accountdeposits where the beneficiary is not identifi

» deposits to or debiting the money from the act®f legal entities, where such legal entity basn in existence for less than three
months or where no operations have been perfornitbdswech bank account from the date of its openamg}

« certain other transactions with moveable priypiavolving, among other things, money transfegbmpanies which are not credit
institutions.

In addition, financial services providers must gaut these procedures in the event of any operatieolving an individual or
organization that is known to participate in extigror terrorist activities. If the officers of méncial services provider suspect that an
operation is conducted in order to legalize anyfureceived from illegal activities or to finaneerbrist activities, such operations must be
reported to Rosfinmonitoring whether or not thewlify as controlled operations. Financial servipesviders must not inform their clients that
transactions are being reported to Rosfinmonitoring
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Financial services providers are generally requioeidentify their clients. However, certain traoans are exempt from the
identification requirements under the Anti-Moneyhdering Law, unless officers of a financial seevirovider suspect that such operation is
carried out to legalize funds received from illegelivities or to finance terrorism. Money transfey individuals not exceeding RUB 15,000
are generally exempt from the identification reqaient, but since May 5, 2014, peempger transfer and transfers to foreign entitiescarthir
kinds of non-profits require at least a simplifideéntification of the customer regardless of theant. The key difference between the
simplified procedure and the procedure that mugbl@wved in all other circumstances is that sirfipll identification can be performed
remotely. However, the simplified identificationggess is still not well defined and the public datses that such remote identification is
supposed to be based on are still not entirelyadjmeral, which could cause us to be in violatiorthaf identification requirements. The
identification requirements of the Anti-Money Lawmihg Law only pertain to individual transactiomglanot series of transactions.

Intellectual Property Regulatior

The Civil Code of Russia (Part V) is the basic iamRussia that governs intellectual property rglimicluding their protection and
enforcement. According to it, the software and tedbgies that we develop internally generally dbnegjuire registration and enjoy legal
protection simply by virtue of being created anttiei publicly disclosed or existent in a certairt@nial form. In addition, we obtain propriet:
rights to materials that are subject to copyrigiotgction and that are created for us on the lmsigreements with the authors of such
materials. Also, subject to compliance with theuisgments of the Civil Code, we are deemed to laegiired any copyrights created by our
employees during the course of their employmert wit and within the scope of their job functions] Aave the exclusive rights to their
further use and disposal.

Under Russian law, the registration of copyrightesterials is not required. Software may be regestdny a copyright holder, at its
discretion, with the Russian Federal Service foellactual Property, Patents and Trademarks, op&est, but such registration is not
customary. We normally register software that weettigp with Rospatent. We also hold copyright regtsbns for some of our software in the
United States.

Only trademarks and patents for inventions, utilitydels and industrial designs require mandatagistetion with the Rospatent.
Trademarks registered abroad under the Madrid Agee¢ Concerning the International Registration @demarks, dated April 14, 1891
and/or the Protocol to the Agreement, dated Jun&239, have equal legal protection in Russia eallpregistered trademarks. Our main
brands are registered as trademarks in RussigI$and several other countries where we operate.

Advertising Regulatior

The principal Russian law governing advertisingJuding advertising on the kiosks and terminalshéesFederal Law of the Russian
Federation No. 38-FZ “On Advertising,”, dated Matfc®, 2006, as amended, or the Advertising Law. Atheertising Law provides for a wide
array of restrictions, prohibitions and limitatiopertaining to contents and methods of advertising.

Set forth below is a non-exhaustive list of typed enethods of advertising that are prohibited relgas of the advertised product and the
advertising medium:

» advertising that may induce criminal, violent onerbehavior

» advertising that judges or otherwise humiliates¢éheho do not use the advertised prod

» use of pornographic or indecent materials in adsiag;

» use of foreign words that may lead to the advegisieing misleading

» statements that the advertised product has beao\agupby state and municipal authorities or off&i
» depiction of smoking and alcohol consumpti

» advertising of healing properties of a product ikatot a registered medicine or medical servio€;

» omission of material facts that leads to advengisiring misleadinc

The law also prohibits advertisements for certauiated products and services without appropcetgfication, licensing or approval.
Advertisements for products such as alcohol, tobgglarmaceuticals, baby food, financial instrureemtsecurities and financial services, as
well as incentive sweepstakes and advertisememisdaat minors, must comply with specific rules amgbst in certain cases contain specified
disclosure.
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Russian advertising laws define and prohibit, amatingr things, “unfair”, “untrue” and “hidden” adising (i.e. advertising that
influences consumers without their knowledge). Atlsang based on improper comparisons of the atbegttproducts with products sold by
other sellers is deemed unfair. It is also prokibito advertise goods which may not be producediastdbuted under Russian law.

In addition, the distribution of advertisementsngsielecommunications devices, such as advertissnoeer short messaging, requires
consent of the recipient of the ad, which we ree¢hrough having the customer agree to a publier dféfore making a transaction through one
of our kiosks. The Advertising Law does not speailiy regulate advertising through kiosks.

In some cases, violation of the Advertising Law &ad to civil actions or administrative penaltilkat can be imposed by the FAS.

Privacy and Personal Data Protection Regulati

We are subject to laws and regulations regardingpy and protection of the user data, includirg Flederal Law of the Russian
Federation No. 152-FZ “On Personal Data”, dateg 2id| 2006, as amended, or the Personal Data Lhe/PErsonal Data Law, among other
things, requires that an individual must conserth&processing (i.e. any action or combinatioaaifons performed on personal data, inclu
the collection, recording, systematization, accwatiah, storage, use, transfer (distributing, pringdor authorizing access to), blocking,
deleting and destroying) of his/her personal dathraust provide this consent before such datadisgssed. Generally, the Personal Data Law
does not require the consent to be in writing bquires it to be in any form that, from an evidanpierspective, sufficiently attests to the fact
that it has been obtained.

However, the consent must be in writing in certznes, including: (i) where the processing reletespecial categories of personal data
(regarding the subjed’race, nationality, political views, religion, fdsophical beliefs, health conditions or intimatéimation); (ii) where th
processing of personal data relates to any phygimdband biological characteristics of the subjehich can help to establish the identity of
subject (such as, for example, biometric persoat)d (iii) crossborder transfers to a state that does not provdéguate protection of rights
subjects; and (iv) the reporting or transferringanfemployees’ personal data to a third party,®te.written consent of subjects must meet a
number of formal requirements and must be signelddbygraphic or electronic signature. In other satige consent may be in any form that,
from an evidential perspective, attests to thettaat it has been obtained.

We obtain consents from our users by asking theatidk an icon indicating their consent to us pisirg their personal data.

On 1 September 2015, amendments to Personal Datavilecome into effect that require any personatalof Russian citizens to be
stored within the territory of the Russian FedemtiSince all our data centers used to store sexdopal data are located in the Russian
Federation, we do not expect to be impacted byrdtgirement.

Failure to comply with legislation on personal datay lead to civil, criminal, disciplinary and adristrative liability, and an obligation
terminate or procure the termination of any wrohgfeocessing of personal data.

Antimonopoly Regulatior

Federal Law of the Russian Federation No. 135-F& P@otection of Competition” dated July 26, 2006amended, or the Competition
Law, grants to the FAS as the antimonopoly regulaide powers and authorities to ensure competitiche market, including approval or
monitoring of mergers and acquisitions, establistinoé rules of conduct for market players that gmcdominant positions, prosecution any
wrongful abuse of a dominant position, and the enéion of cartels and other anti-competitive agreeis or practices. The regulator may
impose significant administrative fines on markiatyprs that abuse their dominant position or otlswestrict competition, and is entitled to
challenge contracts, agreements or transactiohsutegerformed in violation of the antimonopolguétion. We have a substantial market
share in the kiosks and terminals and electronyenemts markets, but are not recognized by the a¢giuhs occupying a dominant position
since these markets are relatively new. Howevenmgerstand that the regulator could in the fufaceis on the markets that we are active in,
and could identify dominant players and impose cahdmitations and other requirements on them.
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The Competition Law expressly provides for its atérritorial application to transactions which arade outside of Russia but lead, or
may lead, to the restriction of competition in Rasand which relate to assets located on the deyriaf Russia, to the shares (or participation
interests) in Russian companies or rights in retatdo such companies, shares in or rights in miat foreign target companies which had s
to Russia of at least RUB 1 billion for the yeaggading the year in which the transaction is comsatad.

The Competition Law provides for mandatory pre-appt by the FAS of mergers, acquisitions, compamynktions and certain other
transactions involving companies which meet ceffia@ncial thresholds. Certain specific rules am@sholds are provided by the Competition
Law in relation to pre-approval by the FAS of aaifions of financial services providers, which, anthe Competition Law, include credit
institutions, but do not include payment agentsfdbent thresholds apply to transactions with ofirencial entities as targets.

The Competition Law stipulates certain carve-otsifthis rule providing for post-transactional fiottion to the FAS instead of FAS
pre-approval. Additionally, it imposes financiatesholds for transactions that, while not subje@ pre-approval, are subject to mandatory
post-transactional notification. Intgroup transfers are generally notifiable; howettegre are certain exceptions to the Competition Lrathkis
respect.

Under the Competition Law, if an acquirer has adatedolation of the merger control rules and, ésample, acquired shares without
obtaining the prior approval of the FAS, the trarigen may be invalidated by a court order initiabydthe FAS, provided that such transaction
has led or may lead to the restriction of compmiitfor example, by means of strengthening of aidami position in the relevant market.

More generally, Russian legislation provides fatlcadministrative and criminal liability for theiolation of antimonopoly legislation.

Regulation of Strategic Investmen

The Strategic Enterprise Law provides that an aifijom by a foreign investor (or a group of persoruding a foreign investor) of
direct or indirect control over a company holdimgiyption license requires prior approval of a sglered governmental commission. The
approval process usually takes between three andaiths. Qiwi Bank holds encryption licenses, whéce necessary to conduct its
operations, and by virtue of this may be deemdakta “strategic enterprise”.

Under the Strategic Enterprise Law, a person isngeleto have control over a strategic enterprisgnifong other things, such person
controls, directly or indirectly, more than 50%tbé total number of votes attributable to the wpshares comprising the share capital of suct
strategic enterprise. Where the purchaser is agfostate, foreign governmental organization, imional organization or entity controlled by
a foreign government, or international organizatibe threshold for obtaining a preliminary appidsanore than 25% of the voting power. In
addition, investors that are controlled by a fonestate or a foreign government or internationghaization are prohibited from owning more
than 50% of the voting power of a strategic enisepiFailure to obtain the required governmentalayal prior to an acquisition would render
the acquisition null and void.

The Strategic Enterprise Law is not clear on homterpret “indirect” control over a strategic emgse and in what circumstances an
acquisition of shares in the holding company afratsegic enterprise would represent an “indirectjusition of shares in the latter and,
consequently, require approval of the specializmcegnmental commission. Although a view can benakat an “indirect” acquisition takes
place if a foreign investor acquires over 50% @f shares in the holding company of a strategiaerise or otherwise obtains control over the
holding company, there is no assurance that Rustiéa authorities would not interpret it diffedgrand apply a lower threshold to the
acquisition of such holding company.

C. Organizational Structure

QIWI plc is a holding company that operates throitgisubsidiaries. Our major operating subsidiagesh of which is a wholly-owned
(direct or indirect) subsidiary, are QIWI Bank (JSQIWI CJSC, and QIWI Payments Services Provider L

See Exhibit 8.1 for a list of our subsidiaries.
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D. Property, Plants and Equipment.

We currently lease a total of over 9,000 squareerséh Moscow and other regions across Russia bhasvim Kazakhstan.

ITEM 4A. Unresolved Staff Comments

On September 23, 2014, we received a comment fett@rthe staff of the Securities and Exchange Céssion Division of Corporate
Finance (the “SEC”) with respect to the Companyrs1Aal Report on Form 20-F for the fiscal year endedember 31, 2013. We filed our
response to the SEC’s comment letter on Octob2084.

On November 6, 2014, we received a second comrattat from the SEC, in response to our letter d&teiber 6, 2014 and in
connection with our Annual Report on Form 20-Ftfe fiscal year ended December 31, 2013. We filedesponse to the SEC on
November 19, 201«

On January 21, 2015, we received a third commdierr l#om the SEC, in response to our letter toSE€ dated November 19, 2014, in
connection with our Annual report on Form 20-F thoe fiscal year ended December 31, 2013. We filed@sponse to the SEC on February 4
2015.

The SEC has raised certain questions concerningeportable operating segments.

ITEM 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospect

You should read the following operating and finahcéview together with our consolidated finanai@tements and related notes
included elsewhere in this annual report. Certtements in this section are “forward-looking eta¢nts” and are subject to risks and
uncertainties, which may cause actual resultsfterdinaterially from those expressed or impliedsogh forwardooking statements. Please
“Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statemeatsd “Risk Factors” for more information.

A. Operating Results
Overview

We are a leading provider of next generation payreervices in Russia and the CIS. We have an iatedmproprietary network that
enables payment services across physical, onliderenbile channels. We operate in and target madaedscustomer segments that are largely
cash-based and lack convenient alternatives fasuroers to pay for goods and services in physicéih® and mobile environments.

We have built a physical network of over 181,006sks and terminals using a proprietary agent madteder this model, our kiosks and
terminals are built with our proprietary specifioats and technology by third party manufactureid #aen purchased and managed by
approximately 7,000 agents responsible for placdpgrating and servicing the kiosks in high-traftionvenient retail locations. We also
distribute our payment services online throughwnriunal Visa Qiwi Wallet product, which enables somers to access and make payments
through their computers or mobile devices. The paysprocessed through our network are typically genall with a limit of RUB
15,000 per transaction, and since they are prignmded with cash, consumers do not have to goutiir a lengthy registration process to
execute most transactions.

Our primary source of revenue is fees we receiv@focessing payments made by consumers to mes;hvamth we refer to as payment
processing fees, typically based on a percentagfeeddize of the transactions that we process,wii refer to as payment volume. We reft
payment processing fees that are paid to us bylmagats for collecting payments on their behalf ascment fees and to payment processing
fees that are paid by our consumers and transntdtad by our agents or paid by our consumers tiifreecus as consumer fees. We typically
pass on a portion of the merchants fees to ourtagen

In September 2010, we acquired Qiwi Bank, whichvigtes the issuing, acquiring and deposit settlerfierttions of our group. In
addition, at the end of the second quarter of 202 board of directors approved a plan to dispdseertain non-core subsidiaries and
associates in order to focus on our core paymestesys business, which occurred by the end of ihe qluarter. The assets disposed of includ
primarily non-CIS international early-stage bussess a business that manufactured certain paotsrdfiosks, and our lottery business. The
results of operations of these entities are presess discontinued operations in our statemertsrmprehensive income.
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Segments

Up until December 31, 2013 we presented QIWI Dhsition (QD), VISA QIWI Wallet (VQW) and “Corporatnd Other” as our
segments. The development of the business hasag@sunithe growing interconnectedness and intarogidetween QIWI Wallet and QIWI
Distribution segments. As a result since 2014 theu® does not separate QD, VQW and “Corporate dmer'osegments in the presentation of
operating results to its Chief Operating Decisioakigr. From January 1, 2014, the review and anallygisrformed by the management of the

Group based on segment net revenue, segment Ipefdite tax and segment net income for the wholei@to develop the understanding of
Group’s business.

The respective comparative information for 2013 2842 was presented accordingly to conform to theeat year segment presentati

Key Measures of Financial and Operational Performane

Our management monitors our financial and operatiparformance on the basis of the following measur

Financial Measures

The following table presents our key financial maas for the year ended December 31, 2012, 2012@04l

Year ended December 31

2012 2013* 2014

(in RUB millions)
Adjusted net revenu® 4,16¢ 6,16¢ 8,83¢
Adjusted EBITDA® 1,851 2,97¢ 4,81¢
Adjusted net profi) 1,30¢ 2,17: 3,49¢

The amounts shown here do not correspond toitlaméial statements for the year ended Decembe2®I13 and reflect immaterial
reclassifications made to conform to the presesa

(1) See “Selected Consolidated Financial and Qitaéa — Non-IFRS Financial Measures” for how we dlefand calculate adjusted net
revenue, adjusted EBITDA, and adjusted net prafih@ntFRS financial measures and reconciliations oféhagsasures to revenue, in
case of adjusted net revenue, and net profit,arctfse of adjusted EBITDA and adjusted net pt

Adjusted net revenue

Adjusted net revenue is calculated by subtractosy of revenue from revenue and adding back congpiensto employees and related
taxes. Adjusted net revenue is a key measureshysethnagement to observe our operational profitalsince it reflects our portion of the
revenue net of fees that we pass through, primaribur agents. In addition, under IFRS, consurees fare recorded as net revenue whereas
merchant fees are recorded as gross revenue. dreeriaf order to analyze our two sources of payrpemtessing fees on a comparative basis.
management reviews adjusted net revenue, in addiigross revenue. We add back compensation ttogegs and related taxes because,
although they are an essential part of our distidbunetwork, these expenses are not directly tinkepayment volume.

Adjusted EBITDA Adjusted EBITDA is defined as net profit befonedme tax expense, interest expense, interest memuh
depreciation and amortization, as further adjuttedain (loss) from discontinued operations, shddness of associates, impairment of
investment in associates, foreign exchange gasgs)lmet, change in fair value of derivative finahassets, other expenses, other income, ga
(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries, corporate calttsated to discontinued operations, gain fromgai purchase, income from depositary,
offering expenses, share-based payment expensegoaddill impairment. We present adjusted EBITDAaasupplemental performance
measure because we believe that it facilitatessiove in comparing our financial performance withev payment service providers.

Adjusted net profit Adjusted net profit is defined as net profit exdihg gain or loss on discontinued operations @fiétx), corporate
costs allocated to discontinued operations, anaiitia of fair value adjustments, gain on bargaircpase, gain (loss) on disposal of
subsidiaries, share-based payment expenses, gffexpenses, goodwill impairment, income from dejpogj foreign exchange loss (gain) on
June 2014 offering proceeds and the effects ofitaxan those excluded items. Adjusted net prsfa key measure used by management to
observe the profitability of the continuing opeoats of the company.
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For a reconciliation of these non-IFRS financiabisres, please see “Selected Consolidated FinamdaDther Data—Non-IFRS
Financial Measures.”

Operating Measures
The following table presents our key operative measfor the year ended December 31, 2012, 2012@h4.

Year ended December 31

2012 2013 2014

(in RUB millions, unless otherwise indicate
Payment volum 475,42( 560,52! 644,66.
Active kiosks and terminals (unit( 169,10: 168,23t 181,14
Active Visa Qiwi Wallet accounts (at period endniillions) (2 11.4 15.¢ 17.2
Average net revenue yie®) 0.88% 1.1(% 1.37%

(1) We measure the numbers of our kiosks and tedsiion a daily basis, with only those kiosks amthieals being taken into calculation
through which at least one payment has been predekging the day, which we refer to as active ksaand terminals. The period end
numbers of our kiosks and terminals are calculatedn average of the amount of active kiosks amndirials for the last 30 days of the
respective reporting perio

(2) Number of active Visa Qiwi Wallet accounts is definas the number of wallets through which at leastpayment has been made or
have been loaded or reloaded in the 12 months giregéhe end of the relevant reporting peri

(3) Average net revenue yield is defined as adjustédevenue divided by payment volun

Number of active kiosks and terminal#&/e measure the numbers of our kiosks and tersyorak daily basis, with only those kiosks and
terminals being taken into calculation through vihét least one payment has been processed dudrdash which we refer to as active kiosks
and terminals. The period end numbers of our kieslksterminals are calculated as an average @frttmaint of active kiosks and terminals for
the last 30 days of the respective reporting peffwdm December 31, 2012 to December 31, 2014,ave grown our number of kiosks from
127,000 to 142,000 and decreased the number oinlsrirom 49,000 to 38,000. Our kiosks and terfsian be found next to convenience
stores, in train stations, retail stores and atrfminals in all major urban cities as well aswsjnamall and rural towns. While we project
modest growth in our kiosk and terminal network, lvedieve that our payment volume growth throughlaasks and terminals will be
primarily driven by increased user adoption, thdiioh of new payment services, the implementagbhigher yielding value added services,
and higher average payment amounts.

Number of active Visa Qiwi Wallet accountsumber of active wallets represents the numbevadlets through which at least one
payment has been made or which has been loadetbaded in the 12 months preceding the end ofelewant reporting period. Number of
active wallets is a measure of our success in paive the market and expanding our virtual disttitn channels. Our strategy is primarily
focused on the growth of Visa Qiwi Wallet penetsatiand we believe we are able to leverage ouejactive base of over 70 million
consumers who use our kiosks and terminals at tg&st a month and our brand recognition and presensocial media platforms to drive
adoption and use of the Visa Qiwi Wallet.

Payment volumeTotal volume provides a measure of the overa# sind growth of our business, and increasing aymgnt volumes is
essential to growing our profitability. Paymentwoles have consistently increased for the periodemureview in this annual report. Payment
volumes have grown at a CAGR of 16% from 2012 tgto014; with payment volumes of RUB 645 billiom the year ended 2014. The
following factors may have a significant impacttbe growth of payment volume:

. Macroeconomic factor

¢ Russian econorr. We carry out our operations primarily in Russitacroeconomic conditions in Russia significantly
impact the volume of payments made by our consurdening periods of economic growth, overall consum
spending tends to increase along with rises intlveahd during economic downturns, consumer spgneinds to
correspondingly decline. In particular, we haveerignced a decline in payment volumes in our firerservices
market segment in 2015, following the depreciatbthe ruble, which has affected overall bank legdactivity. Thes
fluctuations can have a significant impact on tbhkime of payments we process; ¢

. Factors concerning methods of paym
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Use of cash as a means of paymethanges in the aggregate use of cash as a mipagnoent is an important
variable affecting our revenues. Cash paymentsharerincipal form of payment in Russia, and, assalt, a majority
of our payment volumes are cash-based. We expsbtpayments to continue to be the principal me&payment in
Russia and to sustain demand for use of our kiaskserminals in the near future. As cash paymarfssia grow it
absolute terms, we expect our payment volumesrregpondingly increase. If the use of cash as anmefpayment
declines in Russia, it would negatively impact fimancial results

Increase in the volume of online transactions draluse of alternative payment meth. The volume of online
transactions has grown considerably and contimugsaw. Similarly, we expect the use of alternapagment
methods in Russia, such as smartphones to grovidewably as prices per smartphone decline. We \ozlieat growth
in online transactions and alternative payment odgiwill be an important driver in increasing thember of potential
merchants for which we can offer payment servicekia increasing the potential number our users ewfeect
payment volumes from online transactions and aitera payment methods to increase significantihencoming
years.

. Factors concerning our busine

Consumer adoptionWe have actively sought new merchants to offeisamers more payment choices when usini
products. We believe that merchant growth will lémdhore consumers using our payment systems megedntly. In
addition, we actively encourage consumers to udépteudistribution channels, in particular, forass of our kiosks
and terminals network to create a Visa Qiwi Wadletount. We believe that the synergies offered éetwour physice
and virtual distribution networks will help enharm@nsumer adoption of our services in the fut

Implementation of value added servi. We continued to develop value added servicesyéging our extensive
distribution network, strategic relationships wkigy merchants and technological platform. We belignat value
added services will result in more consumers usingpayment system

Higher average payment amouu. In addition to adding more merchants, we havesdddgher value products
available for purchase through our network, suchidisie tickets. With more choice and high valueducts, we
believe that consumers will increase their paynaembunt per transactio

Average net revenue yieldVe calculate total average net revenue yieldibigithg adjusted net revenue by payment volume.rAge ne
revenue yield provides a measure of our abilitydaerate net revenue per unit of volume we prodessage net revenue yield was 0.88%,
1.10% and 1.37% in 2012, 2013, and 2014, respdygtive2014, average net revenue yield increasedips in comparison to 2013 in part
due to an increase in payment volumes associatidwgher revenue generating transactions suchcasnenerce and decreased top-up costs.
The following factors have influenced average e&tnue yield:

Sources of Revenue

Between 2012 and 2014, we have experiencedlaeén merchant fees from our larger retail mardis, in particular
the Big Three MNOs

We have experienced a changing business miarttswhigher yielding transactions which are pritgagicommerce
and various types of financial transactions. Loyielding telecom transactions whereas lower yigjdiansaction ha
declined as a percentage of total payment vol

Significant proportion of the merchants thatseeve are typically retailers with limited bargam power. As a result,
we are able to charge these merchants higher payrmessing fees. We expect that, as our merdizsa continues
to grow and diversify, these merchants will havarger effect on payment volume and, consequeotiyaverage net
revenue yield

Our primary source of revenue is payment procedeieg. In addition, we derive revenue from cashsaitlement services, interest
revenue, gain from currency swaps, rent of spacarfd sale of kiosks, advertising, interest revenoim agent’s overdrafts, and other revenue
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Payment processing feeBayment processing fees constitute the subgtamijarity of our revenue and comprise fees charfged
processing payments typically based on a percemifhe total volume of each payment. A majorityoof payment processing fees are paid t
us by merchants for collecting payments on thealfewhich we refer to as merchant fees, and ¢es paid by consumers and transmitted to
us by agents, which we refer to as consumer feestyyically pass on a portion of the merchants feasir agents. In certain situations, we
may not receive any merchant fees, for examplerevaepecific merchant is added to our base aketiigest of an agent who believes that
inclusion of such merchant would attract consunressparticular region or neighborhood. We gengnadtognize payment processing fees
gross at the point when merchants accept paymemsthe consumer. We recognize revenue from consteae charged through our kiosks
and terminals net of transaction costs, as wevecich fees through our agents, and we do notatghe ultimate consumer fees set by our
agents.

Other sources of revenuén addition to payment processing fees, we géaesvenue from various other sources includind easl
settlement services (representing revenue fronerdift types of support and services that we praaideir agents), advertising revenue
(representing revenue from displaying advertisingor kiosks, through short message service aridusamessengers), interest revenue on
agent’s overdrafts (representing revenue from @steearned on amounts of credit that we providmitaagents for them to be able to operate
within our network), interest revenue and gain fraumrency swaps (representing revenue from inteasted on cash deposits with financial
institutions, and short- and long-term investmgreiformed as a part of our treasury operationsoamdét loans provided by Qiwi Bank),
revenue from sale of kiosks to our agents, revérume rent of space for kiosks (representing reveinomm rent obtained for subleasing retail
space for kiosks to our agents) and other revempegsenting revenue primarily generated from syerations as promotional campaign fees
generated from software licensing for our procegsiystem in countries where we operate throughraochisees).

Operating Expenses
Costs of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and atization)

Transaction costsWhen payments are made through our network, wér imansaction costs to our agents, which repteeeramount of
fees we pass through to agents for use of theakkiand terminals. Additionally, we incur transaetcosts when Visa Qiwi Wallet consumers
reload their wallets.

Compensation to employees and related taxss/roll and related taxes represents salariebanefits paid to employees, primarily IT
and operating services employees, and related,teskese such payroll and related taxes are assdcwith payment processing and other
revenue-generating activities.

Ancillary expensesWe incur other expenses in addition to transaatmsts and payroll and related taxes, includinggtsing
commission (primarily representing commission wg maSMS operators and our agents for displayiegattivertising), cost of rent of space
kiosks (representing the rental payments we maket&d shop owners to allow agents to install kfoen their premises under lease
arrangements), and other expenses (including eatec expenses (payment to call center providethfonumber of the calls serviced) and cos
of terminals sold (cost which the Company incutietle able to sale terminals)), which we refemtthis annual report as ancillary expenses.

Selling, general and administrative expens

Selling, general and administrative expenses ctngignarily of payroll and related taxes for oen®r management, finance, legal and
other administrative staff, advertising and rela&genses, rent of premises and related utilitepgps, office maintenance expenses,
telecommunication and internet expenses, bad d@einse, traveling and representation expensesingffexpenses, taxes other than income
taxes and professional fees.

Depreciation and amortizatiol

Depreciation is calculated on property and equigmera straight-line basis from the time the asastsavailable for use, over their
estimated useful lives. Intangible assets are apeokbn a straight-line basis over their usefulneenic lives, unless the useful life is indefinite.
We do not amortize intangible assets with indefiniseful lives, but we test these assets for impait annually, either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level.
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Other Income and Expense Items
Impairment of investment in associati

Impairment of investment in associates is recoghizbere we determine that the investment made emsaaciate is not fully recoverak
For the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013%ecognized an impairment of investment in associat€WI| BRASIL TECNOLOGIA
DE CAPTURA E PROCESSAMENTO DE TRANSACOES LTDA anerigionline Ltd. correspondingly due to a significeaterioration in
its operating performance.

Other income

Other income in 2012 primarily included gain oreirst on loans issued to agents at a higher-thaketnaterest rate and income from
penalties charged to agents for violation of oympant system terms and conditions, 2013 and 20i4apity included income from our ADS
depositary.

Other expenses

In 2012 the main item of other expenses was theesdt&ributable to non-controlling interest accaghtor as liability. By 2013 all the
subsidiaries having such non-controlling interest heen disposed of and the major item of otheeesgs was tax penalties. In 2014 the mair
items of other expenses were charitable donations.

Foreign exchange gain

Foreign exchange gain for the year ended Decenthe&2(®4 was RUB 3,359 million, an increase of RUBS8 million, compared to the
same period in 2013. This increase was primarilysalt of a translation gain recorded on US ddliads received from June 2014 public
offering in the amount of RUB 1,947 million and gain QIWI Bank transactions that is a result ofrgfeof USD and Euro rates in 2014.

Foreign exchange loss

Foreign exchange loss for the year ended Decenih&@(34 were RUB 1,428 million, an increase of RUB57 million, compared to tt
same period in 2013. This increase was primarily uoss on QIWI Bank transactions that is a tesfuthange of USD and Euro rates in
2014.

Share of loss of associatt

We account for our interest in associates undeedfuity method. An associate is generally an entityer which we have significant
influence. We carry our investment in associateoat less any impairment and recognize any changas share of the net assets of the
associate through profit or loss, except for changequity that do not result from operations.

Interest income

Interest income represents primarily interest om-banking loans issued to related parties.

Interest expensi

Interest expense primarily represents interestresgpaccrued by our international subsidiaries andaeceived from their non-
controlling shareholders. In 2013 and 2014, theu@ralso recognized interest expenses on bank geeasan

Income tax expens

Income tax expense represents current and deficethe taxes with respect to our earning in coastii which we operate. Deferred
tax also includes taxes on earnings of our forsigosidiaries that have not been remitted to ukdexktent applicable and will be taxed in
Cyprus once remitted.
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Critical accounting policies and significant estimées

The preparation of consolidated financial statem@ntonformity with IFRS requires management t&en@dgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts eftsssd liabilities, disclosures of contingent &saed liabilities at the reporting dates and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses dugngplorting periods. The most significant estimagéete to the recognition of revenue,
functional currency, determination of the fair vedwf assets and liabilities acquired in businesshinations, impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives, deferrar assets, impairment of loans and receivablesshak based payments. We have based our
estimates on historical experience and on varitlisrassumptions that we believe to be reasonailuleruhe circumstances, the results of
which form the basis for making judgments aboutdeying values of assets and liabilities thatresereadily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates umliiferent assumptions or conditions.

An accounting policy is considered to be critidat requires an accounting estimate to be madedas assumptions about matters that
are highly uncertain at the time the estimate idenand if different estimates that reasonablydbalve been used, or changes in the
accounting estimates that are reasonably likebctaur periodically, could materially impact the solidated financial statements. We believe
that the following critical accounting policies ahee most sensitive and require more significatimeges and assumptions used in the
preparation of our consolidated financial statemeYibu should read the following descriptions dfical accounting policies, judgments and
estimates in conjunction with our consolidated fficial statements and other disclosures includedisnannual report.

Revenue recognitiol

We exercise significant judgment in reaching a aesion about our accounting policy for gross vensesreporting of payment
processing fees and related transaction costs.

A merchant fee, when it is charged, is recordedgd related costs, because we (i) are the primialigor as we undertake to transfer
customer payment to the merchant using our payprecessing system; (ii) we negotiate and ultimaselythe commission rate receivable
from a merchant; and (iii) we bear credit risk ioghof the cases, unless the payment is made frd@pasit made with our group.

A consumer fee, when it is charged on payments rhgd®nsumers through kiosks and terminals, isntedanet of any fees payable tc
retained by agents. This is because, although séharprimary obligor, we do not have any discretiger the ultimate commission set by the
agent as a kiosk or terminal owner to the customerdo not have readily available information ahbibetgross commission, and we are only
exposed to the net amount of commission payahle toy the agent.

A consumer fee collected through mobile operatocsather payment methods is reported gross ofelméinsaction costs. Such
payments are made by consumers through our wedrsite application using a unique user login andywasd, and are called electronic
payments. In contrast with the consumer fee cabbthrough kiosks and terminals, we, being a pynoedtigor in electronic payment
transactions, also set the consumer fee, althorggliteisk for these transactions is limited. Thars,have concluded that our ability to control
the consumer fee for electronic payments is a kiégrdntiator from the customer fees on paymentkected through our kiosks and terminals.

We concluded that we need to report SMS advertigugnues gross of related SMS expenses. The @niclis based on the fact that
act a principal in the transaction, because weiktiaately responsible for the delivery of servibaye discretion over a choice of SMS deli
channel, determine the price and bear credit risk.

Starting from August 2012, we charge a fee for rgargaspecial guarantee deposit accounts made bytsatgecover consumer payments
they accept. Related revenues in the amounts of R0#80, RUB 462,332, and RUB 756,558 for the yeaded December 31, 2012, 2013,
and 2014 are reported gross of transaction coglg@she same agents for collection of consumgnpnts, because these revenues relate to
separate service having distinct value to agerdspanvided at their discretion.

Functional currency

Each entity in the Group determines its own fun@iccurrency, depending on the economic environrtenterates in, and items
included in the financial statements of each eritymeasured using that functional currency.
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Fair values of assets and liabilities acquired im&iness combinations

We recognize separately, at the acquisition daeidentifiable assets, liabilities and contingétiilities acquired or assumed in the
business combination at their fair values, whiclolaes estimates. Such estimates are based orntiealt@chniques, which require
considerable judgment in forecasting future cagWv$land developing other assumptions. When the araati fair values are significant, we
hire third party appraisers to assist in deterngrifre related fair values.

Impairment of goodwill and indefinit-lived intangible assets

In order to determine whether the goodwill and firdie-lived intangible assets are impaired, it is neagstsaestimate the value in use
the cash-generating units to which the goodwill Bmtkfinite-lived intangible assets are allocatestimating the value in use requires us to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flowms the cash-generating unit, or CGU, and to chaosuitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows h@mce such estimates are subject to uncertainty.

Deferred tax asset

The utilization of deferred tax assets will dependvhether it is possible to generate sufficierabde income against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilizedridus factors are used to assess the probakiltheduture utilization of deferred tax assets,
including past operating results, operational planxpiration of tax losses carried forward, andpkenning strategies.

The allowance relates to deferred tax assets whérk not recorded because we do not expect taeeadirtain of our tax loss carry
forwards in the foreseeable future due to the histblosses.

Impairment of loans and receivable

Our management assesses an impairment of loamreesigables to account for estimated losses reguitom the inability of customers
to make required payments. When evaluating thewstgof an impairment of loans and receivables nsamagement bases its estimates o
aging of accounts receivable balances and loansiatatical write-off experience, customer creddritiness and changes in customer
payment terms. If the financial condition of customwere to deteriorate, actual write-offs mightimher than expected.

As of December 31, 2014, the provision for impaintna loans and receivables was recorded amoutdiRlJB 703 million, RUB
612 million as of December 31, 2013 and RUB 388ionilas of December 31, 2012.

Share-based payments

For the purposes of determining our share-basegensation expense, we estimated the fair valubaresoptions that are expected to
vest using the Black-Scholes-Merton (BSM) optioitipg model and recognize the share-based paym@ense ratably over the requisite
service period applicable to each option vestingthe. We used the following assumptions in ouioagtricing model when valuing share-
based awards:

Grant-date

Expectec Risk free Expected life fair value of

Exercise price  Dividend yield  volatility interest rate of options Share price the options,

Granted on (U.S. $) (%) (%) (%) (years) (U.S. $) (U.S. $)

December 21, 2012 13.645. — 28-30 0.7%-1.0¢ 5.C-6.5 15.8¢ 5.345.7¢
November 15, 201 41.238( 2.8¢ 3C-32  0.340.65 2.C-3.C 43.3: 7.0¢-8.32
November 16, 201 41.399( 2.8t 3C-32  0.340.65 2.C-3.C 43.3: 7.02-8.27
December 4, 201 46.57: 2.8¢ 26-32  0.3(-0.61 2.C-3.C 45.3; 5.8¢-7.57
February 6, 201 36.091 2.8t 28-31 0.3z0.6t 2.C-3.C 38.6¢ 6.1(-7.5€
February 14, 201 37.42% 2.8 28-32  0.31-0.6¢ 2.C-3.C 39.9¢ 6.2€-7.8¢€
May 22, 201< 34.0¢ 2.8¢ 28-29  2.943.2¢ 2.C-3.C 44.8¢ 12.2¢-13.2¢
May 23, 201< 35.4¢ 2.8 28-29  2.94-3.2¢ 2.C-3.C 43.8°® 10.5%-11.7(C
May 28, 201< 37.8¢ 2.8¢ 28-29  2.94-3.2: 2.C-3.C 43.6¢ 9.01-10.2¢

68



Table of Contents

The expected life of the option represents theoplediuring which our option awards are expectecetoutstanding. The expected life of
each option tranche was based on the simplifiethotkedutlined in Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108hare-Based Compensation, because,
prior to our initial public offering, we were a pétely held company and our share-based compengata is relatively new. Accordingly, we
do not have sufficient experience or history tabke to determine the expected life over whichaption awards will be held before exercise.
This method is also in line with the requiremerftd=&RS 2 Share-Based Payment.

With respect to price volatility, because, priomotar initial public offering, we operated as a pti¥ company with no active market for
shares or option awards, and currently we stilhdbhave sufficient history of our share price parfance, it is not possible to use actual price
volatility data. Therefore, we estimated the vdittof our shares based on the historical voligtitif peer group companies over a period whicl
approximates our expected life of option awardsn@yan expected volatility based on the averagmtiésl volatility of other entities may
result in variability when compared to actual higtal volatility once we have sufficient historiadta about the market price for our shares.

We based the risk-free interest rate that we useiiroption-pricing model on the implied yield aemtly available on the US treasury
bonds, adjusted for a country risk premium, witlemaining term approximating the expected lifehaf bption award being valued.

At the time of the grant date of the options on @&waber 21, 2012, we expected that we would not paip dividends after the closing of
the initial public offering. In light of that exptation, we used an expected dividend yield of zemur option pricing model for option awards
granted in the year ended December 31, 2012. I 2pt3, our board of directors subsequently rem®red this determination, and we
currently expect that we will pay dividends frormé to time in the future. Any determination regagdihe amount of future dividends will
depend on a range of factors, including the avéitialof distributable profits, our liquidity andrfancial position, our strategic plans and gra
initiatives, restrictions imposed by our financimgangements, tax considerations, planned acaquisitand other relevant factors.

We determined the amount of share-based compensatjense based on awards that we ultimately expeetst, taking into account
estimated forfeitures. IFRS requires forfeiturebdcestimated at the time of grant and revisenkdessary, in subsequent periods if actual
forfeitures differ from those estimates. To propettribute compensation expense, we are requiredttimate pre-vesting forfeitures at the
time of grant and revise those estimates in sules#qeriods if actual forfeitures differ from thosgtimates. We have no past history of
forfeitures, but the retention rate amongst our émployees and management was historically higbaréfhre, our forfeiture rate is expected tc
be insignificant. As a result, we have applied stingated forfeiture rate of zero in 2012 and 2048 actual year-to-date rate of forfeitures in
2014. If the actual forfeiture rate is materiallfferent from the estimate, share-based compensatipense could be different than what has
been recorded.

Because, prior to our initial public offering, tledrad been no public market for our shares, wittaksistance of an independent value
firm, we determined the fair value of our sharegtanbasis of valuations of our company arriveddyaémploying the “income approach” and
the “market approach’aluation methodologies described further belowc&iMay 2013, QIWI plc is a public company andftievalue of its
shares is defined by reference to closing markee mf its traded shares.

Under the income approach, we relied on the diseabicash flows (DCF) method. The DCF method invelapplying appropriate
discount rates to estimated cash flows that aredbas forecasts of revenue and costs. Key assunspdissociated with the income approach
include projected revenue, profit and cash flowscivineflect managemeistbest estimates of our future operations at the;ta terminal valu
which attributes value to cash flows for the ydagond the projection period; and a discount ratech reflects then expected market rates of
interest rates and risks associated with the bssine

Under the market approach, we relied on the guidgublicly traded company method as well as tier pransaction method, if such
transactions were available. The guideline publidged company method provides an indication ofvalue by comparing the enterprise
value to earnings and revenue multiples of singlarlicly traded companies in our industry. In ajppdythe prior transaction method, we wo
consider the most recent transaction in our compashares.

To estimate the fair value of our shares for theddeber 2012 grants, the income approach, usin@@temethod, and the market
approach were employed. In the DCF method, a postliscount rate of 12.5% was used. A discounlafck of
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marketability of 8.21% was also applied. DCF wasduas the primary method and the guideline pubtieged company approach was used ti
determine if the DCF valuation was in the rangesasonable values for December 2012 option awards.

The prior transaction method was not used for teedinber 2012 valuation study because it was deteththat duration of time and
respective changes in market conditions since th&t necent arm’s length transaction with our shirasclosed in December 2010 rendered
this transaction a less reliable indicator of thkue of our company. However, the prior transacti@thod provided an indirect evidence of the
fair value of our shares. In particular, the puplitisclosed value of the transaction between bareholders in December 2010 was
U.S.$24.1 million for 3.74% of our shares, repréisgnapproximately U.S.$12.40 per share. The gravfitne estimated share price from
U.S.$12.40 per share in December 2010 to U.S.$Xdnh83ecember 2012, as implied by the DCF methodnaadket approach, or 27%, was
linked to a number of factors, including improvipgrformance in 2011 and 2012 and improved liquidiyspects due to the planned initial
public offering.

The DCF method used to estimate the fair valueuokbares is highly sensitive to growth rates, whih principal drivers being the level
of internet traffic, our market share, and the sizthe online advertising market generally. Adutitlly, the guideline public company method
is highly sensitive to the choice of guideline camigs and changes in market multiples of thosealjniel companies, as well as our company’
relative performance in comparison with the sekbgteers.

On December 21, 2012, our board of directors apmatakie grant of option awards to purchase an agtgey 2,216,778 shares at an
exercise price of U.S.$13.6452 per share. We razedrRUB 66 million in share-based payment expeirs2612. The amount of expense
arising from equity-settled share-based paymens#etions for the year ended December 31, 2014@2snillion (December 31, 2013: 231
million).

Results of Operations

Set out below are our consolidated statements efabipns data for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2014

Years ended December 3!

2012 2013* 2014
(in RUB millions)
Revenue 8,911 11,66¢ 14,71¢
Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and éizadfon) (5,459 (6,396 (7,279
Selling, general and administrative exper (2,839 (2,67¢ (3,089
Depreciation and amortizatic (129 (113 (359
Impairment of intangible assets and good (4) (5) —
Profit from operations 1,48¢ 2,47: 4,01(
Gain (loss) from disposal of subsidiar (@D} — —
Other income 17 91 42
Other expense (29 (20 (30)
Foreign exchange ga 81 79 3,35¢
Foreign exchange lot (203 (7)) (1,429
Share of loss of associal (13 (79 (27
Impairment of investment in associa — (22 (25)
Interest incomt 26 22 2
Interest expens (9 (29 (42)
Profit before tax from continuing operations 1,45¢€ 2,44k 5,86z
Income tax expens (40¢) (610 (89%)
Net profit from continuing operations 1,04¢ 1,83t 4,96¢
Gain (loss) from discontinued operatic (240 — —
Net profit 80¢ 1,83t 4,96¢
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the pare 91( 1,87: 5,02¢
Non-controlling interest: (102 (38) (56)

* The amounts shown here do not correspond toittaadial statements for the year ended Decembe2®13 and reflect immaterial
reclassifications made to prior period to confoottirrent period presentatic

70



Table of Contents

Set out below are our consolidated statements efatipns data for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2014 as a percentag
total revenue:

Years ended December 3.
2012 2013* 2014
(as a percentage of reveni

Revenue 100.( 100.C  100.(
Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and éizaifon) (61.2) (54.9 (49.9
Selling, general and administrative exper (20.7)  (23.00 (20.9
Depreciation and amortizatic (1.9 (1.0 (2.9

Impairment of intangible asse — — —
Goodwill impairment — _

Profit from operations 16.7 21.2 27.2
Gain (loss) from disposal of subsidiar (0.2 — —
Other income 0.2 0.8 0.3
Other expense 0.3 (0.2 (0.2
Foreign exchange ga 0.€ 0.7 22.¢
Foreign exchange lo: (1.2 (0.6) (9.7
Share of loss of an associa (0.2) (0.7) (0.2
Impairment of investment in associa — (0.2 (0.2
Interest incom 0.3 0.2 0.C
Interest expens (0.7 (0.2 (0.3
Profit before tax from continuing operations 16.2 21.C 39.¢
Income tax expens (4.5 (5.2 (6.2)
Net profit from continuing operations 11.¢ 15.7 33.¢
Gain (Loss) from discontinued operatic (2.7) — —
Net profit 9.1 15.7 33.¢

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the pare 10.z 16.1 34.1

Non-controlling interest: (1.2 0.3 (0.9

* The amounts shown here do not correspond toittaadial statements for the year ended Decembe2®13 and reflect immaterial
reclassifications made to prior period to confoottirrent period presentatic
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Year ended December 31, 2014 compared to year endedcember 31, 2013
Revenut

Set out below are our revenues, by source, foyd¢lae December 31, 2013 and 2014, and as a pereeoitagtal revenue:

Year ended December 31

2013 2013 2014 2014

(in RUB (% of (in RUB (% of
millions) revenue millions) revenue
Revenue 11,66¢ 100.( 14,71¢ 100.C
Payment processing fe 9,93¢ 85.2 12,25( 83.2
Cash and settlement servic 48¢ 4.2 76¢ 5.2
Revenue from advertisir 507 4.3 28¢ 2.C
Ancillary revenue 73¢ 6.3 1,41% 9.€

Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2014 wasRL¥19 million, an increase of 26%, or RUB 3,08ion, compared to the
same period in 2013. This increase was primarily tduan increase in payment processing fees. Paymaressing fees for the year ended
December 31, 2014 were RUB 12,250 million, an iasesof 23%, or RUB 2,316 million, compared to thes period in 2013. The increase in
payment processing fees resulted primarily fronmarease in payment volumes by 15%, or RUB 84dillifrom RUB 561 billion in 2013 to
RUB 645 billion in 2014, and a shift in businesxnawards higher yielding payment categories sick-@ommerce.

The number of active Visa Qiwi Wallet consumerg@ased to 17.2 million as of December 31, 2014 ft&d million as of
December 31, 2013. The number of our kiosks amditeds increased, with 181,148 active kiosks anahiteals as of December 31, 2014
compared to 168,236 as of December 31, 2013.

Revenue from cash and settlement services forahegnded December 31, 2014 was RUB 768 millioimenease of 58%, or RUB
282 million, compared to the same period in 2018s Growth was primarily driven by an increaseadriffs charged to agents, as well as
payment volume growth.

Advertising revenue for the year ended DecembePB14 was RUB 289 million, a decrease of 43%, oBRA18 million, compared to
the same period of 2013. This decrease primarilylted from the general economic slowdown in Russ014, particularly in the banking
sector where most of our advertisers operate.

Ancillary revenue for the year ended December 8142vas RUB 1,413 million, an increase of 91%, 08673 million, compared to
the same period in 2013, primarily due to an ingeda interest revenue, gain from currency swamsease in revenue from rent of space for
kiosks that was fueled by K5 acquisition as welkascuted contracts with big retail chains, andease in revenue from sale of kiosks due to
the establishment of CMT Engineering in the sedualfiof 2014.

Operating expenses

Set out below are the primary components of ouraip®y expenses for the year ended December 3B &@d 2014, and as a percentage
of total revenue:

Year ended December 31

2013* 2013* 2014 2014

(in RUB (% of (in RUB (% of
millions) revenue millions) revenue
Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and aigadion) (6,39¢) (54.¢) (7,277) (49.9
Transaction cosl (5,065 (43.9 (5,079 (34.5
Compensation to employees and related t (89¢) (7.7) (1,39)) (9.5
Ancillary expense (433) (3.7 (803) (5.5
Selling, general and administrative exper (2,67¢) (23.0 (3,082) (20.9)
Depreciation and amortizatic (113 (2.0 (359 (2.9

Impairment of Intangible Assets and Good\ 5) — — —

* The amounts shown here do not correspond toitlaa¢ial statements for the year ended Decembe2@®13 and reflect immaterial

reclassifications made to prior period to confoottirrent period presentatic
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Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and dizadion)

Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and &izadion) for the year ended December 31, 2014RMaB 7,273 million, an increase
14%, or RUB 877 million, compared to the same gknn2013. Transaction costs increased by 0.3%UB 14 million, in the year ended
December 31, 2014, compared to the same periodlif,Zrom RUB 5,065 million to RUB 5,079 millionrdnsaction costs remained relativ
constant in 2013 and 2014 primarily due to decr@asgent top-up costs starting first half 2014.

Compensation to employees and related taxes foreeended December 31, 2014 was RUB 1,391 miliarincrease of 55%, or RUB
493 million, compared to the same period in 20tBnarily due to an increase in salaries and shaset payment expenses, and to a lesser
extent, due to bonus payments.

Ancillary expenses for the year ended Decembe314 were RUB 803 million, an increase of 85%, tiBR370 million, compared to
the same period in 2013. The increase in anciapenses was mainly due to an increase of cososkksold from RUB 17 million in 2013
RUB 216 million in 2014, resulting primarily frorhé establishment of CMT Engineering whose mairvegtis the sale of kiosks and
terminals and an increase cost of rent of spa&@eks from RUB 85 million in 2013 to RUB 159 midh in 2014, resulting mainly from
acquisition of K5 Retail (further renamed to QIW&tRil) and increase of call center expenses frorB RR million in 2013 to RUB 189 miillio
in 2014, as a result of increase in number of calleived, change to provider with better qualftgervice and increase in tariffs.

Adjusted net revenue

Adjusted net revenue for the year ended Decemhe2®#4 was RUB 8,836 million, an increase of 43%R0UB 2,669 million, compare
to the same period in 2013. The increase in adjust¢ revenue was primarily due to an increasayment volume and growth of net revenue
yield. Average net revenue yield increased by 25, ipm 1.10% for the year ended December 31, 201337% for the year end:

December 31, 2014. Excluding inactivity fees, ageraet revenue yield increased by 27 bps, from%.fif the year ended December 31, Z
to 1.27% for the year ended December 31, 2014ifdrease in average net revenue yield is primaltly to an increase in transactions as a
percentage of payment volume in market segmentshigther yields such as e-commerce and a decredissnsactions as a percentage of
payment volume in market segments with lower yiesdieh as telecommunications.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses fetar ended December 31, 2014 were RUB 3,082omijléin increase of 15%, or RUB
404 million, from the same period in 2013. Thisrgase was primarily due to an increase in advegtiand related expenses by 199%, or RUE
341 million, from RUB 172 million in 2013 to RUB BImillion in 2014 due to significant marketing attiies undertaken in 2014; an increase
in professional fees from RUB 44 million in 2013R&B 174 million in 2014, resulting from an increasf professional services primarily
related to payment systems implementation, globsiness and potential investment projects and S@ptiance; an increase of office
maintenance expenses from RUB 186 million in 2@1BWB 237 million in 2014 due to increase of expensn corporate parties and
automation expenses; an increase of travellingr@paesentation expenses from RUB 68 million in 2@BRUB 102 million in 2014 due
increase of business activities and a number HRites$ that are held according to 2014 strategyingrease in other operating expenses fromn
RUB 62 million to RUB 120 million due to increasedit services related to SOX compliance and legalises related to SPO; a decrease in
bad debt expenses from RUB 267 million to RUB 15Mlion in 2014, resulting from improving of receivkes collection; a decrease in offer
expenses from RUB 155 million in 2013 to RUB 32limil in 2014.
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Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization for the year endeddbeer 31, 2014 was RUB 353 million, an increas21@P, or RUB 240 million,
compared to the same period in 2013. This increemdted primarily from the depreciation chargeighificant fixed assets that were acquirec
in the fourth quarter of 2013 and in 2014 due torelocation to our new office and increase in amation of significant acquired contract
rights that we recognized at the moment of acqarsivf QIWI Retail in December, 2013.

Other non-operating gains and losses
Impairment of investment in associates

Impairment of investment in associates for the yeated December 31, 2014 was RUB 25 million conpaydrRUB 22 miillion in the
year ended December 31, 2013, resulting from impeit on our holdings in QIWI BRASIL TECNOLOGIA DEAPTURA E
PROCESSAMENTO DE TRANSACOES LTDA, whose operatirgfprmance significantly deteriorated in 2014. linpent of investment in
associates for the year ended December 31, 20aBe@$rom an impairment on our holdings in Dendjiog, Ltd., whose operating
performance significantly deteriorated in 2013.

Other income

Other income for the year ended December 31, 2GEARIB 42 million, a decrease of 54%, or RUB 49iam| compared to the same
period in 2013. The decrease is due to lower amoliimicome from depositary recognized in 2014 y&4B 38 million compared to RUB
71 million in 2013.

Other expenses

Other expenses for the year ended December 31,2884RUB 30 million, an increase of 50%, or RUBnillion, compared to the
same period in 2013. This increase was primarily twucharitable donations that occurred only in2201

Share of loss of associates

Share of loss of associates for the year endedrblaee31, 2014 was RUB 27 million, a decrease of F82Bnillion compared to the
same period in 2013. This decrease was due to llmgses recognized in 2014 from QIWI BRASIL TECNOG&®@ DE CAPTURA E
PROCESSAMENTO DE TRANSACOES LTDA and QIWI Jordam L€o. in comparison to more significant loss imBienline Ltd., mainly
as a result of significant bad debts, recognize2Dih3.

Interest income

Interest income for the year ended December 314 22k RUB 2 million, a decrease of 91%, or RUB 2llian, compared to the same
period in 2013. This decrease was due to a decreasterest income earned from QIWI Retail in 2048 since December 2013, QIWI Retail
became a part our Group.

Interest expense

Interest expense for the year ended December 3%, ®8s RUB 42 million, an increase of 45%, or RUBillion, compared to the
same period in 2013. This increase was due to@ease in interest payments on loan and bank giemsan

Income tax

Income tax for the year ended December 31, 2014RH3 895 million, an increase of 47%, or RUB 288liom, compared to the same
period in 2013, primarily due to the increase ie-fax income. Our effective tax rate decreasedppyaximately 10 percentage points as a
result of non-taxable foreignh exchange gain resgitiom US dollar funds received form our June 2ptMlic offering (see Item 27 “Financial
Statements.”).

Nor-controlling interests

Net loss attributable to non-controlling interefststhe year ended December 31, 2014 was RUB S&milan increase of 49%, or RUB
18 million, compared to the same period in 2018narily as a result of increase in losses of QIVBA) resulting in an increase in net loss
attributed to non-controlling interests in 2014.
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Year ended December 31, 2013 compared to year endedcember 31, 2012
Revenut

Set out below are our revenues, by source, foyd¢laes ended December 31, 2012 and 2013, and asentage of total revenue:

Year ended December 31

2012 2012 2013 2013

(in RUB (% of (in RUB (% of
millions) revenue millions) revenue
Revenue 8,911 100.C 11,66¢ 100.C
Payment processing fe 7,624 85.¢€ 9,93¢ 85.2
Revenue from advertisir 454 5.1 507 4.3
Ancillary revenue 83:¢ 9.3 1,22t 10.t

Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2013 wasR\666 million, an increase of 31%, or RUB 2,T&illion, compared to the
same period in 2012. This increase was primarily tduan increase in payment processing fees. Paymaressing fees for the year ended
December 31, 2013 were RUB 9,934 million, an inseeaf 30%, or RUB 2,310 million, compared to thmegeriod in 2012. The increase in
payment processing fees resulted primarily fronmarease in payment volumes by 18%, or RUB 85dillfrom RUB 475 billion in 2012 to
RUB 561 billion in 2013, and from the reintroductiof fees charged for inactive wallets.

The number of active Visa Qiwi Wallet consumerg@ased to 15.4 million as of December 31, 2013 ftdmd million as of
December 31, 2012. The number of our kiosks anditeds remained largely unchanged, with 168,23&vad¢iosks and terminals as of
December 31, 2013 compared to 169,102 as of Deaedih@012.

Advertising revenue for the year ended DecembePB13 was RUB 507 million, an increase of 12%, biBR53 million, compared to tl
same period in 2012. This increase primarily reglftom a significant increase in volume as a tesfudin increase in the number of customer:
to whom we offered SMS advertising services in 20t3he fourth quarter of 2013, advertising revedgcreased by approximately 26%
(RUB 38 million) compared to the same period in2@timarily due to the outflow of banks that used advertising platform due to the
structural change in the retail banking segmenaddition, certain mobile carriers substantiallgreased the fees for delivering SMS to our
clients.

Ancillary revenue for the year ended December 8132vas RUB 1,225 million, an increase of 47%, 0iBR392 million, compared to
the same period in 2012, primarily due to an ingecia interest revenue as a result of a greateuaniovested in debt instruments and
increased cash deposits in interest-bearing acs@snivell as increased revenue from cash andreetiteservices, due to the introduction of
additional fees charged for deposits of our agents.

Operating expenses

Set out below are the primary components of ouraip®y expenses for the years ended December 32,&d 2013, and as a percen
of total revenue:

Year ended December 31

2012 2012 2013* 2013*

(in RUB (% of (in RUB (% of

millions) revenue millions) revenue
Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and &izadion) (5,459 (61.2) (6,396 (54.9)
Transaction cosl (4,420 (49.6 (5,065 (43.9)
Compensation to employees and related t (712) (8.0 (89¢) (7.7)
Ancillary expense (322) (3.6) (433) (3.7
Selling, general and administrative exper (1,839 (20.6) (2,67¢) (23.0
Depreciation and amortizatic (129 (1.9 (113 (1.0

Impairment of Intangible Asse 4 — 5) —
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Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and dizadion)

Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and &izadion) for the year ended December 31, 2013RaB 6,396 million, an increase
17%, or RUB 942 million, compared to the same pgknn2012. Transaction costs increased by 15% UB BA5 million, in the year ended
December 31, 2013, compared to the same periodli,Zrom RUB 4,420 million to RUB 5,065 million. &\attribute this increase in
transaction costs primarily to an increase in payrwelume.

Compensation to employees and related taxes foreeended December 31, 2013 were RUB 898 millorincrease of 26%, or RUB
186 million, compared to the same period in 20@narily due to an increase in salaries and sewergayments, and to a lesser extent, bonu
and share-based payment expenses.

Ancillary expenses for the year ended Decembe313 were RUB 433 million, an increase of 35%, biBRL11 million, compared to
the same period in 2012. An increase mainly residta a loss on a security breach in December 2@1@escribed in more detail in “Risk
Factors — Unauthorized disclosure of data, whetttvaugh cybersecurity breaches, computer virusegh@rwise, could expose us to liability,
protracted and costly litigation and damage ouutagon”.

Adjusted net revenue

Adjusted net revenue for the year ended Decemhe2@®13 was RUB 6,168 million, an increase of 48%R0B 1,999 million, compare
to the same period in 2012. The increase in adjuste revenue was primarily due to an increaseyment volume and growth of net revenue
yield. Average net revenue yield increased by 22 fipm 0.88% for the year ended December 31, 201210% for the year end:

December 31, 2013. Excluding inactivity fees, ageraet revenue yield increased by 14 bps, from% .86 the year ended December 31, Z
to 1.00% for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses ®tar ended December 31, 2013 were RUB 2,678 miléin increase of 46%, or RUB
840 million, from the same period in 2012. Thisremse was primarily due to an increase in compiemstt employees and related taxes by
30%, or RUB 313 million, from RUB 1,030 million 2012 to RUB 1,343 million in 2013, resulting frotmase-based payment expenses of
RUB 188 million in 2013, compared to RUB 58 million2012; an increase in bad debt expense from RQBmillion in 2012 to RUB
267 million in 2013, resulting from additional alances for certain of our agents; rise in advergisind related expenses from RUB 40 mil
in 2012 to RUB 172 million in 2013 due to signifitanarketing activities undertaken at the end df2@&n increase in rent of premises and
related utility expenses from RUB 136 million in120to RUB 215 million in 2013, resulting from ouoxe to a new office building; an
increase of office maintenance expenses from RuUBniillion in 2012 to RUB 186 million in 2013 due warite-off of inventory and fixed
assets connected from transfer to a new officeaanidcrease in expensed VAT from RUB 54 millior2012 to RUB 117 million resulting
primarily from increased expenses recorded at (BAfK, in relation to which VAT cannot be offset.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization for the year endeddb@er 31, 2013 was RUB 113 million, a decreask?es, or RUB 16 million,
compared to the same period in 2012. This decresséted primarily from the full depreciation ofrtan fixed assets.

Other non-operating gains and losses
Impairment of investment in associates

Impairment of investment in associates for the yeated December 31, 2013 was RUB 22 million contparenil in the year ended
December 31, 2012, resulting from impairment ontaldings in Dengionline, Ltd., whose operatingfpanance significantly deteriorated in
2013. We disposed of our interest in Dengionlirne, for a nominal consideration in 2013.

76



Table of Contents

Other income

Other income for the year ended December 31, 2GE3RWB 91 million, an increase of 441%, or RUB 7Hiom, compared to the same
period in 2012. The increase is due to income fd@positary recognized in 2013 in the amount of RABnillion.

Other expenses

Other expenses for the year ended December 31,2843RUB 20 million, a decrease of 31%, or RUBIiBiom, compared to the same
period in 2012. This decrease was primarily duthéoincurrence of expenses in 2012 in share offtosthe period attributable to non-
controlling interests in our subsidiary, Instanyfant LP. No such expenses were incurred in 20t3. decrease was partially offset by an
increase in other expenses of RUB 9 million andniarrence of tax penalties of RUB 7 million in130

Share of loss of associates

Share of loss of associates for the year endedrilegee31, 2013 was RUB 79 million, an increase oBR86 million compared to the
same period in 2012. This decrease was due tosl@s$gengionline, Ltd., mainly as a result of sfgréint bad debts.

Interest income

Interest income for the year ended December 313 8@k RUB 22 million, a decrease of 15%, or RUBIiHian, compared to the same
period in 2012. This decrease was due to a decheasierest income earned on a loan provided sociates.

Interest expense

Interest expense for the year ended December 3B,@8s RUB 29 million, an increase of 222%, or R2MBmillion, compared to the
same period in 2012. This increase was due to@rase in interest payments on loan and bank giegsan

Income tax

Income tax for the year ended December 31, 2013RiH3 610 million, an increase of 50%, or RUB 202liom, compared to the same
period in 2012, primarily due to the increase ie-fax income. Our effective tax rate remained nedht constant, decreasing by approximately
2.7 percentage points.

Gain / (loss) from discontinued operations

There was no loss from discontinued operationshieryear ended December 31, 2013, compared tesafd3UB 240 million in the san
period in 2012. The loss from discontinued operegim 2012 resulted from certain of our internatiooperations being discontinued during
that period. In addition, in 2012, we recognizeganment charges and loss on revaluation of helddte assets to fair value upon their
disposal in the amount of RUB 167 million in retatito the discontinuation of operations in the liheacertain early stage international
businesses and the Diomachin group, which manukattoarts for our kiosks. This was partially offegtthe actual disposal of discontinued
operations in 2012 resulting in gain of RUB 46 il

Non-controlling interests

Net loss attributable to non-controlling interefsisthe year ended December 31, 2013 was RUB 38&mjila decrease of 63%, or RUB
64 million, compared to the same period in 2018narily as a result of the discontinuation of certaf our international operations in the
second half of 2012, resulting in a decrease inaanirolling interests in 2013.

B. Liquidity and capital resources

Our principal sources of liquidity are cash on hadeposits received from agents and consumerseaedues generated from our
operations.
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Our principal needs for liquidity have been, andl likiely continue to be, deposits with merchantsl ather working capital items, capi
expenditures and acquisitions. We believe thatmrking capital is sufficient to meet our curreitigations.

Our balance of cash and cash equivalents as ofmlesre31, 2014 was RUB 17,080 million compared tdRI1,637 million as of
December 31, 2013 and RUB 9,943 million as of Ddmm31, 2012. Cash and cash equivalents compri$eatdbanks and cash on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity ofeth months or less.

An important part of our credit risk management pagment settlement strategy relies on depositeeaive from agents in advance for
payments made through the kiosks. When a paymemade through a kiosk, we offset these depositssigdne payments we make to the
merchant. For certain agents with whom we have imgjreliable relationships, we provide limitedditsupport in the form of overdrafts and
loans for processing payments.

Similarly, certain of our merchants (primarily tBe&g Three MNOSs) request that we make deposits thiéhn in relation to payments
processed through our kiosks. See also risk fatetor 3.D “Risk Factors — Economic instability in $&ia could have an adverse effect on our
business.” Whenever a customer makes a paymemhtrehant with whom we have made a deposit, thanpat gets offset against the
deposit held with the respective merchant.

As of December 31, 2014, deposits received fronmisgand individual customers were RUB 15,231 millicompared to RUB
12,352 million as of December 31, 2013 and RUB 8 8filion as of December 31, 2012. As of DecemierZ®14, deposits issued to our
merchants were RUB 4,331 million, compared to RUE2 million as of December 31, 2013 and RUB 1,88llion as of December 31, 20!

Capital Expenditures

Our capital expenditures primarily relate to thegusition of IT equipment for our processing systamd the acquisition and developm
of software that we use in operations. Capital egfiares were RUB 407 million for the year ended®uaber 31, 2014, that include:
(i) approximately RUB 135 million of which relatés the acquisition of the processing servers amgiherring equipment; (ii) approximately
RUB 42 million of which related to acquisition admputer, office and other equipment, and (iii) apmately RUB 226 million of which
relates to the acquisition of computer softwaréheradvances given for it. As of December 31, 2@@&thad no material capital expenditure
commitments.

Cash Flow

The following table summarizes our cash flows fa years ended December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014:

December 31

2012 2013 2014
(in RUB millions)
Net cash flow from operating activiti 3,49¢ 4,72¢ 4,75¢%
Net cash flow used in investing activiti (1,499 (1,200 (1,609
Net cash flow from/ (used in) financing activiti (871) (1,846 17¢
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equts: 3 15 2,111
Net increase in cash and cash equival 1,13: 1,694 5,44:
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning oféhieq 8,81( 9,94: 11,637
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the p 9,94: 11,631 17,08(

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities for tearyended December 31, 2014 was RUB 4,755 mikiompared to RUB 4,725 million
for the same period in 2013. The increase in n&t faw from operating activities is a result ofiaorease in profit before tax, the cash effect
of which was partially offset by an increase ingiign exchange gains, net, and changes in workipigataprimarily an increase in accounts
payable and accruals partially offset by an inceéagrade and other receivables.
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Net cash provided by operating activities for tlealyended December 31, 2013 was RUB 4,725 miliompared to RUB 3,499 million
for the same period in 2012. The primary drivertfa increase in cash from operating activities aramcrease in profit before tax.

Cash flows from investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the yeaded December 31, 2014 was RUB 1,602 million, aeghto RUB 1,200 million for
the same period in 2013. The increase in net dashused in investing activities was primarily doe (i) net cash outflow for purchase of debt
instruments of RUB 211 million in 2014 compare®@13 due to less settlement of debt instrumen2®imt; and (ii) change in cash used for
capital expenditures by RUB 138 million due to #igant purchase of property and equipment in 2014.

Net cash used in investing activities for the yeaded December 31, 2013 was RUB 1,200 million, ayeghto RUB 1,498 million for
the same period in 2012. The increase in net daghused in investing activities was primarily doe (i) change in net proceeds from
settlement of debt instruments of RUB 609 milliar2013 compared to 2012; (ii) investments in asgesiof RUB 93 million in 2012 (no such
investments in 2013) that were netted by (iii) @age in capital expenditures by RUB 297 milliord &) payment for assignment of Payable
by Blestgroup Limited of RUB 91 million, which wasade as part of our acquisition of the remainirigrest in it.

Cash flows used in financing activities

Net cash generated from financing activities far yiear ended December 31, 2014 was RUB 179 milliompared to net cash used in
financing activities RUB 1,846 million for the samperiod in 2013. The increase in net cash genefaetedfinancing activities was primarily
due to cash inflow due to issue of share capitéthénamount of RUB 3,044 million; which was offegtthe payment of a higher amount of
dividends to our shareholders by RUB 1,060 million.

Net cash used in financing activities for the yetaded December 31, 2013 was RUB 1,846 million, ayeghto RUB 871 million for the
same period in 2012. The increase in net cashindathncing activities was primarily due to theypzent of a higher amount of dividends to
our shareholders.

Borrowings

As of December 31, 2014, our outstanding borrowtayssisted of loans to our subsidiaries from nomtwiling shareholders of RUB
42 million, and overdrafts of RUB 1 million. Intesterate on all loans lay within 10%. Borrowingdlie amount of RUB 21 million were
received in EUR, RUB 21 million were received irBUdollar. All the borrowings (except for overdgfivere long-term, repayable in August,
2016. They did not bear any special restrictionghefir use.

CJSC QIWI is also party to two short-term overdfa#ilities agreements of up to RUB 85 million arlto RUB 315 million with a 365-
day term and an interest rate of 10.3% and long-tarerdraft facility agreement of up to RUB 460lait available from one to three
months with an interest payable of one month ratheMOSPRIME plus 2.65% per annum or internad @tbank plus 2.15% per annum in
the choice of the borrower for each tranche ofafpeement. As of December 31, 2014, no amounts ewgstanding under these facilities.

C. Research and development, patents and licenses,.¢
See Item 4.B, “Business Overview — Intellectual gendy.”

D. Trend information

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in this annpalteve are not aware of any trends, uncertaintiesands, commitments or events for
the year ended December 31, 2014 that are reasdilay to have a material adverse effect on cetrrevenues, income, profitability,
liquidity or capital resources, or that would catise disclosed financial information to be not reseeily indicative of future operating results
or financial conditions.

E. Off-balance sheet arrangement

We do not have any off-balance sheet financingngeeents.
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F.  Tabular disclosure of contractual obligations

The following table sets forth our contractual ghtions as of December 31, 2014:

more

less thar than five
one to three to
Total one yeal three year: five years years
(in RUB millions)
Debt obligations (including interest there« 48 4 44 — —
Operating lease obligatiol 1,09t 233 397 38¢ 79
Total contractual obligatior 1,14z 237 441 38¢ 79

G. Safe harbor
See “Special Note Regarding - Forward Looking $tetets” on page 1 of this annual report.

ITEM 6. Directors, Senior Management and Employee
A. Directors and Senior Management.
Directors and Executive Officers

The following table sets forth information regamgliour directors and executive officers as of thie dé this annual report.

Name Age Position

Boris Kim 51 Director, Chairman of the Boa
Sergey Solonil 41 Director, Chief Executive Office
Andrei Muravyev 40 Director

Andrey Romanenk 35 Director

Alexey Savatygir 44 Independent Directc

Andrey Shemeto 40 Independent Directc

Rohinton Minoo Kalifs 53 Independent Directc

Osama Bedie 39 Independent Directc

Dmitry Pleskono: 49 Independent Directc

Marcus Rhode 53 Independent Directc

Alexey Rasskazo 48 Director

Anna Stoklitskay: 37 Head of Sales and Marketil
Alexander Karavae 38 Chief Financial Office
Biographies

Andrey Romanenko. Mr. Andrey Romanenko has sergamladirector since December 2010 and as chaiohaar board of directors
since October 2012 until June 2014. Mr. Romaneskanientrepreneur and has over 14 years of experierihe payment services and ban!
industries. He is one of the co-founders of oudpoessor, OSMP, and from July 2007 until Octobd22rved as our chief executive officer.
Since March 2011, Mr. Romanenko has been a pasfriero venture funds, AddVenture 11l and iTech GapiMr. Romanenko has served as &
member of the board of directors of Qiwi Bank sidoae 2009. Mr. Romanenko graduated from Internatimdependent University of
Environmental and Political Sciences in 2000 witltegree in financial management.

Sergey Solonin. Mr. Sergey Solonin has served aslioector since December 2010 and as our chiefugke officer since October 201
He was nominated to our board of directors by SaldiMr. Solonin is an entrepreneur and has overebds of experience in the payment
services and banking industries. He is one of thibanders of OSMP and from April 2009 until Octo812 served as an advisor to the
president on financial matters at OSMP. Mr. Solasiaurrently the chief executive officer of Qiwr@p, a position he has held since Octobe
2012. He also serves on the board of directorsiwf Bank and from March 1999 until September 20G&whe chairman of its board of
directors. Mr. Solonin is also an executive of llibih LLC as well as one of the two directors o&ith Advisors Ltd. Mr. Solonin graduated
from the Russian Financial Institution in 1996 watldegree in economics.
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Andrei Muravyev. Mr. Andrei Muravyev has servedoas director since May 2013. Mr. Muravyev is anrepteneur and is one of the co-
founders of Parus Capital Limited, an investmemgany. He was also one of the co-founders of OJ8I@iky Company Sibirskiy Cement,
one of the largest cement producers in Russiaskdlirector and a chief executive officer of Paagpital Limited, a position he has held si
September 2008. From August 2004 until August 2d@8Viuravyev was a director and a chief executiffecer of OJSC Holding Company
Sibirskiy Cement. Mr. Muravyev graduated from Keoar State Technical University in 1997 with a degireeconomics. He also graduated
with a BA from San Francisco University in 1998iwi degree in finance.

Osama Bedier. Mr. Osama Bedier has served as matali since June 2, 2014. Most recently, he fodrada led Wallet & Payments at
Google for two and a half years starting Januaty12@rior to Google, Mr. Bedier spent 8 years rogrproduct development at PayPal star
from April 2003. He has also held engineering leglip roles since the dawn of the web at orgardmatsuch as eBay, Gateway Computers
and AT&T wireless.

Rohinton Minoo Kalifa. Mr. Ron Kalifa has servedas director since June 2, 2014. He was appoiDegglity Chairman of Worldpay in
April 2013. From 2003-2013, Mr. Kalifa was CEO ofoviipay. Before becoming CEO, Mr. Kalifa held vaisaoles within RBS where he
built the Worldpay business. Mr. Kalifa has beeman-executive director of Visa Europe since Septm2011. Mr. Kalifa is also a member
of the UK Cards Association. He has been recogréaelehdustry Personality of the Year for his warkhie Payments sector. Mr. Kalifa stud
Executive Education from Harvard Business School.

Alexey Savatyugin. Mr. Alexey Savatyugin has serasaur director since June 2, 2014. He is a psofest the Russian Higher Schoc
Economics. Prior to Mr. Savatyguin’s current pasitifrom 1992-2010, he was a professor at the HoanBaculty of Saint Petersburg State
University. Since 2014, Mr Savatyugin has beeniBeas of the National Association of Professionall€ctor Agencies and President of
National Partnership of Microfinance market pap#oits. From 201-2013, Mr. Savatyugin was a Deputy Minister of Fioa of the Russian
Federation. Before his role as Deputy Ministerioafice, Mr. Savatyugin was a Director of FinanBialicy of the Russian Ministry of Finance
from 2004-2010. Mr. Savatyugin graduated from SRetersburg State University where he specialimetonomics.

Boris Kim. Mr. Boris Kim has served as our direcsorce May 2013 and as chairman of our board efctlirs since June 2014. Mr. Kim
is an entrepreneur with over 18 years of experiémtiee payment services industry. He is also #edhof the payment networks and banking
instruments committee at the Russian E-Market €lpatints National Association. He is one of the @orfders of e-port and served as its chief
executive officer from November 2004 until Septem2@07 and from September 2007 until February 2048 an advisor to the chief
executive officer of e-port. From October 1999 L@ittober 2004, Mr. Kim was advisor to the chairnoéthe board of the banking and
financial group Zerich. From September 1993 umtiiuhary 1999 he was a chairman of the managemerd bb&hastny Bank. Mr. Kim
graduated from Lomonosov Moscow State University985 with a degree in chemistry, Russian Institifittinance and Economics in 1996
with a degree in finance, Moscow State Law Acad@mB000 with a degree in law and Lomonosov MoscaateSUniversity in 2004 with a
degree in psychology and a degree in philosophy.

Andrey Shemetov. Mr. Andrey Shemetov has servaalaslirector since June 2, 2014. He is Deputy CEtb@Moscow Exchange.
Mr. Shemetov is also a Member of the Board of Doescof Russia’s National Commodities Exchange Nh#@onal Settlement Depository, the
National Securities Market Association, and theusécindustry's main self-regulatory organization, the NatioAgkociation of Securities
Market Participants. In 2008, Mr. Shemetov becariveember of the Board of the RTS Stock Exchanger laglping facilitate its merger, in
May 2011, with MICEX. Following the merger, he beta Member of the Board of the Moscow Exchange BXERTS, a position that he
held until he was appointed Deputy CEO of the Mas&xchange in November 2012. From 2008-2012, Mensdtov was the CEO of Aton
Investment Company. Mr. Shemetov graduated fronStaee University of Management with specializafiofProduction Management.

Dmitry Pleskonos. Mr. Dmitry Pleskonos has serveduar director since August 2013. Mr. Pleskonosdvas 20 years of international
company executive experience. From 2004 until 28&Xheld various leadership positions at Vimpel-@amications and Vimpel-Com Ltd.,
including executive vice president of mass markstetbpment and executive vice president of busideselopment for CIS. Mr. Pleskonos
began his career at Mars, Inc. in 1993, during tvhiilme he served as sales operations directordssid and CIS countries from May 2002
until his departure from Mars, Inc. in 2004. Mregkonos is also served a member of the supeniimrasd of JSC “INDASTRIAL
ASSOCIATION “KONTI". Dmitry graduated with honorsdm Kiev Higher Military School of Radio-Engineegimnd Air Defense and from
the Military Diplomatic Academy.

81



Table of Contents

Marcus Rhodes. Mr. Marcus Rhodes has served adireator since May 2013. He is also an independeattor for Zoltav Resources
(since May 2014), an independent director and &mlaa of the audit committee for PhosAgro (sinceyM11), Tethys Petroleum (since
September 2009), Cherkizovo Group (since Febru@®@@Pand Rosinter Group (since July 2008). Frorg 2008 until June 2011, Mr. Rhodes
was an independent director and a chairman ofud#& eommittee for Wimm-Bill-Dann Foods, and fronowember 2009 until June 2011 for
Rusagro Group. Mr. Rhodes was an audit partneEffost & Young from 2002 until 2008. Prior to thag was an audit partner for Arthur
Andersen from 1998 until 2002. He qualified as artdred accountant in 1986 and is a member ofrtiute of Accountants in England &
Wales (ICAEW). Mr. Rhodes graduated with a BA (Hoifnesm Loughborough University in 1982 with a degia economics & social history.

Alexey Rasskazov. Mr. Alexey Rasskazov has sersezbadirector since May 2013. From May 2012 ubgtember 2012, he was an
advisor to the chief executive officer of OSMP.dPtto that, Mr. Rasskazov was a vice presidentiarnational operations at OSMP from A
2011 until March 2012. From October 2006 until Ag011, he held numerous positions with OSMP, iditlg as vice president of informati
technology between January 2010 and April 2011oBsjoining OSMP, Mr. Rasskazov was a project managd IT director at Bank
Menatep, Norilsk Nickel and ALROSA Investment Grdagiween 1996 and 2006. Mr. Rasskazov graduatedtfre Moscow Institute of
Physics and Technology in 1989 with a degree innergging.

Anna Stoklitskaya. Ms. Anna Stoklitskaya has sea®tiead of Sales and Marketing since January 20tthbefore this, she served as
Managing Director of Visa Qiwi Wallet since JulyZ013. Ms. Stoklitskaya has over 15 years of gjiatend production marketing experier
Before joining our Group, Ms. Stoklitskaya workeadPaocter & Gamble for a period of 12 years, ha\degved as associate director for
strategic planning and market development in Rusmstaholding numerous other positions in markettetyy and planning, business
development and customer service. Ms. Stoklitskagduated from Novosibisrsk State University.

Alexander Karavaev. Mr. Alexander Karavaev hasesas our chief financial officer since July 20U8. Karavaev has over 15 years of
experience in finance and accounting. From AugQ&®22o July 2013, Mr. Karavaev served as our abyiefrating officer. Before joining us,
from November 2008 until September 2011 Mr. Karawaas a chief financial officer of Mail.ru. He alpeeviously served as a nominee
director for Mail.ru on our board of directors. Pmusly, Mr. Karavaev was a chief financial officgrAkado Group (a subsidiary of Renova
Holding) between March 2008 and October 2008 adepaty chief financial officer at Renova betweenyh07 and October 2008. He was
also vice president of development of financiaksys at SUAL Holding from December 2003 until M&0Z. Mr. Karavaev started his career
at the audit department of Arthur Andersen in 1897 and after moving to Ernst & Young in May 2@@drked at the audit and business
consulting departments until December 2003. Mr.akaev graduated with honors from Siberian Aerospaaelemy in 1998 with a degree in
economics, majoring in management and strategitnpig. Concurrently, between September 1996 andl@ct1997, he attended the
University Passau in Germany, studying strategaping.

B. Compensation.
Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

Under our articles of association, our shareholdetsrmine the compensation of our directors frione to time at a general meeting of
our shareholders, our board of directors determimesompensation of our chief executive officehigh power has been delegated to the
compensation committee), and our chief executifieafdetermines the compensation of our other atkez officers.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the aggregratmeration paid (comprising salary, discretigrimnuses and other short-term
benefits) to our directors and executive officeeswRUB 164 million. No amounts in respect of pensjoetirement or similar benefits have
been accrued in any of the periods presentedsratimiual report. Our Russian subsidiaries are redjbly law to make contributions equal to
fixed percentages of each employee’s salary foohker pension insurance, medical insurance amat gtatutory benefits. None of our non-
executive directors and independent director agpemhas a service contract with us that providebdnefits upon termination of office.

Employee Stock Option Plan

General. In October 2012, our board of directopéed and our shareholders approved an Employe& Stption Plan, or the Plan, an
equity-based incentive compensation plan intenddtelp align the interests of our management and
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others with those of our shareholders. In Janu@fy32and then in July 2013, the Plan was amendedestated. Under the Plan, we may grant
options to purchase our class B shares to emplay@service providers in connection with theinisimn of services to us or our subsidiar

A maximum of 3,640,000 of our class B shares, orof%ur entire issued and outstanding share cagidtalf the date immediately preceding
our initial public offering, are reserved for isega under the Plan, subject to equitable adjustinght event of certain corporate transactions
such as a stock split or recapitalization. The Fatheduled to expire on the tenth anniversaitsafdoption, although previously granted
awards will remain outstanding after such dateccoaedance with their terms.

Administration. Our chief executive officer and aleputy chief executive offer administer the Planluding determining the vesting
schedule, exercise price, term of the award, teansftrictions applicable to shares acquired @unsto an option exercise and other terms an
conditions of option awards under the Plan. Ourdad directors has the authority to make all neagsor appropriate interpretations of Plan
terms. The participants of the plan are also seteby our chief executive officer.

Option Terms Generally. Options granted under tha Permit the holder of the option to purchasealass B shares once such options
are vested and exercisable, at a purchase pricghpez determined by our board of directors andipeé in the option grant. Grants of options
under the Plan following the initial public offegrmave a purchase price per share not less thavétage closing price of our class B shares
on the principal exchange on which such sharetharetraded for the ten business days immediatelgguling the date of grant. Options
granted under the Plan cannot be sold, pledgeéposkd of in any manner without our prior writtemsent.

Net Income Transfer Restriction. All options grahtender the Plan are subject to an additional feamestriction applicable to shares
acquired by exercising the option. This transfetrietion prohibits the individual from transfergithese shares unless we have achieved
U.S.$170 million in net income (measured in accoogawith the management reporting practices) dutiegorevious 12 month period. We
determine at the end of each fiscal quarter whethielh net income test has been met and, to thatdékt it has not been met, individuals
holding shares acquired through the exercise aktloptions are not permitted to transfer the shahée they remain employed by us or one
our subsidiaries. This transfer restriction wilase to apply in the event that the option holdengloyment or service with us or our
subsidiaries terminates.

Other Information. Shares subject to options wiaihcancelled or forfeited without being exerciggltibe returned to the Plan and will
be available for subsequent option grants undePtae. Any material amendment to the Plan (sudh@saddition of more class B shares to the
pool of shares available under the Plan) or thetalo of a new equity compensation plan is sultieetpproval by our shareholders in
accordance with the Nasdaq Listing Rules.

Outstanding Equity Awards to Certain Executive Officers
The following table sets forth certain informatioith respect to outstanding equity awards heldhayfollowing executive officers at
March 11, 2015:

Number of Number of
Class B Share Class B Share

Underlying Underlying
Vested Unvested Option
Options (#) Options (#) Exercise Option Expiration
Grant Date Exercisable Unexercisable Price ($) Date
Alexander Karavaev December 21, 20: 107,73( 25,65( 13.645: December 31, 20:
Anna Stoklitskayz: November 15, 201 88,00( 44,00( 41.238( December 31, 20:

C. Board Practices.
Board of Directors

Our company has a single-tier board structure, witloard of directors comprised of up to twelvectiors nominated and elected
by the shareholders (subject to certain exemptjomsuding not less than three directors who shalindependent directors (see also
“Description of Share Capital—Board of DirectorsThe primary responsibility of our board of direrstés to oversee the
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operations of our company, and to supervise thigipslof senior management and the affairs of oungany. The term for the directors
serving on our board of directors at the time efainnual report will expire at the annual generatimg of shareholders to be held in 2015.
Our directors shall be elected at each subsequenibhgeneral meeting of shareholders. Our artmi@ssociation provide that we may have
up to twelve directors, including not less tharethindependent directors. We refer to all directioas are not independent directors as elected
directors. Elected directors shall not be more thiae.

Under the Nasdaq Listing Rules, a director empldyeds or that has, or had, certain relationshijs ws during the three years prior to
this annual report, cannot be deemed to be an @mlemt director, and each other director will dyads independent, only if our board of
directors affirmatively determines that he has raderial relationship with us, either directly oraapartner, shareholder or officer of an
organization that has a relationship with us. Owhigr of a significant amount of our shares, byffitsfes not constitute a material relations
Our articles of association provide a possibilityany elected director to be qualified as an indejeat director if such director meets certain
criteria under the NASDAQ Listing Rules. Accordipgbur board of directors has affirmatively detered that Mr. Dmitry Pleskonos,

Mr. Marcus Rhodes, Mr. Ron Kalifa, Mr. Osama Bedir. Andrey Shemetov and Mr. Alexey Savatyugin @aeh an independent director in
accordance with the Nasdaq Listing Rules.

Committees of our Board of Directors
We have established three committees under thel lndalirectors: the audit committee, compensatammittee and strategy committee.
We have adopted a charter for each of these coperitEach committee’s members and functions didlaws.

Audit committee. Our audit committee consists ofskls, Rhodes, Savatyugin and Pleskonos. Mr. Rlisdles chairman of the audit
committee and our board of directors has determtihadMr. Rhodes qualifies as an “audit commitiearicial expert,” as defined under
Nasdaq Listing Rules and the rules and regulatidtise Exchange Act. Messrs. Rhodes, SavatyugirPéegkonos are each an indepen
director in accordance with the Nasdaq Listing Rule

The purpose of the audit committee is to assisboard of directors with its oversight responsilas regarding: (a) the integrity of our
financial statements, (b) our compliance with lesyad regulatory requirements, (c) the independaditar’'s qualifications and independence
and (d) the performance of our internal audit fiorcand independent auditor.

Our audit committee’s duties include, but are motted to:

» selecting the independent registered publioaating firm and pre-approving all auditing and rearditing services permitted to be
performed by the independent registered public @aibog firm;

» reviewing with the independent registered publicoamting firm any audit problems or difficultieschmanageme’s response
» reviewing all proposed related party transactiassijefined in Item 404 of Regulatio-K under the Securities Ac
» discussing the annual audited financial statem&ittsmanagement and the independent registeredcpatitounting firm

* reviewing major issues as to the adequacy ofrdaarnal control and any special audit steps &stbjn light of material control
deficiencies; an

* meeting separately and periodically with manageraadtthe independent registered public accouniing

Compensation committee. Our compensation comnttesists of Messrs. Kim, Romanenko, Pleskonos &ednstov. Mr. Kim is the
chairman of the compensation committee. MessrskBies and Shemetov are independent directorsardance with the Nasdaq Listing
Rules. We follow Cyprus law which does not requioenpanies to have a compensation committee madatirgly of independent directors.
We believe that the significant ownership in outinary shares by the members of our compensatiommittee who are not independent
directors aligns the interests of such directorth wur shareholders generally and ensures sufficiegrsight of executive compensation. None
of the members of our compensation committee isféicer or employee of our company.

Our compensation committee’s duties include, betrat limited to:

e approving the compensation package of the chiefugke officer;
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» administering our equity incentive ple
» overseeing, and advising the board of directorwarall compensation plans and benefit programg

» authorizing the repurchase of shares from terméhateployees

Strategy committee. Our strategy committee consistdessrs. Rasskazov, Romanenko, Pleskonos, BadicKalifa. Mr. Pleskonos is
the chairman of the strategy committee. Our stsabegnmittee has a key role in defining our strategials and objectives, advises our boa
directors on the implementation of our strategialg@nd objectives and oversees their implememtatio

Code of Ethics and Business Conduct

We have adopted a Code of Ethics and Business Cotitht applies to all of our directors, officerslaeemployees. The Code of Ethics
and Business Conduct is intended to promote ha@mekethical conduct, full and accurate reportimgl e@ompliance with laws as well as other
matters. A copy of the Code of Ethics and Busiramsduct is available on our website: http://invesfiovi.com/documents.cfm

Directors’ Duties

Under Cyprus law, our directors owe fiduciary dsitid both common law and under statute, includistatutory duty and common law
duty to act honestly, in good faith and in what director believes are the best interests of oorpamy. When exercising powers or performing
duties as a director, the director is requiredxiereise the care, diligence and skill that a resjisde director would exercise in the same
circumstances taking into account, without limitatithe nature of the company, the nature of tleésbe and the position of the director and
the nature of the responsibilities undertaken Ioy.flihe directors are required to exercise theirgrsvior a proper purpose and must not act o
agree to the company acting in a manner that cagriess our articles of association or Cyprus law.

Employment Agreements

We have entered into employment agreements with ebour executive officers. Each of these contatasdard terms and conditions in
compliance with Russian labor law. The terms of¢hemployment agreements include, among othershihgation, remuneration, the
treatment of confidential information, social inance and employment benefits.

Under the agreements, our executive officers atidlezhto statutory termination benefits in accarda with Russian labor law, which
generally amount to between one and three mondter’ys We may terminate the employment agreemeititsour executive officers in
accordance with the general provisions envisagedussian labor law if, among other things, onewfexecutive officers commits serious
breach of duties, is guilty of any gross miscondaaonnection with the handling of money or valieahor takes an erroneous decision that
leads to improper use of, or causes damage tqroperty. In addition, Russian labor law and empient agreements of certain of our
executive officers contain certain additional psiens whereby we may terminate their employmergements if such officers are dismissed
from office in accordance with Russian bankruptmjislation.

Our executive officers have also agreed not to gagaany activities that compete with us, or t@dkly or indirectly solicit the services
of our employees, for a period of one year aftanieation of employment. Each executive officer hgseed to hold in strict confidence any
confidential information or trade secrets of oumpany. Each executive officer also agrees to comly all material applicable laws and
regulations related to his or her responsibiliiesur company as well as all material corporatelarsiness policies and procedures of our
company.

Limitation on Liability and Indemnification of Dire ctors and Officers

Our memorandum and articles of association prothdg subject to certain limitations, we will indeify our directors and officers
against any losses or liabilities which they mastain or incur in or about the execution of theitiels including liability incurred in defending
any proceedings whether civil or criminal in whjcldgment is given in their favor or in which theygacquitted.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arisimmder the Securities Act may be permitted to dinesstofficers or persons controlling us
pursuant to the foregoing provisions, we have hiefemmed that in the opinion of the SEC such ind#imattion is against public policy as
expressed in the Securities Act and may thereferenenforceable.
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Interests of our Directors and our Employees

Certain of our directors and our executive offidease beneficial ownership interests in our shardwld options to purchase shares.
economic interests through these holdings may rideeto a conflict of interest between their dutieged to us and their private interests. For
example, it could cause them to pursue short-teximsgn respect of those private interests instéadtting in our best interest. Other than the
potential conflicts of interest described in thetfmtes to the table in “Principal and Selling $felders”, we are not aware of any other
potential conflicts of interest between any dutesd by members of our board of directors or owcexve officers to us and their private
interests and/or other duties.

Under our articles of association, a director whmiany way interested in a contract or propogedract with us must declare the nature
of his or her interest at a meeting of our boardirgctors in accordance with Cyprus law. In additia director may not vote in respect of any
contract or arrangement in which he or she is éstexd, and if the director does vote, his or hés wall not be counted and he or she will no
counted for purposes of determining whether quoatithe meeting has been established.

Our directors are generally not prohibited from ovgnor acquiring interests in companies that caddhpete with us in the future for
investments or business, and each of them haga rbusiness relationships outside the contettiaf relationship with us that could
influence their decisions in the future.

D. Employees.

See Item 4.B “Business overview—Employees.”

E. Share Ownership.

See Item 7.A “Major Shareholders” for informatiom the shareholdings of our directors and executffieers.

See Item 6.B “Compensation—OQutstanding Equity AwaodCertain Executive Officers” for information options granted to our
executive officers.

See Item 6.B “Compensation—Employee Stock Opti@mPlor a description of our employee stock opfiden.

ITEM 7. Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions
A. Major Shareholders.
The following table sets forth information with pest to the beneficial ownership of our ordinargrels, as of March 11, 2015, by:
» each of our directors and executive officers;
» each person known to us to own beneficially moamth% of our ordinary share
Beneficial ownership is determined in accordandd wie rules and regulations of the SEC. In conmgutine number of shares
beneficially owned by a person and the percentagemship of that person, we have included shamstiie person has the right to acquire

within 60 days, including through the exercise y aption, warrant or other right or the conversidrany other security. These shares,
however, are not included in the computation ofgbecentage ownership of any other person.

The calculations in the table below are based 4283322 class A shares and 36,131,198 class Bsbatstanding as of March 11,
2015, which comprise our entire issued and outstgrghare capital as of that date. Class A ordisagres have ten votes per share, and Cla:
B shares have one vote per share.
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Currently, none of our ordinary shares are heltts. holders.

Total % Total % Total % of
of Issuec of Issuec Votes
Total Class A Total at a Genera
Class B Class A Class B
Shares Shares Shares Shares Meeting
Directors and Executive Officers:
Andrey Romanenk (1) 1,352,43! — 7.3 — 6.14
Marcus Rhode — — — — —
Sergey Solonii2 12,722,64 — 69 — 57.7
Andrey Shemeto — — — — —
Alexey Savatyugit — — — — —
Osama Bedie — — — — —
Rohinton Minoo Kalifs — — — — —
Alexey Rasskazo — — — — —
Boris Kim ) 1,923,341 — 10.£ — 8.7
Dmitry Pleskono: — 3,50( — — —
Anna Stoklitskayd4(©) — 88,00( — * *
Alexander Karavae®)®) — 107,73( — £ &
All directors and executive officers as a group *
Principal Shareholders:
Antana International Corporatic®) 1,352,43 — ! — 6.14
Saldivar Investments Limite(2) 12,722,64 — 69.( — 57.7
E1 Limited®) 1,923,34i — 10.4 — 8.7
Mitsui & Co., Ltd.(® 1,715,40: — .3 — 7.7¢
Janus Capital Management LI®) — 2,349,641 — 6.5 *
Waddell & Reed Financial, In(®) — 3,831,901 — 10.€ *
SMALLCAP World Fund, Inc(19 — 2,113,00! — 5.8 *
Platinum Investment Management Limii1) — 3,161,28. — 8.7 kJ

* Represents less than 1

(1) Andrey Romanenko is the owner of 9% of shafesntana International Corporation and the remajrsteke is held by his father,
Nikolay Romanenko. Accordingly, shares voting aigpdsitive power over our shares held by suchyentiie address of such entity
Geneva Place, Waterfront Drive, P.O. Box 3469, Rbaan, Tortola, British Virgin Island

(2) Sergey Solonin is the owner of 88.035% of shafeSaldivar Investments Limited and, accordinglylds voting and dispositive power
over our shares held by such entity. The addresadalf entity is Themistokli Dervi, 6 P.C. 1066, ds@, Cyprus

(3) Boris Kim is the owner of 39.03% and GennadpiBa is the owner of 38.7% of the shares of E1 téahi Accordingly, these individuals
share voting and dispositive power over our shhedd by such entity. The address of such entiBiggoras 4, Kermia Building, 6th
floor, office 60--602, Nicosia, Cyprus, 151

(4) Reflects options to purchase 88,000 class B stiha¢fave already veste

(5) Reflects options to purchase 107,730 class B sliaa¢fiave already veste

(6) Calculated as percentage of the issued share kcag$taming the exercise of all vested options bglthe optionees

(7) Mitsui & Co., Ltd. is a widely-held public cappation the shares of which are traded on the Tokggoya, Sapporo, and Fukuoka stock
exchanges. The address of such entity-1, Ohtemachi -chome, Chiyod-ku, Tokyo, Japar

(8) Based solely on the Schedule 13-G/A filed hyu$aCapital Management LLC and Janus Overseas Witindhe Securities and Exchange
Commission on February 18, 20:

(9) Based solely on the Schedule 13-G jointly filgsdwaddell & Reed Financial, Inc., Waddell & Rd&dancial Services, Inc., Waddell &
Reed, Inc., Waddell & Reed Investment Managememtg2my, and Ivy Investment Management Company wighSecurities and
Exchange Commission on February 13, 2(

(10) Based solely on the Schedule 13-G filed by $MBAP World Fund, Inc. with the Securities and Eanolge Commission on February 13,
2015. According to its Schedule 13-G filing, SMALR@ World Fund, Inc. is advised by Capital Reseanttt Management Company
(“CRMC"). Capital World Investors reported to os Bchedule 13-G filing with the Securities and Ergie Committion on February 13,
2015, that it is the beneficial owner of 1,883,@0#ss B shares (or 5.2% of the total issued clasisaBes) as a result of CRMC acting as
investment adviser to various investment comparegistered unde
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Section 8 of the Investment Company Act of 1940aAssult, the company believes that there is apdsetween the shares reported to
be beneficially owned by SMALLCAP World Fund, Irand the shares reported to be beneficially owne@apjital World Investors

(11) Based solely on the Schedule 13-G filed byiflan Investment Management Limited with the Sd@siand Exchange Commission on
February 10, 201:

B. Related Party Transactions.
Lease Agreements

From June 1, 2008 and December 20, 2007, througb&cand November 2013, respectively, CISC QIVHI@iwi Bank leased office
premises at Petrovskiy Lane 10/2, Moscow, RussiafcLC Lease Arend Com, in which our chief execaitdfficer and shareholder
Mr. Sergey Solonin owns a non-controlling stakedelnthese agreements, the amount of payments eecbwlLLC Lease Arend Com were
RUB 33 million and RUB 28 million for the years extiDecember 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively. Thaseno outstanding amount as of
December 31, 2014.

Agreements with VTB

On September 27, 2013 and on December 31, 201%; QI entered into short-term overdraft facilitgraements for up to RUB
85 million and up to RUB 315 million, respectivelyith Bank VTB with a 365-day term and an intenegé of 10.3%. The agreements are
secured by a surety from Mr. Sergey Solonin. Onebdzer 31, 2013 and 2014 there are no outstandiog@under these facilities.

Borrowings from ITBILLION LIMITED LTD. and New Medi a Stars LLC

The balances of loans owed by the group compaoiBsBILLION LIMITED LTD. and New Media Stars LLC asf December 31, 2014
are RUB 42 million and RUB 216 million, respectiy¢P013 — RUB 24 million and RUB 76 million). Intst expenses related to this
borrowings for the year ended December 31, 2014uated to RUB 2 million and RUB 11 million, respeetiy (2013 — RUB 2 million and
RUB 5 million).

Lease of Kiosk Locations

In 2010, we entered into a five year lease agreemitin a major retailer in respect of kiosk locatsato be subsequently subleased to oul
agents. In March 2011, we entered into an agen@eagent with LLC K5 Retail to sign agreements with agents in respect of placement
maintenance of their kiosks at locations leasenhfitoe retailer. In December 2011, we assignedights and obligations under the lease
agreement with the retailer to LLC K5 Retail. Untle assignment agreement, the lease deposit paid to the retailer was assigned to LLC
K5 Retail in exchange for a consideration of RUB 4illion, which was converted into a loan under&ation agreement between us and
LLC K5 Retail entered into on January 31, 2012. @hwunt of loan due from LLC K5 Retail as of Decem®1, 2013, was RUB 142 million.
The loan bears an annual interest of 8%, and ityiog amount was adjusted to reflect the markegrast rate of 14%.

On December 27, 2013, the Group acquired the rentp62.5% of Blestgroup Enterprize Limited previlyus a 37.5% owned associate
with its whole-owned subsidiary K5 Retail LLC. Rrio the acquisition date K5 Retail LLC was an ass#e of the Group. For the year ended
December 31, 2014 the loan described above wasaated as a transaction with related party.

Payment Processing Services Agreements

We enter into payment processing services, adiregtifT services and agency agreements with vardiiigates of our directors,
executive officers and shareholders in the ordirayrse of our business. We believe that all ofeélegreements are entered into on arm’s
length terms, are not material and do not deviatny material aspect from the terms that we wasklin similar contracts with non-related
parties.
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Bank Accounts and Deposits

Qiwi Bank maintains accounts and deposits of variaftiliates of our directors, executive officerslashareholders in the ordinary course
of its business amounting to RUB 607 million. Somh¢hese affiliates are not considered relatedgrmander IFRS and therefore are not
included under balances and transactions witha@lparties in our consolidated financial statemefs believe that all of the agreements
pertaining to such accounts and deposits are ehiet@on arm’s length terms and do not deviatanin material aspect from the terms that we
would use in similar contracts with non-relatedtieat

Agreement with MegaFon

According to public sources, Mr. Alisher Usmanowemeficial shareholder of one of our former siigaifit shareholders, Mail.ru, held a
58.1% voting interest in Mail.ru in March 2013. Mismanov is also the controlling shareholder of Memn. For a description of our contract
with MegaFon, see “Business Overview — MerchariRelationship with the Major MNOs.” For the yearsled December 31, 2013 and 2014,
total revenue attributable to our agreement witlgdfeon amounted to 3% and 1.44% of our total reveraspectively. As of December 31,
2014, total amount due to MegaFon was nill, asetdnber 31, 2014 MegaFon is not considered asit@degbarty. As of December 31, 2013
was RUB 389 million. Mail.ru Group and Megafon ad related parties to Qiwi since September 9, 2@h&n Mail.ru Group decreased its’
voting share significantly and its representatesigned from Qiwi Board of Directors.

Employment Agreements and Share Options

See “Management — Employment Agreements” and “Mamaamnt — Employee Stock Option Plan.”

C. Interests of Experts and Counsel

Not applicable.

ITEM 8. Financial Information
A. Consolidated Financial Statements and Other Finanal Information

See Item 18 “Financial Statements.”

Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we are involved in various li#tgpn matters arising in the ordinary course of louginess. We are not currently, and
have not been in the recent past, subject to aya}, larbitration or government proceedings (inatgddroceedings pending or threatened) that
we believe will have a material impact on our bass) financial condition and results of operations.

Dividend Policy

We intend to distribute all excess cash to ouredinalders in the form of an annual dividend. Exaash is defined as adjusted net profit
for a year less an amount management deems necéssaear term corporate action or other busimesgis including but not limited to
merger and acquisition activities and capital exiteines. The board of directors reserves the tigldistribute the dividend on a quarterly basis
as it deems necessary. This statement is a gatemialration of intention and the actual declaratibdividends will require corporate action at
the relevant time on which a decision will be takgrthe board of directors or the general meetinigsshareholders, as the case may be,
depending on the precise circumstances that pravtike time, and shareholders or potential investbould not treat this statement as an
obligation or similar undertaking by us that dividis will be declared as set out herein. Under Cyfaw, we are not allowed to make
distributions if the distribution would reduce @lrareholders’ equity below the sum of the issuedesbapital, including any share premium,
and the reserves which we must maintain under Gyljamu and our articles of association.

As a holding company, the level of our income andability to pay dividends depend primarily uptwe teceipt of dividends and other
distributions from our subsidiaries. The paymendiefdends by our subsidiaries is contingent ugandufficiency of their earnings, cash flo
regulatory capital requirements, and distributadvtafits.

In light of current geopolitical concerns aroundsBia and it negative impact on economy and ligupidianagement believes it is prudent
not to distribute dividends for the fourth quartdfe will revisit this decision each quarter moviiegward with an intention to return to our
historical payout levels the principles of our diend policy as soon as possible.

89



Table of Contents

B. Significant Changes

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this annual reperhave not experienced any significant chanies she date of our audited
consolidated financial statements included in #nisual report.

ITEM 9. The Offer and Listing
A. Offer and Listing Details.
See Item 9.C “—Markets.”

B. Plan of Distribution.
Not applicable.

C. Markets.

Our ADSs, each representing one class B share,liemrelisted on the Nasdaq since May 3, 2013 awel Ib@en admitted to trading on
MICEX since May 20, 2013, under the symbol “QIWHbwever, our ADSs were not offered for trading ofOEX until October 10, 2013.
Prior to that time, there was no public marketdar ADSs or our ordinary shares. The following éabéts forth for the periods indicated the
high and low sales price per ADS as reported ordaigs

High Low
(in U.S.$)

Year
2013 (from May 3 59.2¢ 14.5¢
2014 56.37 18.7(
Quarter
2013:
Second Quarter (from May : 17.4¢ 14.5¢
Third Quartel 34.5( 21.8¢
Fourth Quarte 59.2¢ 32.0¢
2014:
First Quarte 57.1( 30.3:
Second Quarte 47.5¢ 26.8¢
Third Quartel 44.4¢ 31.5¢
Fourth Quarte 31.8¢ 18.7(
Most recent six months
2014:
Septembe 39.3¢ 31.5¢
October 31.6i 26.7¢
Novembel 31.8¢ 27.8¢
Decembe 26.4 18.7
2015:
January 22.7¢ 19.5¢
February 25.8( 19.0:

The following table sets forth for the periods atied the high and low sales price per ADS as tegam MICEX:

High Low
(in RUB)

Year
2013 (from October 1( 200(¢ 130z
2014 194¢ 1004
Quarter
2013:
Fourth Quarter (from October 1 200( 130z
2014:
First Quarte 1947 114¢
Second Quarte 160( 1004
Third Quartel 1531 1237
Fourth Quarte 147¢ 110¢&

Most recent six months
2014:



Septembe
October
Novembel
Decembe
2015:
January
February
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1457
135(
147t
141¢

144(
160(

1237
110¢
131¢
111(

122(
129t
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The closing price for our ADSs on the Nasdag ondidrl, 2015 was US$22.24 per ADS and on MICEX wdB R400 per ADS.

D. Selling Shareholders
Not applicable.

E. Dilution.
Not applicable.

F.  Expenses of the Issue.

Not applicable.

ITEM 10. Additional Information
A. Share Capital.
Not applicable.

B. Memorandum and Articles of Association.

Our memorandum and articles of association contaimgng others, the following provisions:

Objects
Our objects are set forth in full in Regulationf3ar memorandum of association.

Shareholders’ General Meetings
Share Capital

Our share capital is divided into two classes afreb: class A shares, each of which carries tess\aitshareholders’ general meetings,
and class B shares, each of which carries one vote.

Convening Shareholders’ Meetings

The shareholders’ general meeting is our suprenaerging body. An annual general meeting must be het more than 15 months after
the prior annual general meeting, with at leastameual general meeting held in each calendar year.

Our board of directors, at its discretion, may cam an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordiganeral meetings must also be
convened by the board of directors at the requestiareholders holding in aggregate at the datkeotieposit of the requisition either (a) not
less than 10% of our outstanding share capitabndt less than 10% of the voting rights attacteedur issued shares, or, in case the board o
directors fails to do so within twenty one daysrthe date of the deposit of the requisition notisesuch requisitioning shareholders, or any
of them representing more than one half of thd tatting rights of all of them, but any meeting@mvened by the shareholders themselves
may not be held after the expiration of three msifitbm the date that is twenty-one days from the d&the deposit of the requisition notice.

The annual general meeting and a shareholdersraleneeting called for a matter for which Cypria#irequires a special resolution,
which means a resolution passed by a majority bfess than 75% of the voting rights attached toissued shares present and voting at a
convened and quorate general meeting, must belaaith no less than 45 days’
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written notice or such longer notice as is requivgdhe Companies Law (nhot counting the day in wliiavas dispatched and the date in which
it was received). Other shareholders’ general mgstmust be called by no less than 30 days’ writteite. A notice convening a shareholders
general meeting must be sent to each of the shidexspprovided that the accidental failure to giatice of a meeting to, or the non-receipt of
notice of a meeting by, any person entitled toirecaotice will invalidate the proceedings at thageting to which such notice refers in the
event that a shareholder holding not less than 6étiiooutstanding share capital is not in attendaatdhat general meeting as a result of the
accidental failure to give notice or non-receimréof. All shareholders are entitled to attendsthareholdersgjeneral meeting or be represer
by a proxy authorized in writing.

The agenda of the shareholders’ general meetidgtesmined by our board of directors or by whoelse is calling the meeting. The
quorum for a shareholders’ general meeting willsistnof shareholders representing 50.01% of thmgaights attached to our issued shares
present in person or by proxy.

Voting

Matters determined at shareholders’ general meetieguire an ordinary resolution, which requireinaple majority of the votes cast at
any particular general meeting duly convened aradate, unless our articles of association and tra@anies Law specify differently. It is
within the powers of the shareholders to have aluésn executed in writing by all shareholders amduch event no meeting needs to take
place or notice to be given.

Reserved Matters

Our articles of association provide for special aniéies for resolutions concerning, among othenglsij the following matters (for so long
as class A shares are in issue and outstandipgnyivariance to the rights attached to any adéshares requires approval of the holders of
75% of the shares of the affected class as weallsgecial resolution of the general meeting; aip@giproval of the total number of shares and
classes of shares to be reserved for issuance ange@f our or our subsidiaries’ employee stockapplan or any other equityased incentiv
compensation program requires approval of a mgjofinot less than 75% of the voting rights attatteall issued shares present and votit
a duly convened and quorate general meeting.

Board of Directors
Appointment of Directors

Our articles of association provide that we shallhup to twelve directors, including not less ttienee independent directors. We refer
to all directors that are not independent directsrelected directors. As a foreign private isswerhave elected to follow Cyprus corporate
governance practices, which, unlike the applictNdedaq requirements for domestic issuers, do oinethe majority of directors to be
independent.

It is understood that, if at a proposed generaltimgé¢here shall be elections of both elected dinescand independent directors, (i) there
shall be two separate set of voting procedureswétierespect to the elected directors and one wiipect to the independent directors; (ii) at
each such procedure the shareholders shall havaithber of votes provided by the articles of assoa for the election of elected directors
and independent directors respectively and (iitjngoprocedure in respect of the minimum numbendépendent directors, being three
(3) directors, shall take place first.

Any shareholder or group of shareholders is edtitenominate one or more individuals for electjonre-election) to our board of
directors not less than 30 days prior to any gémeegting at which all the elected directors afeesitiled to be appointed. The board shall
screen all submitted nominations for compliancéliie provisions of our articles of assocationde@ihg which it shall compile and circulatt
final slate of nominees to be voted on at the gdnaeeting to all the shareholders entitled tonatt@nd vote at the relevant general meeting a
least fifteen (15) days prior to the scheduled tla¢ecof.

Except as set out below, the elected directorappeinted by shareholder weighted voting, undectviiach shareholder has the right to
cast among one or more nominees as many voteg astihg rights attached to its shares multipligcdabhumber equal to the number of ele:
directors to be appointed. Elected directors apoigped as follows: (1) initially — until the firsinnual general meeting after December 31,
2013; (2) all the elected directors shall retieniroffice at each annual general meeting in evebgaquent year following December 31, 2013
(3) all retiring elected directors shall be eligilior re-election; and (4) the vacated position fayilled at the meeting at which the elected
directors retire

92



Table of Contents

by electing another individual nominated to theaaffof elected director by any shareholder or grolughareholders by serving a notice at leas
30 days prior to such general meeting, and in dieflae retiring elected director shall, if offerifgmself for reelection, be deemed to have b
re-elected, unless at such meeting it is expresslglved not to fill such vacated position or uslagesolution for the relection of such elect
director shall have been put to the meeting anchdopted.

The independent directors are nominated by thedh@ashareholder or group of shareholders. All jrethelent directors are appointed by
shareholder weighted voting in the same manneotasg/for elected directors. The independent daecwill be appointed as follows:
(2) initially — until the first annual general mewsg after December 31, 2013; (2) all the independarctors shall retire from office at each
annual general meeting in every subsequent yeawfiolg December 31, 2013; (3) all retiring indepentdirectors shall be eligible for re-
election; and (4) the vacated position may bedili¢ the meeting at which the independent directtire by electing another individual
nominated by any of the board, a shareholder eoapgof shareholders, and in default the retirmdependent director shall, if offering hims
for re-election and if he has been so nominatethéyoard, be deemed to have been re-electedswuatlssich meeting it is expressly resolved
not to fill such vacated position or unless a resoh for the re-election of such independent doeshall have been put to the meeting and no
adopted.

At any moment of time after the appointment of ¢tected directors any director may request thedbtmscreen the elected directors for
compliance with independence criteria within theamiag of the Nasdaq Listing Rules. In case theddatermines that any elected director
meets the criteria such elected director shalkbeassified as the independent director.

In the event that the entire board of directotgiminated by a shareholder or a group of shareh®ledpresenting at least 10.01% of the
voting rights attached to our issued shares, thmai@ng directors will remain in office only to samon a general meeting for purposes of
(1) terminating the entire board pursuant to a estjof the requesting members and (2) appointimgeiected directors, and new independent
directors. If, for any reason, the number of divesfalls below the number fixed by the articleas$ociation as the necessary quorum for t
meetings and the vacant positions are not filledeaishe above procedure within 21 days, the reimginoard may remain in office only to
convene a general meeting, at which all directanstmetire and new directors will be appointed mwidled above.

Our board of directors can elect a chairman bylesolate majority of votes of all the directors pa®d that an affirmative vote of at least
one independent director is received (for so lomglass A shares are in issue and are outstanding).

Removal of Directors

Under Cyprus law, notwithstanding any provisiomur articles of association, a director may be nezddoy an ordinary resolution of t
general shareholders’ meeting, which must be cosd/evith at least 28 days’ notice (under our arsidéassociation at least thirty days’ notice
is required). A director may be removed from offaag¢omatically if, among other things, the diredtmyrbecomes bankrupt or makes any
arrangement or composition with his or her credigenerally; or (b) becomes permanently incapafyeidorming his or her duties due to
mental or physical illness or due to his or hertldeld our board of directors exercises its rightppoint a director to fill in a vacancy on the
board created during the term of a director’s apimoént as provided in our articles of associatbrareholders holding 10.01% of the voting
rights attached to our issued shares may termthatappointment of the entire board of directoee 8lso “—Appointment of Directors.”

Powers of the Board of Directors

Our board of directors has been granted autharitgdnage our business affairs and has the authoritgcide, among other things, on
following:

(a) approval of strategy, annual budget and businessfpl the group

(b) approval of certain transactions, including enatl transactions (as defined in our articlesssfogiation), borrowings as well as
transactions involving sale or disposition of anterest in any group company (other than QIW!I plcll or substantially all of the
assets of any group compa

(c) any group company’s exit from or closing ofusimess or business segment, or a down-sizingetiedun force or streamlining of
any operation over certain thresholds as set ootiirarticles of associatio
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(d) any merger, consolidation, amalgamation, casiger reorganization, scheme of arrangement, diisal or liquidation involving
any group company (other than ourselv

(e) entryinto any agreement or transaction witblated party except for: (1) transactions in ttdirary course of business (as defined
in our articles of association) on an arm’s lerfggikis, (2) intra-group transactions, (3) transastiat a price less than U.S.$50,000
(if the price can be determined at the time thesaation is entered intc

(f) issuance and allotment of shares by us for coriderother than cash; a

(g) adoption of any employee stock option planror ather equity-based incentive compensation pragm our group (subject to a
general meeting approving the total number of shanel classes of shares to be reserved for issuadee any such progran

Our board of directors may exercise all the poveéthe Company to borrow or raise money.

Proceedings of the Board of Directors

Our board of directors meets at such times andéh snanner as the directors determine to be nagessdesirable. For as long as any
class A shares are issued and outstanding, theiguoecessary for a meeting of our board of diredimibe validly convened is a simple
majority of the total number of the elected direstand the then existing independent directors.

A resolution at a duly constituted meeting of oaatd of directors is approved by an absolute mgjofivotes of all the directors unles
higher majority and/or affirmative vote of any imaasdent directors is required on a particular matiee chairman does not have a second or
casting vote in case of a tie. A resolution consed in writing will be as valid as if it had bepassed at a meeting of our board of directors
when signed by all the directors. A resolution @med to in writing must be approved and execusedlltthe directors.

Where a director has, directly or indirectly, atenest in a contract or proposed contract, thaictiir must disclose his or her interest to
the board of directors and may not vote on suchrachor arrangement.

Chief Executive Officer

Our board of directors may by an absolute majaftyotes of all the directors appoint a directob&oour chief executive officer to be in
charge and responsible for all dayetay affairs of our group. Our chief executive dffiés to be appointed for such period and on seihg a:
our board of directors thinks fit, and, subjecthe terms of any agreement entered into in anyqodait case, his appointment may be
terminated by our board of directors at any timge Term of appointment for our chief executiveadfia period from the date of his
appointment until the first meeting of the boardtloa second year after the date of his appointment.

Rights Attaching to Shares

Voting rights. Each class A share has the right to ten votaswageting of our shareholders; and each class i $laa the right to one
vote at a meeting of our shareholders.

Issue of shares and peenptive rights Subject to the Companies Law and our articlessgbciation, already authorized but not yet issue
shares are at the disposal of our board of directainich may allot or otherwise dispose of any suésl shares as it may decide. All new share
and/or other securities giving right to the purehasour shares or which are convertible into dwares must be offered before their issue tc
shareholders on a pro-rata basis. If the new sexsidre of the same class as existing sharesfféremust first be made on a pro rata basis to
the shareholders of the relevant class and, ifsaichh new securities are not taken up by those Isblgiers, an offer to purchase the excess will
be made to all other shareholders on a pro raia f@®vided that such pre-emption rights havehsan disapplied). Our shareholders have
authorized the disapplication of the right of prapgion set out above for a period of five yearsifritne date of the completion of our initial
public offering in connection with the issue of tapan additional 52,000,000 class B shares, inolydi the form of ADSs.

Conversion At the irrevocable request of any class A shddshoall or part of the class A shares held byhssltareholder will convert
into class B shares, on the basis that each clasgre shall convert into one class B share, andl&ss B shares resulting from such
conversion shall rank pari passu in all respecth thie existing class B shares in issue.
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In addition, class A shares will be automaticatiyieerted into class B shares, on a onerte-basis, in the following circumstances: (1
class A shares which are transferred by the hotdeept in circumstances permitted under our agiof association, shall, immediately upon
such transfer, be automatically converted intoxcBishares; (2) all class A shares held by a shitehwill be automatically converted into
class B shares on the occurrence of a change tot¢as defined in our articles of associationjta class A shareholder; and (3) all class A
shares will be automatically converted into classhBres in the event that the aggregate numbdass & shares constitute less than 10% c
aggregate number of class A and class B sharesndisg.

Class A shares will not convert into class B sharkere: (1) the transfer is to one or more of thagferor's wholly-owned affiliates;
(2) it is approved in writing by the shareholdeoéding in aggregate at least 75% of the total nunabelass A shares in issue; or (3) the
shareholder (or a group of shareholders) transigeiass A shares has (or have) offered such stmtke other then existing shareholders
holding class A shares, and the respective transfegrmitted; if, in the case of (2) and (3), 16#4nore of the total number of class A share
issue are transferred.

Dividends. Our board may declare dividends, including fidi@idends, but no dividend will be paid except ofibur profits. Our board
of directors may set aside out of our profits ssieins as it thinks proper as a reserve. The boaddedtors may also, without establishing a
reserve, carry forward to the next year any prdffitsay think prudent not to distribute as a divideThe class A shares and the class B share
have the right to an equal share in any dividenatloer distribution we pay. We have historicallydpdividends in the past and currently exg
that we will continue to do so from time to timetire future. Please see “Dividend Policy.”

Winding Up. If our company is wound up, the liquidator magon a special resolution and any other procedwescpibed by the
Companies Law, (i) divide all or part of our assatsong the shareholders; and (ii) vest the whobkmgrpart of such assets in trustees for the
benefit of the contributories as the liquidatorlktiank fit, but so that no shareholder is compdlto accept any shares or other securities with
any attached liability.

Form and transfer of share$he instrument of transfer of any share must{ee@ted by or on behalf of the transferor and taedferee,
and the transferor will be deemed to be the haddiéne share until the name of the transfereetisred into the register of shareholders. Excer
as set out above and in our articles of associasisareholders are entitled to transfer all or @frtheir shares by instrument of transfer in any
usual or common form or in any other form, incliglaglectronic form, which the directors may approve.

There is no limitation under Cypriot law or ourielgs of association on the right of non-Cypricaidents or nationals to own or vote our
shares.

Relevant Provisions of Cypriot law

The liability of our shareholders is limited. Undbe Companies Law, a shareholder of a compangtipersonally liable for the acts of
the company, except that a shareholder may becensemally liable by reason of his or her own acts.

As of the date of this annual report, Cypriot laged not contain any requirement for a mandatomraff be made by a person acquiring
shares or depositary receipts of a Cypriot compamy if such an acquisition confers on such pecsaoitrol over us if neither the shares nor
depositary receipts are listed on a regulated mankée EEA. Neither our shares nor depositargifs are listed on a regulated market in the
EEA.

The Companies Law contains provisions in respestjokeze-out rights. The effect of these provisistisat, where a company makes a
takeover bid for all the shares or for the whole@wy class of shares of another company, and feeisfaccepted by the holders of 90% of the
shares concerned, the offeror can upon the sams tequire the shares of shareholders who havaceepted the offer, unless such persons
can persuade the Cypriot courts not to permit tugiisition. If the offeror company already holdsrsthan 10%, in value of the shares
concerned, additional requirements need to be efetdthe minority can be squeezed out. If the mgpnaking the takeover bid acquires
sufficient shares to aggregate, together with thasieh it already holds, more than 90%, then, witbhne month of the date of the transfer
which gives the 90%, it must give notice of thet tacthe remaining shareholders and such sharetsohday, within three months of the notice,
require the bidder to acquire their shares anditheger shall be bound to do so upon the same tasnis the offer or as may be agreed betwee
them or upon such terms as the court may order.

C. Material Contracts.

None.
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D. Exchange Controls.

Cyprus currently has no exchange control restmstio

E. Taxation.

The following summary of the Cypriot tax, Russiar &nd United States federal income tax conseqsefaevnership of the ADSs is
based upon laws, regulations, decrees, rulingseniectax conventions (treaties), administrative fita@nd judicial decisions in effect at the
date of this annual report. Legislative, judicialaliministrative changes or interpretations maweéwer, be forthcoming that could alter or
modify the statements and conclusions set forthiheAny such changes or interpretations may lreaetive and could affect the tax
consequences to holders of the ADSs. This sumneyg dot purport to be a legal opinion or to addadlssx aspects that may be relevant to e
holder of the ADSs. Each prospective holder is drgeconsult its own tax adviser as to the pardctdx consequences to such holder of the
ownership and disposition of the ADSs, including #pplicability and effect of any other tax lawgax treaties, of pending or proposed
changes in applicable tax laws as of the dateisfahnual report, and of any actual changes inigadgk tax laws after such date.

Material Cypriot Tax Considerations

The following discussion of material Cypriot taxnsiderations represents the opinion of Antis Tafyllides & Sons LLC, our Cypriot
counsel.

Tax residency

A company is considered to be a resident of Cyfoutax purposes if its management and controkaercised in Cyprus. We anticipate
being a company resident in Cyprus for tax purpodésere, as with our company, the majority of thardd of directors is comprised of tax
residents of Russia, tax residency in Cyprus maghladlenged by the relevant tax authorities. Sse atk factor Iltem 3.D “Risk Factors —
Risks Related to Taxation—We may be deemed tothr gesident outside of Cyprus.”

With respect to the holders of our ADSs, such hotday be considered to be a resident of Cyprutafopurposes in a tax year (which is
the calendar year) if such holder is physicallyspre in Cyprus for a period or periods exceedingggregate more than 183 days in that
calendar year.

The holding and disposal of the ADSs by a non-&sxdent will not create any tax liability in Cypridon-tax residents are not liable for
any tax on the disposal of shares or other seesriti a Cyprus company unless the Cyprus compahg iswner of immovable property
situated in Cyprus.

Cyprus Resident Company
A company which is considered to be a residentaiwpurposes in Cyprus is subject to corporaterimetax in Cyprus, on its worldwide
income, taking into account certain exemptions. fétte of Corporate Income Tax in Cyprus is 12.5%.

Special defense contribution, or Cypriot Defensg, Talevied on certain types of income of tax desits of Cyprus.

Taxation of Dividends and Distributions

Under Cyprus legislation there is no withholding ta dividends paid to non-residents of Cyprus. divedend will be paid free of any
tax to the shareholder who will be taxed accordmthe laws of the country of residence or domiofi¢he shareholder. Holders of ADSs must
consult their own tax advisors on the consequeot#sir domicile or residence in relation to treyment of dividends.

Individual tax residents of Cyprus are subjectpe@al Contribution to the Defense Fund on divideatithe rate of 17.0%. The tax is
withheld by the company prior to payment by the pany to the shareholder.
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Taxation of Capital Gains

Cyprus capital gains tax is imposed at the ra2000% on gains from the disposal of immovable priypsituated in Cyprus including
gains from the disposal of shares in companiestwiien immovable property in Cyprus, and such sharesot listed in any recognized stock
market. It is unclear whether this exception algplias to disposal of the ADSs.

Inheritance Tax

There is no Cyprus inheritance tax.

Deemed Distributions

A Cypriot company which does not distribute at te&3% of its after tax profits within two yearstbe end of the year in which the pra
arose would be deemed to have distributed this atrasia dividend two years after that year end.dyyriot Defense Tax, at a rate of 17%
would be payable by the company on deemed dividantle extent that its shareholders (both indiald@and companies) are Cyprus tax
residents. Deemed distribution does not apply speet of profits that are directly or indirectlyrédutable to shareholders that are non-resider
in Cyprus. The Cypriot Defense Tax may also be pkeyan deemed dividends in case of liquidationapital reduction of the company. The
company will debit such Cypriot Defense Tax paidiagt the profits attributable to such shareholdEnge amount of deemed dividend
distribution (subject to the Cypriot Defense Taxjeduced by any actual dividend paid out of thodifsrof the relevant year at any time up to
the date of the deemed distribution. The profitegedaken into account in determining the deemeidieind do not include fair value
adjustments to movable or immovable property (if)afror the purpose of arriving at the profit subj® deemed distribution, any capital
expenditure incurred for the acquisition of plantdl anachinery (excluding private saloon cars), amttimgs during the years 2012 to 2014 is
deducted from the after tax profits.

Imposition of such a tax on the company could haweaterial adverse effect on the group’s busimressits of operations, financial
condition or prospects and the trading price ofABRs.

Tax Position of Holders of ADSs with Respect to Disbutions

There is no express provision in the SDC law ortitbatment of holders of ADSs with respect to Cepblefense Tax on dividends nor is
there any specific guidance issued by the Cypaiottthorities on the point. We are of the viewt ti@ders of ADSs will be subject to the
same treatment as holders of shares with resp#ue tigability of Cypriot Defense Tax on dividendsd, therefore, the provision of sections “—
Taxation of Dividends and Distributions” and “— @&wed Distributions” above would apply equally te tiolders of ADSs.

Taxation of income and gains of the company
Gains from the disposal of securities

Any gain from disposal by the company of securiftbe definition of securities includes shares hadds of companies and options
thereon) shall be exempt from Corporate Incomeifraspective of the trading nature of the gain,ribenber of shares held or the holding
period and shall not be subject to the Cypriot BséeTax. Such gains are also outside of the sdogepdal gains tax provided that the
company whose shares are disposed off does noanywimmovable property situated in Cyprus or suw@res are listed in any recognised
stock exchange.
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Dividends to be received by the company

Dividend income (whether received from Cyprus restdbr non-resident companies) is exempt from Qaedncome Tax in Cyprus.
Dividend income from Cyprus resident companieengpt from the Cypriot Defense Tax whereas divid@edme received from noBypriot
resident companies is exempt from the Cypriot Dedehax provided that either (i) not more than 50di%e paying company’s activities
result, directly or indirectly, in investment incenor (ii) the foreign tax suffered is not signéfittly lower than the tax rate payable in Cyprus
(currently interpreted to mean an effective taxdeur of at least 6.25%). If the exemption for th@@yt Defense Tax does not apply, dividends
receivable from non-Cypriot resident companiestaxed at a rate of 17.0%. Foreign tax paid or vattiton dividend income received by the
resident company can be credited against Cypropagable on the same income provided proof of payroan be furnished.

Interest income

The tax treatment of interest income of any compahigh is a tax resident of Cyprus will depend dmether such interest income is
treated as “active” or “passive.” Interest incom@ak consists of interest which has been derived bgmpany which is a tax resident of
Cyprus in the ordinary course of its businessudiclg interest which is closely connected with dinéinary course of its business will be
subject to Corporate Income Tax at the rate of%2 &ter the deduction of any allowable businegeages. Any other interest income will be
subject to the Cypriot Defense Tax at the rate0o®% on the gross amount of interest.

Specifically, interest income arising in connectigith the provision of loans to related or assagbarties should be generally
considered as income arising from activities clpseinnected with the ordinary carrying on of a hass and should, as such, be exempt from
Cypriot Defense Tax and only be subject to Corgohiatome Tax.

Tax deductibility of expenses, including interegpense

The general principle of the Cyprus income tax isithat for an expense to be allowed as a deduittinost have been incurred wholly
and exclusively for the production of taxable in@m

The Tax Circular 2008/14 issued by the Cypriotdathorities provides guidance as to the tax debiligtiof expenses incurred in
relation to the production of income which is exérfnpm (Corporate) Income Tax such as dividend meand profits/ gains on sale of
securities. According to that tax circular:

(a) Any expenditure that can be directly or indilgbe attributed to income that is exempt from irot deductible for CIT purposes ¢
cannot be set-off against other (taxable) sourt@zxome.

(b) Any expenditure that is attributable to botketale and exempt income (i.e. general overheads)ldloe apportioned based on a gros:
revenue ratio or based on an asset ratio. The yaxghould select the method which is more appatg@and should use this method on a
consistent basis.
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Interest incurred in connection with acquisitioirédtly or indirectly) of shares in a 100% ownetbsidiary company as of 1 January
2012 (irrespective of the tax residency statudiefdubsidiary) shall be deductible for Cypriot paxposes. This would apply provided that the
assets of the subsidiary do not include assetasett in the business. However in case the subgipaasesses such assets, the restriction on
interest at the level of the holding company isitid only to the amount relevant to these assets.

Arm’s length principle

There are no specific transfer pricing rules, or mansfer pricing documentation requirementshim €yprus tax laws.

However, the arm’s length principle in the Cypmisame tax law requires that all transactions betwetated parties should be carried
out on the at an arm’s length basis, being atMaines and on normal commercial terms.

More specifically, under the arm’s length principléhere conditions are made or imposed upon thevaneial or financial relations of
two businesses which differ from those which wowddle been made between independent parties, afig pvhich would have accrued to one
of the party had the two businesses been indepérugrhave not so accrued, may be included irptbéts of that business and taxed
accordingly.

Stamp duty
Cyprus levies stamp duty on an instrument if;
« itrelates to any property situated in Cyprus
» itrelates to any matter or thing which is perfodhoe done in Cyprus
There are documents which are subject to stampid@yprus at a fixed fee (ranging from €0.05 t&¥Xa8nd documents which are

subject to stamp duty based on the value of thardeat. The above obligation arises irrespectiwetadther the instrument is executed in
Cyprus or abroad.

A liability to stamp duty may arise on acquisitiohshares and such stamp duty would be payableanthershares acquisition documents
are executed in Cyprus or later brought into Cy@asithe company’s shares that underlie the shaagdmconsidered to be Cypriot property.

The stamp duty rates are as follows:
» for contracts with a value €1 t0€5,000, there is no stamp duty payal
» the stamp duty i€1.50 per thousand for contracts with a value f€5,001 tc€170,000; ant
» the stamp duty i€2 per thousand for contracts with a value excee€170,000, with a cap €20,000.

Any documents that do not specify values incuragt duty of EUR35. In cases where the stamp dutgr@issioner can estimate the
value of a document, he or she has the authoritypese stamp duty as per the above rates.
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Withholding taxes on interest

No withholding taxes shall apply in Cyprus withpest to payments of interest by the company to @gprus tax resident lenders (both
corporations and individuals).

There should be no withholding tax in Cyprus omriiast paid by the company to Cyprus tax residentdes when the interest is
considered as interest accruing from the ordinargyang on of their business, or interest closalgrected with the ordinary carrying on of
their business.

Any payment of interest which is not considereihéerest accruing from the ordinary carrying oradfusiness or interest income closely
connected with the ordinary carrying on of a buséney the company to Cypriot tax resident (botipomations and individuals) lenders shal
subject to Cypriot Defense Tax at the rate of 30.@#ereby the company is required to withhold stachfrom the interest.

Capital duty

Capital duty is payable to the Registrar of Comeain respect of the registered authorised shaitataf a Cypriot company upon its
incorporation and upon subsequent increases thereon

The capital duty rates are as follows:
* 0.6% on the nominal value of the authorized shapétal; anc

» €17 flat duty on every issue, whether the sharessaued at their (par) nominal value or at a (Sharemium.

United States Federal Income Tax Considerations

The following discussion sets forth the U.S. fetlereome tax consequences to U.S. Holders (as e¢tirelow) of the ownership and
disposition of our ADSs or ordinary shares. Theuwlsion is not a complete analysis or listing bbhthe possible tax consequences and doe:
not address all tax considerations that may beaeleto investors in light of their particular airastances. Special rules that are not discusse
in the general descriptions below may also appiydrticular, the description of U.S. federal ineotax consequences deals only with U.S.
Holders that own our ADSs or ordinary shares agtalagssets. In addition, the description of Ueldral income tax consequences does not
address the tax treatment of special classes ofHlbl8ers, such as banks and other financial utgtits, insurance companies, persons holdin
our ADSs or shares as part of a “straddle,” “hedgmpreciated financial position,” “conversion migaction” or other risk reduction strategy,
U.S. expatriates, persons liable for alternativeimum tax, brokers or dealers in securities orencies, holders whose “functional currency”
not the U.S. dollar, regulated investment compamezd estate investment trusts, partnershipsripeatity treated as a partnership for U.S.
federal income tax purposes) and other pass-threntities, traders in securities who have eledtedhark-tomarket method of accounting 1
their securities, individual retirement account®tirer tax-deferred accounts, holders who acquihedes pursuant to the exercise of an
employee stock option or right or otherwise as censation, tax-exempt entities, and investors who dinectly, indirectly through certain
non-U.S. entities, or constructively 10% or morehaf voting power or value of our aggregate shawtstanding. The following discussion
does not address any tax consequences arising thadiamws of any U.S. state or local or foreignsgdiction, or under any U.S. federal laws
other than those pertaining to income tax.

The discussion is based on the laws of the Unitate$, including the Internal Revenue Code of 188@&mended, or the Code, its
legislative history, Treasury regulations promudghthereunder, judicial decisions, and publishdidgs and administrative pronouncements o
the U.S. Internal Revenue Service, or the IRSQs@lh effect at the date of this annual report,amdof which may change, possibly with
retroactive effect. Further, there can be no asserthat the IRS will not disagree with or will ridtallenge any of the conclusions reached an
described herein. The discussion is also basqmirin on representations by the depositary anchassthat each obligation under the deposit
agreement and any related agreement will be peddimaccordance with its terms.

In General
For purposes of this discussion, a “U.S. Holde®d tseneficial owner of our ADSs or ordinary shahes is:
» acitizen or individual resident of the United $&

e acorporation, or other entity treated as gaomtion for U.S. federal income tax purposes, ihateated in or organized under the
laws of the United States, any state thereof obiistrict of Columbia
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* an estate whose income is subject to United Statisal income tax regardless of its source

» atrustif either (1) a United States courlide to exercise primary supervision over the a@stration of the trust and one or more
U.S. persons have the authority to control all farigal decisions of the trust or (2) the trust haslid election in effect to be
treated as a U.S. person under applicable Treasgufations

If an entity treated as a partnership for U.S. fatimcome tax purposes holds our ADSs or ordirstiares, the U.S. federal income tax
treatment of such partnership and each partnegerierally depend on the status and the activifitise partnership and the partner.
Partnerships that hold our ADSs or ordinary shamed,partners in such partnerships, should cotiseilt tax advisers regarding the U.S.
federal, state and local and non-U.S. tax consamseapplicable to them of the ownership and disiposdf our ADSs or ordinary shares.

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, U.S. HoldésDSs generally will be treated as the ownerthefordinary shares represented by
the ADSs. Accordingly, except as otherwise notked,U.S. federal income tax consequences discussed hpply equally to U.S. Holders of
ADSs or the underlying ordinary shares.

Holders should consult their tax advisers regardinghe particular tax consequences to them of the ovenship and disposition of
our ADSs or ordinary shares under the laws of the bited States (federal, state and local) or any otheelevant taxation jurisdiction.

Taxation of Distributions

Subject to the discussion under “— Passive Forlxigastment Companies” below, the gross amountdi$@ibution made by us with
respect to the ordinary shares underlying our Ax&$iding the full amount of any Cypriot withhofdj tax thereon, will be a dividend for
U.S. federal income tax purposes includible inghess income of a U.S. Holder to the extent paidobour current or accumulated earnings
and profits (as determined for U.S. federal incaaxepurposes). Such dividends will not be eligilolethe dividends received deduction
allowed to corporations. Because we do not interdintain calculations of our earnings and pradiighe basis of United States federal
income tax principles, U.S. Holders should explkat tiny distribution paid will generally be reparte them as a “dividend” for U.S. federal
income tax purposes. Dividends received by indiaidand other non-corporate U.S. Holders of our Ab@&t are traded on Nasdaq will be
eligible for beneficial rates of taxation providee are not a PFIC during the year in which theddind is paid or the prior taxable year and
certain other requirements, including stock holdiegiod requirements, are satisfied by the rectpidrs. Holders should consult their tax
advisors regarding the application of the releval#s to their particular circumstances.

Dividends will be included in a U.S. Holder’s inceran the date of the U.S. Holder’s (or in the a#s&DSs, the Depository’s) receipt of
the dividend. The amount of any dividend incomelpaia foreign currency will be the U.S. dollar ambcalculated by reference to the
exchange rate in effect on the date of receipgndigss of whether the payment is in fact converteddU.S. dollars. If the dividend is
converted into U.S. dollars on the date of rec&ip®. holders should not be required to recogrozein currency gain or loss in respect of
dividend income. A U.S. Holder may have foreignreacy gain or loss if the dividend is converteaibtS. dollars after the date of receipt.

Sale or Other Disposition of ADSs or Ordinary Shars

Subject to the discussion under “— Passive Forlxigastment Companies” below, a U.S. Holder gengmalll recognize capital gain or
loss for U.S. federal income tax purposes uporeaaother disposition of its ADSs in an amount&@do the difference between the amount
realized from such sale or disposition and the Bi@der’s adjusted tax basis in such ADSs, in ezde, as determined in U.S. dollars. Such
capital gain or loss will be long-term capital géiaxable at a reduced rate for non-corporate Hdikders, such as individuals) or loss if, on the
date of sale or disposition, such ADSs were heldumnh U.S. Holder for more than one year. The dauility of capital losses is subject to
significant limitations.

If a Russian tax is imposed on the sale or otheyatiition of our ADSs or ordinary shares, a U.9delds amount realized will include
the gross amount of the proceeds before deductitredRussian tax. See “—Russian Tax ConsiderafR@levant to the Purchase, Ownership
and Disposition of the ADSs” for a description dfiem a disposition may be subject to taxation bysRu8ecause a U.S. Holder's gain from
the sale or other disposition of ADSs or ordindrgres will generally be U.S. source gain, a U.9delomay be unable to claim a credit aga
its U.S. federal tax liability for any Russian tax gains. In lieu of claiming a foreign tax creditl).S. Holder may elect to deduct foreign taxe:s
including the Russian tax, in computing taxableome, subject to generally applicable limitationslenU.S. law. U.S. Holders should consult
their tax advisers as to whether any Russian tagaims may be creditable against U.S. federal irctam on foreign source income from other
sources.
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The surrender of ADSs in exchange for ordinary ahor vice versa) will not result in the realipatiof gain or loss for U.S. federal
income tax purposes, and U.S. Holders will not gaize any gain or loss upon such a surrender. A HoBler’s tax basis in withdrawn shares
will be the same as such holder’s tax basis irAID&s surrendered, and the holding period of theeshaill include the holdes’ holding periot
for the ADSs.

Passive Foreign Investment Companies

In general, a non-U.S. corporation will be classifas a passive foreign investment company, or KBt@.S. federal income tax
purposes, if either (i) 75% or more of its grossoime consists of certain types of “passive” incaméi) 50% or more of the fair market value
of its assets (determined on the basis of a qUpadeerage) produce or are held for the produatibpassive income. For this purpose, cash is
categorized as a passive asset and our unbooleedjibtes will be taken into account and generafipted as non-passive assets. We will be
treated as owning our proportionate share of tketasand earning our proportionate share of theniecof any other corporation in which we
own, directly or indirectly, 25% or more (by valu=f)the shares.

We do not believe that we were a PFIC for the texgbar ended December 31, 2014. We do not antécipging a PFIC for our current
taxable year or in the foreseeable future, althaugltan make no assurances in this regard. Ouissaata PFIC in any year depends on our
assets and activities in that year. We have nmretsbelieve that our assets or activities withiegje in a manner that would cause us to be
classified as a PFIC for the current taxable yedowoany future year. Because, however, PFIC statfactual in nature, may depend in part or
fluctuations in the market price of our ADSs, isettenined annually, and generally cannot be detexchimtil the close of the taxable year,
there can be no assurance that we will not be dersil a PFIC for any taxable year. We could bel& FBr example, if our business and
assets evolve in ways that are different from wiwaturrently anticipate. Furthermore, it is possithiat the IRS may challenge our valuatio
our goodwill and other unbooked intangibles, whiaay result in our company being classified as a&PFlI

If we are classified as a PFIC for any taxable ykaimg which a U.S. Holder holds our ADSs, the WH8Ider will generally be subject
an increased amount of taxes and an interest cheligeacterization of any gain from the sale othexge of our ADSs as ordinary income,
other disadvantageous tax treatment with respemtité\DSs unless the U.S. Holder may make a maikddket election (as described below).
Further, if we are classified as a PFIC for anyatde year during which a U.S. Holder holds our AR8d any of our non-U.S. subsidiaries is
also a PFIC, such U.S. Holder would be treatedrasy a proportionate amount (by value) of the skaf each such non-U.S. subsidiary
classified as a PFIC (each such subsidiary, a |beePFIC) for purposes of the application of thesles. U.S. Holders should consult their tay
advisors regarding the application of the PFICgtiteany of our subsidiaries.

As an alternative to the foregoing rules, a U.3d&oof “marketable stock” in a PFIC may make akrarmarket election. A mark-to-
market election may be made with respect to our $\[p8ovided they are actively traded, defined lids purpose as being traded on a
“qualified exchange,” other than in de minimis gtitis, on at least 15 days during each calendartgy but may not be made with respect to
our ordinary shares as they are not marketablé&.ste anticipate that our ADSs should qualify ambectively traded, but no assurances
be given in this regard. If a U.S. Holder of our 8®makes this election, the U.S. Holder will getyekd include as income for each taxable
year the excess, if any, of the fair market valileus ADSs held at the end of the taxable year dveradjusted tax basis of such ADSs
(i) deduct as a loss the excess, if any, of thjested tax basis of our ADSs over the fair marladtig of such ADSs held at the end of the
taxable year, but only to the extent of the netam@reviously included in income as a result ef thark-to-market election. The U.S. Holder’
adjusted tax basis in our ADSs would be adjustaéflect any income or loss resulting from the mrknarket election. In addition, any gain
such U.S. Holder recognizes upon the sale or atisposition of our ADSs will be treated as ordinarxgome and any loss will be treated as
ordinary loss, but only to the extent of the nebant previously included in income as a resulthef inark to market election. If a U.S. Holder
makes a mark-to-market election in respect of aa@tion classified as a PFIC and such corporat&ases to be classified as a PFIC, the U.S
Holder will not be required to take into accourd tiain or loss described above during any periatishich corporation is not classified as a
PFIC. In the case of a U.S. Holder who has heldAdd®s during any taxable year in respect of whiehwere classified as a PFIC and
continues to hold such ADSs (or any portion théraofl has not previously made a mark-to-marketielecand who is considering making a
mark-to-market election, special tax rules may wypelating to purging the PFIC taint of such ADBscause a mark-to-market election canno
be made for any lower tier PFICs that we may owd,& Holder may continue to be subject to the Pfl€s with respect to such U.S.
Holder’s indirect interest in any investments higydus that are treated as an equity interest iRI€ For U.S. federal income tax purposes.
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We do not intend to provide the information neceséar U.S. Holders of our ADSs to make qualifiddating fund elections, which, if
available, would result in tax treatment differéoim the general tax treatment for PFICs descridsul/e.

If a U.S. Holder owns our ADSs during any taxal#anthat we are a PFIC, such U.S. Holder may bgsuto certain reporting
obligations with respect to our ADSs, includingagng on IRS Form 8621.

Each U.S. Holder should consult its tax adviserceoning the U.S. federal income tax consequencpsrghasing, holding, and dispos
of our ADSs or ordinary shares if we are or becatassified as a PFIC, including the possibilitynodking a mark-to-market.

An individual U.S. Holder and certain entities m@yrequired to submit to the IRS certain informatigth respect to his or her benefic
ownership of the ADSs, if such ADSs are not heldhiznor her behalf by a financial institution. Thasv also imposes penalties if an individual
U.S. Holder is required to submit such informatiorthe IRS and fails to do so. U.S. Holders shaoaldsult their tax advisors regarding
application of the information reporting rules.

Russian Tax Considerations Relevant to the Purchas®wnership and Disposition of the ADSs

The following is a summary of material Russian¢arsequences relevant to the purchase, ownerstigigposition of the ADSs. The
summary is based on the laws of the Russian Feoleiiateffect on the date of this annual report.dklthe foregoing is subject to change,
possibly on a retroactive basis, after the dath®fannual report. The discussion with respectussian legislation is based on our
understanding of current Russian law and Russkanutas, which are subject to frequent change amging interpretations.

The summary does not seek to address the appitgadfiland procedures in relation to, taxes levigdhe regions and municipalities of
the Russian Federation. Nor does the summary sesdtdress the availability of double tax treatyefelind it should be noted that there ma
practical difficulties involved in claiming reliefinder an applicable double tax treaty. Prospetidlders should consult their own advisers
regarding the tax consequences of investing ilfAb8s and no representations with respect to thsiRusax consequences of investing,
owning or disposing of the ADSs to any particulalder is made hereby.

General

Many aspects of Russian tax law, including Rustarrules applicable to ADSs, are subject to sigaift uncertainty and lack
interpretive guidance. Further, the substantiverigions of Russian tax law applicable to finanaistruments may be subject to more rapid
unpredictable change (including with a retroactffect) and inconsistency than in jurisdictionshaitore developed capital markets or more
developed taxation systems. In particular, therpntgation and application of such provisions wiilpractice, rest substantially with local tax
inspectorates. In practice, the interpretatioragflaw by different tax inspectorates may be in®iast or contradictory and may result in the
imposition of conditions, requirements or restdo8 not provided for by the existing legislatiommfarly, in the absence of binding precede
court rulings on tax or related matters by difféfl@assian courts relating to the same or similanuchstances may be inconsistent or
contradictory.

For the purposes of this summary, a “non-residefttdr” means a holder of ADSs who is:

e anindividual actually present in the Russiadération for an aggregate period of less thanca8hdar days (including days of
arrival to the Russian Federation and includingsdafydeparture from the Russian Federation) ing@amod comprising 12
consecutive months. Presence in Russia for tadarsy purposes is not considered interrupted fandimidual's short term
absences (of less than 6 months) from the Russidarktion for medical treatment or education. Tiberpretation of this definition
by the Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federatinggests that for withholding tax purposes aividdal’s tax residence status
should be determined on the date of income pay(ased on the number of Russian days in the 12fmeriod preceding the
date of payment). The individual's final tax ligbjilin the Russian Federation for the reportingeodlr year should be determined
based on the number of days spent in the Russider&t@on in such calendar year;

» alegal entity or organisation, which is nogamised under Russian law and not effectively maddigpm the Russian Federation,
which purchases, holds and/or disposes of the Aidigrwise than through a permanent establishmeahgiRussian Federation (as
defined by Russian tax law
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For the purposes of this summary, a “Russian residelder” is a holder of ADSs who is not qualifiedbe a non-resident holder defined
in the previous paragraph.

Russian tax residency rules may be affected bypphcable double tax treaty.

Non-resident holders

Generally, a non-resident holder of ADSs shouldh&subject to any Russian taxes in respect aflalisions made by us with respect to
class B shares underlying the ADSs.

Legal entities or organisations

A non+esident holder that is a legal entity or orgamisagenerally should not be subject to any Rustaas in respect of the purchas
the ADSs, any gain or other income realised orsttie, exchange or other disposal of the ADSs.

Individuals

A non-resident holder who is an individual shoutd generally be subject to Russian taxes in resgfeamy gains realised on the sale,
exchange or other disposal of ADSs, provided thaiproceeds of such sale, exchange or disposabareceived from a source within Russia.

In the event that the proceeds from a sale, ex@handisposal of ADSs are deemed to be received &source within Russia, a non-
resident holder that is an individual may be sutfjedrussian tax in respect of such proceeds atieaof 30 % of the gain (such gain being
computed as the sales price less any availablenderied cost deduction, including the acquisitidngpof the ADSs and other documented
expenses, such as depositary expenses and brides}’ subject to any available double tax trealief, provided that the necessary
requirements to qualify for the treaty relief ahd fppropriate administrative requirements undeRihissian tax legislation have been met. Fo
example, holders of ADSs that are eligible for bleaefits of the United States—Russia double taatyrshould generally not be subject to tax
in Russia on any gain arising from the disposa\Dfs, provided that the gain is not attributabl@ feermanent establishment or a fixed base
that is or was located in Russia and/or provided lss than 50% of our fixed assets consist ofarrahle property situated in Russia (as
defined in the treaty). Because the determinatfomhether 50% or more of our fixed assets congighmovable property situated in Russia is
inherently factual and is made on an on-going hasid because the relevant Russian legislatiomendations are not entirely clear, there car
be no assurance that immovable property situat®iigsia does not currently, or will not, constitt@% or more of our assets. If 50% or more
of our assets were to consist of immovable propsttiated in Russia, the benefits of the UnitedeSta Russia double tax treaty may not be
available to an ADS holder.

According to Russian tax legislation, income reedifrom a sale, exchange or disposition of the ABI®sild be treated as having been
received from a Russian source if such sale, exgghandisposition occurs in Russia. Russian taxgass no clear indication as to how to
identify the source of income received from a sakghange or disposition of securities exceptiti@me received from the sale of securities
“in Russia” will be treated as having been receifreth a Russian source.

The taxable base is required to be calculatedblesuand, therefore, may be affected by fluctuatiorthe exchange rates of the
currencies used at the time of the acquisitionthedsale of the ADSs, the currency of sale of tBe&SA and rubles. The tax may be withheld at
source from payment only if the individual acts aigrofessional intermediary (such as trustee edelatoker or other intermediary acting to
benefit of the individual holder), otherwise thenresident individual shall be liable to file a taeturn and pay the tax due.

Additionally, acquisition of the ADSs by a non-m@snt holder who is an individual may constituteceable event pursuant to provisions
of the Russian Tax Code relating to the materiakfie(deemed income) received by individuals assallt of acquisition of securities. If the
acquisition price of the ADSs is below the lowerrgia of fair market value calculated under a spegifocedure for the determination of
market prices of securities for tax purposes, ffferénce may be subject to the Russian persocahie tax at a rate of 30% (arguably, this
would be subject to reduction or elimination untiher applicable double tax treaty).

As noted above with respect to the disposal oftb&s, under Russian tax legislation, taxation efitttome of non-resident holders who
are individuals will depend on whether this incommuld be assessed as received from Russian or non-
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Russian sources. Although Russian tax legislatmesdot contain any provisions on how the relatatenal benefit should be sourced, the tax
authorities may infer that such income should besitered as Russian source income if the ADSswaehpsed “in Russia”. In the absence of
any additional guidance as to what should be censitlas a purchase of securities “in Russia”, th&skn tax authorities may apply various
criteria in order to determine the source of tHateel material benefit, including looking at thag® of conclusion of the acquisition transactior
or other similar criteria.

Certain tax deductions may be available for nesident holders who are individuals provided theditions stipulated by the Russian
Code are met.

Non-resident holders who are individuals shouldseidtrtheir own tax advisors with respect to thedarsequences arising as a result of
acquisition or disposition of the ADSs and the igcef proceeds from source within the Russian Fetiten in respect of such disposition.

Double Tax Treaty Procedures

Where a non-resident holder of ADSs receives incioma a Russian source, the Russian tax (if applécander Russian domestic tax
law) may be reduced or eliminated in accordanch thi¢ provisions of a double tax treaty. Advaneatly relief should be available for those
eligible, subject to the requirements of the lafvRossia. In order for a non-resident holder todfiéfirom the applicable double tax treaty,
documentary evidence is required to confirm thdiegbility of the double tax treaty for which beitefare claimed. Currently, a non-resident
holder is required to provide a tax residence cordtion issued by the competent tax authority efrédevant treaty country (duly apostilled or
legalised, and translated into Russian). The taxlemcy confirmation needs to be renewed on anaasis, and provided before the first
payment of income in each calendar year. In additonon-resident who is an individual must pro\ageropriate documentary proof of tax
payments outside of Russia on income with respewatiich treaty benefits are claimed. Because ofitieertainties regarding the form and
procedures for providing such documentary prodafivilduals, in practice, may not be able to obtaluamnce treaty benefits on receipt of
proceeds from a source within Russia, and it caextremely difficult to obtain a refund.

Non-esident holders should consult their own tax aafgisegarding possible tax treaty relief and pracesifor obtaining such relief wi
respect to any Russian taxes imposed on proceeeised from a disposition of the ADSs.

Refund of Tax Withheld

If double tax treaty relief is available but Russtax has nevertheless been withheld at the safigayment, an application for the reft
of the taxes withheld may be made within three yé&am the end of the tax period in which the taaswvithheld for non-resident holders.

In order to obtain a refund, the non-resident hoisleequired to file with the Russian tax authHest among other documents, a duly
notarised, apostilled and translated certificatearfresidence issued by the competent tax aughafrthe relevant treaty country at the time the
income was paid, as well as documents confirmingip of such income and the withholding of Russ&a In addition, a non-resident holder
who is an individual is required to provide appiate documentary proof of tax payments made outsfidRussia with respect to which such
tax refund is claimed. The supporting papers dtmlprovided within one year after the year to whiahtreaty benefits relates for non-resident
holders who are individuals.

The Russian tax authorities may, in practice, negaiwide variety of documentation confirming thght to benefits under a double tax
treaty. Such documentation, in practice, may naicitly required by the Russian Tax Code. Qtitag a refund of Russian tax withheld
may be a time consuming process and can involvsiderable practicable difficulties.

Prospective non-resident holders should consuilt tiven tax advisors should they need to obtainfane of Russian taxes withheld on
any payments received with respect to the ADSs.

Resident holders

A Resident holder will generally be subject toaglplicable Russian taxes in respect of the purcbte ADSs and income received on
the ADSs, including gains from their sale, exchangether disposition.
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Resident holders should consult their own tax adsisvith respect to their tax position regarding ADSs.

F. Dividends and Paying Agents
Not applicable.

G. Statements by Experts
Not applicable.

H. Documents on Display.

We are subject to the periodic reporting and oitti@rmational requirements of the Exchange Act. &intthe Exchange Act, we are
required to file reports and other information witte SEC. Specifically, we are required to file aalty a Form 20-F within four months after
the end of each fiscal year, which is DecembeiC3ihies of reports and other information, when kmlfimay be inspected without charge and
may be obtained at prescribed rates at the pudfiicence facilities maintained by the Securitied Brchange Commission at 100 F Street,
N.E., Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549. The publy obtain information regarding the WashingtorG; CPublic Reference Room |
calling the Commission at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SIEG maintains a website at www.sec.gov that comtegports, proxy and information
statements, and other information regarding reayissrthat make electronic filings with the SEC gsts EDGAR system. As a foreign private
issuer, we are exempt from the rules under the &xgph Act prescribing the furnishing and conterjudrterly reports and proxy statements,
and officers, directors and principal shareholdeesexempt from the reporting and short-swing prefiovery provisions contained in
Section 16 of the Exchange Act.

l. Subsidiary Information.

Not applicable.

ITEM 11. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The main risks that could adversely affect ourriitial assets, liabilities or future cash flows imterest rate risk, foreign exchange risk,
liquidity and capital management risks and cradik.rOur management reviews and supports policemfinaging each of the risks
summarized below.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility tbla&nges in interest rates will affect future ciews or the fair values of financial
instruments. Our income and operating cash flowssabstantially independent of changes in marketést rates, because we have no
significant interest-bearing assets or liabiliteegept for borrowings and debt instruments witixad interest rate. We used fixed rate
instruments in 2012, 2013 and 2014. For a 1.0 p¢gige point decrease in interest rates, there wmaiidsignificant decrease in profit before
tax from continuing operations.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that fluctuationexchange rates will adversely affect itemsun statement of comprehensive income,
statement of financial position and/or cash flolareign currency denominated assets and liabilifies rise to foreign exchange exposure.

Our net assets in foreign currencies were not fogmit in 2012 and 2013. Taking into account tlmacitire of our net assets and the
exchange rates fluctuations in 2012 and 2014, muated foreign exchange risk as not significant.

During the June 2014 public offering, the Compargréased its issued share capital by 2,292,336 Blahares and U.S. $ 88,942,404,
Due to appreciation of U.S. dollar rate againstedtom date of SPO to December 31, 2014 by apprateé 64% the Group received foreign
exchange gain in the amount of RUB 1,947 milliontfee year ended December 31, 2014. The GroupdsateEnuse these assets for settlement
of its U.S. dollar denominated obligations thathaiise from its M&A activity.
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The following tables demonstrate the sensitivita teasonably possible change in US Dollar and Kestan Tenge exchange rates, with
all other variables held constant. The Group’s expe to foreign currency changes for all otherengeies is not material.

Effect on profit Effect on
change in US Dolla before tax pre-tax equity
+29% 303,397 3,609
-29% (303,397) (3,609)
change in Kazakhstan Effect on profit Effect on
Tenge before tax pre-tax equity
+34% 67,050 71,247
- 34% (67,050) (71,247)

Liquidity risk and capital management

We use cash from shareholders’ contributions, Isawiécient cash and do not have any significanstutding debt other than interbank
debt with short maturities (classified as due fioenks). Deposits received from agents are als@dwkemand, but are usually offset against
future payments processed through agents. We edtpeicigent’s deposits will continue to be offspiast future payments and not be called
by the agents. Amounts due to customers and amduet#o banks and trade and other payables arerddemand.

The macroeconomic slowdown in Russia, caused amtheg things by dropping oil prices and sancti@gme, which effectively
limited the access to liquidity of the key Rusdirmks led to liquidity shortage in the market theu® operates. In addition, the Central Bank
of Russia while trying to prevent further devaloatbf the ruble increased the short-term rubledwimg rate to 17%. This exacerbated the
liquidity shortage on the market. As a consequebagks and entities in Russia substantially deedkasedit limits in their everyday
operations. Management noted that the Group’s raetstand partners started since the end of 20fdefteest from the Group larger collaterals
to hedge their risks. The Group was able to mattagge new requirements to date, though the liqugtibrtage in the market may further
exacerbate and consequently it may have furthemtiegeffects on Group operations which cannotde reliably estimated.

According to the requirements of the CBR, Qiwi Bantapital calculated based on Russian accountarglards should be not less than
10% of assets adjusted by risk. As of DecembePB14, Qiwi Banks capital as a percentage of assets adjustedibwais 14% as comparec
11% as of December 31, 2013, thereby exceedingethered level in each respective period. Qiwi Bamdnitors the fulfillment of
requirements on a daily basis and sends the rep@BR on a monthly basis. During the year 2014i@ank breached the capital adequacy
ratio requirements of CBR once with no significaahsequence for the group. During the year 2013 Bamk met the capital adequacy
requirements of CBR.

As of December 31, 2014, the capital adequacy berfit adjusted by risk calculated in accordandd wie 1988 Basel Capital Accord
consisted of 39%, as compared with 31% as of Deeeib, 2013 and 26% as of December 31, 2012, whickeded the minimum level
established by the agreement of 8%.

We manage our capital structure and makes adjussnieit, in light of changes in economic condiBofapital includes share capital,
additional paidin capital, other reserves and translation res@rganaintain or adjust the capital structure, wey medurn capital to sharehold:
or issue new shares. Currently, we require cajmtfihance our growth, but we generate sufficieaghcfrom our operations. The table below
summarizes the maturity profile of our financialdilities based on contractual undiscounted paysn@nbf December 31, 2014.

Within More than
Due:
Total On demanc ayear ayear
(in RUB millions)

Long-term and sho-term borrowings 43 — 1 42
Trade and other payabl 20,18: 20,18( — 1

Amounts due to customers and amounts due to t 1,001 1,001 — —
Total as of December 31, 201 21,22t 21,18 1 43

Credit risk

Financial assets, which potentially subject us @mdsubsidiaries and associates to credit risksisbprincipally of trade receivables,
loans receivable issued, cash and short-term imergt. We sell services on a prepayment basissareithat our receivables are from
customers with an appropriate credit history —dargerchants and agents with sufficient and appatgodredit history. Our receivables from
merchants and others, except for agents, are dgneoa-interest-bearing and do not require coliateReceivables and loans from agents are
interestbearing and unsecured. We hold cash primarily véputable Russian and international banks, inctudantral Bank of Russia, whi
management considers having minimal risk of defalthough credit ratings of Russian and Kazaktkbame generally lower than those of
banks in more developed markets. Short-term investsninclude fixed-rate debt instruments issuethbytop Russian banks.
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The carrying amount of accounts receivable, natlofvance for impairment of receivables, represt#msmaximum amount exposed to
credit risk for this type of receivables. The tabédow demonstrates the largest counterpartieginoals and revenues, as a percentage of
respective totals:

Trade and other receivables Revenue
As of As of As of
December 31 December 31 December 31
Concentration of credit risks by main counterpatrties, % from total amount 2012 2013 2014 201z 201< 201<
Top 5 60% 33% 36% 24% 16% 8%
Others 40% 67% 64% 76% 84% 92%

Collection of receivables could be influenced bgresmic factors. Management believes that there isignificant risk of loss to us
beyond the allowance already recorded.

ITEM 12. Description of Securities Other Than Equity Securites
A. Debt Securities.
Not applicable.

B. Warrants and Rights.
Not applicable.

C. Other Securities.
Not applicable.

D. American Depositary Shares

Fees and Expenses

Persons depositing or withdrawing class B shares &DS holders must pay: For:

U.S.$5.00 (or less) per 100 ADSs (or portion of AISS) e Issuance of ADSs, including issuances regyftiom a
distribution of class B shares or rights or otheperty

e Cancellation of ADSs for the purpose of wittaal, including
if the deposit agreement terminates

U.S.$0.05 (or less) per ADS e Any cash distribution to ADS holders

A fee equivalent to the fee that would be payabdecurities distributed « Distribution of securities distributed to hetd of deposited
to you had been class B shares and the class Bsshad been deposited securities which are distributed by the depositarpDS

for issuance of ADSs holders

U.S.$0.05 (or less) per ADSs per calendar year » Depositary services

Registration or transfer fees » Transfer and registration of class B shares orsbare registe

to or from the name of the depositary or its agémen you
deposit or withdraw class B shares

Expenses of the depositary + Cable, telex and facsimile transmissions (wéepressly
provided in the deposit agreement)

« converting foreign currency to U.S. dollars

Taxes and other governmental charges the depositdhe custodian * As necessary
have to pay on any ADS or share underlying an AibSexample, stock
transfer taxes, stamp duty or withholding taxes

Any charges incurred by the depositary or its agémt servicing the As necessary

deposited securitie
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The depositary collects its fees for delivery andender of ADSs directly from investors depositatgss B shares or surrendering ADSS
for the purpose of withdrawal or from intermediaréeting for them. The depositary collects feesriaking distributions to investors by
deducting those fees from the amounts distributday/selling a portion of distributable propertygay the fees. The depositary may collect its
annual fee for depositary services by deductiomfeash distributions or by directly billing investr by charging the book-entry system
accounts of participants acting for them. The diéansmay generally refuse to provide fee-basedises until its fees for these services are
paid.

From time to time, the depositary may make paymtnts to reimburse and/or class B share revermume tine fees collected from ADS
holders, or waive fees and expenses for servia@sded, generally relating to costs and expensemgrout of establishment and maintenance
of the ADS program. In performing its duties untlex deposit agreement, the depositary may use tsodtealers or other service providers
are affiliates of the depositary and that may earshare fees or commissions.

Payment of Taxes

You will be responsible for any taxes or other goveental charges payable on your ADSs or on thesl&gu securities represented by
any of your ADSs. The depositary may refuse tostegiany transfer of your ADSs or allow you to wlittw the deposited securities
represented by your ADSs until such taxes or atharges are paid. It may apply payments owed tooyaell deposited securities representec
by your ADSs to pay any taxes owed and you willagmiable for any deficiency. If the depositaryiseleposited securities, it will, if
appropriate, reduce the number of ADSs to refleetstale and pay to ADS holders any proceeds, artseADS holders any property,
remaining after it has paid the taxes.
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PART II

ITEM 13. Defaults, Dividend Arrearages and Delinquencie

None.

ITEM 14.  Material Modifications to the Rights of Security Holders and Use of Proceeds

None.

ITEM 15. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The company’s management, with the participatiothefcompany’s chief executive officer and chiagficial officer, evaluated the
effectiveness of the company’s disclosure contal$ procedures as of December 31, 2014. The teisolédure controls and procedures,” as
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) undeEttelhange Act, means controls and other proceddr@sompany that are designed to
ensure that information required to be disclosed lbpmpany in the reports that it files or submitger the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported, within the piends specified in the SE€Ctules and forms. Disclosure controls and proesiinclude
without limitation, controls and procedures desijteensure that information required to be disaiiosy a company in the reports that it files
or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulatédcammunicated to the company’s management, inaduidé principal executive and
principal financial officers, as appropriate tooalltimely decisions regarding required disclositanagement recognizes that any controls an
procedures, no matter how well designed and opkratan provide only reasonable assurance of actydheir objectives and management
necessarily applies its judgment in evaluatingabst-benefit relationship of possible controls anacedures. Based on the evaluation of the
company’s disclosure controls and procedures &eoémber 31, 2014, the company’s chief executifieesfand chief financial officer
concluded that, as of such date, the company’sadigie controls and procedures were effectiveltmaiimely decisions regarding required
disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finangal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate “internal control over finahceporting,” as defined in
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Pus rule defines internal control over finaargporting as a process designed by, or
under the supervision of, a company’s chief exgeubificer and chief financial officer and effecteg our board of directors, management anc
other personnel, to provide reasonable assurageediag the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles and includes those fediand procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detlrately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transadi@nsecorded as necessary to permit preparatifinasfcial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, andréraipts and expenditures of the company are bmadg only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of émepany; and (3) provide reasonable assurance lieggytevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition ef¢tbmpany’s assets that could have a materialtaffethe financial statements.

Management assessed the design and operatingwaffeets of our internal control over financial repa as of December 31, 2014. T
assessment was performed under the direction gahasion of our chief executive officer and cHiefncial officer, and based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framédw®@®92) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring @egdions of the Treadway
Commission. Based on that evaluation, managememiuabed that as of December 31, 2014, our intexoatrol over financial reporting was
effective.

The effectiveness of our internal control over fio@l reporting as of December 31, 2014 has beditegliby Ernst&Young LLC, our
independent registered public accounting firm. Theport may be found below:
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Qiwigid subsidiaries

We have audited Qiwi plc and subsidiaries’ intewwitrol over financial reporting as of December 114, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framdwssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organinatif the Treadway Commission
(2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). Qiwi plc’s magement is responsible for maintaining effectiterinal control over financial reporting,
and for its assessment of the effectiveness ofriateontrol over financial reporting included hretaccompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our re@sgibility is to express an opinion on the compangternal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri@q@/nited States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigéaénternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe@is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etasting and evaluating the design and operatifegéfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonablezassuregarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of fingth statements for external purposes in accorduwiittelnternational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as endorsed by the European UanohlFRS as published by the IASB. A company’srimél control over financial
reporting includes those policies and proceduras(th) pertain to the maintenance of records thatasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of treetsof the company; (2) provide reasonable assertduat transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial stat@siin accordance with IFRS, and that receiptseapénditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngen@ent and directors of the company; and (3) peoxédsonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asigjon, use, or disposition of the company’s assleat could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @étisstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessutufe periods are subject to the risk that contrdy become inadequate because of chang
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Qiwi plc and subsidiaries maintaipa all material respects, effective internal wohover financial reporting as of
December 31, 2014, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated statement of financial position of Qe as of December 31, 2013 and 2014, and tlegiconsolidated statements of
comprehensive income, consolidated statementsasfgas in equity and consolidated cash flow statésrfeneach of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2014 and our report ddtedh 11, 2015 expressed an unqualified opinienebn.

/sl Ernst & Young LLC
Moscow, Russia

March 11, 2015

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

In 2014, we continued the implementation of ounptastrengthen our internal controls over finah@aorting, including by taking the
following actions:

» Developing and implementing approval and actiogrfor non-routine transactions and complex eates as well as additional
management review contro

» Hiring an external consultant to advise on cjeanto our internal control over financial repagtemd to participate in management’s
review of our financial statements and related fmpntal financial information; ar

» Recruiting additional qualified personnel with redat experience in IFRS accounting and repor

We believe these steps have enhanced the qualityrafternal controls and procedures during ther yaded December 31, 2014.
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ITEM 16. [RESERVED]
ITEM 16A. Audit Committee Financial Expert

Our board of directors has determined that Mr. MarfRhodes is an “audit committee financial expasttiefined in Item 16A of Form
20-F under the Exchange Act. Our board of diredi@s also determined that Mr. Rhodes satisfieSinldependence” requirements set forth in
Rule 10A-3 under the Exchange Act.

ITEM 16B. Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Ethics and Business Cotitht applies to all our employees, officers dirdctors, including our chief
executive officer and our chief financial officerxdaour principal accounting officer. Our Code ohigs and Business Conduct is available on
our website at http://investor.qiwi.com/documerfta.c

ITEM 16C. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The following table sets forth the aggregate feesdiegories specified below in connection withtaierprofessional services renderec
Ernst & Young, our principal external auditors, fbe periods indicated.

For the year ended December 3.

2013 2014
(in RUB millions)
Audit Fees 28 57
Audit Related Fee 26 11
Tax Fees 2 3
All Other Fees 3 2
Total 59 73

Audit Fees

Audit fees in 2013 and 2014 were related to thetafadur consolidated financial statements anceo#udit or interim review services
provided in connection with statutory and regulatiiings or engagements.
Audit-Related Fees

Audit-related fees in 2013 and 2014 were relatgatddessional services rendered in connection withinitial Public Offering and

Secondary Public Offering.

Tax Fees

Tax fees in 2013 and 2014 were related to tax ciamgé and tax planning services.

All Other Fees

All other fees in 2013 and 2014 relate to servinesnnection with corporate compliance matters.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

All audit and non-audit services provided by outapendent auditors must be pre-approved by out eoiimittee.

ITEM 16D. Exemptions from the Listing Standards for Audit Committees

None.

112



Table of Contents

ITEM 16E. Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and fiiated Purchasers

None.

ITEM 16F. Change in Registrant’s Certifying Accountant
None.

ITEM 16G. Corporate Governance

Our corporate affairs are governed by our memonanad articles of association and the provisioraspgilicable Cyprus law, including
the Companies Law and common law. The Companiesdifiers from laws applicable to U.S. corporati@ml their shareholders. The
following table provides a comparison between dergtatutory provisions of the Companies Law (tbgetwith the provisions of our articles
association) and the Delaware General Corporataw telating to shareholders’ rights.

Cyprus Delaware

Shareholder Meeting:

May be held at such time or place as specifieti@relevant notice give Annual shareholder meetings are typically helduahgime or place
in accordance with the Companies Law and artidessociation by the as designated in the certificate of incorporatiothe bylaws. A

board of directors if a general meeting is callgdhe board or by special meeting of shareholders may be called &ydard of
shareholders if called by such shareholders inrdece with the directors or by any other person authorized incérgificate of
Companies Law incorporation or bylaws

May be held in or outside Cyprt May be held inside or outside Delawe

Whenever shareholders are required to take angraatia meeting, a  Whenever shareholders are required to take angraatia meeting,
written notice of the meeting shall be given whitfall state the place, ifwritten notice of the meeting shall be given whittfall state the
any, date and hour of the meeting, and the meareufte place, if any, date and hour of the meeting, aedkeans of remote
communication, if any communication, if any

Shareholder's Voting Rights
Any person authorized to vote at a general meetiag authorize anoth Any person authorized to vote may authorize angbleeson or
person or persons to act for him by pro persons to act for him by prox

The articles of association shall specify the nunaf¢he shareholders torhe certificate of incorporation or bylaws may spethe number to
constitute a quorum. Further to the Companies ltasee members constitute a quorum, but in no event shall a quoconsist of less
personally present shall be a quorum unless thdembf association of than one third of the shares entitled to vote attieeting. In the
the company do not make other provision to thisctffFurther to our  absence of such specification, the majority ofghares entitled to
articles of association the quorum shall be 50.@1%he voting rights  vote, present in person or represented by proxall sbnstitute a
attached to our issued shares present and votipgréon or by proxy al quorum at a meeting of shareholders.

duly convened general meetir

When the share capital is divided into differemissles of shares separat&enerally, a certificate of incorporation may becated by the
voting takes place for each class of shares thsrigf which are effecte approval of shareholders holding a majority of dlistanding share
by the change. In accordance with the Companies tlendecision is  entitled to vote on the amendment. Shareholdersrgéiy have the
passed by a majority of two thirds of the votegesponding either to tt right to amend the corporation’s bylaws, but thdifieate of
represented securities or to the represented ishard capital if less  incorporation may instead confer this right ondirectors of the
than half of the issued share capital is represkesmte a simple majority corporation. Except as provided in the certificafténcorporation,
of at least half of the issued share capital iseggnted. Under our changes in the rights of shareholders as set iiotthe certificate of
articles of association, the decision is passed t®solution of seventy incorporation require approval of a majority ofstsareholders.
five per cent vote of the holders of the sharethefrelevant class, with

the sanction of a special resolution of a geneesting of our

shareholders

The articles of association may provide for cuniuéavoting. Cumulative voting is not permitted unless explicallowed in the
certificate of incorporatior
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Cyprus Delaware

Shareholder Meeting:

Directors

Under the Companies Law the board must consist lebat two Board must consist of at least one member.
members

Under the articles of association, the board staaikist of up to twelve Number of board members shall be fixed by the bglamless th

directors. A change in the number of directorsidhaldetermined by thecertificate of incorporation fixes the number ofetitors, in which

general meeting of the shareholders. case a change in the number shall be made onlyneyp@ment of th
certificate of incorporatior

Under the Companies Law, directors can be appoimyegither the Unless otherwise specified in the certificate afirporation or
general meeting of shareholders or board of direcur articles of bylaws, directors are elected by a plurality of Wo&es of the shares
association provide for a specific procedure oftabg directors entitled to vote on the election of directc

Under the Companies Law, directors can be remoyexhtordinary Barring certain exceptions, any director or therertioard of

resolution of the general meeting of shareholdaraddition, our article directors may be removed, with or without causethgyholders of a
of association provide that if the board of direstexercises its right to majority, or in some cases the supermajority, efghares entitled to
appoint a director to fill a vacancy on the boan@mbers representing vote at an election of directors.

10.01% of the voting rights attached to our isssteares may, subject to

following a specific procedure, terminate the appoient of the boarc

As a foreign private issuer, we have elected ttm¥olCyprus corporate Directors do not have to be independent.
governance practices, which, unlike the applichtdedaq requirements

for domestic issuers, do not require the majoritglicectors to be

independent. Under the Companies Law, directonsaddnave to be

independent. Further to the articles of associatimaBoard shall conta

not less than 3 independent direct

Fiduciary Duties

Directors and officers must act in good faith, viltle care of a prudent Directors have a duty of care and a duty of loytdtyhe corporation

person, and in the best interest of the company. and its shareholders. The duty of care requirgsatldirector act in
good faith, with the care of a prudent person, iarttie best interest
of the corporation. The duty of loyalty requireatth director act in
manner he reasonably believes to be in the besests of the
corporation

Directors and officers must refrain from self-daegliusurping corporate Directors and officers must refrain from self-degliusurping

opportunities and receiving improper personal bignef corporate opportunities and receiving improper geas benefits, ar
ensure that the best interest of the corporatiahitarshareholders
take precedence over any interest possessed bgcaadior officer
and not shared by the shareholders generally. Gcstor
transactions in which one or more of the corporasidirectors has
an interest are allowed assuming (a) the sharetsotdehe board of
directors must approve in good faith any such @mtor transaction
after full disclosure of the material facts or (b¢ contract or
transaction must have been “fair” as to the corjpamaat the time it
was approvec

Under the Companies Law, the directors have toadle¢he nature of  Directors may vote on a matter in which they havéngerest so lon
their interest (either direct or indirect) in tramons at a meeting of the as the director has disclosed any interests itrémsaction
directors of the company. Under our articles obaggion, directors ma

not vote on a matter in which they have an integgen if the director hi

disclosed any interests in the transact
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Cyprus

Delaware

Shareholder Meeting:

Actions by Written Consent

A unanimous written resolution of all directors Maé as valid as if it he

been passed at a duly convened meeting of the lobalidectors

A unanimous written resolution of all shareholdei be as valid as if it

had been passed at a duly convened general meeting.

Business Combinations

Dissolution of the company, assuming it is solveaquires a resolution
of the board of directors and a special resoluibtine general meeting.

Sale, lease or exchange of assets require a nesobitthe board of
directors.

Completion of a merger or consolidation requiressmlution of the
board of directors and a special resolution ofgleeral meeting

Depending on the form of a relevant combinatiaoeduires a board of

directors’ resolution at which the directors rethte interested
shareholders have no right to vote and/or a spezsalution of the
general meeting at which the interested sharet®ldeuld not be
precluded from voting

Shareholder's Derivative Actions

In any derivative suit instituted by a shareholoiea corporation, it shall
be averred in the complaint that the plaintiff véashareholder of the
corporation at the time of the transaction of whiehcomplains or that
such shareholder’s stock thereafter devolved upch shareholder by

operation of law.
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A written consent of the directors must be unanisimutake effect

Unless otherwise provided in the certificate ofarporation, any
action to be taken at any shareholder meeting reagphken by
written consent of the holders of outstanding stagking not less
than the minimum number of votes that would be ssaey to take
that action at a meeting at which all shareholeetgled to vote
were present and vote

Completion of a merger, consolidation, or the salase or
exchange of substantially all of a corporation’seds or dissolution
requires approval by the board of directors and byajority
(unless the certificate of incorporation requirdsgher percentag:
of outstanding stock of the corporation entitledote.

Business combinations with interested shareholeeypgire a
special shareholder vot

A shareholder may bring a derivative action on iatfahe
corporation to enforce the rights of the corporatio any
derivative suit instituted by a shareholder of goowation, it shall
be averred in the complaint that the plaintiff veashareholder of
the corporation at the time of the transaction bfol he complains
or that such shareholder’s stock thereafter dexbhyon such
shareholder by operation of la

The complaint shall set forth with particularityetefforts of the
plaintiff to obtain the action by the board or teasons for not
making such effort.

Such action shall not be dismissed or compromisiéubwt the
approval of the Chancery Court.

If we were a Delaware corporation, a shareholdeysgtshares
were cancelled in connection with our dissolutieould not be
able to bring a derivative action against us dfterclass B shares
have been cancelle
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Exemptions From Nasdaq Corporate Governance Requiraents

The Nasdag Marketplace Rules, or the Nasdaq Rulegide that foreign private issuers may follow leoountry practice in lieu of the
corporate governance requirements of the Nasdatk 8Market LLC, subject to certain exceptions amguisezments and except to the extent
that such exemptions would be contrary to U.S.fa@dsecurities laws and regulations. The significiifierences between our corporate
governance practices and those followed by U.S pemnies under the Nasdaq Listing Rules are sumnubaizéollows:

We follow home country practice that permits baard of directors to consist of less than a nitgjof independent directors, in
lieu of complying with Rule 5605(b)(1) of the NasdRules that requires that the board of directorsist of a majority of
independent directors. Currently, six members oftmard of directors that comprises eleven memdsersndependent with the
meaning of the Nasdaq Listing Rul

We follow home country practice that permits ouatzbof directors not to implement a nominations potiee or for directors to k
nominated by a majority of our independent dirextor lieu of complying with Rule 5605(e) of the $diaq Rules that requires the
implementation of a nominations committee or thenmation of directors by a majority of the indepentldirectors. Subject to the
rights of shareholders under Cyprus law to nomidatectors to our board, the methodology by whigkaors are nominated to ¢
board is as set forth “Board of Directors Appointment of Directc”

We follow home country practice that permits ustaodbold regular executive sessions where onlypedeent directors are prese
in lieu of complying with Rule 5605(b)(2) of the 8tkaq Rules that requires that regular executivei@es are held where only
independent directors are present. We do not fegjdlar executive sessior

We follow home country practice that permits oampensation committee to not consist entirelindépendent directors, in lieu of
complying with Rule 5605(d) (1) of the Nasdaq Rulest requires that the board of directors haverapensation committee
consisting of entirely independent directors. lditidn, although our compensation committee chaitevides that the
compensation committee may, in its sole discretietain a compensation consultant, our compensatiommittee charter does not
include all enumerated matters concerning reterdfa@ompensation consultants as set forth in RG@58)(3) of the Nasdaq Ruli

Our board of directors has not made any detatitin with respect to the Company’s intentiondibofv Rule 5635 of the Nasdaq
Rules, relating to matters requiring shareholdg@rayal. Cypriot law and our articles of associaf@mmit us to take action without
shareholder approval in many instances where Ra8& Would require us to seek shareholder appravalarticular, Cypriot law
and our articles of association permit us, withrapal of our board of directors and without shatdapapproval, to take the
following actions:

. Acquiring the stock or assets of another corgpauere such acquisition results in the issuai@9® or more of our
outstanding share capital or voting power, in casttto Rule 5635(a) of the Nasdaqg Rules, which @/eedjuire shareholder
approval in order to enter into such acquisit

. Entering into any transaction which may result jmeason, or group of persons acting together, hgldiore than 20% of o
outstanding share capital or voting power. Suchs@ations may be considered a change of contrarurRdle 5635(b) of th
Nasdaq Rules, requiring shareholder approval. Nbstanding the above, Cypriot law would not pemsito enter into an
reorganization, merger or consolidation withoutrehalder approva

. Establishing or materially amending any eqeilynpensation arrangement, in contrast to Rule B3&hich would require
shareholder approval in order to establish or natgamend such arrangemer

. Entering into any transaction other than a jguliifering involving the sale, issuance or potahissuance by the company of
shares (or securities convertible into or exerdesédr shares) equal to 20% or more of the outstanshare capital of the
Company or 20% or more of the voting power outsitagnthefore the issuance for less than the gredteoak or market
value of the stock, in contrast to Rule 5635(d)iclvtwould require shareholder approval for suchasge of shares (or
securities convertible into or exercisable for sisqu

Please see also “—Rights Attaching to Shares—IsE&&ares and Pre-emptive Rights” for restrictionghe issuance of shares.

We are not permitted to opt out of the requirentkat we maintain an audit committee that consistsedy of independent directors and
we currently comply with Rule 5605(c) of the NasdRages with respect to audit committee composiéind practices.
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ITEM 16H. Mine Safety Disclosure
Not applicable.
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ITEM 17.

PART IlI

Financial Statements

We have responded to Item 18 in lieu of responthrthis item.

ITEM 18.

Financial Statements

Please refer to the financial statements beginoingage F-1.

ITEM 19.

Exhibit
Number
1.1

21
2.2

2.3

2.4

8.1

121
12.2
131

151

Exhibits

Index to Exhibits

Description of Documen

Articles of Association of QIWI plc (incorporated beference to Exhibit 3.1 to QIWI plc’s RegistmatiStatement on Form F-1,
File No. 33:-187579, filed on March 27, 201

Form of Registrar's American Depositary Receipt (included in ExhibR)

Specimen Certificate for Class B Shares of the Regit (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2t8VI plc’s Registration
Statement on Form-1/A, File No. 33-187579, filed on April 19, 201:

Form of Deposit Agreement among the RegistrantPigositary and Owners and Beneficial Owners offthierican Deposital
Shares issued thereunder (incorporated by refeterieghibit 4.3 to QIWI plc’s Registration Statemi@m Form F-1/A, File No.
333-187579, filed on April 19, 201:

Form of Amended and Restated Registration Righte@ment among Saldivar Investments Limited, Sefge§olonin,
Palmway Holdings Limited, Antana International Cangtion, Andrey N. Romanenko, Dargle Internatidriatited, Igor N.
Mikhailov, Bralvo Limited, E1 Limited, Mail.ru GrquLimited and Mitsui & Co., Ltd., and QIWI plc. @orporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.5 to QIWI pl’s Registration Statement on For-1, File No. 33-191221, filed on September 30, 20.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant (incorporated bgneice to Exhibit 21.1 to QIWI plc’s Registratiorat®ment on Form F-1, File
No. 33:-187579, filed on March 27, 201

Rule 13i-14(a)/15+14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Office
Rule 13i-14(a)/15¢14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Office

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chiefnancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section@,3% adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

Consent of Ernst & Young LLt¢
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Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEinm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Qiwi plc

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséateof financial position of Qiwi plc as of Deceemnt81, 2013 and 2014, and the related
consolidated statements of comprehensive inconmsotidlated statements of changes in equity andotidiased cash flow statements for each
of the three years in the period ended Decembe2@®14. These financial statements are the respbtysdf the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those standard:s
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtagsonable assurance about whether the finataiaiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenenielhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts,¢onsolidated financial position of Qiwi plc at
December 31, 2013 and 2014, and of its financigbpmance and its cash flows for each of the tlyes's in the period ended December 31,
2014, in conformity with International Financial feting Standards (IFRS) as endorsed by the Europe#@n, and IFRS as published by the
IASB.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), Qiwi plc’s internal
control over financial reporting as of December 114, based on criteria established in Internaitfd Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission (2013 framework) and our report ddadch 11, 2014 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLC

Moscow, Russii

March 11, 201t
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Consolidated statement of financial position

(in thousands of Rubles, except per share data)

Assets

Non-current assets

Property and equipme

Goodwill and other intangible ass:

Long-term debt instrumen

Long-term loans

Other nor-current assel

Deferred tax asse

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Trade and other receivabl

Shor-term loans

Shor-term debt instrument

Prepaid income ta

VAT and other taxes receivak

Cash and cash equivalel

Other current asse

Total current assets

Assets of disposal group classified as held fae
Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Share capite

Additional paic-in capital

Share premiun

Other reservi

Retained earning

Translation reserv

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

Non-controlling interes
Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Long-term deferred revent
Other nor-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Shor-term borrowings

Trade and other payabl

Amounts due to customers and amounts due to t
Income tax payabl

VAT and other taxes payakt

Deferred revenu

Other current liabilitie!

Total current liabilities

Liabilities directly associated with the assetsalfisposal group classified as held for ¢

Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying notes form an integral part o$¢heonsolidated financial statemer

QIWI plc

As of December 31, 2014

As of As of
December 31  December 31

Notes 2013 2014
11 307,50( 379,94:
12,1 2,405,64! 2,367,62.
31 1,376,86. 1,806,29!
14 10,63; 52,64¢
17 38,39« 42,45¢
27 183,33¢ 239,57:
4,322,37. 4,888,53!
15 2,772,29 5,305,27!
14 65,43( 31,58¢
31 1,635,29 2,132,88
60,53 89,23¢
12,47¢ 51,07¢
16 11,636,91 17,079,96
17 159,26: 345,68t
16,342,21  25,035,72
8 — 125,86
20,664,58 30,050,12
18 907 962
1,876,10. 1,876,10.
— 3,044,30:
337,25« 764,24
573,60 2,683,80!
10,75; 204,33
2,798,622 8,573,75!
(94,766 (239,38
2,703,86! 8,334,37!
19 109,35 41,98
31,62¢ 8,39¢
7,62¢F 987
27 58,63( 37,75¢
207,23! 89,12(
19 63t 1,061
20 16,768,97 20,179,67
21 831,22¢ 1,001,28!
10,82: 11,29(
95,40: 127,73:
46,23 52,00¢
192 56
17,753,448 21,373,10
8 — 253,52!
20,664,58 30,050,12
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QIWI plc

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended December 31, 2014

(in thousands of Rubles, except per share data)

Year ended December 3

Notes 2012 2013* 2014
Revenue 22 8,911,431 11,666,055 14,718,72
Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and aizadion) 23 5,454,28 6,396,49! 7,273,09!
Selling, general and administrative exper 24 1,838,79 2,678,29! 3,082,17
Depreciation and amortizatic 11,1z 129,05: 113,10( 353,40(
Impairment of intangible assets and good 12, 1t 3,63¢ 5,47¢ —
Profit from operations 1,485,66! 2,472,67. 4,010,05.
Loss from disposal of subsidiari (1,029 — —
Change in fair value of derivative financial ass (32¢) — —
Other income 25 16,66¢ 91,19¢ 42,25
Other expense (28,739 (20,089 (29,577)
Foreign exchange ga 30 81,44¢ 78,51¢ 3,359,20
Foreign exchange lot (102,579 (70,495 (1,428,47)
Share of loss of associal (13,236) (78,896 (26,587)
Impairment of investment in associa — (21,540 (24,639
Interest incom 22 25,51( 22,20¢ 1,692
Interest expens 22 (7,520 (28,68¢) (41,519
Profit before tax from continuing operations 1,455,87! 2,444.88. 5,862,42.
Income tax expens 27 (407,729 (609,509 (894,500
Net profit from continuing operations 1,048,14 1,835,37. 4,967,91
Discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operatio 8 (240,367 — —
Net profit 807,77¢ 1,835,37: 4,967,91
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the pare 910,13¢ 1,873,22I 5,024,141
Non-controlling interest: (102,360) (37,857 (56,227
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified éditpor loss in subsequent perioc
Exchange differences on translation of foreign apens 2,47 4,561 105,78
Total comprehensive income, net of ta 810,25! 1,839,93! 5,073,701
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the pare 912,09! 1,883,27: 5,217,72
Non-controlling interest: (101,84 (43,349 (144,019
Earnings per share:
Basic, profit attributable to ordinary equity hald@f the parer 10 17.5C 36.0( 94.0¢
Basic, profit from continuing operations attributato ordinary equity holders of the par 10 20.7:2 36.0( 94.0¢
Diluted, profit attributable to ordinary equity liers of the parer 10 17.5C 35.7( 92.7:
Diluted, profit from continuing operations attrilable to ordinary equity holders of the par 10 20.7: 35.7(C 92.7¢

* The amounts shown here do not correspond toitlaad¢ial statements for the year ended Decembe2@®13 and reflect immaterial

reclassifications made to prior period to confoottirrent period presentatic

The accompanying notes form an integral part of¢heonsolidated financial statements.
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QIWI plc
Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended December 31, 2014

(in thousands of Rubles, except per share data)

Year ended December 3

Notes 2012 2013 2014

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax from continuing operatic 1,455,87! 2,444.88. 5,862,42.
Loss before tax from discontinued operati 8 (233,53) — —
Profit before tax 1,222,33 2,444,88. 5,862,42,
Adjustments to reconcile profit before income tarét cash flows generated from opera

activities
Depreciation and amortizatic 11, 1- 137,10: 113,10( 353,40(
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and po&nt (92) 12,73¢ 3,551
Impairment of investment in associa 7 — 21,54( 24,63¢
Impairment of intangible assets and good 12 3,63¢ 5,47¢ —
Foreign exchange loss (gains), (22,770 (8,021) (1,930,72)
Interest income, ne 22 (243,49() (346,01 (412,85)
Bad debt expens 14, 1t 211,03( 266,71: 150,63:
Loss/(gain) on loans issued at rate different froarket 25 (8,042 — —
Change in financial assets at fair value througtiifpor loss 31 32¢ — —
Gain from disposal of subsidiaries and discontinojeeration: 8 (45,519 — —
Loss recognized in remeasurement of fair valueresftassification as assets held for ¢ 8 167,33 — —
Share of profit for the period attributable to n@mtrolling interest and accounted for as

liability 25 24,29¢ — —
Share of loss of associal 7 13,23¢ 78,89¢ 26,58
Sharebased paymen 32 65,71¢ 230,93 421,82:
Other 3,58¢ 4,60¢ 14,72:
Operating profit before changes in working capital 1,528,609 2,824,86! 4,514,19
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receiv (1,028,02) 508,75.  (2,745,39)
Increase in other ass¢ (8,74)) (92,557 (232,42))
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to customeraraadnts due to ban (490,039 (202,750 170,06(
Increase in accounts payable and acci 4,041,45: 1,593,76! 3,621,89!
Loans (issued)/repaid from banking operati (324,199 257,19: (35,189
Cash generated from operation: 3,719,13! 4,989,26' 5,293,14.
Interest receive 170,90 467,20! 491,15(
Interest paic (6,60¢) (24,199 (29,119
Income tax paic (384,28) (706,515 (1,000,00)
Net cash flow from operating activities 3,499,15 4,725,76! 4,755,17
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisitions of shares in subsidiaries, net of casiuirec (1,062 (44) —
Contribution to associats — — (26,357
Payment for assignment of log — (90,750) (90,750
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiar 8 12,93 4,00( —
Purchase of property and equipm (35,587 (182,82) (294,40))
Proceeds from sale of property and equipn 5,34¢ 6,84¢ —
Purchase of intangible ass (42,229 (192,389 (218,16()
Loans issuel (17,757 (24,509 (60,497
Repayment of loans issu 33,63¢ 29,71t 49,59(
Purchase of debt instrumel (1,649,54) (2,862,53) (2,553,31)
Proceeds from settlement of debt instrum: 289,50( 2,111,90: 1,591,48!
Purchase of investments in associi (92,859 — —
Net cash used in investing activitie (1,497,61) (1,200,58) (1,602,400
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of share capit — — 3,044,35
Exercise of option — — 5,167
Proceeds from borrowing 52,25 34,06¢ 71,74

Repayment of promissory notes issl (16,2979



Repayment of borrowing

Disbursements of overdraft facilities,

Transactions with nc-controlling interes

Dividends paid to owners of the Gro

Dividends paid to nc-controlling shareholdel
Compensation from underwrite

Distribution of underwritel commissior

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activigs
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casba&mts
Net increase in cash and cash equivalen

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of ye
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of ye

The accompanying notes form an integral part o$¢heonsolidated financial statements.
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26.1
26.1
26.2
26.2

16
16

(3,395) (2,526) (672)

(47,457) — —
10,34( — 1,78:
(865,687 (1,881,08) (2,940,71)
(914) (2,09) (2,38¢)

— 72,83¢ —

— (67,64%) —
(871,15) (1,846,44) 179,28
2,33¢ 15,01  2,110,99
1,132,71'  1,693,75 _ 5,443,05:
8,81044 9,943,116/ 11,636,91
9,943,16/ 11,636,91 17,079,96
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QIWI plc

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended December 31, 2014

(in thousands of Rubles, except per share data)

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Share capital

Number

of shares Additional Non-

issued and paid-in Share Other Retained Translation controlling Total

Notes outstanding Amount capital premium reserves earnings reserve Total interests equity

Balance as of
December 3
2013 52,118,79 907 1,876,10. —  337,25: 573,60« 10,757 2,798,621  (94,76¢) 2,703,86!
Profit (loss) for
the yeal — — — — — 5,024,14i — 5,024,141 (56,229 4,967,91
Exchange
differences
on
translation o
foreign
operations — — — — — — 193,58 193,58(  (87,79) 105,78
Total
comprehensive
income — — — — — 5,024,141 193,58( 5,217,721 (144,019 5,073,700
Issue of share
capital 18 2,292,33 54 — 3,044,30: — — — 3,044,35 — 3,044,35
Share-based
payments 32 — — — — 421,82 — — 421,82. — 421,82.
Exercise of
options 94,87 2 — — 5,167 — — 5,16¢ — 5,16¢
Dividends 26.1 — — — — —  (2,913,93) —  (2,913,93) —  (2,913,93)
Dividends to
non-
controlling
interest 26.1 — — — — — — — — (2,38¢) (2,389
Other changes
in equity — — — — — — — — 1,78:¢ 1,78
Balance as o
December 3
2014 54,505,99 96 1,876,10. 3,044,30: 764,24. 2,683,80! 204,33 8,573,75 (239,38) 8,334,37

The accompanying notes form an integral part o$¢heonsolidated financial statements.
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Balance as o
December 31, 2012

Profit (loss) for the yee
Exchange differences c
translation of foreign

operations

Total comprehensive
income
Sharebased paymen
Exercise of option
Reimbursement of
expenses from the
underwriters
Non-proportional
distribution of the

reimbursement from

the underwriter:
Dividends
Dividends to non-
controlling interes
Balance as o
December 31, 2013

QIWI plc

Consolidated statement of changes in equity (caath

for the year ended December 31, 2014

(in thousands of Rubles, except per share data)

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Share capital

Number of
shares issuel Non-
and Additional Other Retained Translation controlling
Notes outstanding Amount paid-in capital reserves earnings reserve Total interests  Total equity
18 52,000,00 904 1,876,10. 101,12 569,31 705 2,548,15. (49,31) 2,498,84.
— — — — 1,873,22 — 1,873,221  (37,85:) 1,835,37
— — — — — 10,05: 10,052 (5,499 4,561
— — — — 1,873,22 10,05: 1,883,27: (43,34) 1,839,93
32 — — — 230,93 — — 230,93 — 230,93
32 118,79 3 — — — — 3 — 3
26.2 — — — 72,83¢ — — 72,83¢ — 72,83¢
26.2 — — — (67,649 — — (67,649 — (67,649
26.1 — — — —  (1,868,93) —  (1,868,93) —  (1,868,93)
26.1 — — — — — — — (2,112 (2,112
52,118,79 907 1,876,10. 337,25: 573,60:- 10,757 2,798,621 (94,766 2,703,86!

The accompanying notes form an integral part of¢heonsolidated financial statements.
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QIWI plc

Consolidated statement of changes in equity (caath

(in thousands of Rubles, except per share data)

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Share capital

Number of
shares issuet Non-
and Additional Other Retained  Translation controlling
Notes outstanding Amount paid-in capital reserves earnings reserve Total interests  Total equity

Balance as o

December 31, 2011 18 15,00( 89C 1,876,10. 32,81! 526,07¢ 6,01 2,441,89° (87,02() 2,354,87
Profit (loss) for the yee — — — — 910,13¢ — 910,13¢ (102,36() 807,77¢
Exchange differences on

translation of foreign

operations — — — — — 1,957 1,957 52C 2,47
Total comprehensive

income — — — — 910,13¢ 1,957 912,09 (101,84() 810,25
Split of share 18 51,285,00 — — — — — — — —
Issue of share capit 18 700,00( 14 — — — — 14 — 14
Sharebased paymen 32 — — — 65,71¢ — — 65,71¢ — 65,71¢
Disposal of subsidiarie 8 — — — — — (7,267 (7,267 132,71 125,45:
Contribution from non-

controlling interest

without change in

ownershig 6 — — — 2,59¢ — — 2,59¢ 7,74¢ 10,34(
Dividends 26.1 — — — — (866,900 — (866,900 — (866,900
Dividends to non-

controlling interes 26.1 — — — — — — — (919 (919
Balance as o

December 31, 2012 18 52,000,00 904 1,876,10. 101,12: 569,31 705 2,548,15.  (49,31) 2,498,84.

The accompanying notes form an integral part o$¢heonsolidated financial statements.
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QIWI plc
Notes to consolidated financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2014
(in thousands of Rubles, except per share data)

1. Corporate information and description of busines

QIWI plc (formerly known as QIWI Limited) (the Corapy, QIWI) was registered on February 26, 2007 lawited liability Company OE
Investment in Cyprus under the Cyprus Companies, [Gap. 113. The registered office of the Compariy?2iKennedy Avenue, Kennedy
Business Centre, ®Floor, office 203 P.C.1087, Nicosia, Cyprus. Ont8eber 13, 2010 the directors of the Company resbte change the
name of the Company from OE Investments Limite@td/I Limited. On February 25, 2013 the directordted Company resolved to change
the legal form of the Company from QIWI Limited@W!I plc. The consolidated financial statement&afi plc and its subsidiaries for the
year ended December 31, 2014 were authorizeddoeiby Board of Directors on March 6, 20

QIWI plc and its subsidiaries (collectively the ‘@Bip”) operate electronic online payment systemsarily in Russia, Kazakhstan, Moldova,
Belarus, Romania, United States of America (USA) Enited Arab Emirates (UAE) and maintain bankieg\dty supporting processing of
payments.

The Company was founded as a holding company ast@fthe business combination transaction in WwiiAO Ob’edinennya Sistema
Momentalnykh Platezhey and ZAO e-port Groups oifiestwere brought together by way of contributiorthe Company. The transaction was
accounted for as a business combination in whic®Z#’edinennya Sistema Momentalnykh Platezhey destified as the acquirer.

The Company’ ADSs have been listed on Nasdaq $iteae3, 2013 and have been admitted to trading orEM®ince May 20, 2013. Prior to
that time, there was no public market for the ComypADSs or ordinary shares. Subsequently the Campmdaced its ADSs on October 3,
2013 and on June 20, 2014.

Sergey Solonin is the ultimate controlling partytted Group as of December 31, 2014.
Saldivar Investments Limited is the parent of theup as of December 31, 2014.

Information on the Company’s principal subsidiaiiiedisclosed in Note 6.

2. Principles underlying preparation of consolidated inancial statements
2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements are prepamealhistorical cost basis, except for derivatimaricial instruments that have been measure
at fair value. The consolidated financial statera@me presented in Russian rubles (“RUB”) andalies are rounded to the nearest thousand
(RUB (000)) except when otherwise indicated.

The Group’s subsidiaries maintain and prepare t@ounting records and prepare their statutorguwatting reports in accordance with
domestic accounting legislation. Standalone fira@rgtiatements of subsidiaries are prepared in thspective functional currencies (see Note
3.3 below).
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QIWI plc

Notes to consolidated financial statements (coetifju
2. Principles underlying preparation of consolidated inancial statements (continued
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

In accordance with European regulatio@N606/2002 dated July 19, 2002, the 2014 consolidiittancial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the International Financial Repgrstandards (IFRSs) as endorsed by the Europeiam (Available on the website
http://ec.europa.eu/internal_market/accountingiied#x_en.htm). Comparative figures are preserde@012 and 2013 compiled using the
same basis of preparation. For the reported peribdee are no differences as applies to the Gbetyween the accounting standards and
interpretations endorsed by the European Uniortlamdtandards and interpretations published byntleenational Accounting Standards Bo
(IASB). Consequently, the Group accounts are pegpar accordance with the IFRS standards and irgtpons, as published by the IASB.
These consolidated financial statements are bas#uecunderlying accounting records appropriatdjysted and reclassified for fair
presentation in accordance with IFRS. IFRS adjustmiaclude and affect but not limited to such majeeas as consolidation, revenue
recognition, accruals, deferred taxation, fair eahdjustments, business combinations and impairment

2.2 Basis of consolidatior

The consolidated financial statements comprisditlamcial statements of QIWI plc and its subsidiaras of December 31 each year.

Control is achieved when the Group is exposedastrights, to variable returns from its involvemeith the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over thegtee.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if andl if the Group has:
» Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights thie¢ it the current ability to direct the relevativities of the investee
» Exposure, or rights, to variable returns fromiitgalvement with the investee, a

* The ability to use its power over the investeefted its returns
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Notes to consolidated financial statements (coetifju
2. Principles underlying preparation of consolidated inancial statements (continued
2.2 Basis of consolidation (continued

When the Group has less than a majority of thengatir similar rights of an investee, the Group @&s all relevant facts and circumstance
assessing whether it has power over an investeleding:

* The contractual arrangement with the other votedrsl of the investe
» Rights arising from other contractual arrangeme

e The GrouJs voting rights and potential voting righ
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an invesfeets and circumstances indicate that there anegdsato one or more of the thi
elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiaegins when the Group obtains control over theididry and ceases when the Group loses

control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, @mee and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or dislpaisduring the year are included in the
statement of comprehensive income from the dat&tioep gains control until the date the Group ce&aseontrol the subsidiary.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the ddtaagjuisition, being the date on which the Groufaots control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceaBke financial statements of the subsidiariegegpared for the same reporting period as th
parent company, using consistent accounting peailicie

All intra-group balances, income, expenses andalizezl gains and losses resulting from intra- grisapsactions are eliminated in full, except
for the foreign exchange gains and losses arisinigtoa-group loans.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprgiie income (OCI) are attributed to the equitydeos of the parent of the Group and to
non-controlling interests, even if this resultghie non-controlling interests having a deficit Ioele. When necessary, adjustments are made tc
the financial statements of subsidiaries to brivgjrtaccounting policies into line with the Groupscounting policies.

Acquisitions and disposals of non-controlling ietsts are accounted for as equity transactionsfiftaecial liability is measured at the fair
value of its redemption amount. All subsequent glearin the carrying amount of the financial lidlikre recognized in the parent’s profit or
loss. The exercise of such put options is accoufiateds an acquisition of non-controlling interebe Group derecognizes the financial liability
and recognizes an offsetting credit in equity, gglme same component ©ther reservesIf the put option expires unexercised, the finahc
liability is reclassified tdther reserves

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiaithout a loss of control, is accounted for agquity transaction. If the Group loses control
over a subsidiary, it:

» Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) aaldilities of the subsidian
» Derecognises the carrying amount of any-controlling interests

» Derecognises the cumulative translation differemeesrded in equity

* Recognises the fair value of the considerationivede

* Recognises the fair value of any investment rethi

» Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or Ic

» Reclassifies the parent’s share of componenegqusly recognised in OCI to profit or loss otaiaed earnings, as appropriate, as would
be required if the Group had directly disposedchefielated assets or liabilitie
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2. Principles underlying preparation of consolidated inancial statements (continued

2.3 Changes in accounting policie

The accounting policies adopted are consistent thitke of the previous financial years exceptlierchanges described below. The Group he
adopted the following new and amended IFRS anddHRRierpretations as of January 1, 2014:

Standard Content of change Impact
Investment Entities These amendments provide an exception to the ddasioh requirement for ~ These amendments have no
(Amendments to IFRS 10, IF entities that meet the definition of an investmemtity under IFRS 10 impact on the Group, since
12 and IAS 27) Consolidated Financial Statemertsd must be applied retrospectively, subjectone of the entities in the
to certain transition relief. The exception to cgligation requires investment Group qualifies to be an
entities to account for subsidiaries at fair valu®ugh profit or loss. investment entity under

IFRS 10. IFRS 10 was
adopted by the Group in the

year 2013
Offsetting Financial Assets ai These amendments clarify the meaning of 'curremdly a legally enforceable These amendments have no
Financial Liabilities right to set-off’ and the criteria for non-simultus settlement mechanisms ofmaterial impact on the
(Amendments to IAS 3 clearing houses to qualify for offsetting and ipligd retrospectively Group.
Novation of Derivatives an ~ These amendments provide relief from discontinliedge accounting when These amendments have no
Continuation of Hedge novation of a derivative designated as a hedgisfgument meets certain crite impact on the Group as the
Accounting(Amendments to  and retrospective application is required. Group has not novated its
IAS 39) derivatives during the

current or prior periods

IFRIC 21Levies IFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognises ailigbfor a levy when the activit This interpretation has no
that triggers payment, as identified by the reléVegislation, occurs. For a levyimpact on the Group as it
that is triggered upon reaching a minimum threshible interpretation clarifies has applied the recognition
that no liability should be anticipated before #ipecified minimum threshold isprinciples under IAS 37
reached. Retrospective application is requiredR&IC 21. Provisions, Continger

Liabilities and Contingen
Assets«consistent with the
requirements of IFRIC 21 in
prior years

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle

In the 2010-2012 annual improvements cycle, theBAsSued seven amendments to six standards, wiitidied an amendment to IFRS 13
Fair Value Measuremel. The amendment to IFRS 13 is effective immediadelgt, thus, for periods beginning at 1 January 204 it

clarifies in the Basis for Conclusions that shertit receivables and payables with no stated irttesitess can be measured at invoice amounts
when the effect of discounting is immaterial. Taimendment to IFRS 13 has no impact on the Group.
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2. Principles underlying preparation of consolidated inancial statements (continued
2.3 Changes in accounting policies (continuec

Annual improvements2011-2013 Cycle

In the 2011-2013 annual improvements cycle, theBAsSued four amendments to four standards, wiicluded an amendment to IFRS 1
First-time Adoption of International Financial Reportig&gandards The amendment to IFRS 1 is effective immediatelg, thus, for periods
beginning at 1 January 2014, and clarifies in thei8for Conclusions that an entity may choosetiyeeither a current standard or a new
standard that is not yet mandatory, but permitly equplication, provided either standard is appliedsistently throughout the periods
presented in the entity’s first IFRS financial staents. This amendment to IFRS 1 has no impadieGtoup, since the Group is an existing
IFRS preparer.

2.4. Standards issued by the IASB but not yet effectivand not yet adopted by EL

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the diissuance of the Company’s financial statemant not yet endorsed in EU are listed
below. This listing of standards and interpretagi®@sued are those that the Company reasonablgtsxpehave an impact on disclosures,
financial position or performance when applied &itare date. The Company intends to adopt theselards when they become effective.

Standard Content of change Impact and effective date
IFRS 9 In July 2014, the IASB issued the final versior RS 9 IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginningoomafter
Financial Financial Instruments which reflects all phasetheffinancial 1 January 2018, with early application permittelde Bidoption
Instruments instruments project and replaces IAS 39 Financistruments: of IFRS 9 will have an effect on the classificatemmd
Recognition and Measurement and all previous viessid measurement of the Company’s financial assetsyitiutkely
IFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements fo have no impact on classification and measuremdriisancial
classification and measurement, impairment, andgéed liabilities.
accounting
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2. Principles underlying preparation of consolidated inancial statements (continued

2.4. Standards issued by the IASB but not yet effectivand not yet adopted by EU (continued

Standard Content of change Impact and effective date

Amendmentst  The amendments clarify the principle in IAS 16 48 38 The amendments are effective prospectively for ahnu
IAS 16 and IA¢  that revenue reflects a pattern of economic bentfidt are  periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, watty
38: Clarification generated from operating a business (of which sisetds adoption permitted. These amendments are not eeghéxt
of Acceptable part) rather than the economic benefits that answmed have any impact to the Group given that the Graagpriot
Methods of through use of the asset. As a result, a revensedbmethod used a revenue-based method to depreciate itscnoment

Depreciation and
Amortisation

cannot be used to depreciate property, plant anipeent
and may only be used in very limited circumstartoes
amortise intangible asse

IFRS 15 Revenue IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishesvdine-

from Contracts
with customers

step model that will apply to revenue arising froomtracts
with customers. Under IFRS 15 revenue is recograseah
amount that reflects the consideration to whicleatity

expects to be entitled in exchange for transfergiogds or

assets.

Either a full or modified retrospective applicatisrequirec
for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2017 with early adoption permitted. Theupris
currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and plans

to adopt the new standard on the required effediate.

services to a customer. The principles in IFRS rivide a
more structured approach to measuring and recognisi
revenue. The new revenue standard is applicalat émtities
and will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under IFR

Management of the Company has not completed thlesss®ent of the impact of Standards and Interpostmtiot yet effective as of
December 31, 2014 on the Company’s accountingipslic

Annual improvements2010-2012 Cycle

These improvements are effective from 1 July 201 teave no material impact on the Group. They heiu

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment

This improvement is applied prospectively and filgsivarious issues relating to the definitionpefformance and service conditions whict
vesting conditions, including:

» A performance condition must contain a service @grd

» A performance target must be met while the couatgygs rendering servic

» A performance target may relate to the operatiorectivities of an entity, or to those of anothetity in the same grou
» A performance condition may be a market or-market conditior

» If the counterparty, regardless of the reason,aetsprovide service during the vesting period,slrvice condition is not satisfi

IFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifiat all contingent consideration arrangemertssified as liabilities (or assets) arising
from a business combination should be subsequergbsured at fair value through profit or loss whethr not they fall within the scope of
IFRS 9 (or IAS 39, as applicable).
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2.4. Standards issued by the IASB but not yet effectivand not yet adopted by EU (continued

IFRS 8 Operating Segments
The amendments are applied retrospectively andietathat:

* An entity must disclose the judgements madebpagement in applying the aggregation criterigairagraph 12 of IFRS 8,
including a brief description of operating segmeahtt have been aggregated and the economic cldséics (e.g., sales and gross
margins) used to assess whether the segmer*similar

» The reconciliation of segment assets to tataéss is only required to be disclosed if the reifiation is reported to the chief
operating decision maker, similar to the requiresgldsure for segment liabilitie

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangiblessets

The amendment is applied retrospectively and odarih IAS 16 and IAS 38 that the asset may belvedaby reference to observable data on
either the gross or the net carrying amount. Iritamig the accumulated depreciation or amortisatsothe difference between the gross and
carrying amounts of the asset.

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

The amendment is applied retrospectively and @édarthat a management entity (an entity that pewkky management personnel services) i
a related party subject to the related party disales. In addition, an entity that uses a manageegity is required to disclose the expenses
incurred for management services.

Annual improvements2011-2013 Cycle
These improvements are effective from 1 July 201dilsave no a material impact on the Group. Thelude

IFRS 3 Business Combinations
The amendment is applied prospectively and clariioe the scope exceptions within IFRS 3 that:
« Joint arrangements, not just joint ventures, atside the scope of IFRS

e This scope exception applies only to the accouritirthe financial statements of the joint arrangeniself

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifiat the portfolio exception in IFRS 13 can bpliagd not only to financial assets and
financial liabilities, but also to other contraetghin the scope of IFRS 9 (or IAS 39, as applieabl
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies

Set out below are the principal accounting politiesd to prepare these consolidated financialratits:

3.1 Business combinations and goodwi
Business combinations are accounted for usingdfaisition method.

Consideration transferred includes the fair vahfethe assets transferred, liabilities incurredhmsy Group to the previous owners of the
acquiree, and equity interests issued by the GrBuopsideration transferred also includes the fain& of any contingent consideration and
share- based payment awards of the acquiree tha¢placed mandatorily in the business combingter below).

If a business combination results in the termimatibpre-existing relationships between the Growg the acquiree, then the Group identified
any amounts that are not part of what the Grouptla@écquiree exchanged in the business combindtf@Group recognizes as part of
application the acquisition method only the consitlen transferred for the acquiree and the assfsired and liabilities assumed in the
exchange for the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stageg,previously held equity interest is re- measwateits acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profitasd. It is then considered in the determinatiogaafdwill.

Any contingent consideration to be transferredheydcquirer will be recognised at fair value atabquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability that is a ficiahinstrument and within the scope of IASB@ancial Instruments: Recognition and
Measuremer, is measured at fair value with changes in falu@aecognised either in either profit or loss swachange to OCI. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scop®A& 39, it is measured in accordance with the appate IFRS. Contingent consideration
is classified as equity is not re-measured andexpEnt settlement is accounted for within equity.

The Group measures any non-controlling intereis ggroportionate interest in the identifiable assets of the acquiree.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being theess of the aggregate of the consideration trenesf@nd the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests, and any previous interedtl hever the net identifiable assets acquired @tillities assumed. If the fair value of the net
assets acquired is in excess of the aggregatedawaton transferred, the Group re-assesses wheties correctly identified all of the assets
acquired and all of the liabilities assumed andenws the procedures used to measure the amoubésracognised at the acquisition date. If
re- assessment still results in an excess of ihedhie of net assets acquired over the aggragatsideration transferred, then the gain is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (contined)
3.1 Business combinations and goodwill (continuec

After initial recognition, goodwill is measuredaist less any accumulated impairment losses. gouhpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from theuesitipn date, allocated to each of the Group’$hagsnerating units that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination,spective of whether other assets or liabilitiethefacquired are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-gengrahit and part of the operation within that ugitlisposed of, the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of is included in taerging amount of the operation when determinirggdhin or loss on disposal of the operal
Goodwill disposed in this circumstance is measi@skd on the relative values of the operation dispp@nd the portion of the cash-generatin
unit retained.

3.2 Investments in associate

The Group’s investment in its associate is accalfdeusing the equity method. An associate israityein which the Group has significant
influence.

Under the equity method, the investment in the@amis carried on the statement of financial fimsiat cost plus post acquisition changes in
the Group’s share of net assets of the associatdw@ll relating to the associate is included ia tarrying amount of the investment and is
neither amortized nor individually tested for impaént.

The statement of comprehensive income reflectStiveip’s share of the results of operations of #ewaiate. When there has been a change
recognized directly in the equity of the associtite,Group recognizes its share of any changesliantbses this, when applicable, in the
statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gaindsl@sses resulting from transactions between tloeiand the associate are eliminated t
extent of the interest in the associate.

The Group’s share of profit of an associate is showthe face of the statement of comprehensivamec This is the profit attributable to
equity holders of the associate and, therefongrafit after tax and non-controlling interests lire tsubsidiaries of the associate.

The financial statements of the associates areapeddor the same reporting period as the Grougetecessary, adjustments are made to
bring the accounting policies in line with thosetlod Group.

After application of the equity method, the Growgiedmines whether it is necessary to recognizedditianal impairment loss on its
investment in its associates. The Group deternmahesch reporting date whether there is any obetvidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, theu@malculates the amount of impairment as the mdiffee between the recoverable amount of an
associate and its carrying value and recognizeartf@int in the statement of comprehensive income.

Upon loss of significant influence over the assmgithe Group measures and recognizes any retaimiegtment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the aatmapon loss of significant influence and the failue of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognized in profitoss|
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (contined)

3.3 Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are preséntRdssian rubles (RUB), which is the Companyisctional and the Group’s presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determinesvita éunctional currency, depending on what the ulyitey economic environment is, and
items included in the financial statements of eatity are measured using that functional curreficgnsactions in foreign currencies are
initially recorded at the functional currency ratehe date of the transaction. Monetary assetdiapitities denominated in foreign currencies
are re-measured at the functional currency raexofiange at the reporting date. All differencestaken to profit or loss. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical costfior@ign currency are translated using the exchaagps as of the dates of the initial transacti

Norn-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreigmency are translated using the exchange ratee aate when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on retrargiatif nonmonetary items is treated in line with the recagniof gain or loss on change in 1
value of the item (i.e., translation differencesitems whose fair value gain or loss is recogninesther comprehensive income or profit or
is also recognized in other comprehensive incom@dfit or loss, respectively).

The functional currency of the foreign operationgénerally the respective local currency — US@dlU.S.$), Euro (€), Kazakhstan tenge
(KZT), Belarussian ruble (BYR), Moldovan leu (MDLWatvian Lats (LVL) and New Romanian leu (RON).

As of the reporting date, the assets and liakslitiBthese subsidiaries are translated into thegptation currency of the Group (the Russian
Ruble) at the rate of exchange at the reporting datl their statements of comprehensive incom#anslated at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year or exchange ratesifingvan the date of specific transactions. Thehexwe differences arising on the translation
are recognized in other comprehensive income. §podal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumuladiweount recognized in equity relating to
that particular foreign operation is recognizedhia profit or loss.

The exchange rates of the Russian ruble to eaplcetige currency as of December 31, 2014 and 2Gk2 as follows:

Exchange rates at December : 2013 2014

US Dollar 32.729: 56.258:
Euro 44.969¢ 68.342
Kazakhstan Tenge (10 21.308t¢ 30.825°
Belarus Ruble (10,00( 34.307: 38.798¢
Moldovan Leu (10 25.079¢ 36.028:
Latvian Lats* 64.074: 64.436t
New Romanian Leu (1( 100.891i 153.080!

* Since January 15, 2014 Latvian Lats were withdréram circulation and replaced with Eul

The currencies listed above are not a fully conblerbutside the territories of countries of thagerations. Related official exchange rates are
determined daily by the Central Bank of the Russ&iaderation (further CB RF). Market rates may diffem the official rates but the
differences are, generally, within narrow parangteonitored by the respective Central Banks. Téstation of assets and liabilities
denominated in the currencies listed above into RttBhe purposes of these financial statements dotindicate that the Group could realize
or settle, in RUB, the reported values of thesetasand liabilities. Likewise, it does not indicéttat the Group could return or distribute the
reported RUB value of capital and retained earntogts shareholders.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (contined)

3.4  Property and equipment
3.4.1 Cost of property and equipme

Property and equipment are stated at cost lessragated depreciation and any accumulated impairimevilue. Expenditures for continuing
repairs and maintenance are charged to the prdfiss as incurred.

3.4.2 Depreciation and useful live

Depreciation is calculated on property and equigmera straight-line basis from the time the asastsavailable for use, over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Bank equipmen 3-20 year
Processing servers and engineering equipl 3-10 year
Computers and office equipme 3-5 year:
Other equipmer 2-7 year:

The asset’s residual values, useful lives and dégtren methods are reviewed, and adjusted as pppte, at each financial year-end.

3.5 Intangible assets
3.5.1 Software and other intangible asse

Software and other intangible assets acquired aggaare measured on initial recognition at cbhe cost of other intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is their fair value athefdate of acquisition. Following initial recotion, intangible assets are carried at cost less
any accumulated amortization and accumulated impit losses.

Following initial recognition of the developmentp®nditure as an asset, the cost model is applapdrieg the asset to be carried at cost less
any accumulated amortization and accumulated impait losses. Amortization of the asset begins vdesrelopment is complete and the a

is available for use. It is amortized over the pemf expected future benefit, generally 3-5 yeBrging the period of development, the asset i
tested for impairment annually.

3.5.2 Software development cos

Development expenditure on an individual projeceisognized as an intangible asset when the Gramglemonstrate the technical feasibility
of completing the intangible asset so that it Wwélavailable for use or sale, its intention to ctatgand its ability to use or sell the asset, how
the asset will generate future economic benefits aivailability of resources to complete the aardtthe ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during development.

3.5.3 Useful life and amortization of intangible asse

The Group assesses whether the useful life oftangible asset is finite or indefinite and, if fiithe length of that useful life. An intangible
asset is regarded by the entity as having an inidefiiseful life when, based on an analysis obfthe relevant factors, there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset is expedtegenerate net cash inflows for the entity.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (contined)
3.5 Intangible assets (continued

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortizedaostraight-line basis over the useful economiesliand assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset b@impaired. Below is the summary of useful lieésntangible assets:

Customer base (agents collecting cash from ultimas¢éomers 4 year
Software 3-6 year:
Licenses 3-5 year*
Bank license indefinite
Trademarks and other rigt 3-5 year:

* The terms of useful life could differ of those stif it is directly stipulated by agreeme

Amortization periods and methods for intangiblestssvith finite useful lives are reviewed at leaiseach financial year-end. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern ouamption of future economic benefits embodied sadhkset are accounted for by changing th
amortization period or method, as appropriate,teeated as changes in accounting estimates.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives acd amortized, but are tested for impairment arlgpeither individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. The assessment of indeflifdgs reviewed annually to determine whetheritigefinite life continues to be supportable.
Indefinite-lived intangible assets include the dameplibanking license with a carrying value of 1g&@&s of December 31, 2014 and 2013. It is
considered indefinite-lived as the related liceissexpected to be renewed indefinitely.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of darigible asset are measured as the difference éetilie net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognizétkistatement of comprehensive income when the izsderecognized.

3.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whhtreris an indication that an asset, other thard@iloand intangible assets with indefinite
useful life, may be impaired. If any such indicatiexists, or when annual impairment testing foaaset is required, the Group estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoveaahtrint is the higher of an asset’s or cash-genegratiit's fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use and is determined for an individuakfsunless the asset does not generate cashérthatvare largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. Where the cgrayimount of an asset exceeds its recoverable artberdsset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. In assesgaiue in use, the estimated future cash flowslem@unted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current maassessments of the time value of money and the sigcific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuatiodel is used.

These calculations are corroborated by valuatiotijphes, quoted share prices for publicly tradetssdiaries, if applicable, or other available
fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on etdiudgets and forecast calculations, which agpamed separately for each of the Group’s
CGUs, to which the individual assets are allocated.
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3.6 Impairment of non-financial assets (continued

These budgets and forecast calculations genemigra period of five years or longer, when managgonsiders appropriate. For longer
periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated amglied to project future cash flows after the aesir.

Impairment losses of continuing operations aregatzed in profit or loss in those expense categaransistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment ieragdach reporting date as to whether there isnaligation that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may hageahsed. If such indication exists, the Group malkeestimate of recoverable amount. A
previously recognized impairment loss is reversag i there has been a change in the estimates tosgetermine the asset's recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recodnit¢hat is the case, the carrying amount ofaébget is increased to its recoverable amoun

That increased amount cannot exceed the carryimgianthat would have been determined, net of dégien, had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. Such salés recognized in profit or loss. The followicgteria are also applied in assessing
impairment of specific assets:

Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and whincumstances indicate that the carrying value beympaired. Impairment is determined
for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amouth@icash-generating units, to which the goodwittes. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating units is less than their aagrgimount an impairment loss is recognized. Impantosses relating to goodwill cannot be
reversed in future periods. The Group performaiitsual impairment test of goodwill as of Decembier 3

Intangible asset

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives wsted for impairment annually as of December &fieeindividually or at the cash generating
unit level, as appropriate and whenever eventscandmstances indicate that an asset may be inthaire

3.7 Financial assets
3.7.1 Initial recognition and measuremer

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 aresifeed as financial assets at fair value througtiitor loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments, or available-for-sale finaheissets, as appropriate. When financial asset®aognized initially, they are measured at
fair value, plus, in the case of investments ndaiatvalue through profit or loss, directly attvfable transaction costs. The Group determines
the classification of its financial assets on alitecognition and, where allowed and approprigevaluates this designation at each financial
yealend. All regular way purchases and sales of firdassets are recognized on the trade date, viditle date that the Group commits to
purchase the asset. Regular way purchases oraseal@sirchases or sales of financial assets thaireedelivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or conventiothe marketplace.
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3.7 Financial assets (continued

Financial assets at fair value through profit osk

Financial assets at fair value through profit @slinclude financial assets held for trading andrftial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or lossn&ncial assets are classified as held for traditigey are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term.

Financial assets at fair value through profit avgtlare carried in the statement of financial posit fair value with net changes in fair value

recognized in “change in fair value of derivatiugahcial assets”, “other gains” or “other lossesthie statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets designated upon initial recogmigibfair value through profit or loss are desigdadt their initial recognition date and only if
the criteria under IAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivable

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finarasakts with fixed or determinable payments thahat@uoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, loans and receivables ardéechat amortized cost using the effective interatt method less any allowance for
impairment. Gains and losses are recognized intgmofoss when the loans and receivables are dgrezed or impaired, as well as through
amortization process.

Debt instrument

Debt instruments and financial investments are aenivative financial assets with fixed or deterntilgapayments and fixed maturities, which
the Group has the intention and ability to holanaturity. After initial measurement, held-to-matyfinancial investments are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effectivedsteate (EIR), less impairment.

If the Group sold or reclassified more than angn#icant amount of debt instruments before maguather than in certain specific
circumstances), the entire category would be tdiated would have to be reclassified as availableséite. Furthermore, the Group would be
prohibited from classifying any financial asseha$d to maturity during the following two years.

Due from banks and loans and advances to custo

‘Due from banks’ and ‘Loans and advances to custsimi@clude non-derivative financial assets wittefl or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market, other than:

e Those that the Group intends to sell immedyatelin the near term and those that the Group upitial recognition designates at fair
value through profit or los:

e Those that the Group, upon initial recognition,igieates as available for sale;

» Those for which the Group may not recover subsifiptall of its initial investment, other than beisg of credit deterioratio

After initial measurement, amounts ‘Due from bardsd ‘Loans and advances to customers’ are substygueeasured at amortized cost, less
allowance for impairment.
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Amortized cos

Held-to-maturity investments, due from banks armhtoand advances to customers and debt issuedfunis lent and loans and receivables
are measured at amortized cost. This is computed tise EIR method less any allowance for impairtm@&mortized cost is